
Board of Trustees 

Quarterly Meeting 

May 20-21, 2020

1



Table of Contents 

1. Agenda

2. Approval of Minutes Memo
a. February 19-20, 2020
b. March 05, 2020

3. Audit Committee Report

4. Chief Executive Officers Reports
a. Pending Board Matters
b. Trustee Education Report
c. Disclosure Report
d. Staff Summary Report

5. Communications Report

6. Financial Report Memo
a. Financial Report
b. Cash Flow Report
c. History and Projections

7. Fees & Expenses Report

8. FY20 Budget Update

9. Legislative Update

10. Anchorage Office Memo

11. Chief Investment Officer’s Report

12. Risk Overview

13. Capital Market Overview Presentation

14. Asset Class Overview Presentation

15. Annual Review of Asset Allocation & Capital Markets Assumptions

16. Investment Advisor Applications

17. Investment Policy Review

18. Pacing Plan

19. In State Investment Program

20. APFC Budget Review
a. FY20 Budget Projections
b. FY21 Budget Approval

21. Calendars
a. 2020 Calendar
b. 2021 Calendar

2



1. Agenda 
  

3



 
QUARTERLY MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

May 20-21, 2020 
 
 

Day 1 Webinar Access (click link to join webinar) 
Join via WebEx and enjoy the ability to listen on your computer and follow presentations: 

https://apfc.webex.com/apfc/onstage/g.php?MTID=eed4b268824804da4ec0f1a2086ef9f73 
Event Password: 05202020 

 

Day 2 Webinar Access (click link to join webinar) 
Join via WebEx and enjoy the ability to listen on your computer and follow presentations: 

https://apfc.webex.com/apfc/onstage/g.php?MTID=eed4b268824804da4ec0f1a2086ef9f73
Event Password: 05212020 

 

Teleconference Option 
If you are unable to join in-person or via webinar, please contact us at  

(907) 796-1500 to receive a teleconference number. 
 

AGENDA 
 

WEDNESDAY, MAY 20, 2020 
 
10:00 a.m. CALL TO ORDER 
 

  ROLL CALL (Action) 
 

  APPROVAL OF AGENDA (Action) 
 

  APPROVAL OF MINUTES (Action) 
• February 19-20, 2020 
• March 05, 2020 

 

SCHEDULED APPEARANCES AND PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 

10:15 a.m. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
• Audit Committee 

 

10:25 a.m. COMMUNICATION FROM STATE AUDITOR 
• May include Executive Session 

 

10:55 a.m. ELECTION OF VICE CHAIR (Action) 
 

11:00 a.m.  CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORTS (Information/Standard Reports) 
• Pending Board Matters, Trustee Education Report, Disclosure Report, Staff Summary 

Report, Investment Guidelines Update 
• Communications Report 
• Financial Report 
• History & Projections 
• Investment Management Fee Report  
• FY20 Budget Update 
• Legislative Update 
• Anchorage Office Timeline (Action) 

 

11:15 a.m. INVESTMENT ADVISOR COMMENTS 
 

11:25 a.m. CIO REPORT 
Marcus Frampton, Chief Investment Officer 

 
 
 

4

https://apfc.webex.com/apfc/onstage/g.php?MTID=eed4b268824804da4ec0f1a2086ef9f73


 

12:00 p.m.  RISK OVERVIEW (Information) 
  Sebastian Vadakumcherry, Chief Risk Officer 
 

12:30 p.m.  BREAK 
 

12:45 p.m.  CAPITAL MARKET OVERVIEW (Information) 
  Greg Allen, Callan LLC 

Steve Center, Callan LLC  
 

1:10 p.m. ASSET CLASS OVERVIEW (Information) 
  Marcus Frampton, Chief Investment Officer 
  Steve Center, Callan LLC 
 

1:30 p.m. ANNUAL REVIEW OF ASSET ALLOCATION & CAPITAL MARKETS ASSUMPTIONS  
  Marcus Frampton, Chief Investment Officer 
  Callan, LLC 
   

2:00 p.m. RECESS FOR THE DAY 
 

THURSDAY, May 21, 2020 
 

8:55 a.m. MEETING RECONVENES 
 

9:00 a.m. INVESTMENT ADVISOR CANDIDATE INTERVIEW 
• 9:00 – 9:25, Sharmila Kassam 
• 9:30 – 9:55, Andrew Sawyer  
• 10:00 – 10:25, John Skjervem 
• 10:30 – 10:55, Kenneth Frier 
• 11:00 – 11:25, Jeb Burns 

 

11:30 a.m. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

11:45 a.m. AWARD OF ADVISOR SEAT (Action) 
 

12:00 p.m. Break 
 

12:15 p.m.  INVESTMENT POLICY REVIEW & ADOPTION (Action) 
  Marcus Frampton, Chief Investment Officer 
   

12:55 p.m. PACING APPROVAL (ACTION) 
 

1:20 p.m. IN-STATE INVESTMENT PROGRAM UPDATE (Information) 
 

1:35 p.m. APFC BUDGET REVIEW (Action) 
  Sara Race, Administrative Operation Manager 

• FY20 BUDGET PROJECTIONS (Information) 
• FY21 BUDGET APPROVAL (Action) 

 

2:00 p.m. ADVISOR COMMENTS (Information) 
 

2:15 p.m. OTHER MATTERS 
  Angela Rodell, Chief Executive Officer  
 

2:20 p.m. TRUSTEE COMMENTS  
  FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 

2:30 p.m. ADJOURNMENT 
 

5



2. Approval of Minutes 
  

6



 
 
 
 

SUBJECT:   Approval of Minutes 
 

ACTION:__X__ 
 
 

DATE:      May 20, 2020  
 

INFORMATION:  

 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Staff reviewed the following Board of Trustees meeting summary minutes, draft copies are 
attached for your approval. 
 
 February 19-20, 2020  Quarterly Meeting 

 March 05, 2020   Special Meeting 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approval of the summary minutes of the Board of Trustees meetings listed above. 

7



Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation 1 Quarterly Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  February 19-20, 2020 
 
 

ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION 
 

QUARTERLY MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

February 19-20, 2020 
8:30 a.m. 

 
Taken at: 

David Rose Board Room 
Michael J. Burns Building 

801 West 10th Street, Suite B 
Juneau, Alaska   99801 

 
SUMMARY MINUTES 

 
Trustees Present:   Craig Richards, Chair 
     Carl Brady, Vice Chair 
     William G. Moran 
     Marty Rutherford 
     Corri A. Feige 
     Lucinda Mahoney 
 
Trust staff present:   Angela Rodell, CEO  Marcus Frampton, CIO 
     Val Mertz, CFO   Steve Mosely 
     Valeria Martinez  Jim Parise 
     Sebastian Vadakumcherry Katherine Smith 
     Ross Alexander  Sara Race 
     Logan Rahn   Rose Duran 
     Tim Andreyka   Rafa Ramirez 
     Sam LaPierre   Ed Rime 
     Yulian Ninkov   Chad Brown 
     Danielle Graham 
 
Investment Advisors:  George Zinn   Timothy Walsh    
 
Others Present:   Gregory Allen, Callan Associates 
     Steven Center, Callan Associates 
     Doug Woodby, 350Juneau 
     Mike Tobin, 350Juneau 
     Taylor Mamman, RCLCO 
     Ben Maslan, RCLCO 
     Cathy Giessel, Senate President 
     Bryce Edgmon, House Speaker 
     Representative Neal Foster 
     Representative Jennifer Johnston 
     Representative Chuck Kopp 
     Senator Natasha von Imhof 
     Mike Barnhill, Alaska Department of Revenue 
 

8



Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation 2 Quarterly Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  February 19-20, 2020 
 
 

     PROCEEDINGS 
 
February 19, 2020 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
CHAIR RICHARDS called the Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation Quarterly Meeting to order, 
began with the roll call, and recognized that a quorum was present.   
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

MOTION:  A motion to approve the agenda was made by TRUSTEE FEIGE; seconded 
by TRUSTEE RUTHERFORD. 
 
There being no objection, the MOTION was approved. 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES (December 3-4, 2019) 
 

MOTION:  A motion to approve the minutes of December 3-4, 2019, was made by 
TRUSTEE MORAN; seconded by TRUSTEE RUTHERFORD. 

 
 There being no objection, the MOTION was approved. 
 
SCHEDULED APPEARANCES AND PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
CHAIR RICHARDS stated that next on the agenda was scheduled appearances and public 
participation.  He recognized Mr. Doug Woodby. 
 
MR. WOODBY began with appreciation for the opportunity to provide comments and added that 
he serves as co-chair of 350Juneau Climate Action for Alaska.  He asked if the Corporation 
could tell the Alaskan public how they will deal with the substantial financial risk that is created 
by climate crisis.  He noted that he examined the digital version of the Board packet and stated 
concern that nowhere is climate risk mentioned.  He continued that he had done a word search on 
“climate” and found it mentioned just three times in public testimony from the last meeting.  He 
added that the financial news is replete with stories of the accelerating move towards divestment 
from fossil fuels.  He gave a number of examples of investors no longer financing major oil and 
gas producers.  He asked the Permanent Fund Corporation to consider accelerating divestment of 
fossil fuel holdings that are dragging down returns and not helping the Fund to grow.   
 
CHAIR RICHARDS thanked Mr. Woodby, and recognized Mike Tobin. 
 
MR. TOBIN thanked the board for the opportunity to testify as a friend of the Fund, and as a 
beneficiary.  He stated that he is also a member of the steering committee of 350Juneau.  He 
talked about fossil fuel investment and the fiduciary duty and responsibility to act in a way that 
would best serve careful investment and put the interests of all of their beneficiaries above all 
and strive to protect them equally.  He continued that, for most of the beneficiaries, fossil fuel 
investments are too risky with potentially negative returns over the medium and long terms.  He 
asked the trust to act with prudence and impartiality in the interest of the Fund, and not out of  
historical loyalty to the fossil fuel sector. 
 

9



Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation 3 Quarterly Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  February 19-20, 2020 
 
 

CHAIR RICHARDS asked if there was anyone else present or online that would like to make a  
statement.  There being no one, he moved to the CEO’s report. 
 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT 
 
CEO RODELL welcomed the chairman and members of the board to Juneau, and began with a 
number of things that were completed at the December board meeting which will be discussed 
today.  She had an opportunity to be in California with PPI, which is an interesting organization, 
and encouraged the trustees to take advantage of attending one of their meetings.  The summer 
roundtable will be in Vancouver July 15th and 17th.  She noted being in the middle of the 
legislative session, and that board budgets were moving forward with great deliberation.  In the 
Cash Flow Report she pointed out how active the Fund was in terms of rebalancing. 
 
INVESTMENT ADVISORS' REPORT 
 
MR. WALSH talked briefly about an annual letter from Berkshire Hathaway and Warren Buffet 
that will release the numbers for this year.  Last year he noted that “Prices are sky high for 
businesses possessing decent long-term prospects” and we do not know what Buffet will be 
talking about this year.  He moved to the dense amount of data that was released in the packet, 
and stated that the theme seemed to be “Aspirations and capabilities should be aligned.”   
 
MR. ZINN thanked all for having him as an investment advisor for over ten years and stated 
excitement about a number of themes for this meeting.  He stated that he was especially looking 
forward to the discussion about resourcing.  
  
CIO REPORT 
 
MR. FRAMPTON noted changes on the personnel side, and highlighted two developments in 
public markets.  He stated that he is working with Jim Parise on a number of initiatives.  Jim is 
now being referred to as Deputy CIO of Public Markets.  He continued that public markets had a 
strong year.  Fixed income and public equity both beat their benchmarks for the year.  He 
highlighted the Total Fund & ERA Modeling Exercise which was a significant effort in January.  
He stated that real estate was a big focus at the December Board meeting, and he spent a 
significant amount of time thinking through those things which will be discussed later in the 
meeting. 
 
CHAIR RICHARDS recognized Val Mertz. 
 
AUDIT RFP UPDATE 
 
MS. MERTZ stated that the RFP was finalized and released on December 16.  The evaluation  
period started on January 20th, and wrapped up a couple of weeks ago.  The notice of intent to  
award was done on February 10th, and we are here for consideration and approval to move 
forward with negotiation of the new audit contract.  She added that there has not been any 
indication of any protests.  She continued that an evaluation committee, which included five staff 
members, was put together, and she thanked them for the help.  KPMG was the successful 
bidder, according to the scoring.     
 

MOTION:  A motion to approve the appointment of KPMG as the Alaska Permanent  
Fund financial auditor and authorize staff to enter into a contract for a period of five years  

10



Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation 4 Quarterly Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  February 19-20, 2020 
 
 

with three one-year renewal options subject to satisfactory negotiation of the terms was 
made by TRUSTEE RUTHERFORD, seconded by TRUSTEE FEIGE. 
 
After a roll call vote, the MOTION was unanimously approved (TRUSTEES BRADY; 
MORAN; RUTHERFORD; FEIGE; RICHARDS). 
 

CHAIR RICHARDS moved to Risk Overview, and recognized Sebastian Vadakumcherry. 
 
RISK OVERVIEW 
 
MR. VADAKUMCHERRY stated that he is the chief risk officer and that his presentation will 
be presented in two parts:  Risk appetite and risk profile.  It was decided that the risk tolerance 
portfolio would be used to test the risk appetite.  He explained that meant that the testing would 
be done on a weekly basis for a one-year period, and he went over the results since the last board 
meeting.  The portfolio was tested on two fronts and the portfolio exceeded the risk appetite 
portfolio.  He moved to the 2025 allocation which will exceed the risk appetite on all four 
metrics.  The key driver of risk is mostly the changes in the projected asset allocations from 
public to private equity.  The public equities are being reduced by 1.5 percent, and they are 
moving back to private equity.  He continued that private asset modeling has always been a 
challenge because of the lack of data.  Now there is more data available, and institutions are 
trying to map that in the modeling being used.  He also agreed that there will be an evolution in 
changes in modeling that will help to test private assets better.  
 
MR. ALLEN stated that the more private markets are in the portfolio, the less accurate the tool 
will be in terms of telling how it will actually play out.  He continued that there may be a third 
dimension that could be captured in the process which gets at the illiquidity risk in a downturn.   
 
MR. VADAKUMCHERRY highlighted that even with all the shortcomings of modeling and 
measurements, the evolution of the portfolio is moving into more riskier chunkiness, but the 
shortcomings of modeling and measurements are still useful measures to examine.  He talked 
about the shifting of the risk profile of the portfolio from public assets over the last 40 years to 
private assets.  He continued that the change in the portfolio mix contributes to increased 
operation risk.  He explained that operational risk is the inadequacy of people, processes, and 
systems.  There is a need to make sure that the teams at APFC have adequate funding to have 
systems and the infrastructure in place for expansion.  The Fund is expected to grow to $78 
billion by 2025, which means there is a need for more resources.  He summarized that asset 
allocation should not be driven solely by return considerations, and that operational risks are not 
the drivers of the returns, but a consequential driver of return. The institution does not want to 
take operational risks, and we need to be aware of those risks.  He then moved to the key risk 
metric that is reported every quarter and talked about the Sharpe ratios, asset-by-class basis, 
VaR, and the tracking errors that have been within limits.  He stated that risk appetite can be 
defined in a number of ways, but it needs to be defined.  It can be liquidity, drawdowns, or it can 
be POMV.  All of them will have different results on the portfolio construct.  
 
CAPITAL MARKET OVERVIEW 
 
CHAIR RICHARDS recognized Steve Center for Callan's presentation. 
 
MR. CENTER stated that they will present two topics: the overview of the capital markets over 
the last quarter and last year; and then the capital market expectation projections and how they 

11



Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation 5 Quarterly Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  February 19-20, 2020 
 
 

come about.  He looked at the broad capital market performance, and stated that, at this point, the 
market is pricing the likelihood of additional action in 2020 as very low; and we do not believe 
that the Fed will move again.  He talked about the impact that coronavirus is having in China, 
and we will see how that will impact the U.S.  On the overall market environment, 2019 was 
strong and explained how this may affect 2020.  He talked about the factors impacting inflation, 
how much the Fed controlled and actually impacted inflation.  He moved to the trade wars and 
that it could ultimately impact the overall manufacturing within China.  He added that China has 
been struggling for the last eight to ten years with their labor costs going up to the point that 
much of the manufacturing that was once done in China is now being done in other countries 
where labor costs are lower.  This could be the tipping point that changes what is being done 
from an export standpoint from China.  They may move from being a low-cost manufacturer to a 
more high-cost, high-tech manufacturer.  He continued that the Fed is projecting a lower, long-
term Fed funds rate and the market is projecting a slightly higher Fed funds rate than what was 
projected last quarter.     
 
CHAIR RICHARDS called a break. 
 
(Break.) 
 
CHAIR RICHARDS called all back on the record, and recognized Greg Allen. 
 
MR. ALLEN talked about the capital market outlook, the forward-looking 10-year projections.  
He explained the methodology that gave a frame of reference for how to think about the 
projections, and then pointed out some of the highlights of the numbers in the presentation.  
 
MR. CENTER moved on to performance and began by looking at the asset allocation for the 
Permanent Fund.  He stated that, as of December 31st, the Permanent Fund ended the calendar 
year in line with its target asset allocation, slightly underallocated for real estate, and slightly 
overallocated for fixed income.  He continued that the asset allocation for the year-end 
represented a slight increase to public equity and a slight decrease to alternatives relative to the 
previous quarter.  He explained Total Fund performance and went into longer-term performance, 
which was quite strong.  On the whole, the Permanent Fund compared very favorably versus 
benchmarks.   
 
He continued that the absolute return, the three- and five-year numbers, look very strong and 
would not hold that absolute return performance in a bad light.  He moved to the risk return and 
stated that the Total Fund over the last ten years is where it should be relative to the benchmark: 
A higher return while exhibiting a lower standard deviation.  He continued with the Performance 
Scorecard that was implemented by the past CIO which measures the Total Fund’s performance 
in short-term, median-term, and long-term perspectives.  He explained that on a short-term basis, 
the Permanent Fund over the last year did trail both the performance benchmark and the passive 
benchmark, but median-term has done very well relative to peers, and long-term has 
outperformed both the CPI+5 and the target Sharpe ratio of 0.5.  It came in at the 49th percentile 
over the Performance Scorecard metrics.  He added that it makes more sense for the percentile 
rankings to be based on peers because there is a peer ranking for all of these.   
 
CHAIR RICHARDS called a lunch break. 
 
(Lunch break.) 
 

12



Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation 6 Quarterly Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  February 19-20, 2020 
 
 

CHAIR RICHARDS called all back on the record. 
 
ASSET CLASS OVERVIEW 
 
MR. CENTER touched on the public asset classes, public equity, fixed income plus; and then  
moved to alternatives, including real estate, absolute return, private equity, and income 
opportunities.  He summarized that the Fund ended the calendar year at about $68.2 billion in 
assets, up about 4.1 percent for the quarter, and 15.7 percent for the year.  Both trailed the 
benchmarks below median for the public funds but above median for the last year versus 
endowments and foundations.  He continued that equity and fixed income did quite well, and 
there was a bit of difficulty from alternatives.  He added that private equity and income 
opportunities were two particularly bright spots. 
 
CHAIR RICHARDS continued to alternatives with Steve Moseley. 
 
ALTERNATIVES, ASSET CLASS UPDATE 
 
MR. MOSELEY stated that he is responsible for alternatives and introduced Logan Rahn, a 
relatively new associate.  He also stated that Ross Alexander is responsible for the infrastructure 
portfolio.  He talked about the market context and then moved to returns, particularly the points 
about concentrations and a couple of public positions.  He added that he would also like to talk 
about strategy and how that market context and returns are managed.  He began with absolute  
return. 
 
MR. RAHN stated that the absolute return portfolio is over three years into a strategy change and 
a rebuild between a legacy approach, which was an investment in a fund of funds and a direct 
approach where APFC staff is underwriting and directly investing into managers.  He continued 
that absolute return differs from other alternative asset classes in that the aim is for an accretive 
return while remaining uncorrelated to market-driven asset types that targets better liquidity than 
other alternative investments.   
 
MR. MOSELY stated that this concept is hugely powerful and fairly simple, but not intuitive.  It 
is confusing to the outside world.  What is being tried is to preserve capital by backing managers 
who are taking on off-setting risks.  They are not trying to deliver zero returns, but the results of 
that.  If beta can be eliminated from the portfolio and a positive return is still delivered, it is 
extremely valuable.   
 
MR. RAHN stated that the best example of this was December of last year for the quarter when 
we were up where the S&P 500 was very down.   
 
MR. MOSELY stated that there would be surprises, but this portfolio in aggregate, given the 19  
managers selected, reduces overall risk of the Permanent Fund.  It is not cash, but it is a risk  
reducer, and it seems to be delivering what was targeted.   
 
MR. ALEXANDER continued that private infrastructure is the largest part of the private income  
portfolio; about 50 percent.  The bulk is being done through fund investments, although about 20  
to 25 percent is coinvestments, broadly diversified across asset type and geography.  He 
continued that, historically, the focus was on power generation, transportation, the kind of 
traditional infrastructure asset classes.  Recently, more of the investing and focus has been in 
emerging infrastructure classes, whether renewable power generation, battery storage projects, 

13



Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation 7 Quarterly Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  February 19-20, 2020 
 
 

telecom.  Investments that are newer to infrastructure but have the same characteristics that are 
looked for all along.  He switched to private credit which is investing through commingled funds 
that provide loans to small and medium businesses in the U.S. and Europe. He then moved to 
income opportunities.  This is the last piece of the private income portfolio and the most 
opportunistic, the most flexible.  There is a continued good deal flow and opportunities from the  
private credit managers.   
 
MR. MOSELEY moved to the private equity and the special opportunities portfolios.  Private 
equity is generally known, but special opportunities is a portfolio that is designed to address the 
opportunities that would otherwise be missed being locked into a narrow definition of what 
private equity is.  He continued that these investments are characterized by an investment theme 
of interest being pursued, higher concentration, higher complexity, and a higher expected return.  
 
CHAIR RICHARDS called a break. 
 
(Break.) 
 
CHAIR RICHARDS called the meeting back to order and continued with the real estate asset 
class update. 
 
REAL ESTATE ASSET CLASS UPDATE 
 
MS. DURAN began the presentation by providing an update on the items that were worked on  
since the last meeting in Fairbanks.  She then reviewed the proposed real estate plan, as  
requested by the Chair at the last meeting.  She stated that it is basically a five-year plan to build 
up positions in multifamily and industrial.  She provided a brief overview of how the Permanent 
Fund does direct investing, and reviewed an opportunity in the multifamily space, actually 
workforce housing, that is being looked at.  One opportunity is what was talked about in the past 
with a description of the situation and progress made to date.  The other asset is one that requires 
some heavy capital to re-tenant and reposition within the competitive market.  She introduced 
their newest team member, Ed Rime, who came from Orlando where he worked for GLO 
Partners on the asset management team for 12 years.  He will lead the asset management efforts 
of APFC in-house.   
 
MR. ANDREYKA introduced the new focus in the multifamily segment defined as workforce 
housing.  It is a segment that may have a lot of opportunity.  He stated that it is part of the 
programmatic joint venture or platform investing and could be anywhere.  He gave an update of 
the 299 Park property, which is a joint venture with Fisher Brothers on Park Avenue in New 
York City purchased in 2011.  In 2013, the largest tenant, which occupied over half the building, 
announced they were going to leave.  He continued that they have been successful in re-leasing 
the majority of that space -- just over 90 percent.  He stated that the next asset is Shops at North 
Bridge, a joint venture with Macerich on Michigan Avenue.  He explained that it is a mixed use, 
mostly retail with some office space.  He continued that it has been affected with the retail 
shakeup.  There has been a shift, closed stores to downsized stores, and there were some retail  
bankruptcies.  He added that it is a matter of re-tenanting with some significant capital to  
reconfigure some of that space.   
 
MS. DURAN continued that RCLCO will present for the remaining part of the hour. 
 
MR. MAMMEN began with the market context, shared some of RCLCO's attribution analysis  

14



Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation 8 Quarterly Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  February 19-20, 2020 
 
 

and the implications that has on the approach to investing that they would recommend.  He also  
provided an additional update on the strategic partnerships that they are assisting the APFC to  
identify.  He added that the purpose for sharing this is to highlight the fact that the market is a 
critical context in advising APFC toward the goals of a model portfolio.  It is not necessarily 
effective to simply identify a gap in the portfolio relative to a benchmark and then just fill it as 
expeditiously as possible.  There are conditions and opportunities and threats that are favorable 
or not-for-certain property types, and we want to understand the broad context in order to figure 
out the most effective and efficient way to get to where we want to be.  He stated that it is about 
strategy in the end, and revisiting that strategy and continuing to move the needle over time 
based upon the opportunities in the market.   
 
MR. MASLAN stated that they looked at workforce housing and how to add value to existing 
stock; with the possibility to renovate it, lease it, which would increase stabilized yield, which 
increases cash flow over the long term.  He continued that the role of the real estate within the 
overall Fund is to generate steady cash flow and preserve capital and to make the overall Fund 
more efficient.  This is accomplished through an emphasis on income return to generate cash 
flow.  He moved to the selection effect which has two primary assets that have driven a large 
amount of the underperformance over the last few years: One is retail in the U.K.; the other is the 
office property in New York that has already been discussed.   
 
MR. MAMMEN stated that the point is how to allocate underperformance or overperformance.  
He continued that it is important to understand why and then look at the root causes so course 
corrections can be made.  He added that it seems that a primary driver of the underperformance 
in recent years resulted from the selection of large assets that have high concentrations in the 
overall portfolio.   
 
MR. MASLAN talked about the options and the advantages of a direct strategy.  He stated that 
they were tasked to help staff with a number of searches.  One was a workforce housing search; 
second is the open-ended fund searches for industrial, multifamily; and, third, the build-to-core 
platforms, partnerships, programmatic joint ventures with developers that would then build 
industrial and multifamily real estate to be held for the long term.  He added that they are in the 
process of negotiating terms for two programmatic joint ventures.   
 
MR. WALSH shared some of his opinions and questioned the direct real estate program, and 
how it is being done.  He suggested the need to slow down and take a step back.  He stated that 
one of the recommendations was to consider putting some of the assets in, re-seeding a fund.  
That is not common, but it has been done before.  He added that even more than dealing with the 
underweights in multifamily, exposure to the five assets need to be reduced.   
 
CHAIR RICHARDS stated that the meeting would reconvene in the morning at 8:00 a.m.  
 
(Alaska Permanent Fund Quarterly Meeting adjourned at 4:56 p.m.) 
 
February 20, 2020 
 
CHAIR RICHARDS called the Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation Quarterly Meeting back in 
session and began the day with the asset allocation and investment policy, recognizing  
Mr. Frampton and Mr. Vadakumcherry. 
 
 

15



Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation 9 Quarterly Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  February 19-20, 2020 
 
 

ASSET ALLOCATION AND INVESTMENT POLICY 
 
MR. FRAMPTON stated that this was an information item and reviewed the investment policy 
with the board ahead of taking it as an action item in May.  
 
MR. VADAKUMCHERRY stated that there were essentially ten key changes to the 2016 
portion and explained the highlights.  He noted that it is simpler and cleaner to have an explicit 
allocation to cash instead of a 5 percent mix of activities that have had overweights to cash there.  
He continued that the combination of that and the real asset completion portfolio will allow 
running tight to the target allocations.  He added that one of the activities was to simplify the 
whole document.  He continued that the limit structure was changed a bit to make it more 
efficient, but there are not a whole lot of changes.  He explained that they were looking more 
closely at the aligned benchmarks in the asset portfolio.   
 
MR. FRAMPTON went through the objectives he considered for designing the long-term asset  
allocation.  The focus is on increasing private equity at a pace of 1 percent per year.  He stated  
that another objective to achieve was CPI+5.  He continued that the most predictive way to look 
at forward returns on the REITs is where they trade relative to the underlying net asset value: 
every publicly traded REIT has a stock price, a market cap, and a publicly available estimate of 
the value of the underlying properties.  He went through the ratio of them over time and added 
that the swing is pretty wide.  
 
MR. ALLEN commented that Callan works with a lot of big 401(k)-defined contribution plans 
that are trying to build portfolios that look like big institutional pension portfolios but with a 
daily-valued, daily-liquid, daily-traded environment because participants can come in and out of 
these portfolios at their leisure.  He continued that they typically take the form of target date 
funds where the retirement date is put in, and they get less risky as retirement is approached.  
The goal is to find liquid equity and fixed income components that have inflation protection 
characteristics.  
 
MR. FRAMPTON went through the empirical information on gold and pointed out that this 
portfolio wanted to be scored on an expected return basis because it was an ingredient into the 
CPI+5.  He then had a summary and clarity about the real estate portfolio.  The strategy is to buy 
stabilized, well-positioned properties which have a whole spectrum of opportunistic funds.  The 
core investments tend to be open-ended funds or separate account structures.  
 
MS. DURAN stated that the denominator had been reduced by 1.5 billion right before  
that two-year period with a proposal to add 1 percent over five years to get 12 percent.  In terms  
of JV opportunities, a number of them are being considered.  We have identified a number on 
each side for multifamily and industrial.  She added that there is nothing to bring before the 
investment committee until that packet is acquired.  These are big because these JV opportunities 
have seed portfolios.  She continued that a wholesale analysis has been done on each of the  
properties.  
 
CHAIR RICHARDS moved to Governance Charters and Bylaws. 
 
GOVERNANCE CHARTERS AND BYLAWS 
 
CHAIR RICHARDS stated that the next discussion goes to the heart of how the investment 
process works and how the investment decisions are working.  He continued that it would be 

16



Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation 10 Quarterly Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  February 19-20, 2020 
 
 

useful to have a discussion on how the investment decision is occurring at the highest level along 
with the process, of how the investment committee works.  He also asked CEO Rodell to go into 
the proposal and how the investment committee would work under the new plans.  
 
TRUSTEE MORAN observed that when these charters were put in place about ten years ago, the 
process that the trustees went through was to codify about two or three inches of board 
resolutions that had been used to manage the organization.  He stated that what was put in place 
was put there with a lot of thought and effort, and it has worked pretty well.  He asked to look at 
the actual performance of the organization since this formalization went into place and stated that 
it has consistently gotten better over time.  He suggested thinking about what is being done.  He 
talked about the process in more detail and pointed out that when management structures around 
money and gets creative, it always ends poorly.  He stated concern about making changes 
without understanding what the implications may be.  
 
CHAIR RICHARDS agreed with all of Trustee Moran's points, but explained that he would like 
to talk about what is occurring to see if it makes sense.  
 
CEO RODELL began with some background to fill in some of the gaps in the history.  She 
talked about her interview and at the time she believed that all asset classes should be managed 
by the chief investment officer, who needed to have the ability to allocate, reallocate and present 
an overall portfolio vision to the board.  An investment committee was established, and then it 
was broken into public markets and private markets about two years ago. 
 
MR. FRAMPTON stated that the investment committee consists of the public market asset class 
directors, himself, CEO Rodell, general counsel, chief risk officer, CFO, head of IT, and maybe  
one or two other people.  They meet once a week, talk about the markets, and the affirmative  
actions that emanate from that body are rebalancing decisions as opposed to individual  
security selections.  
 
CEO RODELL stated that the investment committee provides a great record of the risk identified 
in the opportunity, what is considered when the investment decision is made, and then the 
actions that were taken.  She added that weekly minutes are kept to keep a record.  She explained 
the changes over the last four years, especially with personnel, as well as trustees.  
 
MR. ZINN stated that there is a segregation-of-duties question in terms of whether it becomes 
conflicting in the process because risk and compliance are not reporting up through the 
investment side of the house. 
 
CEO RODELL stated that the CEO’s role is to run the organization, and to be the board’s  
delegate in the day-to-day running of the organization.  In moving the CIO delegation directly to  
the board, what would the governance structure be in the interaction with the chief investment  
officer, and what would the role of the board be with that chief investment officer.  
 
MR. ALLEN stated that there are many flavors to this governance model and he cannot say 
which one is better or worse from his perspective.  He added that the investment committees are 
often made up of the heads of the asset classes and the CIO, which is a typical model.  
 
MR. ZINN stated that there is a real balance, and it is recommended to be clear on who is 
accountable.  He added that there is no right answer.  He recommended no changes, and a 
clarification on accountability.  

17



Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation 11 Quarterly Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  February 19-20, 2020 
 
 

 
CEO RODELL stated that it is the board’s responsibility to set how accountability should be 
held and what should be accountable. 
 
TRUSTEE MORAN stated that there is a pretty clear charter on how the board at one point in 
time thought it should work, and it was working.  He continued that he would be opposed to 
changing the structure around the individual personalities of the individuals sitting in chairs at 
one time.  He added that the board needs to have a clear vision of what is wanted from the 
management structure; then if some do not fit, it will change from time to time.  He is supportive 
of the way it is working because it has been working. 
 
TRUSTEE RUTHERFORD stated that she was not in favor of changing the structure and 
thought the structure was fine.  She added that she would not hold the CEO responsible for the 
investments taking a downhill plunge which becomes a trend; she would hold the CIO 
responsible.  
 
CHAIR RICHARDS stated that this discussion convinced him that there is no need to change the 
bylaws because it is not a bylaws issue.  He continued that it is a clarity around who investment 
decision responsibility lies with, and it is with the CIO.  He added that there is value in a model 
where the executive director has review, and maybe even veto. 
 
CEO RODELL, in trying to reconcile the policy with the legal structure, asked if the delegation 
from the board is to stay with the CEO for investment decision-making. 
 
TRUSTEE RUTHERFORD stated that she had no desire to change the ultimate responsibility.  
She would like to know the reasons for the different perspective on a major market investment 
decision. 
 
CHAIR RICHARDS stated that the final decision-maker is the CEO, and if that decision varies 
from the CIO it will be reported.  He thanked everyone for the hard conversation in the public 
forum.  He also thanked all for being open-minded, and for the good dialogue.  He called a 
break. 
 
(Break.) 
 
CHAIR RICHARDS called all back on the record and moved to the update on the internship  
program. 
 
UPDATE ON INTERNSHIP PROGRAM 
 
CEO RODELL explained that when this came up to reboot, Danielle Graham became the  
beneficiary of this project, which has been an interesting process.  She stated that the internal  
internship program has two interns: one in investments and one in finance.  Both of those 
internal candidates have been selected and will be starting in early June.  She moved to the 
external program which has the same requirements in terms of an Alaskan connection, but must 
be a student that is an Alaska resident attending school Outside or a resident of another state 
attending school inside of Alaska.  She explained that there were 14 applicants, and six were not 
qualified.  The idea of this was to nurture Alaskans and create an opportunity for talent in this 
state.  She added that it has been difficult to generate interest in the internship programs. 
 

18



Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation 12 Quarterly Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  February 19-20, 2020 
 
 

MR. BROWN stated that there is a very robust online program called Handshake that most of the 
universities, including all of the UA systems, now use for posting jobs and internships.  He 
continued that all of the UA schools are reached out to directly.  The Handshake program allows 
selection of any participating schools, and it typically hits the entire Northwest, provided the 
institutions have a finance or accounting program.  
 
MS. GRAHAM stated that there are now a total of 21 applicants, and 11 of them are qualified.  
 
MR. BROWN noted that a better job of clarifying upfront the Alaska requirements was done this  
year which resulted in a significantly higher population of applicants.  
 
CHAIR RICHARDS called a break.  
 
(Break.) 
 
CHAIR RICHARDS welcomed the Speaker of the House, the Senate President, and House 
Finance here to speak. 
 
REPRESENTATIVE EDGMON stated that he was Speaker of the House, a lifelong Alaskan, 
born and raised out in the Bush, and has been a legislator for a long time.  He continued that he 
was around the Capitol since the late ‘80s. 
 
SENATOR GIESSEL stated that she is the Senate President.  She was a Territorial kid, born and 
raised in Fairbanks.  She has been in the Legislature since 2011. 
 
REPRESENTATIVE EDGMON began by recognizing the great work the board does and that all 
Alaskans watch what is happening with the earnings from the Fund, the PFD and the 
performance aspect of it all.  The perspective in the Legislature is sort of understanding the 
responsibilities of the board, but now we are at a point of having to confront some of the difficult 
decisions relative to what the functions of earnings serve of the Permanent Fund and on the 
Permanent Fund Dividend itself.  He stated that, speaking for the House Majority Caucus today, 
he wanted to come forward and weigh in that their purpose this session is to take a responsible 
approach to all of the above, all of the challenges that face Alaska and its fiscal future.  He 
continued that the intent as a governing coalition is to do everything to uphold the provisions of 
Senate Bill 26 and to be good partners working together.  
 
SENATOR GIESSEL began with a disclaimer that, while she could speak for a large portion of  
the 20 senators which are not necessarily part of her majority caucus, there is a truly diverse  
collection of opinions with a commitment not to violate that POMV rule.  The challenge is that  
the Governor rolled out a bill to pay the other half of what he perceives as owed to Alaskans in  
terms of a dividend.  There is no way that can be done without violating the POMV rule.  She  
stated that she would be following closely on the Fund’s discussions about that.  She continued  
that the Senate is working on the spending cap legislation, as well as discussions about other 
sources of revenue; all of this to protect the fund.  
 
CHAIR RICHARDS stated that one of the biggest constraints that the Permanent Fund is facing 
is the ability to have as many investment personnel compensated at the level to keep them from 
looking at other attractive opportunities.  He hoped for an open mind in Permanent Fund bills; in 
particular, the ability to attract and retain investment personnel through good incentive 
compensation.  

19



Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation 13 Quarterly Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  February 19-20, 2020 
 
 

 
CEO RODELL stated that it is in the budget discussion and is working through the House 
process and will be discussed with the Senate subcommittee on February 26th.  This is the board 
proposal to include incentive comp and then a comparison to the Governor’s proposal and how 
the Legislature ultimately wants to weigh in on those budget proposals.  She stated appreciation 
for the ability to dialogue and added that the Fund will be celebrating 40 years of corporate 
existence in April.  It is a great way to start out the next 40 years.  It will be important to have 
open and honest discussions about the challenges and opportunities from both perspectives. She 
thanked the legislators for coming.  
 
TRUSTEE FEIGE also thanked the legislators for coming and sharing their perspectives.  She 
stated that this group of individuals are concerned about meeting the demands of the POMV 
draw and the functions of the Fund, as well as its ability to meet that commitment and 
requirement.  
 
TRUSTEE RUTHERFORD also thanked the legislators for coming and for recognizing that we 
all have undergone a significant change, especially with the POMV responsibilities.  She noted 
that the Senator had mentioned that the ERA is an area of interest.  This $12 billion figure, and 
we all are in the middle of trying to get our heads around that.  She stated that when the board is 
at the point to make a recommendation, we will provide that, and we hope to do that quickly.  
 
REPRESENTATIVE EDGMON commented that this may be an area of mutual responsibility.   
As an Alaskan and legislator he would be interested at how to work better in informing Alaskans 
at large about the Trust fiduciary responsibility.  He stated that there is a gap there, and he would 
be interested in the trustees' perspectives and recommendations.  
 
TRUSTEE RUTHERFORD stated that the entire board and staff understand that completely.  
There is a tremendous amount of confusion about how the various pieces work together, and we 
are working extremely hard on trying to get some of the information out.  
 
CHAIR RICHARDS thanked the Speaker and Madam President, and also recognized  
Representatives Foster, Johnston, Kopp, and Senator van Imhof. He thanked all for their interest 
and concern.  He called a lunch break. 
 
(Lunch break.) 
 
EARNINGS RESERVE ACCOUNT 
 
CHAIR RICHARDS called the meeting back on record and stated that they would go into the  
earnings reserve account discussion.  He stated that it would be an afternoon agenda that  
discussed some different analyses by Callan and by staff, sort of the consequences of the 
earnings reserve structure and the corpus structure in light of the adoption of POMV and the 
need to continue to make those payments.  He recognized Greg Allen and Marcus Frampton. 
 
MR. ALLEN began with a review of some of the concepts and then talked about the results of 
the follow-up questions that were plugged into the model.  He concluded that that a POMV rule 
is inconsistent with a pure endowment model.  The larger the ERA, the more sustainable the 
POMV rule.  
 
MR. FRAMPTON took the approach of looking at historical capital market returns on a 70/30  

20



Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation 14 Quarterly Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  February 19-20, 2020 
 
 

portfolio, and his forecast rises 20 years.  He indicated that about half of his failure cases were in  
the second ten years.  
 
MR. ALLEN continued going through the scenarios and the possible results.  His question was if  
the ERA can be protected if it was invested differently than the rest of the Fund.  He stated that  
realized gains and losses would still flow in and out of the ERA, regardless of what it is invested 
in, and spending for appropriation will flow in and out of the ERA, regardless of what it is 
invested in.  It only protects from the volatility associated with that realized gain and loss.  That 
is important to know.  
 
MR. FRAMPTON stated that the exercise came out of the December board meeting.  The Chair 
asked staff to construct a model similar to Mr. Allen’s exercise and to answer the same questions 
that he went through as a second lens on it. In the approach to the model he tried to keep it as  
simple as possible, and added that his model was an Excel file.  It went through the math and the 
logic that has just been discussed, he ran a bunch of cases, how earnings flow in different 
directions, how much the POMV gets calculated.  He continued that it was not in a scenario 
analysis, but that was the starting point. That file projected out about 20 years and assumed a flat 
7 percent return.  He explained that his assumption on the portfolio turnover rate was a flat 20 
percent.  He calculated this metric from the beginning of the Fund, and it varied over time.  He 
also assumed inflation-proofing in the base case if the money was available.  The way the model 
works is with a starting ERA balance.  He compared his model to Mr. Allen’s model.  He 
concluded that under this analysis there is a 50% change in a 20-year period, and under this 
scenario the ERA cannot make its payment.  
 
CHAIR RICHARDS called a break. 
 
(Break.) 
 
CHAIR RICHARDS stated the next presentation is a continued discussion of the earnings 
reserve account on options.  This discussion with CEO Rodell and Mr. Poag will focus around if 
there are any recommendations that the board would like to make, and what form would they 
take.  
 
CEO RODELL stated that this part of the agenda is for the board to talk through what it wants to  
think about.  She continued that some of the other questions circulated were:  Does the board 
want to take any actions reaffirming its commitment to a constitutional POMV and restate that 
commitment or withdraw its existing comment or stay silent. Does it want to discuss the 
statutory endowment idea.  She added that Mr. Poag will go through the statutory endowment  
idea.  
 
CHAIR RICHARDS outlined the three topics:  One is the constitutional amendment and 
continued support forward; second, if there is not a constitutional amendment, combining the 
ERA and corpus, a discussion of whether a statutory change can get to the same place; and the 
third area will piggyback on the previous analysis, and if there are any recommendations to make 
on this. 
 
MR. POAG began with a short history of the problems the board experienced in the earnings 
reserves account when money moves from it in a different fashion and market values go up and 
down.  He stated that this is a long-term solution so the Fund will exist in perpetuity; not just the 
deposits, but the inflation-protected value.  He continued that there are a number of constitutional 

21



Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation 15 Quarterly Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  February 19-20, 2020 
 
 

amendments being considered.  Representative Jonathan Kreiss-Tomkins has a classic 
endowment model.  The board’s proposal could have been:  Collapse the ERA into principal, 
limit the draw to the Fund’s expected real return, what is left behind is the principal and 
inflation-protection, and the Fund should be for all generations of Alaskans as it was set up in the 
statute.  This is a clear way to achieve the goal, but requires a significant amount of support in 
both bodies of the Legislature; and then the voters will approve it.  Mike Barnhill explained the 
idea that it is very possible that the language of the Constitution and the purpose of the 
Constitution are capable of an interpretation that the Fund is a perpetual fund that acts like an 
endowment.  Mr. Barnhill’s concept, which is tied to an Act called the Uniform Prudent 
Management Institutional Fund Act, is a series of protocols that states have adopted as a uniform 
law; and it has conduct for investing and managing funds.  It also includes a prudent spending 
rule and a rule of imprudence.  
 
MR. BARNHILL went through what the process would look like in moving forward with this  
idea. He stated that they are still doing diligence on this.  The objective of an endowment is to  
protect the inflation-adjusted value of the deposits.  
 
CHAIR RICHARDS stated that he did not see the necessity of an action. 
 
TRUSTEE RUTHERFORD agreed and advocated the board supporting both Mr. Barnhill and 
Mr. Poag moving forward to the point of telling whether this is a real possibility, and then to 
begin putting together the materials for the Department of Law. 
 
CHAIR RICHARDS reaffirmed as the general motion that the board supports the combining of  
the accounts via a constitutional amendment or via a statutory structure, if it is legally doable.  
He clarified and stated that it was important to have a discussion about some of the technical 
problems.  
 
MR. POAG clarified that no resolution was needed to be put together at this point in time. 
 
CHAIR RICHARDS outlined that the first step would be to find a way to combine these 
accounts to solve the technical problems.  If they cannot be combined via the mechanisms 
discussed, then the current structure has all of the risks that were talked about.  He suggested 
taking some combination of the conclusions reached earlier and presenting them to the 
Legislature, so they are aware of the perspectives.  
 
TRUSTEE COMMENTS 
 
CHAIR RICHARDS pointed out the Mr. Walsh might be leaving, and this could be his last 
board meeting.  If it is, he stated appreciation for the work he did, and the contributions have 
been extraordinary.  He thanked him for his service.  
 
MR. ZINN stated that it was an honor to be back and thanked the trustees and staff for their 
public service.  He remained impressed with the execution that was happening with all of the 
discussion.  He continued that his overarching comment in conclusion is that the way that staff 
and the trustees are engaging broadly with the Legislature brings a whole new level, which is 
really great.  He stated appreciation for the opportunity to participate and thanked all.  
 
CEO RODELL stated that the meeting in May is at the Challenger Learning Center.  The 40th 
anniversary of the Permanent Fund Corporation is in April, and we are looking at ways to 

22



Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation 16 Quarterly Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  February 19-20, 2020 
 
 

acknowledge that.  She stated that Tim Walsh has given notice, and this is his last meeting.  She 
thanked him for his service to the board and to the staff.  
 
TRUSTEE FEIGE thanked all and the staff for their hard work, diligence and for the 
presentation. 
 
TRUSTEE RUTHERFORD asked Mr. Frampton to seriously think about the going-forward 
approach and the amount of the percentage of the asset category that is in the JV area.  She asked 
whether it would be possible to put on the regular agenda an executive session opportunity for 
every quarterly meeting for personnel issues or confidential matters that may need to be 
discussed.  She stated that the last few meetings have been outstanding, and we have had some 
conversations that will make a huge difference in the success of the Fund over the long term.   
 
CHAIR RICHARDS reaffirmed that the staff has done an extraordinary job in the last couple of  
meetings and recognized that it was not without a lot of work.  He appreciated the quality of the  
work being done.  With that, he concluded the meeting. 
 
(Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation Quarterly Meeting adjourned at 4:35 p.m.) 
 

23



Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation 1 Special Meeting of the Board of Trustees Minutes 
  March 5, 2020 
 
 

ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION 
 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

March 5, 2020 
2:30 p.m. 

Teleconference 
 

Location of Meeting: 
David Rose Board Room 

Michael J. Burns Building 
801 West 10th Street, Suite B 

Juneau, Alaska   99801 
 

SUMMARY MINUTES 
 
Trustees Present:   Craig Richards, Chair 
     William G. Moran 
     Marty Rutherford 
     Corri A. Feige 
     Lucinda Mahoney 
 
Staff Present:    Angela Rodell, CEO  
     Marcus Frampton, CIO  
     Val Mertz, CFO 
     Chris Poag, General Counsel 
     Maggie Meiners 
     Paulyn Swanson 
     Sebastian Vadakumcherry 
 
Also participating:   Steven Center, Callan Associates 
 
 
     PROCEEDINGS 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
CHAIR RICHARDS called the Special Meeting of the Board to order.  He began with the roll 
call, and there was a quorum.   
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

MOTION: A motion to approve the agenda was made by TRUSTEE RUTHERFORD; 
seconded by TRUSTEE MAHONEY. 

 
 There being no objection, the MOTION was approved. 
 
SCHEDULED APPEARANCES AND PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
CHAIR RICHARDS began with Public Comment and asked if anyone would like to make a  
public statement.  There being no one, he recognized CEO Rodell. 
 

24



Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation 2 Special Meeting of the Board of Trustees Minutes 
  March 5, 2020 
 
 

EARNING RESERVE ACCOUNT RESOLUTION 
CEO RODELL stated that this is a follow-up to the meeting the board had in terms of discussing  
the earnings reserve account and any action that the board may want to take in the form of a 
recommendation and resolution.  She asked Chris Poag to walk through his work product.  Also 
included in that is CEO Frampton's presentation for trustees to show the results of some of the 
modeling. 
 
CHAIR RICHARDS added that, at the December board meeting, the board decided to look at 
some of the issues behind how the ERA is structured, some of the math and other issues on 
whether a more robust formulated model could be adopted that decreased the chance of an ERA 
feature in the future.  He went through some of the information and asked Mr. Poag to go 
through the resolution. 
 
MR. POAG stated that this had been discussed at two prior board meetings and the board asked 
the CIO, Marcus Frampton, as well as Greg Allen at Callan, to model the different scenarios and 
market environments that could lead to an ERA shortfall.   He added that an ERA shortfall is the 
jargon for insufficient funds in the earnings reserve account to meet the POMV payment that the 
Legislature enacted in 2018.  He continued that the CIO and Callan were also asked to model 
whether those market environment conditions would be different or modified if there was an 
ERA buffer or balance that dropped below a certain level -- inflation-proofing transfer payments 
were temporarily suspended.  He stated that the results of the analysis were clear and that there 
are definitely market environments in the past that would lead to an ERA shortfall, depending on 
the balance of the ERA.   The problem is that looking forward to whether those environments or 
conditions will exist in the future is unknown.  This led to the board asking what the board can 
do to either eliminate this problem entirely or mitigate the risk of an ERA shortfall.  He stated 
that the resolution seeks to codify the results that the board has decided to support both 
eliminating the problem by collapsing the ERA into the principal to create a single fund, and in 
doing that would limit the annual draw to the average real return.  This simply will eliminate the 
problem by transforming the fund into a classic endowment.  He explained that a classic 
endowment will harvest its real return, always leaving behind its dedicated payment and the 
inflation-proofing payments that are necessary to preserve the purchasing power of the fund.  He 
stated that the board and staff identified two different routes to create this transformation:  one is 
constitutional; and one is statutory.  The resolution includes support by the board for both routes.  
The constitutional route is one the board supported in three prior board resolutions.  This 
resolution advanced support for a constitutional amendment, along the parameters that were 
outlined in the three prior resolutions.  He clarified that this limits the board’s support to the 
things that the prior board has said are important to a POMV constitutional amendment.  The 
resolution expresses support for interpreting the language of the Alaska Constitution, Article IX, 
Section 15, which is the provision creating the Alaska Permanent Fund.  It advances an 
interpretation of that language consistent with UPMIFA, which is the Uniform Prudent 
Management of Institutional Fund Act, as creating an endowment of permanent duration.  He 
continued that the resolution also acknowledges that this interpretation of the constitutional 
language is a legal issue and is required to be vetted with the Department of Law before it can be 
advanced for consideration by the Legislature and the Administration.  It also acknowledges, 
because these ultimate solutions to the problem require significant work -- legislative vetting, 
possible voter approval -- that there ought to be an alternate proposal advanced in the resolution 
that, although may not entirely solve the problem of an ERA shortfall, could significantly 
mitigate that risk.  He stated that the alternate proposal included two measures to improve ERA 

25



Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation 3 Special Meeting of the Board of Trustees Minutes 
  March 5, 2020 
 
 

durability, which means to reduce the risk that the ERA will run out of funds and continue to 
support the POMV payment advanced by the Legislature in SB 26.   The first measure is referred 
to as the periodic review.  That would require APFC to evaluate whether the funds expected real 
return continues to be 5 percent, or whether market environments have caused the expected 
fund’s return to drop below that level.  He continued that the second measure is tied to the work 
done by the CIO and Callan wherein it ties to the modeling an exercise to determine under what 
circumstances an ERA shortfall could be mitigated.  That is referred to as the ERA buffer, which 
maintains a balance in the ERA of a certain amount.  He added that the combination of those two 
measures suggested it would significantly mitigate the risk of an ERA shortfall in most, but not 
all, market environments that were evaluated.  He stated that the resolution includes support for 
the Legislature to consider adding both the periodic review and the ERA buffer to its existing 
statutory rules that govern transfers into and out of the principal and the ERA.  He highlighted 
that the last detail in the resolution is the board’s continued support for possible legislation that 
would change the definition of net income, the inflation-proofing transfers from the ERA to the 
principal that happen automatically without an annual appropriation.  He pointed out, for the 
board’s consideration as it debates the language and propriety of the resolution, the resolve 
clause.   
 
TRUSTEE RUTHERFORD proposed that the offer to the Legislature to testify reference not 
only the board, but also the executive director.   
 
CHAIR RICHARDS asked for any other comments or questions, and then asked for a motion to 
adopt the resolution. 
 

MOTION:  A motion to adopt the resolution was made by TRUSTEE FEIGE; seconded  
by TRUSTEE MAHONEY. 
 

 After a ROLL CALL VOTE, the MOTION was approved.  (RUTHERFORD, FEIGE, 
 MORAN, MAHONEY, RICHARDS in favor.) 

 
CHAIR RICHARDS concluded that action item and moved to trustee comments. 
 
TRUSTEE RUTHERFORD asked about Trustee Brady. 
 
CEO RODELL replied that he had a last-minute conflict and could not call in but is doing really 
well. 
 
TRUSTEE MAHONEY stated that Trustee Brady is in good spirits. 
 
TRUSTEE MAHONEY stated that she was eager to meet everyone and start working with all in 
person. 
 
TRUSTEE FEIGE echoed Trustee Rutherford; and thanked Marcus Frampton, Angela Rodell, 
Chris Poag and Chair Richards for putting together a far more balanced and approachable 
resolution than those from previous years.  She also appreciated Callan’s willingness to come to 
the table and help the Legislature understand the analysis and the modeling.   
 

26



Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation 4 Special Meeting of the Board of Trustees Minutes 
  March 5, 2020 
 
 

CHAIR RICHARDS also echoed the comments on everyone’s hard work and that it developed  
some very real and concrete solutions to real problems that are big for the state.  He then  
welcomed Commissioner Mahoney and looked forward to getting to know and work with her.  
He thanked staff for putting together the meeting and appreciated all their work.   
 
(Special Full Board Meeting adjourned at 2:55 p.m.) 
 

27



3. Audit Committee Report 
  

28



29



      
                 

            
           

        

            
            

            
                

                 
             

                 
               

                 
           

         

             
            

              
             
              

                
              

                
          

          
     

            
                

               
              

   

             
  

   

30



      
                 

             
            

        

          
           
    

             
              
               

             
            

             
             

                
                 

             
             

              
               

             
                

              
                

             
             

            
        

             
             

           
            
                  
                

            
            
                

    
 

 

      

     

31



   
             

   
    

          
      

              
              

               
                 

            
              

             
              

      

           
            

               
             

              
             
               

                
              

              
                

              
        

              
             

            
              

               
               

             
               
                 

             
                

           
                

          

               
            
             

32



   
           

   
    

               
               

               
                 
  

               
            

            
                

             
                  

              
                 

            

    

   
  

    
      

      
      

     

33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



4. CEO Reports 
  

49



 
 
SUBJECT: Pending Board Matters 
 

ACTION:  
 
 

DATE: May 20, 2020  
 

INFORMATION: __X__ 

 
 
 
 

 
BY 

 
TASK 

 
CAPTURED 

 
TARGET 

 
COMPLETED 

Vadakumcherry Risk Appetite Assessment 10/18 5/20  

Rodell/Brown  Internship Program 5/18 5/20  

Frampton/ 
Vadakumcherry Investment Policy 5/19 5/20  

Rodell / Brown Anchorage Office Plan 12/19 09/20  

 

50



 

 

BACKGROUND: 
 

APFC Board of Trustees Charters and Governance Policies 
The Board of Trustees of the APFC has established a Trustee Education Policy with the 
following objectives: 
 

• To ensure that the members of the Board have access to the knowledge and 
information necessary for them to fulfill their fiduciary duties as trustees of the 
Alaska Permanent Fund; and 

 

• To assist them in becoming well informed in all matters pertaining generally to the 
management of a large institutional fund, both public and private, and more 
specifically to the management and investments of the APFC. 

 

In accordance with the Trustee Education Policy, the following is a list of conferences and 
seminars that Trustees may wish to attend.  
 

TRAINING   
OPPORTUNITY 

TOPIC LOCATION DATES 

 
KPMG / NACD 

 
Quarterly Audit 

Committee Webcast 
Series 

 

 
Virtual 

 

 
June 18, 2020 

 
September 10, 2020 

 
Callan Institute 

 

 
Regional Workshops 

 

 
Virtual 

 
Virtual 

 
Atlanta, GA 

 
Portland, OR 

 

June 23, 2020 
 

June 25, 2020 
 

October 27, 2020 
 

October 29, 2020 

 
Pacific Pensions & 

Investments 
 

 
Summer Roundtables 
 
Winter Roundtables 
 

 

 
Virtual 

 
TBD 

 
July 15-17, 2020 

 
February 24-26, 2021 

 

SUBJECT: Trustee Education  
 

ACTION: ____________ 
 
 

DATE: May 20, 2020 
 

INFORMATION: _____X_____ 

51



 

 

Memo 
To: Craig Richards, Chair 

Governance Committee 

Through: Angela Rodell 
Executive Director 

From: Chad Brown 
HR Manager 

Date: May 20, 2020 

Re: APFC Financial Disclosures 

 

As required by AS 37.13.110(b) and Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation policy relating to personal investments conduct 
and reporting, trustees and staff must disclose certain financial interests.  Below is a list of disclosures for transactions made 
by trustees and staff, covering a period of January 1 – March 31, 2020. 

 

January 2020 

Name Position Title Disclosure Type Received 

Chris LaValle Senior Portfolio Accountant II Individual Transaction 3/6/2020 

Angela Rodell Chief Executive Officer Individual Transaction 11/22/2019 

Norix Mangual-Arbelo Portfolio Accountant Individual Transaction 2/25/2020 

Steve Moseley Director of Alternative Investments Individual Transaction 1/23/2020 

Alex Smith Investment Operations Analyst Individual Transaction 2/20/2020 

 

February 2020 

Name Position Title Disclosure Type Received 

Scott Balovich Director of IT Individual Transaction 2/20/2020 

Chris LaValle Senior Portfolio Accountant II Individual Transaction 3/6/2020 

Norix Mangual-Arbelo Portfolio Accountant Individual Transaction 3/9/2020 

Valeria Martinez Director of Asset Allocation Individual Transaction 3/9/2020 

Fawad Razzaque Director of Public Equities Individual Transaction 3/10/2020 

Alex Smith Investment Operations Analyst Individual Transaction 4/1/2020 

 

March 2020 

Name Position Title Disclosure Type Received 

52



Page 2 ─ Craig Richards, Chair 

 

 

 

Alex Cloward Investment Operations Analyst Individual Transaction 4/1/2020 

Chris LaValle Senior Portfolio Accountant II Individual Transaction 4/28/2020 

Jacki Mallinger Portfolio Accountant II Individual Transaction 4/8/2020 

Rachel Price Investment Analyst Individual Transaction  4/13/2020 

Logan Rahn Investment Associate Individual Transaction  4/7/2020 

Angela Rodell Chief Executive Officer Individual Transaction 4/6/2020 

Alex Smith Investment Operations Analyst Individual Transaction 4/1/2020 

All disclosures have been reviewed by the Executive Director or me, in our capacity as compliance officers.  All disclosures were 
in compliance with policy requirements.  Disclosures will be filed in the appropriate personnel file and copies will be placed 
behind the corporate minutes of the next meeting. 

 

If you have any questions, please call me at 796-1541. 

 

53



 

Memo 
To: Board of Trustees 

 
From: Angela Rodell 

Chief Executive Officer 
 

Date: May 20, 2020 
 

Re: Travel, Training, and Diligence Summary Report 
 
 
Background: 
 
This report includes APFC staff completed travel for the period January 1 – March 31, 2020. The travel report is 
presented to the Board of Trustees for review at each board meeting as required by APFC Resolution 04-10. 
 
Due Diligence Summary: 
 

Department Number of Meetings Held 
 In Person Telephonically 
Executives (5) 10 24 
Fixed Income (5) 5 16 
Public Equity (2) 1 32 
Infrastructure & Private Credit (3) 14 154 
Real Estate (4) 10 120 
Private Equity (4) 87 317 
Asset Allocation (1) 0 10 

 
Travel Summary: 
 
Budget-to-Actual Report: July 1, 2019 through March 31, 2020 
*The following can be found in full in the Section 08: FY20 Budget Report 

CORPORATE OPERATIONS BOARD-AUTHORIZED BUDGET EXPENDITURES BUDGET REMAINAING 
Travel $929,000 $294,332 $634,668 
  Staff $671,877 $347,088 $461,743 
  Trustees $45,623 $17,391 $31,417 
  Moving/Non-Employee $211,500 $70,133 $141,509 

 
TRAVELER PURPOSE DATES OF TRAVEL LOCATION 

Moseley Annual General Meeting 01/12/20 01/24/20 CONUS/INTL 

Parise Due Diligence 01/20/20 01/26/20 CONUS 

Razzaque Annual General Meeting 01/28/20 02/01/20 CONUS 

Rutherford APFC Board Meeting/Audit Committee 02/04/20 02/04/20 AK 

54



 
Page 2 ─ [Start Text Here.] 
 
 

 

TRAVELER PURPOSE DATES OF TRAVEL LOCATION 

Richards APFC Board Meeting/ Audit Committee 02/04/20 02/04/20 AK 

Rodell Conference 02/11/20 02/14/20 CONUS 

Rutherford APFC Board Meeting/Audit Committee 02/18/20 02/20/20 AK 

Richards APFC Board Meeting/Audit Committee 02/18/20 02/20/20 AK 

Feige APFC Board Meeting/Audit Committee 02/18/20 02/20/20 AK 

Moran APFC Board Meeting/Audit Committee 02/18/20 02/21/20 AK 

Mangual Arbelo Training 02/19/20 02/23/20 CONUS 

Kim Conference 02/21/20 03/01/20 INTL 

Balovich Conference 02/22/20 02/26/20 CONUS 

Calhoon Conference 02/23/20 03/07/20 CONUS 

Ramirez Conference 02/28/20 n/a CONUS 

Ramirez Conference 02/28/20 TBD CONUS 

Moseley Annual General Meeting 03/03/20 03/08/20 CONUS 
 
 

55



APFC Staff Education Training Report Q1: January - March 2020

EMPLOYEE DEPT TRAINING TYPE* VENDOR COURSE TITLE CLASS HOURS CITY ST
1 Jacki Mallinger FIN Exam AICPA CPA Exam - BEC Section 1 day Anchorage AK
2 Valeria Buschfort FIN OL CAIA Fundamentals of Alternative Investments 20 Hours Online

3 Chad Brown HR OL FundFire
The Future of Institutional Asset Management 

Work
1.5 Hours Online

4 Chad Brown HR OL Table Group UnConference Live Stream 2 Hours Online
5 Norix Mangual FIN OL CAIA Fundamentals of Alternative Investments 15 Hours Online
6
7
8
9
10
11
12

CS  - Conferences & Seminars
LT  - Local Training
OTT  - Out of Town Training
OL  - Online

56



5. Communications Report 
  

57



 
 

SUBJECT: Communications    ACTION:  
 
DATE: 5/20/2020    INFORMATION: X 
 
 
 
Presentations – Discussions – Speaking Engagements - Interviews  
Angela Rodell, Chief Executive Officer 
 
February 2020 

 AR – Interview: Charles Murphy, News of the North 
March 2020 

 AR – Interview: Sean McGuire, KTUU Anchorage 
 AR – Presentation: Juneau Chamber of Commerce 
 AR – Presentation: Alaska Council of School Administrators Virtual Legislative Fly-In 

April 2020 
 AR – Interview: Liz Raines, KTVA Anchorage 
 AR – Presentation: Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority Finance Meeting 
 AR – Interview: Fund Fire Financial Times 

 
 
Communications Projects 
 
Communications Consultant 

Current: APFC issued an RFP for a Communications Consultant on March 16 as our current 
contract expires this fiscal year.  Five proposals have been received, four from firms with Alaska 
based staff and one with a lower 48 based team.  The timeline is such that a new communications 
contract should be in place by June 1. One of the new contractor’s first projects will be to 
commence work on the 2020 Annual Report.  
 
Alaskan’s Guide to the Permanent Fund 

Current: 2009 was the last time that this sought after, educational guide was published.  
This 2020 update will provide Alaskans with a historical review of the Fund and APFC, an 
overview of the two-account structure, updated information on the POMV methodology for Fund 
distributions, and current uses of the Fund.  It will also highlight the role of APFC’s Board of 
Trustees and Staff in the investment and management of the Fund for the past 40 years. The 
timeline aims to have a publication released the first part of June. 

 
Crisis Communications Planning 

Ongoing: Working with the C-Suite and our communications consultant to develop a matrix 
of potential crisis scenarios, how we would/should respond, what message we would need, and to 
which audience, among other critical details. This work will provide our APFC team with an 
established process/plan in place in the event of a crisis.  

  

58



6. Financial Reports 
  

59



 
 
 

SUBJECT:   FY20 Year-to-Date Financial Update ACTION:            
   
 
DATE:          May 20, 2020   INFORMATION:  X  
  
 
KEY TAKEAWAYS: 
 

• Total return for the third quarter of FY20 of -10.49%, resulting in year-to-date 
total return of -5.68% 

• Accounting net loss year-to-date of $3.6 billion,  a loss of $7.1 billion for the third 
quarter 

• Realized (statutory) net income year-to-date of $2.6 billion, $441 million for the 
third quarter 

• Assets under management as of March 31st of $60.0 billion, a decrease of $6.3 
billion for the year 

• Year-to-date commitment for inflation proofing of $757 million 
• $2.7 billion transferred to the General Fund year-to-date in accordance with 

SB26; $283 million remaining to be transferred 
• $280 million of mineral deposits transferred in during the first three quarters of 

the fiscal year 
• Committed Earnings Reserve balances of $3.1 billion for FY21 General Fund 

Transfers and $4 billion to principal 
 
Financial results for the third quarter of FY20 reflected the extreme downturn in the 
markets as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic.  Overall, the portfolio lost $7.3 billion in 
value between the end of December and the end of March.  The largest losses by far were 
experienced in the public equity portfolio which lost more than $6.3 billion in value 
during the quarter.  More modest losses were incurred in the fixed income plus, absolute 
return and asset allocation portfolios. 
 
Net assets decreased by $6.3 billion year-to-date through March.  This is a result of a net 
loss of $3,643 million and the recognition of the FY20 liability to the State of Alaska 
General Fund in the amount of $2,933 million offset by $280 million received in mineral 
royalty deposits.  Corporate operating expenses and other appropriations year-to-date 
totaled $96 million. 
 
Two transfers to the General Fund were made during the third quarter of FY20 totaling 
$550 million.  This brings the total transfers year-to-date to $2.7 billion.  Staff is in 
communication with the cash managers at the Department of Revenue to ensure that the 
remaining $283 million remains invested in the Fund as long as possible, while being 
available to meet the liquidity needs of the State. 
 

60



Fiscal Year 2020 Net Assets

Balances through March 31, 2020 (in millions)

Total assets 61,309.9$                    

Less liabilities (1,306.0)                       

Net assets 60,003.9                      

Fund Balances: 
Non-spendable

Permanent Fund corpus—contributions and appropriations 41,822.1                      

Not in spendable form—unrealized appreciation on invested assets 1,792.4                        

Total non-spendable fund balance 43,614.5                      

Committed
General Fund Commitment 3,091.5                        

Commitment to Principal 4,000.0                        

Current FY inflation proofing 756.6                           

Current FY AK Capital Income Fund 17.2                             

Committed fund balance 7,865.3                        

Assigned for future appropriations
Realized earnings 7,850.6                        

Unrealized appreciation on invested assets 673.5                           

Total assigned fund balance 8,524.1                        

Total fund balances 60,003.9$                    

Fiscal Year 2020 Income

For the nine months ending March 31, 2020 (in millions)

Statutory (Realized) Net Income
Interest, dividends, real estate, and other income 1,031.0$                      

Realized gains on the sale of invested assets 1,659.2                        

Less operating expenses/legislative appropriations (95.9)                            

Less Alaska Capital Income Fund committed realized earnings (16.9)                            

Statutory net income 2,577.4                        

GAAP (Accounting) Net Income
Statutory net income 2,577.4                        

Unrealized loss on invested assets (6,237.6)                       

Alaska Capital Income Fund committed realized earnings 16.9                             

Accounting net income (3,643.3)$                     

Financial Report 
March 31, 2020

Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation 161



Statutory Net Income, Fiscal Years 2017 - 2020

• FY17 statutory net income was $3,214.2 million.
• FY18 statutory net income was $6,324.4 million.
• FY19 statutory net income was $3,305.1 million.
• FY20 statutory net income through March 31st was $2,577.4 million.

GAAP Accounting Net Income (Loss), Fiscal Years 2017 - 2020

• Accounting net income is the same as statutory net income, except it includes unrealized gains and losses. 
• Accounting net income for FY17 was $6,675.6 million.
• Accounting net income for FY18 was $5,525.5 million.
• Accounting net income for FY19 was $3,765.8 million.
• Accounting net loss through March 31st was $3,643.3 million.

(m
ill

io
ns

)
(m

ill
io

ns
)

• Comprised of receipts from interest on fixed income, real estate rentals, stock dividends, and all realized gains and 

losses on the sales of invested assets, less AK Capital Income Fund committed amounts and operating expenses. 

0.0

1,000.0

2,000.0

3,000.0

4,000.0

5,000.0

6,000.0

7,000.0

June Aug Oct Dec Feb Apr June

FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20

‐$6,000

‐$4,000

‐$2,000

$0

$2,000

$4,000

$6,000

$8,000

June Aug Oct Dec Feb Apr June

FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20

Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation 262



Market Value of Fund Net Assets, Fiscal Years 2017 - 2020

• FY17 net assets as of June 2017 were $59.8 billion, basically unchanged from the FY16 ending balance.
• FY18 net assets as of June 2018 were $64.9 billion, an increase of $5.1 billion over the FY17 ending balance.
• FY19 net assets as of June 2019 were $66.3 billion, an increase of $1.4 billion over the FY18 ending balance.

Dedicated Mineral Revenues, Fiscal Years 2017 - 2020

• FY17 mineral revenue was $364.9 million.
• FY18 mineral revenue was $353.1 million.
• FY19 mineral revenue was $385.2 million.
• FY20 mineral revenue as of March 31, 2020 was $280 million.

(m
ill

io
ns

)
(m

ill
io

ns
)

• FY20 net assets as of March 31, 2020 were $60.0 billion, a decrease of $6.3 billion from the FY19 ending balance. 

50,000.0

55,000.0

60,000.0

65,000.0

70,000.0

June Aug Oct Dec Feb Apr June

FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20

0.0

100.0

200.0

300.0

400.0

500.0

June Aug Oct Dec Feb Apr June

FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20

Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation 363



Alaska Permanent Fund Historical Returns, Fiscal Years 1999 - 2019
Total return minus inflation equals real return

• Total return annualized over 35 years is 8.75%
• Real return annualized over 35 years is 6.52%

Alaska Permanent Fund Historical Returns, Fiscal Year 1999 - 2019
Total return minus unrealized gains/losses equals realized return

• Total return annualized over 35 years is 8.75%
• Realized return annualized over 35 years is 9.90%

‐25%

‐15%

‐5%

5%

15%

25%

1999 2004 2009 2014 2019

Total Return Real Return

‐20%

‐10%

0%

10%

20%

1999 2004 2009 2014 2019

Total Return Realized Return

Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation 464



Board of Trustees - APFC Transfers - January 1 to March 31, 2020

Type of Transfer January February March Total

Public Equities (1,091,097)        198,972,930     2,199,088,770   2,396,970,604    

Fixed Income Plus (380,021)           (165,663)           (1,535,627,932)  (1,536,173,617)   

Private Equity & Special Opportunities 20,794,346       (11,504,266)      3,183,618         12,473,697        

Real Estate 42,113,833       3,449,864         (10,786,000)      34,777,697        

Infrastructure & Private Income (107,708,287)    48,655,603       87,216,755       28,164,070        

Absolute Return (4,900,873)        (240,012,154)    -                    (244,913,027)     

Asset Allocation (275,000,000)    50,000,000       (1,013,507,349)  (1,238,507,349)   

Operating Cash (100,020,371)    (31,717,015)      188,709,444     56,972,058        

Net Transfers (426,192,471)    17,679,298        (81,722,694)      (490,235,867)     

1 of 465



Board of Trustees - APFC Transfers - January 2020

Description Opera
tin

g Cash

Public 
Eq

uitie
s

Fixed
 In

come P
lus

Pvt. E
quity

 & Sp
ec.

 O
pps.

Rea
l E

sta
te

Infr. 
& Pvt. I

ncome 

Absolute 
Retu

rn

Asse
t A

llo
catio

n

Net

State of Alaska & Administrative
Mineral revenue 33,010,538         33,010,538      
AIM STIF interest 498,173             498,173           
Commission recapture proceeds 7,012                 7,012               
Securities Lending income 119,332             119,332           
Class action proceeds 114,605             114,605           
Appropriation to SOA GF from ERA (450,000,000)     (450,000,000)   
Corporate expenses (9,942,131)          (9,942,131)       
Public Equities
APF Tactical Tilts 202,651,848      (202,651,848)    -                       
APF Tac Tilts Cash (202,651,848)     202,651,848     -                       
SSGA International 13,070               (13,070)             -                       
Public EQ Sec Lend 1,078,027           (1,078,027)        -                       
Fixed Income Plus
APF TBA Collateral 257,732             (257,732)             -                       
Fixed Income Sec Lending 122,289             (122,289)             -                       
Private Equity & Special Opportunities
Private Equity distributions 38,049,150         (38,049,150)     -                       
Private Equity capital calls (64,846,315)        64,846,315      -                       
Special Opportunities distributions 9,125,911           (9,125,911)       -                       
Special Opportunities capital calls (3,123,092)          3,123,092        -                       
Real Estate
Direct Real Estate distributions 8,650,723           (8,650,723)       -                       
Direct Real Estate capital calls (27,074,603)        27,074,603      -                       
Real Estate Coinvestment distributions 192,150             (192,150)          -                       
Real Estate Coinvestment capital calls (23,882,103)        23,882,103      -                       
Infrastructure, Private Credit & Private Income
Infrastructure distributions 36,059,927         (36,059,927)     -                       
Infrastructure capital calls (15,132,093)        15,132,093      -                       
Private Credit distributions 25,755,819         (25,755,819)     -                       
Private Credit capital calls (22,222,278)        22,222,278      -                       
Private Income distributions 114,819,780      (114,819,780)   -                       
Private Income capital calls (31,572,867)        31,572,867      -                       
Absolute Return
Absolute Return distributions 6,149,544           (6,149,544)       -                       
Absolute Return capital calls (1,248,671)          1,248,671        -                       
Asset Allocation, Other
APF Allocation Cash 275,000,000      (275,000,000)     -                       
Net Transfers - January (100,020,371)      (1,091,097)         (380,021)             20,794,346      42,113,833      (107,708,287)   (4,900,873)       (275,000,000)      (426,192,471)   

2 of 466



Board of Trustees - APFC Transfers - February 2020

Description Opera
tin

g Cash

Public 
Eq

uitie
s

Fixed
 In

come P
lus

Pvt. E
quity

 & Sp
ec.

 O
pps.

Rea
l E

sta
te

Infr. 
& Pvt. I

ncome 

Absolute 
Retu

rn

Asse
t A

llo
catio

n

Net

State of Alaska & Administrative
Mineral revenue 34,444,572         34,444,572      
AIM STIF interest 430,979             430,979           
Commission recapture proceeds 14,634               14,634             
Securities Lending income 196,027             196,027           
Class action proceeds 518                    518                  
Corporate expenses (17,407,431)        (17,407,431)     
Public Equities
APF Tactical Tilts (197,298,886)     197,298,886     -                       
APF Tac Tilts Cash (2,701,114)          2,701,114         -                       
Public EQ Sec Lend 1,027,070           (1,027,070)        -                       
Fixed Income Plus
Rogge Global Partners 26,878,000         (26,878,000)        -                       
Rogge Global Partners CNY (26,878,000)        26,878,000         -                       
APF Global Fixed Income 20,500,000         (20,500,000)        -                       
APF China Bond Market (97,500,000)        97,500,000         -                       
APF TBA Collateral (77)                     77                       -                       
SSGA Listed Infrastructure 33,000,000         (33,000,000)        -                       
SSGA REITs 44,000,000         (44,000,000)        -                       
Fixed Income Sec Lending 165,741             (165,741)             -                       
Private Equity & Special Opportunities
Private Equity distributions 104,595,459      (104,595,459)   -                       
Private Equity capital calls (73,492,824)        73,492,824      -                       
Special Opportunities distributions 8,717,846           (8,717,846)       -                       
Special Opportunities capital calls (28,316,215)        28,316,215      -                       
Real Estate
Direct Real Estate distributions 8,648,589           (8,648,589)       -                       
Direct Real Estate capital calls (2,495,485)          2,495,485        -                       
Real Estate Coinvestment distributions 276,520             (276,520)          -                       
Real Estate Coinvestment capital calls (9,879,488)          9,879,488        -                       
Infrastructure, Private Credit & Private Income
Infrastructure distributions 9,335,382           (9,335,382)       -                       
Infrastructure capital calls (46,849,301)        46,849,301      -                       
Private Credit distributions 8,748,987           (8,748,987)       -                       
Private Credit capital calls (23,407,757)        23,407,757      -                       
Private Income distributions 6,622,682           (6,622,682)       -                       
Private Income capital calls (3,105,595)          3,105,595        -                       
Absolute Return
Absolute Return distributions 240,550,261      (240,550,261)  -                       
Absolute Return capital calls (538,107)            538,107          -                       
Asset Allocation, Other
APF Allocation Cash (50,000,000)        50,000,000         -                       
Net Transfers - February (31,717,015)        198,972,930      (165,663)             (11,504,266)     3,449,864        48,655,603      (240,012,154)   50,000,000         17,679,298      

3 of 467



Board of Trustees - APFC Transfers - March 2020

Description Opera
tin

g Cash

Public 
Eq

uitie
s

Fixed
 In

come P
lus

Pvt. E
quity

 & Sp
ec.

 O
pps.

Rea
l E

sta
te

Infr. 
& Pvt. I

ncome 

Absolute 
Retu

rn

Asse
t A

llo
catio

n

Net

State of Alaska & Administrative
Mineral revenue 25,531,311         25,531,311      
AIM STIF interest 218,519             218,519           
Commission recapture proceeds 13,145               13,145             
Securities Lending income 974,990             974,990           
Corporate expenses (108,460,659)     (108,460,659)   
Public Equities
APF Tactical Tilts (2,615,834,901)   2,615,834,901  -                       
APF Tac Tilts Cash 415,834,901      (415,834,901)    -                       
Public EQ Sec Lend 911,230             (911,230)           -                       
Fixed Income Plus
APF High Yield 124,500,000      (124,500,000)      -                       
US Investment Grade Corporate 268,500,000      (268,500,000)      -                       
APF - Aggregate 698,750,000      (698,750,000)      -                       
APF Global Fixed Income Cash (22,000,000)        22,000,000         -                       
APF Global Fixed Income 199,744,022      (199,744,022)      -                       
APF China Bond Market (27,744,022)        27,744,022         -                       
APF TBA Collateral (546)                   546                     -                       
Ninety One EMD BL 44,000,000         (44,000,000)        -                       
PGIM EMD BL 60,000,000         (60,000,000)        -                       
Payden EMD HC 24,000,000         (24,000,000)        -                       
Colchester EMD LC 22,000,000         (22,000,000)        -                       
SSGA Listed Infrastructure (89,200,000)        89,200,000         -                       
SSGA REITs (191,400,000)     191,400,000       -                       
APF Fixed Income Plus Cash 424,350,000      (424,350,000)      -                       
Fixed Income Sec Lending 128,478             (128,478)             -                       
Private Equity & Special Opportunities
Private Equity distributions 73,100,759         (73,100,759)     -                       
Private Equity capital calls (140,993,284)     140,993,284    -                       
Special Opportunities distributions 84,627,624         (84,627,624)     -                       
Special Opportunities capital calls (19,918,717)        19,918,717      -                       
Real Estate
Direct Real Estate distributions 7,753,133           (7,753,133)       -                       
Direct Real Estate capital calls (111,000)            111,000           -                       
Real Estate Coinvestment distributions 3,143,867           (3,143,867)       -                       
Infrastructure, Private Credit & Private Income
Infrastructure distributions 22,236,851         (22,236,851)     -                       
Infrastructure capital calls (64,290,615)        64,290,615      -                       
Private Credit distributions 5,131,064           (5,131,064)       -                       
Private Credit capital calls (40,044,659)        40,044,659      -                       
Private Income distributions 2,242,809           (2,242,809)       -                       
Private Income capital calls (12,492,205)        12,492,205      -                       
Asset Allocation, Other
APF Allocation Cash 964,500,000      (964,500,000)     -                       
NISA Margin 4,337,811           (4,337,811)          -                       
APF NISA Overlay 44,669,538         (44,669,538)        -                       
Net Transfers - March 188,709,444       2,199,088,770   (1,535,627,932)   3,183,618        (10,786,000)     87,216,755      -                       (1,013,507,349)   (81,722,694)     

4 of 468



TOTAL
Inflation Unrealized FUND

FY-Begin  Dedicated (1) Proofing     FY-End Gain (Loss) FY-End Non- Acct. Inflation FY-End FY-End
Contrib. State & Special    Balance FY-End spendable Net Div/POMV Prfg & Spec Balance FY-End Assigned FY-End

FY    Balance Revenues Approp. Contributions Balance Balance Income (2) Transfer (9) Approp. ACIF Realized Balance Balance FY Balance
77-10 0 11,868 19,756 31,624 421 32,045 47,635 18,385 16,458 421 1,194 16 1,210 77-10 33,255

11 31,624 887 533 33,044 4,788 37,833 6,812 801 533 13 (5) 2,016 292 2,308 11 40,141
12 33,044 915 1,073 35,033 3,220 38,253 (100) 605 1,073 17 1,905 175 2,081 12 40,333
13 35,033 840 743 36,615 4,184 40,800 4,314 604 743 30 3,487 567 4,054 13 44,854
14 36,615 779 546 37,941 7,062 45,002 6,848 1,235 546 32 5,237 975 6,212 14 51,214
15 37,941 600 624 39,165 6,473 45,638 2,384 1,373 624 24 6,147 1,016 7,163 15 52,801
16 39,165 284 0 39,449 4,750 44,199 398 696 (7) 0 (8) 18 7,649 921 8,571 16 52,770
17 39,449 365 0 39,814 7,155 46,969 6,676 0 0 (8) 25 10,863 1,952 12,816 17 59,785
18 39,814 353 0 40,167 5,863 46,030 5,526 726 0 (8) 43 16,461 2,403 18,864 18 64,894
19 40,167 385 989 41,541 6,278 47,820 3,766 2,723 989 22 16,053 2,426 18,481 19 66,300

Lo 20 41,541 316 4,758 (10) 46,615 3,958 50,573 (515) 2,933 4,758 (10) 22 11,588 984 12,574 20 63,146
Mid 20 41,541 316 4,758 (10) 46,615 6,905 53,520 4,119 2,933 4,758 (10) 28 12,414 1,839 14,255 20 67,775
Hi 20 41,541 316 4,758 (10) 46,615 9,795 56,410 8,902 2,933 4,758 (10) 34 13,337 2,803 16,730 20 73,139

21 46,615 213 0 46,828 6,757 53,585 4,476 3,091 0 (8) 30 13,769 1,987 15,758 21 69,343
22 46,828 226 1,059 48,113 6,755 54,867 4,582 3,094 1,059 30 14,168 1,989 16,159 22 71,027
23 48,113 230 1,088 49,431 6,763 56,194 4,689 3,260 1,088 30 14,480 1,981 16,463 23 72,657
24 49,431 241 1,118 50,789 6,776 57,565 4,794 3,372 1,118 30 14,755 1,968 16,725 24 74,290
25 50,789 264 1,149 52,202 6,789 58,991 4,902 3,450 1,149 30 15,028 1,955 16,985 25 75,976
26 52,202 288 1,181 53,671 6,804 60,476 5,012 3,530 1,181 30 15,300 1,940 17,242 26 77,717
27 53,671 317 1,215 55,203 6,820 62,023 5,127 3,612 1,215 30 15,571 1,924 17,497 27 79,519
28 55,203 347 1,250 56,799 6,837 63,636 5,245 3,695 1,250 30 15,841 1,907 17,750 28 81,386
29 56,799 380 1,287 58,466 6,843 65,308 5,501 3,780 1,287 30 16,245 1,901 18,149 29 83,457

Cumulative Totals 
Proj. for FY20-FY29 2,822 14,103 48,447 33,818 14,103 295

Assumptions: Total Return - Inflation = Total Real Return Statutory Return

Lo FY20 -0.52% 1.81% -2.33% Lo 5.27%
Mid FY20 (3) 6.61% 1.81% 4.80% Mid 6.55% Ending Fund Value

Hi FY20 13.97% 1.81% 12.16% Hi 7.98%   (ex Am Hess)
FY21-FY29 (4) 7.00% 2.25% 4.75% 7.00% FY18 $ 64,469.9    FY19 $ 3,305.0    

FY17 59,360.8    FY18 6,324.4    
Notes related to financial history and projections: FY16 52,345.1    FY17 3,214.2    

(1) FY15 52,376.1    FY16 2,198.0    
(2) FY14 50,789.5    FY15 2,907.0    
(3)

(4) Future returns are based on 2019 Callan capital market assumptions and median expected returns (the mid case).  Actual results will vary.  $ 55,868.3    $ 3,769.2    
(5)

$ 2,933.1      $ 1,884.6    
(6) The statutory inflation calculation for FY 2010 was -.36%;  therefore, there was no inflation proofing transfer during FY 2010.
(7) The dividend transfer reported for FY16 was paid out in dividends during FY17.
(8) There was no appropriation for inflation proofing in FY16, FY17, FY18 and FY21.

(9)

(10) In FY20, an additional $4 billion was appropriated from the ERA to principal.  The intent of the legislation is to forward fund inflation proofing. FY19 $ 65,875.8    FY20 $ 4,051.7    
(11) All transfers out of the Earnings Reserve are subject to Legislative appropriation FY18 64,469.9    FY19 3,305.0    

FY17 59,360.8    FY18 6,324.4    
FY16 52,345.1    FY17 3,214.2    
FY15 52,376.1    FY16 2,198.0    

Interest, dividends, real estate & other income  $ 1,031.0   Statutory net income (loss)  $ 2,577.4   Avail for
Realized gains (losses) on the sale of assets  1,659.2   Unrealized gains (losses) on invested assets  (6,237.6)  $ 58,885.5    $ 4,009.6    
Less operating expenses (95.9)       AK Capital Income Fund realized earnings  16.9         

Less AK Capital Inc. Fund realized earnings  (16.9)       $ (3,643.3)  $ 3,091.5      $ 2,004.8    
$ 2,577.4   

Statutory 
Distribution

Statutory 
Trnsfr Amt

During FY 2009, the ACIF realized losses of $33.3 million, which are excluded from statutory net income, and are included in the ending unreserved balance 
as a deficit account.  During FY 2010 and FY 2011, the ACIF had realized income of $20.8 and $25.3 million, which is excluded from statutory net income, 
and served to reduce the FY 2009 deficit.         

Statutory 
Distribution

Statutory 
Trnsfr Amt

FY21 POMV Distribution 
(actual) (11)

FY21 Statutory Dividend 
Transfer (projected)

Per AS 37.13.140, beginning in FY19, transfers are based on a percent of market value (POMV) calculation and are to the General Fund.  In previous years, 
transfers were based on an earnings calculation and were to the Dividend Fund.

Ending Fund Value
  (ex Am Hess)

Statutory Net Income

FY20 YTD Statutory Net Income FY20 YTD Accounting (GAAP) Net Income 

Average Value Dist (21%)

Income Year-to-Date as of March 31, 2020

Average Value Dist (21%)

Distributions Unrealized
Gain (Loss)

FY20 POMV Distribution 
(actual) (11)

FY20 Statutory Dividend 
Transfer (actual) (11)

Statutory Net Income

Dedicated State Revenues in current and future fiscal years are based on the Fall 2018 Department of Revenue forecast.   
Accounting net income is based on United States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP).
Current year returns and inflation are based on 2019 Callan capital market assumptions.  Actual results will vary. Avail for

ALASKA PERMANENT FUND 
FUND FINANCIAL HISTORY & PROJECTIONS

as of March 31, 2020
Projections extend ten years, and are based on best available information ($ in millions)

Nonspendable Fund Balance - Principal Assigned Fund Balance - Earnings Reserve

69



7. Fees & Expenses Report 
  

70



Report Date March 31, 2020

Total Fund Balance  60,507,626,852

YTD Change in Fund Balance (Net of Transfers) (3,957,016,000)

Paid From  

Investments

Paid from Investment 

Management Allocation

Paid from 

Operations Allocation Total

Public Equity 2,341,000 36,508,000 1,410,000 40,259,000

Fixed Income Plus 0 11,347,000 3,014,000 14,361,000

Absolute Return 38,201,000 352,000 585,000 39,138,000

Asset Allocation* 2,625,000 913,000 0 3,538,000

Private Equity & Special Opps 83,967,000 15,247,000 2,243,000 101,457,000

Infrastructure & Private Income 49,319,000 1,104,000 1,170,000 51,593,000

Real Estate 24,781,000 1,534,000 2,012,000 28,327,000

Total Mgmt Fees by Source 201,234,000 67,005,000 10,434,000 278,673,000

Basis Points 33 11 2 46

Paid From  

Investments

Paid from Investment 

Management Allocation

Paid from 

Operations Allocation Total

Public Equity 0 11,088,000 0 11,088,000

Fixed Income Plus 0 0 0 0

Absolute Return 17,436,000 0 0 17,436,000

Asset Allocation 0 0 0 0

Private Equity & Special Opps 92,359,000 0 0 92,359,000

Infrastructure & Private Income 70,005,000 0 0 70,005,000

Real Estate 113,000 0 0 113,000

179,913,000 11,088,000 0 191,001,000

*Operating expenses related to Asset Allocation are spread across the other asset classes.

FYTD 2020 Fees & Expenses by Funding Source

Investment Management Fees

Profit Sharing/Performance

71



8. FY20 Budget Update 
  

72



Corporate Operations
Board-authorized 

Budget
Expenditures Remaining 

Budget
Personal Services 11,861,201$              7,839,896$           4,021,305$        

Staff 11,843,781                7,830,213              4,013,568          

Board: Honoraria 17,420                        9,682                     7,738                  

Travel 929,000                      434,613                 494,387             

Staff 671,877                      347,088                 324,789             

Trustees 45,623                        17,391                   28,232                

Moving/Non-Employee 211,500                      70,134                   141,366             

Contractual Services 4,174,899                   2,119,288              2,055,611          

Audit, Legal, Consulting 435,683                      354,460                 81,223                

Public Communications 146,500                      97,591                   48,909                

Board Support and Meetings 56,350                        59,764                   (3,414)                

Information Technology 2,361,564                   805,538                 1,556,026          

HR and Recruitment 62,824                        43,818                   19,006                

Training/Education 186,620                      59,056                   127,565             

Office Support 925,358                      699,062                 226,296             

Commodities 435,300                      144,848                 290,452             
Equipment 400,000                      138,604                 261,397             

Corporate Operations Total 17,800,400$              10,677,249$         7,123,151$        

Investment Management
Investment Systems 5,300,415$                4,875,146$           425,269$           

Investment Due Diligence 7,178,200                   3,355,708              3,822,492          

Custody Fees 1,500,000                   997,972                 502,028             

Investment Manager Fees 136,520,085              71,794,695           64,725,390        

Public Equities 82,493,617                46,983,766           35,509,851        

Fixed Income 13,116,245                9,569,830              3,546,415          

Alternative Assets 40,910,223                15,241,099           25,669,124        

Investment Management Total 150,498,700$            81,023,520$         69,475,180$     

Legislative Appropriation 8,848,200$                7,792,162$           1,056,038$        

Capital Project: Renovation 4,050,000$                3,660,261$           389,739$           

Total Appropriation 181,197,300$            103,153,192$       78,044,108$     

Budget-to-Actual Report: July 1, 2019 through March 31, 2020

73



9. Legislative Update 
  

74



 
 

SUBJECT: Legislative Update 
 

ACTION:  
 

DATE: 5/20/2020  
 

INFORMATION: X 

 
 
The second session of 31st Alaska State Legislature has been on an extended recess since 
March 29 due to COVID-19 concerns.  Before recess, the FY21 Operating and Capital 
Budgets were passed and subsequently enacted by the Governor.  
 
It is unclear at this time when, or even if, the Legislature will reconvene. The 121st day of 
the regular session, and the limit per the Constitution of the State of Alaska, is May 20, 
2020.  
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
APFC Legislative Initiatives  
 
 Educate stakeholders on the structure of the Fund to set the foundation for informed 

policy decisions, and reaffirm the importance of a rules-based structure for deposits to 
the Principal and withdrawals from the Earnings Reserve Account. 

 
 Trustees’ Paper Volume 9 was distributed to all Legislators and referenced 

during legislative presentations. 
 

 CEO Rodell presented on APFC and the Fund before both House and Senate 
Finance Committees, as well as Budget Subcommittees.  
 

 Meetings were held with House and Senate Leadership, Legislators and Staff 
to provide an opportunity for informal questions and a better understanding of 
APFC, the Structure of the Fund, and our initiatives.   
 

 The importance of inflation proofing the Fund for intergenerational wealth is a 
well understood and supported concept in both the House and the Senate. 
FY21 Inflation Proofing was fully funded during the Legislative Appropriation 
process but later vetoed. 
 

 The FY21 draw from the Fund reflects the Legislature’s commitment to adhere 
to the Percent of Market Value (POMV) methodology. Since the enactment of 
SB 26 in 2018, the Legislature has followed this prudent spend rule for FY19-
FY21 based on a 5.25% POMV.  The POMV distribution rate drops to 5.0% in 
FY22.  
 

 Royalties are recognized and appropriated at both the Constitutional minimum 
of 25% and the 50% contribution for post 1979 leases as set forth in AS 
37.13.010 (a)(2). 
 
 
  

75



 

Page 2 
 

 Attain resources to ensure that APFC has the necessary support to optimize our ability 
to manage and invest the Fund. 

 
 The Legislature is very supportive of APFC and the work that our team is doing 

to invest and manage the Fund.   
 

 As the Operating Budget emerged from the Conference Committee, all of the 
Board of Trustees’ funding priorities, including the incentive compensation 
program, were fully funded. Upon enactment of the budget, incentive 
compensation was vetoed, given the current economic and fiscal environment. 

  
 Secure passage of HB 139, procurement streamlining, to provide an additional tool for 

internal due diligence work on investment-related services. 
 

 Despite achieving bipartisan support for this bill in both the House and the 
Senate, the bill passed the House but now remains in the Senate Finance 
Committee.  Given the current circumstances, it is likely passage will not be 
attained.  
 

 
Earnings Reserve Account Appropriations (excluding APFC and State Agencies) 
 

  Authorized BOT Proposed HB 205 Enacted 
  FY2020  FY2021 FY2021 
AS 37.13.140 (b) POMV $2,933,084,121  $3,091,492,924  $3,091,492,927  

     

Constitution  
Royalties - 
Constitutional $329,200,000  $276,300,000  $276,300,000  

AS 37.13.010 
(a)(2) 

Royalties - 
Statutory $71,300,000  $67,900,000  $67,900,000  

     

AS 37.13.145 (c) 
Inflation 
Proofing $943,000  $1,064,000,000  $0  

     

AS 37.13.145 (d) 
Alaska Capital 
Income Fund $27,000,000  $30,000,000  $30,000,000  

     
 Special Approp $4,000,000,000  $0  $0  

     
 
Constitutional Amendments and Legislation Pertaining to APFC and the Fund  
No substantive legislation affecting APFC and the Fund passed this session.  
 

76



10. Anchorage Office Memo 
  

77



 
 

SUBJECT: Anchorage Office Timeline 
 

ACTION: X 
 

DATE: 5/20/2020  
 

INFORMATION:  

 
 
The current 5-year Strategic Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees in December 2019, 
includes the goal of opening an Anchorage office by September of 2020. In recognition 
of this Board strategy,  staff began work developing timelines, surveying Juneau staff 
about their interest in relocating to Anchorage, meeting with supervisors about the 
feasibility to have teams and individual team members in a remote location, and diving 
deeper into the costs associated with opening a new office. 
 
Update: 
 
With the impact of COVID-19 and the mandate to work remotely, APFC staff have 
successfully transitioned to a remote working environment since March 24, 2020.  In light 
of this success and in recognition of our remote working capability, a reevaluation of the 
need for physical office space has begun.  
 
We continue to take guidance from the State.  The State is continuing to encourage 
working remotely for groups and individuals where productivity has been maintained, and  
are also reviewing their need for office space in light of the lessons learned within the 
current work environment. 
 
APFC staff requests that the Board of Trustees move to update its direction to staff and 
recognize the value of having flexible work location options. 
 
Proposed motion: 
 
“Direct staff to work on permanent flexible work location options and stop all efforts to 
open a physical office  in Anchorage.” 

78



11. CIO Report 
  

79



CIO Report
Marcus Frampton, Chief Investment Officer

May 20, 2020
80



1.  Summary Update on Asset Classes 
and Fund Positioning

81



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    3

• The APFC Investment Team held a cautious outlook for global markets 
entering calendar Q1 2020

• While no one could have predicted the rapid progression of COVID 
across the World and resultant market sell-off, the expensive markets 
and thin rewards for risk taking made the set up precarious for all asset 
classes

• The passage of events since our last board meeting has shifted this view 
to one of uncertainty (on the upside for risk assets plenty of stimulus and 
government support coupled with newfound appreciation for caution 
among investors; on the downside the onset of record unemployment 
and a possible repeat of the Great Depression)

• The APFC Investment Team has shifted our view from February 2020 
of caution (at the time we were ~$4 billion overweight to Cash and 
Fixed Income) to, as of month-end April (time of Board materials 
preparation), a desire to be balanced from a risk perspective versus 
our benchmark weights for asset classes

Total  Fund Positioning as of Month-end April
Asset Allocation vs. Target (2/19/20) (1)

Asset Allocation vs. Target (4/30/20) (1)

0.9%

4.1%

0.5%

-6.1%

-0.3%

1.0%

-0.1%

1.9%

-8.0%

-6.0%

-4.0%

-2.0%

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

Public
Equity

Fixed
Income

Private
Equity

Real
Estate

Private
Income

Absolute
Return

Asset
Allocation

Cash

1.2%

2.1% 2.3%

-5.5%

0.3%

1.3%

-1.7%

0.4%

-6.0%

-5.0%

-4.0%

-3.0%

-2.0%

-1.0%

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

Public
Equity

Fixed
Income

Private
Equity

Real
Estate

Private
Income

Absolute
Return

Asset
Allocation

Cash 1.  Source: APFC risk dashboard report as of 2/19/20 and 4/30/20. 
82



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    4

Total  Fund Performance as of Month-end April
• APFC receives independent performance reports from two third-party

vendors; the Callan report is received monthly and is the basis of the APFC’s 
monthly performance reports and Bank of New York Mellon “BONY” 
provides a daily performance report which is closely followed by 
Investments Staff and the Chief Investment Officer

• For most of the remainder of this Board meeting, the figures being 
discussed will be Callan’s performance report for the quarter ending March 
31, 2020; however, because of the rapidly moving nature of markets (and 
stale nature of March numbers at this point), for this section we will be 
referring to BONY’s performance report from the end of April

• For public markets, Callan and BONY typically arrive at the exact same 
numbers, for private markets (i) BONY ascribes the P&L from new capital 
account statements to the period in which its received (ii) Callan uses a 
“lag” so the March report is referencing performance for the quarter-ended 
December 31 ascribing a return of 0% for the material number of accounts 
for which APFC doesn’t have a December statement by the mid-April cut-
off (therefore, over time, the Callan report systematically understates 
returns for current year and therefore perhaps should be referred to as 
“preliminary” returns)

APFC Fund Performance Through April (1)

1.  BONY performance report as of April 29, 2020. 

The Fund’s investment performance through the 
volatile markets this year has been outstanding

• BONY analysis indicates that the Fund 
returned close to 6% in the month of April, 
bringing FYTD April returns to roughly flat (vs. 
passive and performance benchmark returns
of (3.51%) and (6.74%), respectively)

Period APFC Passive Performance CPI + 5%

CYTD April (5.23%) (9.45%) (11.81%) 1.68%

FYTD April (0.09%) (3.51%) (6.74%) 4.49%

1 Year 1.42% (2.17%) (3.72%) 6.54%

3 Years 5.86% 3.84% 3.72% 6.92%

5 Years 5.67% 3.62% 4.00% 6.80%

Benchmark

83



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    5

Public Markets (Equity and Fixed Income)
Public Equity Performance Through April (1)

Fixed Income Performance Through April (1)

1.  BONY performance report as of April 29, 2020.  Due to reconstitution of asset class components in 2016 five year composite returns versus benchmarks are not available for public markets. 

• APFC’s public markets investment team has navigated the market 
volatility of 2020 thus far extremely well

COVID Impacts on Portfolio

• Nonetheless, the Team did face some difficult moments along the way:

– The bond market in March, prior to coordinated stimulus activity 
by US Treasury and Federal Reserve, featured extreme illiquidity 
and rapid spread widening

– The richly-valued tech and “FANG” stocks materially 
outperformed value stocks creating performance pressure on
APFC’s equity managers

– The APFC team while managing liquidity of the investment
portfolio and liquidity requirements of rebalancing encountered
different messages over time around State funding requirements

• Opportunities created by COVID included (i) ability to be a patient buyer 
of stocks during panic sell-offs and (ii) very attractive bond new issue 
concessions

(13.9%)

(5.8%) (5.9%)

3.6%

(13.2%)

(5.6%) (5.4%)

4.0%

-15.00%

-10.00%

-5.00%

0.00%

5.00%

CYTD FYTD 1 Year 3 Years

APFC Benchmark

(2.7%)

1.1%

4.4% 4.1%

(2.9%)

0.6%

3.7% 3.6%

-4.00%

-2.00%

0.00%

2.00%

4.00%

6.00%

CYTD FYTD 1 Year 3 Years

APFC Benchmark

84



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    6

Public Markets (continued)
• The strong cash position of the Fund and overweight to Fixed Income entering the market volatility of late February and early March enabled the 

investment team to “go on offense” putting $2.6 billion of capital to work in the equity markets at a very opportune time; this activity resulted in 
substantial value add for the Fund with the subsequent rally in risk assets in April 2020

• Anecdotally and, as reported in the press, not all of APFC’s peers were as well positioned to navigate this market as late in a bull market there is almost 
always pressure on investors to add risk to portfolios or to eliminate/reduce risk offsetting positions such as cash or market hedges (2)

2.  e.g., “AIMCo’s CEO Responds to Volatility Blowup” (Pension Pulse, May 4, 2020) and “CalPERS Unwound Hedges Just Before March’s Epic Stock Sell-off” (Wall Street Journal, April 18, 2020). 

($ in millions)

Date: 2/27/2020 2/28/2020 3/2/2020 3/3/2020 3/4/2020 3/5/2020 3/6/2020 3/9/2020 3/10/2020 3/11/2020 3/12/2020 3/13/2020 3/16/2020 3/18/2020 4/1/2020 4/3/2020 Total (1)

S&P 500 Return: (4.40%) (0.81%) 4.61% (2.81%) 4.23% (3.37%) (1.70%) (7.59%) 4.94% (4.88%) (9.49%) 9.32% (11.98%) (5.18%) (4.41%) (1.50%) (19.94%)

MSCI ACWI Return: (3.28%) (1.74%) 3.06% (1.16%) 2.69% (1.94%) (2.04%) (7.06%) 2.71% (3.64%) (9.50%) 5.29% (9.13%) (5.06%) (3.69%) (1.36%) (20.88%)

$ Deployed into Stocks: $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $400 $50 $200 $400 $50 $400 $200 $100 $100 $2,600

1.  Total for S&P 500 and MSCI ACWI represents total overall return from February 26, 2020 through April 3, 2020.

Source: CapitalIQ and APFC Investment Department internal records.

85



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    7

Private Equity & Special Opportunities
PESO Performance Through April (1)

• APFC’s Private Equity & Special Opportunities (“PESO”) portfolio 
continues to deliver above market returns and strong outperformance

COVID Impacts on Portfolio

• A single large position in the Special Opportunities portfolio started 
coming under significant pressure in late 2019 resulting in poor 
performance for Special Opportunities vs. Private Equity (one year 
returns of minus 2.8% vs. positive 19.9% for Private Equity)

• Staff expects some negative valuation marks on portfolio in coming
quarters, however, overall portfolio is holding up well given environment

Strategic & Pacing

• Planned growth in target allocation for the asset class to 19% over the 
next five years enables Staff to maintain constant pacing level of ~$1.6 
billion annually in spite of market correction

• Staff continues to evaluate potential strategic platform opportunities

4.2%

6.6%

10.4%

17.9%

0.0%

4.8%

9.9%

12.8%

0.00%

2.00%

4.00%

6.00%

8.00%

10.00%

12.00%

14.00%

16.00%

18.00%

20.00%

CYTD FYTD 1 Year 3 Years

APFC Benchmark

1.  BONY performance report as of April 29, 2020.  Due to composite reconstitution, BONY does not report a five year return for PESO.   
86



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    8

Private Income
Private Income Performance Through April (1)

1.  BONY performance report as of April 29, 2020.  Due to composite reconstitution, BONY does not report a five year return for Private Income.   

• APFC’s Private Income portfolio continues to deliver above market 
returns and strong outperformance

• Portfolio includes infrastructure, private credit and income 
opportunities investments

COVID Impacts on Portfolio

• Sale of a significant majority of the Fund’s interest in Generate Capital 
(infrastructure direct investment) immediately prior to COVID 
represented opportune timing

• Staff paying particularly close attention to our transportation and 
energy investments within infrastructure; too early to assess ultimate 
impact

Strategic & Pacing

• Flat 9% target allocation to asset class results in planning targeted 
deployment of $650 million per annum, a modest reduction from 
recent levels

(0.1%)

3.4%

6.7%

10.8%

(9.4%)

(4.4%)

(2.2%)

4.8%

-15.00%

-10.00%

-5.00%

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

CYTD FYTD 1 Year 3 Years

APFC Benchmark

87



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    9

Real Estate
Private Income Performance Through April (1)

1.  BONY performance report as of April 29, 2020.   

• APFC’s Real Estate portfolio, based on BONY performance analysis, was down 
roughly 30 bps CYTD vs. 1.6% return on the NCREIF benchmark

Strategic & Pacing

• In April 2020, APFC committed $200 million to Kayne Anderson Real Estate 
Opportunity Debt fund of which ~$100 million had been called by month-end April; 
this investment adds an additional third party to source attractive opportunities in 
the real estate debt markets; underlying assets almost entirely multi-family, full 
discretion to Kayne Anderson as manager vs. APFC position as limited partner

• As of month end April, ~$330 million remains to be called from the ~$500 million that 
APFC committed to three opportunistic real estate managers (Brookfield, HIG and 
Harbert) three years ago

• Investment team is more constructive on REIT’s than when last discussed in mid-
February (based on stock price declines and resultant valuations), working towards a 
~$700 million allocation to domestic REIT’s with a focus on multi-family and industrial
as soon as permitted in Investment Policy (July 1)

• Based on above activity we forecast ~7.2-7.5% of the Fund invested in Real Estate 
(against a target of 7%) by July 2020; to achieve 12% target allocation by 2025 
requires annual deployment of ~$500-750 million, which we are confident in 
achieving

• Anticipating deploying capital via a mix of funds, direct investments and REIT 
investments sized to ~15% of the total Real Estate portfolio

(0.3%)

1.8%

0.3%

1.6%

5.7%

1.6%

4.5%

6.4%
6.7%

8.3%

-1.00%

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

7.00%

8.00%

9.00%

CYTD FYTD 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years

APFC Benchmark

88



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    10

Real Estate (continued)
COVID Impacts on Portfolio

• APFC had one directly held property in a sale process at the time the COVID crisis hit; the pandemic has caused a disruption/pause to this process 

Multi-family Sector (9% of APFC portfolio)

• Most resilient sector; rent collections for April largely intact

• Amenities and any community spaces closed down

• Tenants staying in place/turnover expected to decrease for the time being

• Duration of economic shutdown may disproportionately impact affordable sector in
the absence of continued federal support

Industrial Sector (11% of APFC portfolio)

• Increased market penetration further improving dominance of online retail sales

• Amazon roars

Hotel Sector (2% of APFC portfolio)

• Highly impacted property type; complete fall off in demand

• Recovery may be slow and largely dependent on return of travel

Office Sector (34% of APFC portfolio)

• April rents paid, expectation for decreasing collections the longer the economy is shut down 
by virus

• Rent relief requests noted from travel related tenancy and at base building retail tenancy

• Energy markets and tenancy already reflected some weakness in line with sector

• Co-working expected to undergo some consolidation (APFC staff prudently avoided renting 
to WeWork over past several years)

• Potential for net zero impact to footprint going forward, as any pressure to downsize given 
success of remote work may be offset by increasing space per worker requirement for social 
distancing in work place

• Trend towards “open work spaces” now widely expected to move in other direction going 
forward as tenants have newfound appreciation for enclosed private offices for professionals

Retail Sector (45% of APFC portfolio)

• Most impacted property type (other than hotel); April rent collections at 20-30%

• Rent relief requests mounting across “non-essential” business tenancy

• Landlord requests for loan forbearance from lenders common

• Acceleration of secular shift to logistics sector already underway, as online fulfillment 
of grocery grows to become more acceptable

• Consolidation of overall sector expected to move more quickly

• Repositioning of retail projects to more “experiential” tenancy now tested; impact 
expected to continue in medium term as consumers slowly return to restaurants, gyms, 
theaters, any crowded venues, etc.

89



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    11

Absolute Return
Absolute Return Performance Through April (1)

1.  BONY performance report as of April 29, 2020.   

• APFC’s Absolute Return portfolio role as uncorrelated and minimally 
impacted by traditional markets solidified by exceptional performance 
during the volatile start to 2020

COVID Impacts on Portfolio

• Minimal impact on portfolio from financial markets volatility in-line 
with zero correlation target

• With the strong performance, the Absolute Return portfolio has ended 
up over target allocation and therefore a net source capital as we 
rebalance the broader portfolio and raise funds for State and dividend 
funding in the Fall

• Portfolio did experience a drawdown in March, however, it was <5% 
and through April, according to BONY performance analysis, the 
portfolio showed a positive P&L for all relevant time periods, beating
the benchmark and broader hedge fund universe by a very wide margin

0.9%

3.1%

5.5%

4.1%

3.2%

(7.3%)

(5.4%)

(3.9%)

0.5% 0.3%

-8.00%

-6.00%

-4.00%

-2.00%

0.00%

2.00%

4.00%

6.00%

8.00%

CYTD FYTD 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years

APFC Benchmark

90



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    12

Total Fund Cash & Risk Parity
• APFC’s Total Fund Cash & Risk Parity (a.k.a. “Asset Allocation 

Portfolio”) provided an important source of capital during the market 
sell-off in March

• The portfolio in this period continued to be benchmarked against 40% 
treasury bills and 60% total Fund benchmark

• In the new investment policy, Staff is proposing that Total Fund Cash
and Risk Parity be divided into their own asset classes with their own
benchmarks to avoid the frequent problems of mis-match vs.
benchmark in this area over the past several years

COVID Impacts on Portfolio

• Risk Parity portfolio experienced losses broadly similar with the 
markets generally; however, the portfolio’s large overweight to cash 
resulted in strong outperformance vs. benchmark

1.  BONY performance report as of April 29, 2020.  Due to composite reconstitution, BONY does not report a five year return for Private Income.   

Total Fund Cash & Risk Parity Performance 
Through April (1)

0.1%

1.6%

2.7%

2.0%

(6.9%)

(3.4%)

(1.2%)

3.3%

-8.00%

-6.00%

-4.00%

-2.00%

0.00%

2.00%

4.00%

CYTD FYTD 1 Year 3 Years

APFC Benchmark

91



2.  Report on Investment Actions for 
Quarter Ending March 31, 2020

92



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    14

Investment Actions
Quarter Ending March 31, 2020

• In order maintain allocation to public equities at targeted levels, Staff transferred a total of 
$2.6 billion from Total Fund Cash to Public Equities between February 27 and April 3, 2020

• Given the desire to get the capital to work as expeditiously as possible, all of this capital was 
contributed into the APFC Tactical Tilts portfolio

Sept. ‘18
Board Resolution
Passed

Public Equity

Absolute Return

• No new investments were made in the quarter ending March 31, 2020

• In the quarter, Staff fully redeemed from a global macro manager for proceeds of $237 
million; Staff also partially redeemed $100 million from a second global macro manager

• Due to the very strong performance of the Absolute Return portfolio during the Q1 market 
volatility, these moves were done, in part, to free up capital and to prevent the asset class 
from moving into too much of an overweight position versus target allocation

Real Estate

• No new investments were made in the quarter ending March 31, 2020

• Subsequent to quarter-end, however, Staff closed on a $200 million commitment to Kayne 
Anderson Real Estate Opportunistic Debt (“KAROD”); Staff also anticipates establishing a 
REIT position of ~$700 million with a heavy tilt towards domestic multi-family and industrial 
REIT’s 93



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    15

Investment Actions (continued)
Quarter Ending March 31, 2020

Fund Commitments Closed in Fiscal Q3

• $50 million to HIG Whitehorse DLF 2020

Sept. ‘18
Board Resolution
Passed

Private Income

Private Equity & 
Special Opps

Fund Commitments Closed in Fiscal Q3

• $18 million to Wynnchurch V

• $35 million to Insight XI

• $25 million to L Catterton Latin America III

• $36 million to Battery XIII / Select IX

• $50 million to Odyssey VI

• $50 million to Vista Foundation IV

• $75 million to Lightspeed XIII / Select IV

• $14 million to Mayfield XVI / Select II

• $55 million to Index Ventures X / Growth V

Total: $358 million

Direct Investments and Co-Investments Closed in 
Fiscal Q3

• $15 million to Netskope (follow-on)

• $6 million to Dentalcorp (follow-on)

Total: $21 million

Direct Investments and Co-Investments Closed in 
Fiscal Q3

• $4 million to Albireo Energy Up-size

• $25 million to Bolt Energy Up-size

• $4 million to Magna Up-size

Total: $33 million

94



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    16

Investment Actions (continued)
Quarter Ending March 31, 2020

• During Q1 2020, APFC transferred $550 million to the State General Fund; as of April 2020 the FY 2020 
appropriation has been fully transferred to the State General Fund

• During Q1 2020, the Fund received $102 million in DNR royalty proceeds

• During Q1 2020, the Fund had a net inflow of $164 million from private markets investment and cash flow 
activity

• In March, Staff partially redeemed $300 million from the Fund’s external risk parity managers to free up 
liquidity

• During the quarter, the Total Fund Cash account funded $2.4 billion into public equities and received $700 
million from Fixed Income as part of rebalancing activities

Sept. ‘18
Board Resolution
Passed

Total Fund Cash & 
Risk Parity

95



3.  Public Equities Update

APPENDIX

96



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    18

Public Equities - March 31, 2020

APFC Assets: $60.72 billion

APFC Public Equities: $21.74 billion

Current Weight: 35.8%

Policy Weight: 37%

Investment Universe/Index: Global/ MSCI ACWI IMI

Management
▪ External Managers: 75%
▪ Internal: 25%

Investment Strategies: Active, Passive, Quasi Passive

Excess Return Objective: + 50 bps net of fee 
97



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    19

Allocation Sector Performance 
(%)

47.4% Global* -21.61

MSCI ACWI IMI -22.41

Excess Returns (bps) +80 bps

25.8% International -24.68

MSCI ACWI ex US -24.11

Excess Returns (bps) -57 bps

26.8% Domestic -27.57

Russell 3000 -20.90

Excess Returns (bps) -667 bps

Relative Performance (FY20 Q3)

APFC Public Equities FY20 Q3 (%)

Public Equities -24.21

MSCI ACW IMI -22.44

Excess Returns (bps) -1.76

Negative Contribution

Significant Value tilt in Domestic Equity

Value tilts in Global and International

* Global includes APF Tactical Tilt

Positive Contribution

APF Tactical Tilt

98



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    20

Domestic 
Equities

1Year 
(%)

3 Years 
(%)

5 Years 
(%)

Domestic Equities -17.33 -0.44 2.96

Russell 3000 -9.13 4.00 5.77

Excess Returns -8.2 -3.56 -2.81

Appendix E   
Performance – Public Equities

Performance – Domestic Equities

Performance Spread 
(Value-Growth)

1Year 3 Years 
(%)

5 Years 
(%)

Russell 3000 Value -18.02 -2.67 1.62

Russell 3000 Growth -0.44 10.54 9.74

Value - Growth -17.58 -13.2 -8.12

Domestic Equities: 
• Approx. Equal Allocation across  active Growth and Value 

managers (approx. $1.6 billion  in each category)*
• Significant Overweight ($1.6 billion) to Value comes from the 

following Passive Strategies*:
• MSCI FTSE RAFI
• APF SPDR LOW VOL
• APF SPDR Momentum
• APF SPDR Yield

• Domestic Equity’s one, three, and five year excess returns are 
primarily impacted by the Extreme Underperformance of Value vs. 
Growth within US Equities 

* Appendix A
99



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    21

In-House Tactical Tilt – Attribution as of 03/31/2020

Key Attribution for FYQ3

Beneficial

Allocation to Cash

Underweight US Equity

Overweight Gold Miners

Overweight China Equity

Internal Equities
$2,346 million

FY 20 Q3 (%) FYTD 1 Yr 3 Yr

APF Tactical Tilt -16.94 -6.06 -4.47 2.48

MSCI ACWI IMI -22.44 -15.57 -12.73 0.76

Excess Returns bps (Net of Fee) +550 +951 +836 +172

APF Tactical Tilt is managed from a top down macro 
perspective and is implemented using Exchange 
Traded Funds

100



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    22

U.S. Value vs. Growth relative valuation BM(Value)/BM (growth):    
1967-2020

0
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13

D
ec-67

D
ec-68

D
ec-69

D
ec-70

D
ec-71

D
ec-72

D
ec-73

D
ec-74

D
ec-75

D
ec-76

D
ec-77

D
ec-78

D
ec-79

D
ec-80

D
ec-81

D
ec-82

D
ec-83

D
ec-84

D
ec-85

D
ec-86

D
ec-87

D
ec-88

D
ec-89

D
ec-90

D
ec-91

D
ec-92

D
ec-93

D
ec-94

D
ec-95

D
ec-96

D
ec-97

D
ec-98

D
ec-99

D
ec-00

D
ec-01

D
ec-02

D
ec-03

D
ec-04

D
ec-05

D
ec-06

D
ec-07

D
ec-08

D
ec-09

D
ec-10

D
ec-11

D
ec-12

D
ec-13

D
ec-14

D
ec-15

D
ec-16

D
ec-17

D
ec-18

D
ec-19

Feb-20
M

ar-20

Largest 1,500 U.S. Companies - Value Weighted

V/G ratio Median V/G ratio starting 1986 +1 StdDev -1 StdDev

-1 StdDev

+1 StdDev

Median

Median V/G = 4.90
StdDev = 2.01
Current V/G: 11.76
140% above the median
More than 3 StdDev above the median

101



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    23

MSCI AC World Value vs. Growth valuation spread
Value’s discount to the market is the largest since the early 2000’s

-80%

-70%

-60%

-50%

-40%

-30%

-20%

-10%

0%

1997 1999 2001 2003 2005 2007 2009 2011 2013 2015 2017 2019

Long run average -50%

Value currently priced at a 69% discount to market

Value vs. Market valuation discount (average of price 
to forward earnings, price to book, and EV/Sales)

Source: QEP, IBES, data from Jan 1997 to Mar 2020. “Market” refers to the MSCI World IMI index. Long term average since 31st January 1997. Value basket is formed from a liquidity weighted average of the cheapest tercile of global stocks based on a MSCI World IMI universe (composite of forward 
earnings, book and sales).  Growth basket is formed from a liquidity weighted average of the fastest growing tercile stocks based on an MSCI World IMI universe (2 year forward growth).

102



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    24

-5.1%

8.7%

13.8%

22.9%

32.8%

5.2% 5.8%
7.4% 8.3%

14.6%

7.2% 6.4% 6.8% 7.7%

11.1%

-10%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

Top Quintile - Cheap Second Quintile Third Quintile Fourth Quintile Bottom Quintile - Expensive

How much growth has the market priced?

What growth are analysts forecasting? (3 years out)

How much growth has been delivered in the past 5 years?

Growth Expectations and Value
The bar is set low for value stocks

Implied growth and forecast growth by value cohort

Source: Schroders, as of April 16, 2020. We form 5 quintiles from our global value rank – we restrict this to mid, large and mega cap stocks and exclude Financials and loss-makers. We compute the market cap weighted implied and forecast growth for these quintiles. We trim the growth metrics at 5th 
and 95th percentile to reduce the impact of outliers. We extract the implied growth from the Residual Income Valuation Model– this is the short-term growth rate which if applied to consensus earnings forecasts results in the current valuation. The key assumptions in this model are the cost of capital 
which is the measure we use to discount future earnings back to present value and the time periods over which we expect a company’s growth rate and profitability will deviate from the market. 3 Year Forecast Annualized Growth is the growth rate over the next 3 years based on IBES Consensus 
Estimates. The opinions stated in this document include some forecasted views. We believe that we are basing our expectations and beliefs on reasonable assumptions within the bounds of what we currently know. However, there is no guarantee that any forecasts or opinions will be realized. 

Expensive stocks must grow much faster than analysts 
actually expect, and than they have in the past, to justify 

current valuations

Implied growth is much lower than past or 
forecast growth for value stocks

Cheapest, lowest growth expectations Most expensive, highest growth expectations

103



MSCI AC World – 1 Year Rolling Breadth

Market breadth
Narrow breadth is a headwind to diversified managers

Source: Schroders, QEP , MSCI. The breadth shown is calculated using a 60 day rolling average. Breadth is calculated daily back to 1st January 2002, and then monthly back to Jan 
1997. We have used the index constituents as at July 1999 to backfill monthly constituents back to January 1997. The percentile ranks is calculated based on the 60 day rolling average 
breadth. Performance is for Schroder ISF QEP Global Active Value versus MSCI AC World, since October 2004. 1 month performance is assigned to each month end, and then the 
month-end breadth percentile rank is used to split all months into 3 breadth environments, The performance is the average return for all months in the relevant breadth environment.

MSCI AC World – Percentile Rank

Schroder QEP Value Fund – Average 1 Month Active Return by Market Breadth Environment

0%

50%

100%

1997 1999 2001 2003 2005 2007 2009 2011 2013 2015 2017 2019

MSCI AC World

Percentage rank as at Mar 2020: 2%

-0.27%

-0.10%

+0.32%

-0.4%

-0.3%

-0.2%

-0.1%

0.0%

0.1%

0.2%

0.3%

0.4%

Low breadth Medium breadth High breadth

Average active return vs. MSCI AC World

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

1997 1999 2001 2003 2005 2007 2009 2011 2013 2015 2017 2019

Average breadth: 50%

Breadth as at Mar 2020: 38%

104



FANMAGs and US vs ex US YTD Performance and Valuation
FANMAGs valuations still elevated, EM more attractive than US

Source: Schroders, 31st March 2020. We report the local currency YTD returns in excess of the MSCI AC World Index as well as the 1 Year Forward P/Es, Implied Growth and forecast growth for end of December 2019 and end of March 2020. These measures are calculated using market cap weighting where we restrict 
the maximum weight on any stock to be 5% and restrict this to Mega, Large and Mid-Cap stocks. We extract the implied growth from the Residual Income Valuation Model – this is the short-term growth rate which if applied to consensus earnings forecasts results in the current valuation. The key assumptions in this 
model are the cost of capital which is the measure we use to discount future earnings back to present value and the time periods over which we expect a company’s growth rate and profitability will deviate from the market. The forecast growth numbers are based on IBES Smart Estimates. 

Returns and Valuation Implied Growth Forecast Growth

MSCI AC IMI 
Weight

Local Returns 
Excess YTD

1 Year 
Forward P/E 

(Dec 19)

1 Year 
Forward P/E 

(Mar 20)

Cost Of Capital Implied Growth 
(Dec 19)

Implied Growth 
(Mar 20)

1 Year Forecast 
Growth 
(Dec 19)

1 Year Forecast 
Growth (Mar 20)

3 Year Forecast 
Growth 
(Dec 19)

3 Year Forecast 
Growth (Mar 20)

FANMAGS 9.6% 21% 40 38 6.4% 45.7% 42.8% 29.4% 21.4% 19.1% 21.3%

Microsoft 2.6% 20% 27 26 4.9% 18.1% 15.5% 13.9% 12.8% 12.1% 11.4%

Apple 2.5% 7% 22 18 6.2% 20.6% 14.2% 10.9% 10.9% 10.2% 10.6%

Amazon 1.9% 25% 69 64 6.6% 72.5% 68.9% 30.0% 26.4% 23.5% 31.2%

Facebook 0.9% 1% 23 21 6.3% 21.2% 18.8% 38.4% 15.5% 19.4% 19.1%

Alphabet 0.8% 7% 25 25 5.6% 19.6% 19.5% 15.8% -8.9% 10.8% 8.0%

Netflix 0.4% 36% 60 58 8.1% 77.3% 75.1% 61.3% 44.6% 36.0% 38.8%

Nvidia 0.3% 33% 33 32 6.5% 36.0% 35.3% 39.7% 29.1% 19.2% 21.4%

Salesforce 0.3% 8% 53 42 7.0% 62.1% 51.9% 7.3% 6.5% 11.1% 17.6%

US 54.1% 4% 22 20 6.4% 17.6% 13.0% 12.0% 4.3% 9.1% 9.5%

ex US (DM) 31.0% 2% 19 17 6.6% 11.8% 8.4% 9.3% 2.3% 6.7% 6.9%

Emerging Markets 10.8% 4% 18 16 7.0% 10.9% 6.7% 17.0% 13.5% 11.9% 13.0%

105



Appendices

106



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    28

Domestic Equities
• Allocation to Active Growth Managers – $1.66billion

– Lyrical Partners
– LSV Asset Management
– SKBA Capital Management

• Allocation to Active Value Managers - $1.56 billion
– DSM Capital Partners
– AGI 
– SSGA
– Castle Ark

• Allocation to Passive (Value biased) Managers - $1.62 billion
– Mellon FTSE RAFI
– APF SPDR Low Vol
– APF SPDR Mom
– APF SPDR Yield
– APF Domestic

Appendix A 
Domestic Managers – Value Tilt coming from allocation to value biased passive strategies

107



4.  Fixed Income Update

APPENDIX

108



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    2

Fixed Income + Allocation

Fixed Income + Allocation (000’s) QTD Excess Return Contribution

Benchmark Portfolio

Sector 
Allocation

Within Sector 
Allocation

Total Excess 
Return

US Aggregate 25.0% 3,379,000 27.3% 3,696,000 0.19% -0.31% -0.12%

US Corporates 25.0% 3,379,000 28.7% 3,876,000 0.07% -0.01% 0.06%

High Yield 10.0% 1,351,000 9.8% 1,320,000 0.00% 0.02% 0.02%

Emerging Market 5.0% 675,000 5.5% 739,000 -0.07% -0.23% -0.30%

REITs 10.0% 1,351,000 10.0% 1,358,000 0.05% 0.23% 0.28%

Non-US Rates 10.0% 1,351,000 8.8% 1,185,000 -0.12% -0.01% -0.14%

TIPS 5.0% 675,000 2.8% 378,000 -0.20% 0.01% -0.19%

Listed Infrastructure 5.0% 675,000 5.2% 700,000 -0.01% 0.39% 0.38%

Total Cash 5.0% 675,000 2.0% 266,000 -0.18% 0.00% -0.18%

Total 100% -0.26% 0.08% -0.19%

109



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    31

Fixed Income Plus Performance

U.S. Aggregate Portfolio ($3,696mm)
• Neutral duration and long spread product vs Treasuries
• Overweight to Corporates, CMBS, and ABS were the greatest 

contributors to underperformance this quarter 

U.S. Corporate Bond Portfolio ($3,877mm)
• Security selection largest contributor to quarterly     

outperformance
• Overweight 10+ year Credit

Performance as of 3/31/2020

Fixed Income Plus  ($13,523mm)
• Overweight US Agg, Corporates, High Yield and Emerging Markets
• Underweight TIPS and Global Rates

Portfolio 1.99% 8.29% 4.67% 3.39%

Index 3.15% 8.93% 4.82% 3.36%

Strategy -6.72% 0.27% 2.93% n/a

Index -6.53% -0.11% 2.59% n/a

Portfolio -3.68% 5.65% 4.57% 3.76%

Index -3.63% 4.98% 4.20% 3.36%

QTD (%) 1Yr (%) 3Yr (%) 5Yr(%)

QTD (%) 1Yr (%) 3Yr (%) 5Yr(%)

QTD (%) 1Yr (%) 3Yr (%) 5Yr(%)

Internal Portfolios

110



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    32

Fixed Income Plus Performance

Fixed Income Plus Cash ($267 mm)
• Source of liquidity
• Seek to at least match T-Bills  

Global Rates ($855mm)
• Duration and curve greatest contributors
• Periphery and IG EM hard currency spread widening were detractors

Portfolio 1.14% 5.61% 4.69% 3.44%

Index 1.32% 5.84% 4.83% 3.75%

Portfolio 2.05% 7.08% 3.61% 2.77%

Index 1.69% 6.85% 3.46% 2.67%

TIPS ($241mm)
• Neutral duration with focus on pure, mean-reverting relative value plays
• Security selection and curve position drove performance.

QTD (%) 1Yr (%) 3Yr (%) 5Yr(%)

QTD (%) 1Yr (%) 3Yr (%) 5Yr(%)

QTD (%) 1Yr (%) 3Yr (%) 5Yr(%)

Portfolio 0.47% 2.36% 1.94% n/a

Index 0.57% 2.25% 1.83% n/a

Internal Portfolios

Performance as of 3/31/2020
111



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    33

Internal U.S. Aggregate Portfolio

Composition
• $3.7 Billion
• Investment Grade Bonds
• Barclays’ US Aggregate Index
• Duration based on interest rate forecast
• Internal Fixed Income Team’s Best Ideas
• Primary PM:  Jim Parise, Chris Cummins,  Masha 
Skuratovskaya

Index Comparison

Portfolio Index

Duration 5.3 5.4

Yield 1.8 1.6

Spread 122 91

Rating Aa2 Aa2

Performance

Predicted Tracking Error

Quarterly Attribution

Total Tracking 
Error

Curve
Sector 
Spread

Inflation Other

66 bps 5% 87% 8% 0%

Duration/
Curve

Asset 
Allocation

Security 
Selection

Other

Portfolio -0.02% -1.26% 0.21% -0.09%

Latest
Quarter

FYTD One Year Three Year Five Year

Portfolio 1.99% 4.88% 8.29% 4.67% 3.39%

Index 3.15% 5.68% 8.93% 4.82% 3.36%

Performance as of 3/31/2020
112



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    34

Internal U.S. Aggregate Portfolio

Sector MV ($mil) 
% of 

Portfolio 
% of Index 

Total Portfolio $3,696 100% 100%

Treasury $915 25% 41%

Government-
Related

$283 8% 6%

Corporate $1,304 35% 24%

MBS $915 25% 27%

ABS $109 3% 2%

CMBS $152 4% 2%

Cash $18 0% 0%

Portfolio Index Over/Under Weight

Duration 5.3 5.4 0.0

Portfolio Credit Quality vs. Index

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Aaa Aa A Baa

Agg Portfolio Corporates Index Corporates

113



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    35

• $3.9 Billion
• Investment Grade Corporate Bonds
• 300+ positions with 200+ issuers
• Barclays’ U.S. Corporate Bond Index
• Futures used to control curve and duration              
exposure
• Primary PM:  Jim Parise, Matt Olmsted

Internal Corporate Bonds

Performance

Predicted Tracking Error

Composition 

Quarterly Attribution

Index Comparison

Latest
Quarter

FYTD One Year Three Year Five Year

Portfolio -3.68% 0.71% 5.65% 4.57% 3.76%

Index -3.63% 0.48% 4.98% 4.20% 3.36%

Duration/
Curve

Asset 
Allocation

Security 
Selection

Other

Portfolio 0.06% 0.07% -0.18% 0.0%

Total Tracking 
Error

Curve
Sector 
Spread

Idiosyncratic Other

71 bps 5% 94% 1% 0.0%

Portfolio Index

Duration 7.8 7.9

Yield 3.35 3.42

Spread 263 265

Rating A3 A3

Performance as of 3/31/2020
114



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    36

• $241 Million
•US Treasury Inflation Protected Securities
• 14+ positions
• Barclays’ U.S. TIPS Index
• Portfolio duration and curve position reflects views on 
rates and inflation valuation
• Primary PM:  Masha Skuratovskaya

Internal Tips Portfolio

Composition 

Index Comparison

Portfolio Index

Duration 7.8 7.8

Yield 0.7 0.6

Total Tracking 
Error

Curve
Sector 
Spread

Inflation Other

14 bps 48% 0% 52% 0%

Predicted Tracking Error

Performance

Quarterly Attribution

Latest
Quarter

FYTD One Year Three Year Five Year

Portfolio 2.05% 4.14% 7.08% 3.61% 2.77%

Index 1.69% 3.87% 6.85% 3.46% 2.67%

Duration/
Curve

Asset 
Allocation

Security 
Selection

Other

Portfolio 0.05% 0.03% 0.28% 0.00%

Performance as of 3/31/2020
115



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    37

• $855  Million 
• Investment Grade Sovereign and Agency bonds
• 60+ positions with 25+ issuers
• Barclays’ Global Treasury Ex-U.S. Index Hedged
•Cross country allocation is driven by expectation for 
relative performance. 
•Primary PM: Masha Skuratovskaya

Internal Global Government Bonds

Performance

Predicted Tracking Error

Composition 
Quarterly Attribution

FX 
Hedging

Country 
Allocation

Duration / 
Curve

Asset 
Allocation

Security 
Selection

Portfolio 0.0% -0.23% 0.31% -0.03% -0.23%

Portfolio Index

Duration 8.3 9.1

Yield 1.7 1.1

Rating A1 A1

Performance as of 3/31/2020

Total Tracking 
Error

Curve
Sector 
Spread

FX Other

33 bps 55% 28% 5% 12%

Index Comparison

Latest
Quarter

FYTD One Year Three Year Five Year

Portfolio 1.14% 2.70% 5.61% 4.69% 3.44%

Index 1.32% 2.99% 5.84% 4.83% 3.75%

116



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    38

Fixed Income Plus Performance

Barclays U.S. Aggregate Portfolio ($3,696mm)
• Neutral duration and long spread product vs Treasuries
• O/W corporate was the greatest contributor to underperformance

Corporate Bond Portfolio ($3,877mm)
• Asset allocation contributed to performance 
• Credit risk was dramatically reduced in late 2019

Global Rates ($1, 185mm)

Performance as of 3/31/2020

Aggregate -6.72% 0.27% 2.93% n/a

Index -6.53% -0.11% 2.59% n/a

Strategy 1.99% 8.29% 4.67% 3.39%

Index 3.15% 8.93% 4.82% 3.36%

Strategy -3.68% 5.65% 4.57% 3.76%

Index -3.63% 4.98% 4.20% 3.36%

Strategy 1.18% 5.70% 4.63% 3.48%

Index 1.32% 5.84% 4.83% 3.75%

In House 1.14% 5.61% 4.69% 3.44%

Index 1.32% 5.84% 4.83% 3.75%

Allianz 1.13% 5.80% 4.75% 3.60%

Index 1.32% 5.84% 4.83% 3.75%

Internal ($885mm)
• Duration and curve greatest contributors
• Periphery and IG EM hard currency spread widening were detractors

Allianz ($300mm)
• Long duration via New Zealand and curve contributed
• Periphery and IG EM hard currency spread widening were detractors

QTD (%) 1Yr (%) 3Yr (%) 5Yr(%)

Fixed Income Plus  ($13,524mm)
• Overweight US Agg, Corporates, High Yield and Emerging Markets
• Underweight TIPS and Global Rates

117



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    39

Fixed Income Plus Performance
Global High Yield ($1,644mm)

• Predominantly managed externally with ETFs used to fill allocation 

Performance as of 3/31/2020

Strategy -12.44% -7.49% 0.46% 2.25%

Index -12.68% -6.94% 0.76% 2.78%

ETF -13.57% -8.29% 0.33% n/a

Index -12.68% -6.94% 0.76% n/a

OakTree -12.07% -5.89% 0.74% 2.09%

Index -12.68% -6.94% 0.76% 2.87%

Cap Guard -12.79% -10.17% -0.26% 2.76%

Index -12.68% -6.94% 0.76% 2.82%

TIPS ($371mm) Strategy 1.89% 6.48% 3.38% 2.62%

Index 1.69% 6.85% 3.46% 2.67%

In House 2.05% 7.08% 3.61% 2.77%

Index 1.69% 6.85% 3.46% 2.67%

APCM 1.62% 5.89% 3.04% 2.46%

Index 1.69%

Capital Guardian High Yield ($439mm)
• Results were in-line with index.  Security and sector selections provided 

mixed outcomes

Oaktree High Yield ($651mm)
• Defensively positioned portfolio avoided some high risk credits

High Yield ETF ($555mm)
• The ETFs beat the index but liquidity raise for fund in volatile market hurt

Internal TIPS ($236mm)
• Neutral duration with focus on pure, mean-reverting relative value plays
• Security selection and curve position drove performance.

Alaska Permanent Capital Mgmt. ($136mm)
• Portfolio benchmark has been changed from US TIPS 1-10yr to US TIPS
• Performance lagged due to rebalancing costs and overweight to 30yr sector

QTD (%) 1Yr (%) 3Yr (%) 5Yr(%)

118



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    40

Fixed Income Plus Performance

Performance as of 3/31/2020

Strategy -18.20% -10.88% -1.81% 0.40%

Index -14.28% -6.61% -0.13% 1.60%

Strategy -20.09% n/a n/a n/a

Index -14.28% n/a n/a n/a

Strategy -17.63% n/a n/a n/a

Index -14.28% n/a n/a n/a

Emerging Market Debt ($740mm)
Hard currency positions and FX drove sector underperformance

PGIM ($278mm)
• Overweight to HC EM debt in LatAm, Africa and Asia lead to 

underperformance. Exposure to Pemex was the single largest detractor

Ninety One (formerly Investec) ($160mm)
• Overweight to HC Ecuador, Zambia, Argentina, Ghana and RUB detracted, 

while underweights to Turkey, Sri Lanka and Oman contributed

QTD (%) 1Yr (%) 3Yr (%) 5Yr(%)

Strategy -15.82% n/a n/a n/a

Index -13.38% n/a n/a n/a

Payden ($149 mm)
• Underperformance driven by underweight too higher quality sovereigns 

such as China, Chile and Gulf states vs overweight to high yielders such as 
Angola and Mexico. Trading costs related to a withdrawal also detracted. 

Strategy -17.24% n/a n/a n/a

Index -15.21% n/a n/a n/a

Colchester ($153mm)
• Portfolio suffered from being overweight South Africa and Indonesia as 

well as exposure to Mexican and Colombian Peso relative to Czech 
Koruna and Polish Zloty

Fixed Income Plus Cash($688mm)
• Source of liquidity
• Seek to at least match T-Bills  

Strategy 0.47% 2.36% 1.94% n/a

Index 0.47% 2.36% 1.94% n/a

119



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    41

Fixed Income Plus Performance

Strategy -27.07% -20.76% -2.45% 1.97%

Index -29.02% -23.39% -4.52% -2.14%

AEW -26.11% -20.00% -1.17% 0.40%

Index -29.02% -23.39% -4.52% -2.14%

SSGA -28.90% -22.60% -3.56% n/a

Index -29.02% -23.39% -4.52% n/a

REITS ($1,359mm)
• Neutral to underweight to the overall REIT sector during the 1st Qtr.

AEW ($466mm)
• Strong stock selection in North America and Asia Pacific
• Stock selection was strongest in US, Canada, and the Netherlands
• Small cash position was a positive contributor given market contraction

SSGA Global REITS ($892mm)
• Passive portfolio used to adjust weighting

QTD (%) 1Yr (%) 3Yr (%) 5Yr(%)

Performance as of 3/31/2020
120



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    42

Fixed Income Plus Performance

Performance as of 3/31/2020

Listed Infrastructure ($701 mm)
• Actively managed overall sector weighting during high volatility 

Strategy -22.26% -13.21% 0.96% 3.45%

Index -29.31% -21.91% -4.16% -1.29%

Lazard -16.47% -5.52% 4.20% 7.28%

Index -15.04% -6.52% 5.47% 5.55%

SSGA -29.54% -21.64% -3.52% n/a

Index -29.31% -21.91% -4.16% n/a

C&S -15.62% -6.18% 5.98% 5.09%

Index -17.90% -9.33% 3.89% 4.48%

Lazard ($195 mm)
• Positive contributors, currency hedges, higher cash position, UK utilities, 

and US gas utilities
• Detracting from relative returns were French satellite companies and 

European toll roads.

SSGA ($355 mm)
• Passive portfolio used to adjust weighting 

Cohen & Steers ($152 mm)
• Positive contributors were security selection in both communications 

and electric utility sectors. Also an overweight in communications.
• Detractors were stock selection and an overweight in railways. Also an 

underweight to the electric utility sector.

QTD (%) 1Yr (%) 3Yr (%) 5Yr(%)

121



5.  Private Equity & Special 
Opportunities Update

APPENDIX

122



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    44

 (500)

 500

 1,500

 2,500

 3,500

 4,500

 5,500

 6,500

 7,500

 8,500

2004 2007 2010 2013 2016 2019

APFC PE + SO  PME

December 2010
Cumulative Gains: 

$45mm

PESO Mandate, Tactics + Performance

Private Equity
Special 

Opportunities

October 2004
Program Launched

January 
2013

Insourcing Today

+$4.3 
billion 

PESO Gain Over 
Public Benchmark

• Fund Commitments
• Co-Investments

• Fund Commitments
• Co-Investments
• Structured Fund 

Commitments
• Direct Investments

($ in millions)

Sources: Pathway Capital Management and Burgiss as of 31-December-2019.
Notes: All returns net of management fees and carry.

PME = Public Market Equivalent; benchmark assumes combined portfolio cash flows are invested in, or distributed from, a public index fund
(60% Russell 3000/40% MSCI EAFE).

+$7.4 
billion

Total PESO Gain

Tactics

123



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    45

PESO Portfolio Roles + Expected Net Returns

Costs

• Market risk

• Leverage

• Illiquidity

Benefits

• Absolute Return

• Diversification

• Market Knowledge

• Specificity

Expected returns              
over market cycle

Projected Annualized

Net Return Standard Deviation

Callan 8.5% 28%

Horizon CMA Survey 9.0% 22%

APFC 12.3% 22%

Benchmarks:

Private: Cambridge

Private: Peer Rankings

Public: Global Equities

Obstacles:

- Market Beta   .

- Execution Risk

- Inadequate Resources

124



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    46

PESO Activity

($ in millions) Commitments(1) Since 
Inception 
Net IRRPortfolio FY2020 Cumulative

Gatekeepers’ Private Equity $329 $7,186 13.8%

Staff Private Equity $977 $4,639 18.1%

Staff Special Opportunities $547 $5,442 23.5%

Combined: All PE + SpecOpps $1,854 $17,267 15.7%

Notes: 9% of the PE portfolio's MV and 15% of the SO portfolio's MV reflect roll-forward values as of 12/31/19 and are subject to change.
(1) Commitments through March 31, 2020. 

Source: Pathway Capital Management

($ in millions) Commitments(1) Since Inception Returns(1)

Tactic FY2020 Cumulative IRR Multiple Gain

Fund Commitments $1,702 $15,595 13.2% 1.5x $5,286

Direct/ Co-Investments $152 $1,672 52.6% 2.4x $2,126

Complementary Portfolios…

…and Complementary Tactics

125



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    47

Portfolio Performance (through 12/31/2019)

Private Equity and Special Opportunities 

($millions)

Portfolio

NAV  Historical Annualized Returns

Market
Value

% of
APF

1 Year 3 Years 5 Years 10 Years Total  Gains

Private Equity $6,139 9.0% 21.2% 21.6% 18.7% 16.8% $4,962

Special Opportunities $3,535 5.2% -3.3% 16.7% 8.8% NA $2,450

PE  + Spec Opps $9,675 14.2% 11.1% 20.1% 14.8% 18.2% $7,412

Cambridge Benchmark (at 9/30/2019):     . 9.5% 14.2% 12.4% 13.5%

Source:  Callan Associates; Pathway Capital Management
Notes:    9% of the PE portfolio's MV and 15% of the SO portfolio's MV are estimated based on roll-forward values as of 12/31/19 and are subject to change.

All returns net of management fees and carry.

126



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    48

COVID-19 Impact: Private Equity Industry

▪ The scale and scope of this crisis is unprecedented and largely unknown

▪ PE Industry has characteristics that can provide advantages in market dislocations
• Long-term investment horizon
• Contractually stable capital base
• Active management and substantive governance

➢ PE + VC managers are creating alpha (vs. harnessing market beta) 

▪ The GFC experience may provide a basis for cautious optimism
• In 2009, the 12-month leveraged loan default rate for private equity-backed companies was 7.2% vs. 15.1% 

for non-private-equity-backed  companies (1) 

• The decline in private equity returns was shallower than the decline in public equity returns and reclaimed 
prior peak more than two years before public equity did (1)

(1) Source: Fitch Ratings Inc.

127



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    49

COVID-19 Impact: APFC PESO Portfolios

▪ Shape of pending recession is unknown and impact is not yet reflected in performance
• Based on early operating results, staff estimates a ~5% to 9% decline in value in each of the next two quarters.

▪ Portfolio construction, manager selection, and early performance are encouraging 
• Recent commitments to managers of distressed strategies appear well-timed

• “Dry powder” at all time high

• 41.6% of PESO portfolio market value is in top two performing S&P sectors

▪ The publicly-listed portion of PESO portfolio reflects low correlation with public equities
• 11.7% of combined PESO portfolio is publicly-listed; the top 20 investments represent 9.4% (up 17.5% YTD) (1)

• 5 publicly-listed investments currently in $2.0 billion  APFC Direct/Co-investment portfolio (up 22.7% YTD) (1)

(1) As of April 26th, 2020 128



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    50

$242 

$40 

C
O

V
ID

-1
9

 R
E

S
IS

T
A

N
C

E

RECESSION RESISTANCE

Note:  each of 38 current portfolio companies has been ranked 1-10 in terms of:
- Recession Resistance (0 = highly cyclical, 10= highly recession resistant); and 
- Covid-19 Resistance (0 = struggles in a remote world, 10 = thrives in a remote world)
- Bubble size corresponds to investment value at 12/31/2019 in millions of USD.  

APFC Co-Investments + Direct Investments
(since inception in 2013)

Total Cost $1,507 Net IRR 52.6%

Total 
Realized

$1,628 Net MOIC 2.4x

Remaining 
FMV

$2,005 Loss Ratio 2.3%

Note:     Dollars in Millions
Source: Pathway Capital Management

COVID-19 Impact: APFC Direct + Co-Investments

129



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    51

Looking Ahead

▪ APFC private markets portfolio will weather COVID-19 storm

▪ Some operational advantages have become self-reinforcing
▪ e.g., reputation for adaptability and performance enhances deal flow and access which enhances returns

BUT:

▪ It should be expected that, if not addressed, resource constraints will 
undermine long-term investment results

▪ Continued success will require significant resources for: 
• info systems
• staffing and compensation 
• operating presence outside Juneau

130



5.  Private Income Update

APPENDIX

131



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    53

Summary Performance
Time Weighted Returns and Exposures as a % of Total Fund (per Callan) 

Source: Callan official performance reports. Private Income NAVs and performance as of December 31, 2019. 
1 Blended Benchmark is 60% FTSE Infrastructure Index and 40% Bloomberg US High Yield Index

Allocation

($ in millions) NAV Current Target QTD FYTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 

Private Infrastructure $2,551 3.7% 2.1% 4.0% 8.4% 15.1% 16.7%
FTSE Infrastructure Index 3.5% 10.1% 26.4% 13.5% 8.1%

Private Credit $1,557 2.3% 1.4% 4.4% 6.1% 6.8% 6.3%
Bloomberg US High Yield Index 2.6% 6.6% 14.3% 6.4% 6.1%

Income Opportunities $1,321 1.9% 1.6% 7.8% 13.2% 5.3% 7.1%
Blended Benchmark 1

3.1% 8.7% 21.5% 10.6% 7.4%

Private Income Portfolio $5,429 7.9% 8.0% 1.8% 5.0% 8.8% 11.6% 11.6%
Blended Benchmark 1

3.1% 8.7% 21.5% 10.6% 7.4%

132



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    54

Infrastructure   
(47% of NAV)

Income 
Opportunities 
(24% of NAV)

Private Credit 
(29% of NAV)

Returns are measured against the following benchmarks

• Absolute: CPI + 5.00%

• Relative: 60% FTSE Developed Core Infrastructure and 40% 
Bloomberg US High Yield (with a 2% Issuer Cap)

Overview of Private Income
Current income, capital appreciation, and downside protection

Objective

Return Objectives

Generate a return between the expected return for public 
equity and fixed income that is comprised of an attractive 
level of current income and capital appreciation

133



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    55

Private Infrastructure

Returns are measured against two benchmarks

• Absolute: CPI + 5.00%             

• Relative: FTSE Developed Core Infra Index

Funds
77%

Co-Invests / Directs
23%

Structure Mix Sector Mix Geographic Mix

Portfolio Snapshot

• Portfolio Value (at 12/31/19): $2.55 billion
• 23 funds, 8 co-investments
• 1 new fund and 1 new co-investment 

commitment in second fiscal quarter

Return Objectives

US, Canada, & Puerto 
Rico
39%

UK
8%

Continental Europe
32%

Australia
2%

Asia
12%

Emerging 
Markets & Other

7%

Water & Waste
4%

Transportation
26%

Power Generation
33%

Regulated Utility
8%

Midstream and Oil 
& Gas Storage

18%

Telecom
10%

Other
1%

134



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    56

Since Inception Portfolio PerformanceHorizon IRR’s @ December 31 Marks

Private Infrastructure
Overview of Performance and Benchmark Comparison

Note: Returns are as of December 31, 2019 NAVs as calculated by APFC Staff and Pathway Capital.  APFC 
portfolio returns are calculated on a money-weighted (IRR) basis as opposed to Callan’s returns which are 
reported on a time weighted basis. 

*Note: Listed infrastructure was included in this portfolio from September 2013 to September 
2016.

Capital Capital Capital Current Net

($ in millions) Committed Called Dist. Value IRR MOIC

Fund Investments $4,825 $2,800 $2,468 $1,972 11.1% 1.59x

Co-Investments $522 $499 $67 $578 12.9% 1.29x

Listed Infrastructure* $300 $300 $397 $0 10.6% 1.32x

Total Infrastructure $5,646 $3,599 $2,932 $2,550 11.1% 1.52x

8.6%

15.4% 15.8%

11.1%

26.5%

13.5%

8.2%
6.4%7.1% 6.8% 6.5% 6.6%

1-Year 3-Year 5-Year Since-Inception

APFC Private Infra

Investable Benchmark (FTSE Infra Index)

Return Objective (CPI + 500 bps)

135



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    57

• Existing GPs have ~$2.2 billion of dry powder available to deploy
• Expect to see attractive opportunities to invest in high-quality assets that are being sold by GPs or firms that are over-

levered or face liquidity constraints 

Private Infrastructure
Impact of COVID-19 and Opportunities

• Portfolio is well-diversified and comprised of high-quality managers that have successfully invested across multiple cycles 
and economic conditions

• Within the portfolio, we see biggest near-term impact to transportation and energy assets
• Globally, both local and long-distance travel has been substantially reduced, especially impacting passenger-focused transportation
• Stay-at-home orders and country-wide shutdowns have resulted in global oil demand destruction of up to 30%
• WTI Crude Oil index has fallen by ~70% from early 2020 levels
• Portfolio’s energy assets are not directly exposed to commodity price volatility and have long-term contracts to protect revenues

• Expect limited long-term impairment of capital
• Telecom assets have seen continued growth and strong performance as business and personal interactions largely move to 

the digital environment
• Despite challenges, infrastructure assets are well positioned to weather the storm

Impact on portfolio from COVID-19

Opportunities

136



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    58

Information 
Technology

31%

Medical & Health 
Related

14%
Services

11%

Consumer Related
10%

Industrial Products
8%

Finance, Insurance & 
Real Estate

7%

Manufacturing
5%

Construction & 
Building Products

5%

Trasportation
4%

Other*
2%

Energy 
Related

1%

Communications
1% Agriculture, Forestry 

& Fishing
1%

Private Credit
Striving to achieve private market yield premium

10-Year Projections r σ yield

Callan 5.75% 16.50% 6.25%

CPI 2.25% 1.50% n/a

APFC Objective 7.25% n/a n/a

Through-the- Cycle Expectations

• Defaults and losses on underlying loans

• Increased competition leading to a 
compression in spread to public markets

• Inability to refinance/exit loans due to a 
widespread flight of capital

Risks to Meeting Objectives

Private Credit Portfolio Industry Diversification

*Represents industries that each represent less than 1% of portfolio market value.137



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    59

Capital Capital Current Net

($ in millions) Called Dist. Value IRR MOIC

Legacy Fund-of-Funds $1,145 $1,210 $351 5.8% 1.4x

Direct Lending $330 $107 $254 9.1% 1.1x

Distressed $654 $353 $421 7.4% 1.2x

Opportunistic $380 $109 $340 10.7% 1.2x

Specialty Finance $116 $58 $67 8.3% 1.1x

Subordinated $566 $573 $170 10.5% 1.3x

Total Private Credit $3,191 $2,410 $1,602 7.0% 1.3x

12 months ago $2,833 $2,074 $1,450 6.8% 1.2x

8.1%
7.5%

5.7%

6.9%
6.4%

6.1%
5.4%

7.2%
6.8% 6.7%

6.3%
6.7%

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

4.0%

5.0%

6.0%

7.0%

8.0%

9.0%

APFC Private Credit

Investable Benchmark (Bloomberg US High Yield 2% Issuer Cap)

Return Objective (CPI + 500 bps)

Since Inception PerformanceHorizon IRR’s @ December 31 Marks

Note: Returns are as of December  31, 2019 NAVs, as calculated by APFC Staff and Pathway 
Capital.  APFC returns are calculated on a money-weighted (IRR) basis as opposed to Callan’s 
returns which are time-weighted. 

Private Credit
Performance and benchmark comparison

138



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    60

Private Credit
Impact of COVID-19

Impact on portfolio from COVID-19

Opportunities

• The impact is expected to be felt broadly across the portfolio; however, the magnitude will depend on the business and industry sector. 
• 45% of the staff directed portfolio is invested in technology and healthcare-related companies; the portfolio has minimal exposure to transportation (2%) and energy (1%)

• APFC’s general partners expect an increase in amendments and covenant waivers across their portfolios; however to date they have not seen an 
increase in defaults/non-accruals.

• 70% of the staff directed portfolio is invested in senior and/or secured debt securities; borrowers have moderate leverage multiples, strong sponsors/lenders, and attractive 
market positioning.

• There has been a significant increase in revolver drawdowns by borrowers, primarily for defensive purposes.
• The majority of the portfolio businesses have healthy liquidity positions and access to additional capital. 

• Direct Lenders with capital to deploy are expected to benefit from a more favorable lending environment.
• Pricing for new financings is hard to determine, but many lenders are estimating an overall increase in spreads of 250-300bps.
• As of 4Q 2019, the staff directed private credit portfolio  had unfunded commitments totaling $904mm, or 49% of commitments. Approximately $350mm in dry powder is 

held by well-positioned opportunistic credit-focused managers

• Distressed opportunity in both liquid and illiquid markets  is significant. An estimated $1T of corporate credit is trading at distressed levels.
• Long-term impact of social distancing measures and lower overall economic activity may drive a wave of defaults and distressed companies. 
• Relatively quick “snap-back” in secondary loan markets due to strong government response may limit opportunity in liquid markets.
• Significant amount of potential “fallen angels” may create opportunities in the high yield market

139



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    61

• With the formation of Private Income, the 
Income Opportunities portfolio was seeded 
with a joint venture to purchase and lease 
high-end single family homes

• This portfolio recognizes that the dynamic 
nature of global markets will create 
attractive income generating,  opportunities 
outside of the traditional Infrastructure and 
Private Credit definitions

• Returns are to be accretive to the Private 
Income portfolio and are therefore 
measured against the same benchmarks

Income Opportunities
Concentrated portfolio with defensive positioning

Through-the- Cycle Expectations

• Low return potential on unlevered, 
defensive assets

• Lack of ADAC diversification during build

• Concentrated, existing commitments will 
drive performance

Risks to Meeting Objectives

10-Year Projections r σ yield

Callan 5.75% 14.50% 5.50%

CPI 2.25% 1.50% n/a

APFC Objective 7.25% n/a n/a

140



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    62

Since Inception PerformanceHorizon IRR’s @ December 31 Marks

Note: Investable Benchmark is 60% FTSE Developed Core Infrastructure and 40% Bloomberg 
U.S. High Yield 2% Issuer Cap.  Returns are as of December 31, 2019 NAVs as calculated by 
APFC Staff and Pathway Capital.  APFC returns are calculated on a money-weighted (IRR) 
basis as opposed to Callan’s returns which are time-weighted.

Income Opportunities
Performance and benchmark comparison

13.1%

6.6% 7.2%

21.5%

11.0%

8.1%
7.1% 6.8% 6.4%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

1-Year 3-Year Since Inception

APFC Special Income Opportunities Investable Benchmark

Return Objective (CPI + 500 bps)

Vintage Capital Capital Current Net

($ in millions) Year Called Dist. Value IRR MOIC

American Homes for Rent II 2013 $162 $44 $151 4.4% 1.2x

Athyrium Opportunities Fund III 2016 $19 $4 $16 4.2% 1.0x

Twin Creeks Timber 2016 $113 $34 $78 (0.4%) 1.0x

Generate Capital 2017 $110 $7 $159 23.3% 1.5x

BroadRiver III 2017 $18 $0 $16 (7.1%) 0.9x

ADAC High Yield 2018 $618 $0 $703 8.6% 1.1x

ADAC Co-Invest 2018 $158 $23 $144 7.2% 1.1x

Activate Capital 2018 $36 $0 $36 (0.6%) 1.0x

Total Income Opportunities $1,252 $111 $1,318 7.2% 1.1x

12 months ago $943 $39 $953 4.9% 1.1x

141



6.  Real Estate Update

APPENDIX

142



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    64

Real Estate Portfolio Overview for 1Q20

Note:  Portfolio weightings do not include Fund Investments

11%

6%

Portfolio Composition APFC NCREIF Tactical Plan

HOTEL 1% 1% 1%

INDUSTRIAL 11% 18% 14%

MULTI-FAMILY 9% 25% 35%

OFFICE 34% 35% 25%

RETAIL 45% 21% 25%

100% 100% 100%

143



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    65

Private Real Estate Performance for 1Q20

(Note: Real Estate values and returns are reported with a one quarter lag.)

Performance Impact:
1) Significant overweight to Retail; the underperforming property type in NCREIF
2) Underweight to Industrial and Multifamily, the best performing property types in NCREIF
3) Office properties producing superior returns of 9.7% vs benchmark of 6.6%, except for underperforming property
4) Retail portfolio, excluding UK, produced a 2.5% return vs 1.9% for NCREIF
5) Overall portfolio returns, excluding these 3 properties produce a 6.2% return vs benchmark of 6.4%

3) 9.7% 3) 10.7%

4) 2.25% 4) 3.8%

5) 6.2% 5) 6.7%

144



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    66

Private Real Estate Portfolio by Manager for 1Q20

Note:  L&B assets include partnered assets with Macerich145



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    67

Note: Portfolio level limit of 40% LTV

Private Real Estate Portfolio Debt Maturities

146



7.  Absolute Return Update

APPENDIX

147



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    69

Summary Performance
Time Weighted Returns and Exposures as a % of Total Fund (per Callan) 

Source: Callan official performance reports. Absolute Return NAV and performance as of March 31, 2020.

• The hedge fund asset class in general protected well in Q1 market turbulence
• During the quarter, most of the damage to portfolios occurred in the month of March as market 

participants rushed to raise liquidity and reduce risk in portfolios
• More noteworthy dislocations were observed in the U.S. treasury futures basis spread, merger 

arbitrage spreads, and EM credit and FX carry, with respective negative impact on the 
strategies that trade in these markets

• Swift intervention by the Federal Reserve bank and other central banks around the world 
helped stabilize markets and prevent major “blow ups” in the financial system

• For the most part, leverage in hedge fund portfolios was significantly reduced during the period 
and are entering Q2 cautiously positioned to recapture some of the observed dislocations

Allocation

($ in millions) NAV Current Target QTD CYTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 

Absolute Return Portfolio $4,024 6.6% 5.0% (3.1%) (3.1%) 1.2% 2.9% 2.5%

HFRI FOF Index (9.4%) (9.4%) (5.1%) 0.3% 1.1%

148



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    70

Source:  APFC manager statements and investment staff calculations.
Note: March NAV and performance figures may utilize preliminary estimates 
where finalized numbers not yet available; performance figures calculated as 
NAV-weighted geometric mean over applicable timeframe

Portfolio Performance Direct Portfolio Overview

Strategy Mix Portfolio Statistics

Note:  Since inception date of July 
1, 2016, to match beginning of 
FY17 and beginning of in-house 
strategy

Absolute Return
Performance and portfolio composition

Equity Relative 
Value
47%

Macro
18%

CTA/GAA
16%

Event 
Driven…

Fixed 
Income 

Relativ…

NAV Return  

($ in millions) Mar-20 1Q20' FYTD SI FY19 FY18

Fund-of-Funds $279 -1.2% -10.0% 1.0% -4.4% -1.1%

Crestline $240 0.3% -9.5% 2.2% -5.2% -2.2%

Mariner $39 -9.5% -13.6% 0.1% 0.3% 3.5%

Direct Portfolio $3,622 -5.1% -1.4% 3.1% 3.0% 1.5%

Absolute Return $3,901 -4.8% -2.0% 3.9% 2.2% 1.2%

APFC Direct Portfolio

Ann. Return 3.12%

Volatility 3.93%

Sharpe 0.44

Corr to S&P 0.48

Corr to Agg 0.01

Corr to HFRI 0.61

149



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    71

12%

17%

1%

(17%)

12%

8%

0%

9%
8%

2%

(2%)

7%
6%

2%

(20%)

(15%)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Absolute Return
Target allocation and diversification reached within three years of rebuild

Fiscal Year End June Net Return

▪ Legacy Approach

▪ Direct Approach

Note:  All returns per Callan year-end monthly performance report.

• Since the first direct fund investment in August 
2016, APFC has built a portfolio of 18 managers 
with current invested amount of approximately 
$3.6bn;  $283 million remains invested in two of the 
legacy fund-of-funds

• The Absolute Return portfolio aims to provide the 
Fund with a stream of uncorrelated and defensive 
returns, while offering significantly better liquidity 
than other alternative investments

• Returns are measured against two benchmarks
– Absolute: CPI + 5.00%

– Relative: HFRI Total HFOF Universe

Performance of Absolute Return Portfolio Over Time

150



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    72

Absolute Return
Divergence between outlook and objectives

10-Year Projections r σ

Callan 5.05% 9.15%

CPI 2.25% 1.50%

APFC Objective 7.25% <12.00%

Through-the- Cycle Expectations

• Lower ex-post volatility limiting returns

• Overpaying for non-accretive strategies

• Leverage used by mangers can lead to 
significant losses if not properly managed

Risks to Meeting Objectives

Distribution of monthly returns

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

40.00%

%
, O

cc
u

rr
en

ce

Monthly Return

Portfolio Underlying Positions

151



8.  Total Fund Cash & Risk Parity 
(“Asset Allocation Portfolio”) Update

APPENDIX

152



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    74

Asset Allocation Portfolio
Quarter Ended March 31, 2020

• Objectives:
– Provide Liquidity for the Fund

– Short-term Blended Benchmark of multiple asset classes

– Long-term CPI+3%

• Comprised of 3 Strategies: 
– Cash

• Short term Fixed Income securities managed internally and 
externally benchmarked to 3-month T-bills

– Liquidity Overlay (Multi-Asset)

• Liquid equity and bond futures portfolio managed by NISA 
(65% Equities/35% Bonds)

– Risk Parity Strategies (Multi-Asset)

153



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    75

AA Strategies Overview
Quarter Ended March 31, 2020

Cash

$1.8 
billion

Liquidity 
Overlay

$0 mm

Risk 
Parity

$585 mm

Benchmark

Portfolio

T-Bills BM

Cash Risky Assets

Risky Assets Benchmark

154



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    76

Mechanics of Cash Inflows Use
Quarter Ended March 31, 2020

Invested depending on our risk 
tolerance and cash flow needs

Distributions 
from 

Investments

Investment 
Income

Mineral 
Revenues

Internal and External 
managers

Treasuries, commercial 
paper, government 

related securities

Benchmark: 3-m T-BIlls.

External manager

Bonds and equity 
futures

Benchmark: 65% 
Stocks/35% Bonds mix

155



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    77

Internal and External Cash Management
Quarter Ended March 31, 2020

Internal Cash

$1.3 Billion

• 16% treasuries, 7% commercial paper, 10% non US gov, 67% cash.

• Most are held to maturity; low transaction costs and no fees paid.

• Average yield to maturity for the quarter 1.28%, 1Q2020 0.66% Return vs 0.57% 3-m T-bills.

• Fed lowered rates through the quarter. Quarter end yield for the portfolio was 0.42%.

• Managed by internal APFC Team.

External Cash

$0.5 Billion

• Interest On Excess Cash Rate (IOER) 0.10%

• 100% of the portfolio has up to immediate liquidity.

• 1 Qtr return 0.37% vs 0.57% 3-m T-bills, 1Yr 1.87% vs 2.25% 3-m T-bills.

• No fees paid.

Total $1.8 Billion 156



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    78

Liquidity Overlay
Quarter Ended March 31, 2020

• Benchmarked to 65% ACWI-IMI Equity Index/35%US Aggregate Bond Index

• Provides exposure to the market for excess liquidity through futures

• At the end of the calendar year there was a remainder of $56 mm in the overlay program.

• Removed overlay by 03/31/2020 and no near term plans to put it back on

Source: Callan

157



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    79

ERA Transfers  FY2020
Quarter Ended March 31, 2020

Source: Staff Calculations, Dept of Revenue

To be transferred

158



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    80

Other Cash Flows
Quarter Ended March 31, 2020

Source: Blackrock Aladdin
159



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    81

Cash Management tools
Quarter Ended March 31, 2020

160



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    82

Risk Parity
Quarter Ended March 31, 2020

• Board approved risk parity allocation at May 2018 Board meeting

• Traditional portfolios are heavily concentrated in equity risk

• Objective is to realize a higher long-term, risk adjusted return

• Diversify risk globally and across asset classes

• Construct a portfolio that is more robust in different environments

• Callan manager search finalized. Selected managers were Blackrock, 
Bridgewater, and PanAgora 

• Total market value as of March 2020 was $585.1 mm

161



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    83

Risk Parity Returns 
Quarter Ended March 31, 2020

Fund Inception 1 month 1 Quarter FYTD
Market 
Value

Bridgewater All Weather March 1 -11.82% -11.94% -7.72% $196.9

PanAgora Risk Parity March 1 -9.22% -10.10% -6.42% $206.3

Blackrock Market Advantage May 1 -15.54% -17.74% -13.48% $181.9

Risk Parity Portfolio -12.14% -13.22% -9.16% $585.2

HRFI Risk Parity Index 12% Vol -12.11% -14.82% -10.12%

Over/under Performance -3 bps +160 bps +96 bps

Returns are net of fees for the period of APFC’s investment. Source:  Manager calculations, Bloomberg.

162



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    84

Blackrock
Quarter Ended March 31, 2020

• Market Advantage invests in a diversified mix of asset classes 

• Target exposures to economic risk premia

• Seeks to deliver:

– Returns on par with

long-run expected developed 

equity returns.

– Less downside exposure

during extreme drawdowns

163



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    85

Blackrock (continued)
Quarter Ended March 31, 2020

• Market Advantage return was negative for the 
1Q2020.

• Concerns and uncertainty of Covid-19 
economic impact resulted in a spike in 
volatility.

• Significant drop in oil prices and increased 
asset correlation also occurred during this 
quarter.

• Market Advantage was de-risk twice by 20% in 
an effort to protect capital and manage 
liquidity. Currently, the strategy is at 60% risk.

• Top contributors: inflation factor. 
• Top detractors: Economic, liquidity, and credit 

factors. 
• With a return of -17.74%, Market Advantage 

underperformed the -14.82% return of the 
benchmark.

Source: Blackrock

164



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    86

Bridgewater
Quarter Ended March 31, 2020

• All weather is designed to capture the risk 
premiums across asset classes consistently 

• Portfolio designed to be neutralized to 
environmental shifts

• Not concentrated to any single asset class 
expected to deliver:

– Long-term return to risk ratio of roughly 0.6

Source: Bridgewater

165



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    87

Bridgewater (continued)
Quarter Ended March 31, 2020

• During 1Q2020, rising risk premiums were a drag on all 
assets and more than offset falling discount rates 
causing All-Weather to underperform cash.

• Discounted growth and discounted inflation both fell 
substantially (assets that do well in rising growth 
underperformed assets that do well in falling growth, 
and assets that do well in rising inflation 
underperformed assets that do well in falling inflation. 

• Bridgewater reduced the risk in All Weather during the 
quarter as they saw diversification among assets was 
more challenging. 

• The portfolio -11.9% return outperformed its -14.8% 
benchmark return for the quarter.

Source: Bridgewater

166



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    88

PanAgora
Quarter Ended March 31, 2020

• Risk Parity is applied 
across and within asset 
classes

• Investment Objectives:
– Grow portfolio assets 

through investment 
returns.

– Minimize impact of market 
volatility on the portfolio. Source: PanAgora

167



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    89

PanAgora (continued)
Quarter Ended March 31, 2020

• The PanAgora Risk Parity portfolio returned -10.10% in the first quarter vs its benchmark that returned -14.82% for the 
quarter.

• The strategy’s exposure to equities detracted 13%, while its exposure to commodities detracted 5% during the quarter. 
• The strategy’s fixed income exposure proved to be a meaningful diversifier during the quarter, contributing 8% return by 

the end of March. 
• Currently, the strategy holds a risk overweight position in sovereign bonds at the expense of both commodities and 

inflation linked bonds. It is also modestly underweight equities (neutral across developed, emerging, and small cap).
• Within fixed income PanAgora is overweight both US and non-US treasuries, neutral on US Investment Grade Credit and 

underweight inflation linked bonds.

Asset Class Contribution 
to Return Q1 2020

Source: PanAgora

168



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    90

Portfolio Summary
Quarter Ended March 31, 2020

Cash

Multi-Asset

Total Asset 
Allocation 

• Liquidity continues to be an important focus for Staff. Cash represents 1.8 Billion.

• Internal management of the cash portfolio represented 72% ($1.3 Billion) of the cash portfolio. External management of the 
cash portfolio represented 28% ($500 mm) of the cash portfolio.

• Fed cut rates from 1.5% to 0% (equivalent of 6 cuts). APFC used cash to maintain target weights to equities during the market
drawdown and replenished liquidity from Fixed Income ($700mm).

• Cash portfolios performed at par with the 3-month T-Bills benchmark.

• Approximately $56.2 million of a securitized with a mix of bond and equity derivatives portfolio was liquidated this quarter.

• At the May 2018 meeting , the Board approved Risk Parity allocation. The program was funded during the first quarter of 2019.

• The Risk Parity portfolio outperformed its HFR Risk Parity Benchmark by 160 bps for the quarter (-13.22% PORT vs 14.82% 
BM). 

• Value of Risk parity Portfolio as of March 2020 was $585mm.

• As of the end of March 2020, the portfolio was overweight cash 75% vs the 42% allocation of the benchmark .

• Multi-asset strategies (Risk Parity and Overlay) represented 25% vs 58% represented by the benchmark.

• Given uncertainty around liquidity requirements, asset prices, and increased market volatility, Staff held more liquidity.

• Staff will review the optimal mix between internal and external management, and recommend improved tools to optimize 
portfolio  management, reduce fees, and increase returns.

• Strategies are performing as expected.

169



12. Risk Overview 
  

170



 

 

 

SUBJECT:  Risk Overview     ACTION:   ____ 
  
DATE:    May 5, 2020    INFORMATION:   ___X_                      
 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Risk Report provides an overview of historical and forward-looking measures of risk 
for the Total Fund and its underlying asset classes.  
 
 
STATUS: 
 
The Risk Overview is in two parts: 

• Part 1: includes comparison of current risk levels to the proposed Risk Tolerance 

Portfolio (RTP).  Also included is a review of risk (VaR) during the recent market 
downturn at the Total Fund level and within the Fixed Income Plus portfolio.  
 

• Part 2: covers the key measures of the Risk for the fund. The APFC’s key risk 
measures include Value at Risk (VaR) on a standalone and relative-to-
benchmark basis, tracking error, statistics that measure realized volatility and 
Sharpe Ratios, asset class and factor contributions to risk and risk scenarios.  It 
also covers Geographic, Currency, and Liquidity risks for the Total Fund. 

 

171



Risk Overview

May 20, 2020
172



Part 1: Q1 2020 downturn:
- Risk Tolerance Portfolio (RTP) levels 

- Fund Risk Profile

173



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    3

Risk Appetite: how it works [refresh from previous BOT meetings]

Public 
Equities

FI Plus

Private 
Equity

Real 
Estate

Infra & Pvt 
Credit

Absolute 
Return

Other

Public 
Equities

75%

Public Bonds
25%

Risk of   Actual Portfolio Risk of   RTP*
The actual APFC portfolio can have any type and mix of asset 
classes subject to:

✓ Drawdowns <= that of RTP*, when the 
same 3 drawdown 
stresses are applied

➢ Drawdown-1: estimated drawdown applying ‘2007 credit crisis’
➢ Drawdown-2: estimated drawdown applying ‘2008 crash’ stress
➢ Drawdown-3: estimated drawdown applying ‘2008/9 recession’

✓ VaR (volatility) <= that of RTP*

✓ Liquid Assets >= 55% of NAV

✓ Liquidity Pool >= 2% of NAV

* RTP: Risk Tolerance Portfolio

174



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    4

RTP: thresholds [refresh from previous BOT meetings]

Note: the drawdown and VaR quantum are not absolute static numbers, they are 
dynamic and would vary based on market data of computation date

Equity
75%

Bond
25%

(9.4%)

(10.9%)

(21.6%)

(46.6%)

(50.0%) (35.0%) (20.0%) (5.0%)

Volatility (VaR)

Credit Crisis 2007

Crash 2008

Recession 07-09

The estimated drawdown and volatility levels for the RTP, 
as computed by BlackRock Aladdin, are provided below

Equity
98%

Bond
2%

Asset Mix Risk (VaR) Mix

=
Based on 9/30/19 MV of Fund of $66.1 bn In $ billions

Volatility (VaR) (6.2)

Credit Crisis 2007 (7.2)

Crash 2008 (14.3)

Recession 07-09 (30.8)

175



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    5

Risk Appetite: Actual vs. Risk Tolerance Portfolio (RTP) – 1/2

The actual APFC portfolio was measured against the 75/25 RTP (the 85/15 level is also shown) on a weekly basis for the following metrics:

• VaR: APFC portfolio began to exceed 75/25 RTP by end Feb (and exceeded the 85/15 level by mid-March)

• Drawdown-1: APFC portfolio exceeded 75/25 RTP for all weeks  (and exceeded even the 85/15, since early Jan)

B
as

is
 p

oi
nt

s

B
as

is
 p

oi
nt

s

0

500

100 0

150 0

200 0

250 0

300 0

12/6/19 12/20/19 1/3/20 1/17/20 1/31/20 2/14/20 2/28/20 3/13/20 3/27/20 4/10/20 4/24/20

APFC 85/15 75/25

VaR (1SD)

0

200

400

600

800

100 0

120 0

140 0

12/6/1 9 12/20/19 1/ 3/20 1/17/2 0 1/31/2 0 2/14/2 0 2/28/2 0 3/13/2 0 3/ 27/2 0 4/10/2 0 4/24/2 0

APFC_GP 85/15 75/25

Drawdown-1 (2007 credit crisis)

176



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    6

Risk Appetite: Actual vs. Risk Tolerance Portfolio (RTP) – 2/2

The actual APFC portfolio was measured against the 75/25 RTP (the 85/15 level is also shown) on a weekly basis for the following metrics:

• Drawdown-2: APFC portfolio exceeded the 75/25 RTP level for all weeks ( and began exceeding the 85/15 level by mid-March)

• Drawdown-3: APFC portfolio was within the  75/25 RTP until early March (and was within the 85/15 level at all times)

B
as

is
 p

oi
nt

s

B
as

is
 p

oi
nt

s

0

500

100 0

150 0

200 0

250 0

12/6/1 9 12/20/19 1/3/20 1/17/2 0 1/31/2 0 2/14/2 0 2/28/2 0 3/13/2 0 3/27/2 0 4/10/2 0 4/24/2 0

APFC_GP 85/15 75/25

0

110 0

220 0

330 0

440 0

550 0

12/6/1 9 12/20/19 1/ 3/20 1/17/2 0 1/31/2 0 2/14/2 0 2/28/2 0 3/ 13/2 0 3/27/2 0 4/10/2 0 4/24/2 0

APFC_GP 85/15 75/25

Drawdown-2 (2008 crash) Drawdown-3 (2007-09 recession)

177



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    7

Fixed Income: serves its purpose during recent downturn

• In terms of asset allocation, APFC was relatively well positioned entering the market 
turmoil of March 2020 – the overweight to Fixed Income and Cash proved beneficial.

• As expected, the Fixed Income portfolio did not just soften the impact of the violent 
downturn, it was also a source of liquidity that enabled redeployment into public 
equities.

• The following slides provide a brief overview of the risk (VaR) profile during the Feb-
Mar downturn for the Fund and then for the Fixed Income Plus portfolio

178



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    8

Total Fund Risk: contributors to increased risk during Feb-Mar

• Risk, measured as VaR, increased 
more than threefold during the 
downturn

• Most of the increase resulted from 
changed market factors – higher 
volatilities & correlations

• Changes in positions (exposure) had a 
modest impact on increased VaR

• Fixed Income continues to be 
the risk reducing component of 
the total fund

4.4%

-0.8%

8.3%

11.9%
0.4%

0.7%

2.4%

3.5%

3.1%

1.4%

5.2%

9.7%

0.5%

0.4%

1.9%

2.8%

-1%

4%

9%

14%

19%

24%

29%

Public Equities Fixed Income Private Equity Other

Exposure Change
1.7%

Market Change
17.8%

Tot VaR
8.4%

Tot VaR
27.8%

T
o

ta
l F

u
n

d
 R

is
k 

(V
aR

, 1
 y

ea
r,

 1
S

D
)

Feb 14 2020 Mar 31 2020

179



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    9

Fixed Income Plus: change in risk contributors

15%

15%

69%

18%

15%

67%

17%

41%

42%

8%

29%

63%

EM & HY

REITS & 
Listed Infra

All Other

EM & HY

REITS & 
Listed Infra

All Other

Asset Allocation 
within FIP

VaR (Risk) Breakdown
within FIP

Feb 14/2020 Mar 31/2020

• A review of the FIP portfolio, categorized 
into three parts, was conducted: 
✓ Emerging Markets & High Yield
✓ REITS & Listed Infrastructure
✓ All Other  

• During the downturn (Feb-Mar), there 
was no material change in asset 
allocation percentages

• However, the three components had very 
different risk contributions: REITS & 
Listed Infra, essentially equity like 
exposures, had a spike in risk 
contribution, followed by Emerging 
Market and High Yield

• These higher risk components resulted in 
FIP VaR increasing from 4% of total VaR
to 12% 

180



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    10

Fixed Income Plus: 3-year return and risk profile (of benchmarks not portfolios)

• Including the down month of March, 
both the cumulative and the 
annualized returns are highest for 
the portfolio without any of the 
higher risk components

9.8%

13.2%
14.7%

2.9%
3.9% 4.3%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

FIP FIP ex REITS,
Infra

FIP ex REITS,
Infra, HY, EM

-16%

-12%

-8%

-4%

0%

VaR Mar 2020 SD Annualized Worst Drawdon

FIP FIP ex REITS, Infra FIP ex REITS, Infra, HY, EM

Returns: Jan 2017 to Mar 2020
Cumulative (full) & Annualized (stripes)

Returns: Jan 2017 to Feb 2020
Cumulative (full) & Annualized (stripes)

Risks: Jan 2017 to Mar 2020
VaR, SD & Drawdown

• Excluding the down month of March 
(i.e. period until Feb), both the 
cumulative and the annualized 
returns are almost the same for all 
three portfolios

• Risks, in terms of Standard Deviation 
(SD), VaR (factoring correlations as 
well), and Drawdowns, were highest 
(worst) for the current FIP –i.e. with 
all riskier components

18.6% 18.4% 18.3%

5.5% 5.5% 5.4%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

FIP FIP ex REITS,
Infra

FIP ex REITS,
Infra, HY, EM

Note: Benchmarks are utilized here, not portfolios;  Weights are kept constant month-on-month;  Time frame: 3+ years history: Jan 2017 –Mar 2020
181



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    11

Key Takeaways

Risk Appetite:

• Current risk levels consistently exceed the 75/25 RTP level across all four measures.

• The planned 2025 asset allocation is expected to take risk levels well above the 75/25 level and even over the 85/15 level

• Continue monitoring and reporting on risk levels compared to 75/25 and 85/15 levels

Fixed Income Plus:

• The Fund was relatively well positioned with modest overweight to lower risk asset classes

• FIP helped dampen the impact of the downturn, as expected.

• Higher risk components within FIP (REITS, Listed Infrastructure, Emerging Market and High Yield) resulted in higher 
proportionate risk contribution by FIP.

• The decision to eliminate REITS and Listed Infrastructure components from the Fixed Income portfolio is a step in the right 
direction.

182



Part 2:
Key Risk Metrics

As of March 31, 2020

183



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    13

Total Fund: Realized Volatility & Sharpe Ratio

Realized Fund Volatility

Volatility (standard deviation) and Sharpe ratio have been computed based on rolling 3 year quarterly returns for the Total F und

Realized Fund Sharpe Ratio

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

1986 1988 1990 1992 1994 1996 1998 2000 2002 2004 2006 2008 2010 2012 2014 2016 2018

-2

-1

0

1

2

3

4

1986 1988 1990 1992 1994 1996 1998 2000 2002 2004 2006 2008 2010 2012 2014 2016 2018

184



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    14

Fund & Constituents: Volatility and Sharpe Ratio as of Mar. 31, 2020

Volatility (standard deviation) and Sharpe ratio have been computed based on historical 3 year quarterly returns, as of March 31, 2020 

Volatility

Sharpe 
Ratio

8.9%

19.3%

5.9% 5.9%

2.9% 2.8%

6.3%
4.9%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

APFC Public Equities FI Plus Private Equity Real Estate Infra & Private Credit Absolute Return Asset Allocation

0.3 

(0.1)

0.2 

3.1 

0.3 

3.6 

1.1 

0.0 

-1

0

1

2

3

4

APFC Public Equities FI Plus Private Equity Real Estate Infra & Private Credit Absolute Return Asset Allocation

185



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    15

Tracking Error and VaR: (Vs) Limits

• Tracking error is an indicator of performance 
relative to benchmark

• It represents the deviation of portfolio returns 

from benchmark returns

• It is directionally agnostic and does not 
indicate over or underperformance

• VaR is an estimate of value decline, based on 
a 97.5% confidence level and 1 year holding 

period

• The above chart reflects the Relative VaR of 
the portfolio versus respective benchmark

186



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    16

Liquidity Limits: Private Assets

• Private Investments include Private Equity, Infrastructure & Private 
Income, and Real Estate portfolios

• Both investments made and future commitments were within the 
stipulated limits

Liquidity Limits as % of Fund NAV 

Private Investment Limits

$19.0 Billion Invested in Private Markets

Future Commitments Limits

$9.1 Billion Committed to Managers

15.0%

0 0.1 0.2 0.3
20% 25%0%

0.272033548

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50%
0% 20% 25% 35% 40%

31.2%

187



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    17

Tail Risk: Current portfolio during extreme events

Scenario Definition

2007 Credit Crisis
Credit & liquidity crisis stemming from a severe slowdown in the housing market 
causing significant widening of credit spreads, higher implied volatility.

2008 Market Crash S&P 500 down 20% (2000 bps).

US Downgrade 2011
The period starts with 50% chance US downgrade indication from S&P standards 
and ends with Operational Twist announcement from the Fed

Fed Tapering Talk 2013
Equity & bond markets sold off. EM suffered badly due to hot money flight back to 
U.S.

Chinese Market Crash
Chinese stock market crash beginning with the popping of the stock market bubble 
on June 12, 2015.

Rapid Deflation
Oil down 60% (6000 bps); ST Inflation down 350 bps; Mortgage spreads tighten 25 
bps.

Slow Deflation
LT deflation down 200 bps; LT Treasury Rates down 100 bps; Mortgage spreads 
tighten 25 bps.

Recession Q4/07-Q1/09 Recent recessionary period starting Dec3, 2007 and ending March9, 2009 

The estimated drawdowns for the fund exceed that of the 
benchmark in almost all scenarios 

Estimated Drawdowns as % of Fund NAV

-60% -50% -40% -30% -20% -10% 0%

2007 Credit Crisis

2008 Market Crash

US Downgrade 2011

Fed Tapering

Chinese Market Crash

Rapid Deflation

Slow Deflation

Recession Q4/07 - Q1/09

APFC Benchmark

188



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    18

Currency & Geography: breakdowns

Currency breakdown Country breakdown

Currency Name Exposure ($, millions)

Euro 2,532

Japanese Yen 1,391

Hong Kong Dollar 984

British Pound 862

Canadian Dollar 370

Sub-Total 6,139 (10.1% of NAV)

Total Non-US DM Exposure 7,311 (12.0% of NAV)

Country Name Exposure ($, millions)

China 1,348

South Korea 346

Taiwan 310

India 279

Brazil 170

Sub-Total 2,453 (4.0% of NAV)

Total EM & Other Exposure 6,755 (9.9% of NAV)

85.8%

12.0%

2.9%

80.4%

16.2%

3.5%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Dollar

Non US
Developed

Non US
Emerging & Other Mkts

APFC Benchmark

78.4%

14.4%

7.1%

74.3%

19.6%

6.1%

0.0% 20.0% 40.0% 60.0% 80.0% 100.0%

US

Non US
Developed

Non US
EM & other

APFC Benchmark

189



Daily Dashboard - March 31, 2020 NAV : 60,726,664,088$     

Performance (%) *  Asset Allocation*

Asset Class MTD FYTD CYTD 1 Year NAV (m) NAV Target Over/Under

Total Fund -7.63 -5.67 -10.53 -3.12 60,726,664  

Public Equity** -15.50 -16.63 -23.81 -14.21 21,739,843  35.8% 37% ##

Fixed Income Plus -7.42 -2.99 -6.62 0.37 13,535,805  22.3% 20% ##

PE & Special Opps 0.85 4.89 2.46 8.81 9,474,798    15.6% 13% ##

Real Estate 0.15 1.71 -0.41 0.40 4,018,911    6.6% 12% ##

Inf. & Private Income -1.37 2.50 -1.00 4.83 5,328,469    8.8% 8% ##

Absolute Return -0.23 3.87 1.72 5.39 4,186,321    6.9% 5% ##

Asset Allocation** -0.14 2.10 0.64 4.31 2,442,517    4.0% 5% ##

Relative VaR (1yr) Tracking Error (1yr, bps) Investment Objectives

NAV Target Over/Under

Growth 62.3% 60% ## 2.3%

Income 37.7% 40% ## -2.3%

Tradable 62.1% 65% ## -2.9%

Illiquid 37.9% 35% ## 2.9%

Private Investments  Limits

NAV Target Over/Under

Private Assets 31.0% 30.0% ## 1.0%

Cash in Asset Allocation asset class

NAV Benchmark Weight Over/Under

Cash 2.9% 2.0% 0.9%

Economic Indicator ($) *** 3/31/20 3/30/20 VaR (1yr, 97.5%) as a % of Total Fund NAV

VIX 53.54       57.08       

U.S. Dollar/Euro 1.10         1.10         

Credit Index OAS 2.55         2.65         

Crude Oil (WTI) 20.48       20.09       

10-Year Treasury Yield 0.67         0.73         

30-Year Treasury Yield 1.32         1.34         

S&P 500 2,584.59   2,626.65   

Country Exposures Currency Exposures

* Performance returns and Asset Allocation valuations are obtained from custodian.

** FX Overlay is not included in any asset class for performance but included in Asset Allocation asset class for asset allocation and net asset value (NAV).

*** Economic indicator data is obtained from Bloomberg.

Compliance

Compliance

Compliance

382

0 200 400 600

Total Fund

400 600

3.4%

Public Equity

(50%) (30%) 20% 40%

6.1%

Fixed Income Plus

(50%) (30%) 20% 40%

193

0 200 400 600

Public Equity

350 500

116

0 200 400 600

Fixed Income Plus

350 500

78.4%

14.4%

5.8%

0.3%

1.8%

74.3%

19.6%

5.3%

0.2%

0.6%

US

Non-US
Developed

Emerging
Markets

Frontier Markets

Other Markets

Total Fund Benchmark

85.8%

12.0%

2.7%

0.0%

0.0%

80.3%

16.2%

3.4%

0.1%

0.0%

USD

Non-US Developed

Emerging Markets

Frontier Markets

Other Markets

Total Fund Benchmark

-1.2%

2.3%

-1.0%

1.9%

0.8%

2.6%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

50%

55%

60%

Mar-19 May-19 Jul-19 Sep-19 Nov-19 Jan-20 Mar-20

12.8%

Total Fund

(15%)(30%) 10% 20%

-5.4%

190



13. Capital Market Overview 
  

191



Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation

1st Quarter 2020
Capital Markets Review

May 20, 2020

Greg Allen
CEO and Chief Research Officer

Steven Center, CFA
Senior Vice President

Chris Park, CFA
Assistant Vice President 

192



2First Quarter 2020Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Broad Capital Market Performance
Periods Ended March 31, 2020

(35)

(30)

(25)

(20)

(15)

(10)

(5)

0

5

10

15

Last Quarter Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 10 Years

R
et

ur
ns

3 Month T-Bill Barclays Aggregate S&P 500 Russell 2000 MSCI ACWI ex-US

0.6
2.3 1.8 1.2 0.9 0.6

3.1

8.9

4.8
3.4 3.2 3.9

(19.6)

(7.0)

5.1
6.7

9.6 10.5

(30.6)

(24.0)

(4.6)

(0.2)

4.2

6.9

(23.3)

(15.1)

(1.5)
(0.2)

1.5
2.5

193



3First Quarter 2020Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Public Equity Capital Market Performance
Periods Ended March 31, 2020

Last Quarter Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 10 Years
(30)

(25)

(20)

(15)

(10)

(5)

0

5

10

15

R
et

ur
ns

Russell 3000 MSCI EAFE MSCI Emerging

(20.9)

(9.1)

4.0
5.8

9.0
10.1

(22.8)

(14.4)

(1.8)
(0.6)

1.8
2.7

(23.6)

(17.4)

(1.2)

0.0

0.0

1.0

194



4First Quarter 2020Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Callan Periodic Table of Investment Returns
Returns for Key Indices 

Source: Bloomberg Barclays, FTSE Russell, MSCI,  Standard & Poor’s

S&P 500

2.11%
S&P 500

16.00%

S&P 500

32.39%

S&P 500

13.69%
S&P 500

1.38%
S&P 500

11.96%
S&P 500

21.83%

S&P 500

-4.38%

S&P 500

31.49%

S&P 500

-19.60%

USA SC
MSCI ACWI ex

-18.50%

USA SC
MSCI ACWI ex

18.52%

USA SC
MSCI ACWI ex

19.73%

USA SC
MSCI ACWI ex

-4.03%

USA SC
MSCI ACWI ex

2.60%

USA SC
MSCI ACWI ex

3.91%

USA SC
MSCI ACWI ex

31.65%

USA SC
MSCI ACWI ex

-18.20%

USA SC
MSCI ACWI ex

22.42%

USA SC
MSCI ACWI ex

-29.01%

USA
MSCI World ex

-12.21%

USA
MSCI World ex

16.41%

USA
MSCI World ex

21.02%

USA
MSCI World ex

-4.32%

USA
MSCI World ex

-3.04%

USA
MSCI World ex

2.75%

USA
MSCI World ex

24.21%

USA
MSCI World ex

-14.09%

USA
MSCI World ex

22.49%

USA
MSCI World ex

-23.26%

Aggregate
Barclays

Bloomberg

7.84%

Aggregate
Barclays

Bloomberg

4.21%

Aggregate
Barclays

Bloomberg

-2.02%

Aggregate
Barclays

Bloomberg

5.97%

Aggregate
Barclays

Bloomberg

0.55%

Aggregate
Barclays

Bloomberg

2.65%

Aggregate
Barclays

Bloomberg

3.54%

Aggregate
Barclays

Bloomberg

0.01%

Aggregate
Barclays

Bloomberg

8.72%

Aggregate
Barclays

Bloomberg

3.15%

Markets
MSCI Emerging

-18.42%

Markets
MSCI Emerging

18.23%

Markets
MSCI Emerging

-2.60%

Markets
MSCI Emerging

-2.19%

Markets
MSCI Emerging

-14.92%

Markets
MSCI Emerging

11.19%

Markets
MSCI Emerging

37.28%

Markets
MSCI Emerging

-14.57%

Markets
MSCI Emerging

18.44%

Markets
MSCI Emerging

-23.60%

High Yield
Barclays Corp

Bloomberg

4.98%

High Yield
Barclays Corp

Bloomberg

15.81%

High Yield
Barclays Corp

Bloomberg

7.44%

High Yield
Barclays Corp

Bloomberg

2.45%

High Yield
Barclays Corp

Bloomberg

-4.47%

High Yield
Barclays Corp

Bloomberg

17.13%

High Yield
Barclays Corp

Bloomberg

7.50%

High Yield
Barclays Corp

Bloomberg

-2.08%

High Yield
Barclays Corp

Bloomberg

14.32%

High Yield
Barclays Corp

Bloomberg

-12.68%
Agg ex US

Barclays Global
Bloomberg

4.36%

Agg ex US
Barclays Global

Bloomberg

4.09%
Agg ex US

Barclays Global
Bloomberg

-3.08%

Agg ex US
Barclays Global

Bloomberg

-3.09%

Agg ex US
Barclays Global

Bloomberg

-6.02%

Agg ex US
Barclays Global

Bloomberg

1.49%

Agg ex US
Barclays Global

Bloomberg

10.51%

Agg ex US
Barclays Global

Bloomberg

-2.15%

Agg ex US
Barclays Global

Bloomberg

5.09%

Agg ex US
Barclays Global

Bloomberg

-2.68%

Russell 2000

-4.18%

Russell 2000

16.35%

Russell 2000

38.82%

Russell 2000

4.89%

Russell 2000

-4.41%

Russell 2000

21.31%

Russell 2000

14.65%

Russell 2000

-11.01%

Russell 2000

25.52%

Russell 2000

-30.61%

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 1 Qtr. 2020

195



5First Quarter 2020Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Callan Periodic Table of Investment Returns
Returns for Key Indices 

Source: Bloomberg Barclays, FTSE Russell, MSCI,  Standard & Poor’s

S&P 500

-19.60%

S&P 500

-6.98%

S&P 500

5.10%

S&P 500

6.73%

S&P 500

9.62%

S&P 500

10.53%

S&P 500

4.79%

MSCI ACWI ex USA SC

-29.01%

MSCI ACWI ex USA SC

-21.18%
MSCI ACWI ex USA SC

-4.89%

MSCI ACWI ex USA SC

-0.81%

MSCI ACWI ex USA SC

1.05%

MSCI ACWI ex USA SC

2.79%

MSCI ACWI ex USA SC

4.70%

MSCI World ex USA

-23.26%

MSCI World ex USA

-14.89%
MSCI World ex USA

-2.07%
MSCI World ex USA

-0.76%

MSCI World ex USA

1.44%
MSCI World ex USA

2.43%
MSCI World ex USA

2.07%

Aggregate
Bloomberg Barclays

3.15%

Aggregate
Bloomberg Barclays

8.93%

Aggregate
Bloomberg Barclays

4.82%

Aggregate
Bloomberg Barclays

3.36%

Aggregate
Bloomberg Barclays

3.19%

Aggregate
Bloomberg Barclays

3.88%

Aggregate
Bloomberg Barclays

5.08%

MSCI Emerging Markets

-23.60%

MSCI Emerging Markets

-17.69%

MSCI Emerging Markets

-1.62%
MSCI Emerging Markets

-0.36%

MSCI Emerging Markets

-0.40%

MSCI Emerging Markets

0.69%

High Yield
Bloomberg Barclays Corp

-12.68%

High Yield
Bloomberg Barclays Corp

-6.94%

High Yield
Bloomberg Barclays Corp

0.77%

High Yield
Bloomberg Barclays Corp

2.78%

High Yield
Bloomberg Barclays Corp

3.33%

High Yield
Bloomberg Barclays Corp

5.64%

High Yield
Bloomberg Barclays Corp

6.55%

Agg ex US
Bloomberg Barclays Global

-2.68%

Agg ex US
Bloomberg Barclays Global

0.74%

Agg ex US
Bloomberg Barclays Global

2.57%

Agg ex US
Bloomberg Barclays Global

2.04%

Agg ex US
Bloomberg Barclays Global

0.38%

Agg ex US
Bloomberg Barclays Global

1.39%

Agg ex US
Bloomberg Barclays Global

3.91%

Russell 2000

-30.61%

Russell 2000

-23.99%

Russell 2000

-4.64%

Russell 2000

-0.25%

Russell 2000

4.21%

Russell 2000

6.90%

Russell 2000

5.28%

Last Quarter Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 10 Years Last 20 Years

196



6First Quarter 2020Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Capital Markets
What just happened?
A “Global Hurricane” in the form of a pandemic; unprecedented 
economic impact from a global shutdown
–Dominant fear over last few years: an equity market downturn, which 

was realized at the end of February

–Breathtaking speed and depth of the three-week economic decline

Governments stepped in quickly with immediate monetary 
response, fiscal stimulus 
–Fed Chairman Powell: “We’ll do whatever it takes.” Able to leverage 

policy playbook following GFC. 

–Monetary response important, but not the solution to this crisis 

–Massive fiscal policy required to address economic dislocation: 
companies, industries, individuals

–Tremendous uncertainty remains. Who gets rescued next?

Broad economic impact
–Companies/Organizations: Stresses to revenue, earnings, 

economic viability, access to capital, recovery

– Individuals: Unemployment, income, wealth, retirement savings

–Governments: Increasing service burden, declining tax revenues

–Need a new method of evaluating economic data: When do levels of 
GDP, income, employment, and unemployment return to normal?

Left us with a very uncertain future
–Question we’re getting from clients: When will this uncertainty settle 

down?

–True recovery depends on containment and then a vaccine. Monetary 
and fiscal policy can only address the symptoms.

197



7First Quarter 2020Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Capital Markets
What’s the impact on our Capital Market Assumptions?
Short Answer: None at this point
Long Answer: Remind ourselves of the purpose of capital market 
expectations
–Long-term strategic assumptions; shape portfolios to honor investors’ 

goals and tolerance for risk

–Create range of scenarios for expected 10-year outcomes; path to 10-year 
result always includes at least one recession

–We don’t know where we are in the midst of the crisis (beginning, middle, 
end). The shape of the recovery will matter.

What we’re paying attention to
–Extent to which this shock becomes a financial crisis

–Global economic recoveries: Expect V-shaped recoveries in various 
countries to roll up to a U-shaped recovery for global economy

–Household economic health: Unemployment is ballooning

–The return of zero interest rate policy and the role of fixed income

The bottom line is…
–We will revisit capital market assumptions as the crisis unfolds.

–The economic dislocation and the massive monetary/fiscal intervention 
may change capital market landscape, but the long-term implications 
remain uncertain.

– If we alter our assumptions, are we then suggesting changes in strategic 
portfolio design?

198



8First Quarter 2020Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Market Environment 
Sharp Drop in Global Equity Markets in 1Q 2020
Equity markets around the globe collapsed starting in late 
February.
–S&P was down 33% from peak (02/19/20) at worst point on 

3/23/20; -19.6% loss for the quarter. All countries and sectors 
suffered.

–Fed cut interest rates to zero, commenced QE, instituted multiple 
facilities to backstop money markets, credit markets, and the 
economy.

–Congress passed fiscal stimulus (CARES) to carry the economy 
through the crisis.

–Fed’s role is a backstop/facilitator/lender of last resort, but not a 
grantor; it expects to get paid back. Programs are designed to 
keep the Fed from losing money.

–Granting is the province of Congress, and fiscal policy.

*Cambridge PE data are available through December 31, 2019.

Source: Callan

1 Quarter 1 Year 5 Years 10 Years 25 Years
U.S. Equity
Russell 3000 -20.90 -9.13 5.77 10.15 8.81
S&P 500 -19.60 -6.98 6.73 10.53 8.85
Russell 2000 -30.61 -23.99 -0.25 6.90 7.57
Global ex-U.S. Equity
MSCI World ex USA -23.26 -14.89 -0.76 2.43 4.12
MSCI Emerging Markets -23.60 -17.69 -0.36 0.69 --
MSCI ACWI ex USA Small Cap -29.01 -21.18 -0.81 2.79 4.57
Fixed Income
Bloomberg Barclays Aggregate 3.15 8.93 3.36 3.88 5.49
90-day T-Bill 0.57 2.25 1.19 0.64 2.43
Bloomberg Barclays Long Gov/Credit 6.21 19.32 5.99 8.07 7.89
Bloomberg Barclays Global Agg ex-US -2.68 0.74 2.04 1.39 3.77
Real Estate
NCREIF Property 0.71 5.28 7.65 10.17 9.28
FTSE Nareit Equity -27.30 -21.26 -0.35 7.40 9.24
Alternatives
CS Hedge Fund -8.98 -4.32 0.24 2.96 7.35
Cambridge Private Equity* 5.67 16.60 12.83 13.68 15.33
Bloomberg Commodity -23.29 -22.31 -7.76 -6.74 0.56
Gold Spot Price 4.83 22.96 6.18 3.66 5.75
Inflation - CPI-U 0.44 1.54 1.80 1.72 2.15

Returns for Periods ended March 31, 2020

199



9First Quarter 2020Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

A ‘Global Hurricane’ in the form of a pandemic

What Just Happened?

The sharpest and fastest equity market decline ever: 16 trading days to reach bear market; -33% after just 23 days

-60%

-50%

-40%

-30%

-20%

-10%

0%

D
ay

 1
D

ay
 9

D
ay

 1
7

D
ay

 2
5

D
ay

 3
3

D
ay

 4
1

D
ay

 4
9

D
ay

 5
7

D
ay

 6
5

D
ay

 7
3

D
ay

 8
1

D
ay

 8
9

D
ay

 9
7

D
ay

 1
05

D
ay

 1
13

D
ay

 1
21

D
ay

 1
29

D
ay

 1
37

D
ay

 1
45

D
ay

 1
53

D
ay

 1
61

D
ay

 1
69

D
ay

 1
77

D
ay

 1
85

D
ay

 1
93

D
ay

 2
01

D
ay

 2
09

D
ay

 2
17

D
ay

 2
25

D
ay

 2
33

D
ay

 2
41

D
ay

 2
49

D
ay

 2
57

D
ay

 2
65

D
ay

 2
73

D
ay

 2
81

D
ay

 2
89

D
ay

 2
97

D
ay

 3
05

D
ay

 3
13

D
ay

 3
21

D
ay

 3
29

D
ay

 3
37

D
ay

 3
45

D
ay

 3
53

D
ay

 3
61

D
ay

 3
69

D
ay

 3
77

D
ay

 3
85

D
ay

 3
93

D
ay

 4
01

D
ay

 4
09

D
ay

 4
17

D
ay

 4
25

D
ay

 4
33

D
ay

 4
41

D
ay

 4
49

D
ay

 4
57

D
ay

 4
65

D
ay

 4
73

D
ay

 4
81

D
ay

 4
89

D
ay

 4
97

D
ay

 5
05

D
ay

 5
13

D
ay

 5
21

Trading Days From Market Peak

S&P 500 Index Cumulative Returns
Market Peak-to-Trough for Last Two Corrections vs.
Current Path of COVID-19 Correction Through 5/4/20

Tech Bubble GFC COVID-19

200



10First Quarter 2020Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

New way of evaluating data needed
The world changed in a matter of weeks in March 2020

–Foreshadowed by spread of coronavirus and containment response in China
• Economy in central China centered around Wuhan ground to a halt in February.

–U.S. GDP growth tracked at ~2% through February 2020; March decline concentrated in 
the last three weeks.
• Three weeks of lockdown enough to pull Q1 GDP growth into the red—actual advanced 

estimate -4.8%.
• Q2 GDP decline estimates range from -20% to -30% (annualized), not seen since the 

Great Depression
• Unemployment rate is likely to spike above 10%; consumption could fall by one third in 

2Q.
–Growth rates around a natural disaster lose meaning; levels of economic indicators may be 

more telling.
• When do we get back to pre-disaster level of GDP, and employment, income, sales, 

revenue, and earnings?
• % change is useful when the economy is gliding up or down through a growth cycle, not 

so useful when confronted with a shock and a recovery likely to feature false starts and 
sharp growth. A 27% drop in GDP is unprecedented and terrifying, but a 30% increase on 
the way back up is just as hard to fathom.

–Borrow a lesson from the Global Financial Crisis
• Name the current situation, outline its boundaries when possible, and separate our 

analysis to before, during, and after.

.
Source: https://www.oecd.org/economic-outlook/

How to Interpret Economic Data in a Global Crisis

-10%
-8%
-6%
-4%
-2%
0%
2%
4%
6%
8%

00 01 02 03 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

Quarterly Real GDP Growth

201



11First Quarter 2020Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Initial unemployment claims
Initial unemployment claims have spiked.

–6,867,000 for week ended March 28 (peak); 3,839,000 for week ended April 25 (current)
–Over 15 million jobs lost since March 1, 9% of the U.S. labor force weeks.

Insured unemployment rate now at 5.1%, likely headed into double-digits

.
Sources: US Employment and Training Administration

U.S. and Global Economic Conditions

0.3M

3.3M

6.9M

3.8M

0.0M

1.0M

2.0M

3.0M

4.0M

5.0M

6.0M

7.0M

8.0M

4/27/19 6/1/19 7/6/19 8/10/19 9/14/19 10/19/19 11/23/19 12/28/19 2/1/20 3/7/20 4/11/20

202



12First Quarter 2020Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Spending and savings
Many had insufficient income prior to crisis
–55% spend all or more than their income
Fewer than half can draw on savings
–46% have no emergency reserves

.
Sources: FINRA Investor Education Foundation, National Financial Capability Study, https://www.usfinancialcapability.org/results.php?region=US

Individual Economic Resilience

41%

36%

19%

4%

49%

46%

5%

Household Spending Rainy Day Fund

Spent less than income

Spent all income

Spent more than income

No response

Have fund

No fund

No response

203



13First Quarter 2020Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Equates to roughly 10% of GDP
Expanded unemployment benefits
–New benefits for those who exhausted eligibility
–Additional $600/week for up to four months
–Potential for 13 weeks of federal benefits after state benefits exhausted
Cash distributions
–Up to $1,200 for individuals, scaled by income level
–Advance refundable tax credit against 2020 income taxes
Student loan relief
–Suspended payments and interest for some federal student loans
–More flexibility for federal education grants
–Tax-free employer loan payments
Defined contribution plan liquidity
–Relaxation of distribution taxes
–Expansion of loan amounts
$58 billion in airline industry relief
$377 billion for small businesses
Relaxed credit reporting
Federally backed home loan forbearance

2020 CARES Act Injects $2 Trillion in Fiscal Stimulus

.
Sources: NPR.org

204



14First Quarter 2020Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Interest on debt
Firms have borrowed more in this low interest rate environment.
–Even with low interest rates, interest expense has increased.
–Interest expense is important because firms that can’t pay interest could be forced into bankruptcy.
–Form of relief matters: access to credit vs. outright grant

Source: Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, fred.stlouisfed.org

Business Economic Resilience

205



15First Quarter 2020Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Expected default frequencies (EDF)
Expected default frequencies have increased across industries.
–Impact greatest among travel, entertainment, and energy firms
–“Essential” businesses feel less of a strain.

Source: Moody’s Analytics, https://ma.moodys.com/rs/961-KCJ-308/images/Tracking%20the%20Impact%20of%20COVID-19%20on%20Credit%20Risk.pdf

Business Economic Resilience

206



16First Quarter 2020Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Bloomberg Indices’ spreads YTD through May 4
Corporate yield spreads expanded to almost four times their starting levels.
–Current corporate spreads are lower than their peak but still about two times their beginning of the year values.
–Securitized spread widening was much more limited and has recovered more quickly.

Source: Bloomberg

Current Financial Conditions

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

3.5

4.0

5/6/19 6/6/19 7/6/19 8/6/19 9/6/19 10/6/19 11/6/19 12/6/19 1/6/20 2/6/20 3/6/20 4/6/20

O
A

S 
(%

)

US Corporate Investment Grade US Securitized US Aggregate

207



17First Quarter 2020Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Treasury yield curve shape shifting: a moving target
Curve shifted down dramatically early in crisis
–Curve still low on the short end
–Curve upward sloping—indicating market still expects resumption of growth long term
–2-year to 10-year spread is about 50 bps (about half normal)

Source: U.S. Department of Treasury, https://www.treasury.gov/resource-center/data-chart-center/interest-rates/Pages/TextView.aspx?data=yieldYear&year=2020, Callan LLC

Impact on Financial Markets

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

1 mo 2 mo 3 mo 6 mo 1 yr 2 yr 3 yr 5 yr 7 yr 10 yr 20 yr 30 yr

Yi
el

ds
 (%

)

01/02/2020
02/03/2020
03/02/2020
03/09/2020
03/18/2020
04/09/2020
05/04/2020

208



18First Quarter 2020Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Fed funds rate
In addition to supporting financial market liquidity, 
the Fed cut the Fed funds rate
–The Fed cut rates repeatedly and quickly; Fed funds 

now near zero

–QE engaged to manage along the length of the yield 
curve

–QE to be expanded to include intervention in the below-
investment grade market

Markets do not expect the Fed to raise rates in the 
near future

Source: Moody’s Analytics, https://ma.moodys.com/rs/961-KCJ-308/images/Tracking%20the%20Impact%20of%20COVID-19%20on%20Credit%20Risk.pdf

Government Intervention

209



19First Quarter 2020Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Selected Fed programs to assist financial markets
Commercial Paper Funding Facility (CPFF)
–Liquidity for commercial paper markets

Money Market Mutual Fund Liquidity Facility (MMLF)
– The Federal Reserve Bank of Boston will make loans available to eligible financial institutions secured by high-quality assets purchased by the 

financial institution from money market mutual funds to assist money market funds in meeting demands for redemptions.

The Primary Market Corporate Credit Facility (PMCCF) 
–The PMCCF will allow companies access to credit so that they are better able to maintain business operations and capacity during the period of 

dislocations related to the pandemic. The PDCF will offer overnight and term funding with maturities up to 90 days. 

Foreign and International Monetary Authorities (FIMA Repo Facility)
–FIMA account holders temporarily exchange their U.S. Treasury securities held with the Federal Reserve for U.S. dollars, which can then be 

made available to institutions in their jurisdictions to help support the smooth functioning of the U.S. Treasury market by providing an alternative 
temporary source of U.S. dollars other than sales of securities in the open market. 

Term Asset-Backed Securities Loan Facility (TALF) 
–The TALF will enable the issuance of asset-backed securities (ABS) backed by student loans, auto loans, credit card loans, loans guaranteed 

by the Small Business Administration, and certain other assets.

Source: The Federal Reserve Board

Government Intervention

210



20First Quarter 2020Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Selected Fed programs to assist consumer lending
Small-Dollar Loans
–Encourage banks, savings associations, and credit unions to offer responsible small-dollar loans to consumers and small businesses in 

response to COVID-19

–Promoted by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, Consumer Financial Protection Bureau, Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation, National Credit Union Administration, and Office of the Comptroller of the Currency 

–Loans can be offered through a variety of structures, including open-end lines of credit, closed-end installment loans, or appropriately 
structured single payment loans.

–For borrowers who experience unexpected circumstances and cannot repay a loan as structured, banks, savings associations, and credit 
unions are further encouraged to consider workout strategies designed to help borrowers repay the principal of the loan while mitigating the 
need to re-borrow.

Total Loss Absorbing Capacity (TLAC)
–TLAC is an additional cushion of capital and long-term debt that could be used to recapitalize a bank if it is in distress. The change will facilitate 

the use of firms' buffers to promote lending activity to households and businesses.

Source: The Federal Reserve Board

Government Intervention

211



21First Quarter 2020Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Potential recovery patterns

Source: Natixis, https://www.im.natixis.com/us/markets/covid-19-dashboard-march-2020

Economic and Financial Prospects

212



22First Quarter 2020Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Potential recovery patterns

Source: Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, fred.stlouisfed.org;; US DOL

Economic and Financial Prospects

Fixed income market expected substantial decrease in 
inflation.
–Five-year breakeven inflation rate is the difference between five-

year nominal and five-year Treasury Inflation Protected 
Securities (TIPS) yields.

–The difference in yields is an estimate of inflation five years into 
the future.

Producer prices plunged in Q1; expected to fall further in Q2.
Consumer prices will be driven down by the collapse in oil 
prices and a sharp drop in consumption spending.
Monetary and fiscal policy measures may stir inflation down 
the road if the economy recovers sharply.

0001 02 03 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19
-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

Inflation Year-Over-Year

1.5% - CPI-U

-3.5% - PPI

213



23First Quarter 2020Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

U.S. Equity Performance
First Quarter 2020
Cyclicals punished; Tech, Staples, and Health Care more resilient
–Energy fell as demand declined and OPEC and Russia refused to cut production, 

driving down oil prices globally.
–Financials and Industrials plunged as interest rates were cut by the Fed 

compounded by expectations of a GDP decline due to COVID-19.
–Tech fared the best— “FAAMG” stocks averaged -7.9% led by Amazon (+5.5%) and 

Microsoft (+0.3%).
Large cap outpaces small cap for quarter
–Russell 2000 (-30.6%) experienced worst quarter on record.
–Perceived safety of larger companies combined with more acute exposure to 

COVID-19 impact (restaurants, hotels, airlines) drove sell-off .
Growth outpaces value across market capitalizations
–Spread between Russell 1000 Growth (-14.1%) and Russell 2000 Value (-35.7%) 

one of widest on record

Sources: FTSE Russell, Standard & Poor’s

–Economic Sector Quarterly Performance (S&P 500) 

Last Quarter

-17.0% -19.3%
-12.7%

-50.5%

-31.9%

-12.7% -11.9%

-27.0% -26.1%
-19.2%

-13.5%

Services
Communication 

Discretionary
Consumer 

Staples
Consumer Energy Financials Health Care Industrials

Technology
Information Materials Real Estate Utilities

U.S. Equity: One-Year Returns

Russell 3000
Russell 1000

Russell 1000 Growth
Russell 1000 Value

S&P 500
Russell Midcap

Russell 2500
Russell 2000

-9.1%
-8.0%

0.9%
-17.2%

-7.0%
-18.3%

-22.5%
-24.0%

Russell 3000
Russell 1000

Russell 1000 Growth
Russell 1000 Value

S&P 500
Russell Midcap

Russell 2500
Russell 2000

U.S. Equity: Quarterly Returns

-20.9%
-20.2%

-14.1%
-26.7%

-19.6%
-27.1%

-29.7%
-30.6%

214



24First Quarter 2020Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Global ex-U.S. Equity Performance
First Quarter 2020
Worst sell-off since 2008
–Global economic activity halted with shelter-in-place response to COVID-19.
–Oil price war between Saudi Arabia and Russia further exacerbated market 

meltdown. 
–Decisive actions to contain the outbreak and stimulate the economy allowed 

China to outperform every developed and developing country.
Cyclical sectors imploded
–Energy, Financial, and travel-related industries derailed by pandemic, looming 

global recession, and oil price war.
–Factor performance favored risk aversion, including beta, size and volatility, 

reflecting “risk-off” market environment.
U.S. dollar vs. other currencies
–Safe-haven currencies (U.S. dollar, Swiss franc, and yen) were bid up as market 

volatility peaked and outperformed other major currencies.
Growth vs. value
–Growth continued to outperform value within markets and capitalizations, 

supported by Health Care, Consumer Staples, and Tech.

Source: MSCI

MSCI EAFE
MSCI ACWI
MSCI World

MSCI ACWI ex USA
MSCI World ex USA

MSCI ACWI ex US Small Cap
MSCI World ex US Small Cap

MSCI Europe ex UK
MSCI UK

MSCI Pacific ex Japan
MSCI Japan

MSCI Emerging Markets
MSCI China

MSCI Frontier Markets

Global Equity: Quarterly Returns

-22.8%
-21.4%
-21.1%

-23.4%
-23.3%

-29.0%
-28.4%

-22.8%
-28.8%

-27.6%
-16.8%

-23.6%
-10.2%

-26.6%

MSCI EAFE
MSCI ACWI
MSCI World

MSCI ACWI ex USA
MSCI World ex USA

MSCI ACWI ex US Small Cap
MSCI World ex US Small Cap

MSCI Europe ex UK
MSCI UK

MSCI Pacific ex Japan
MSCI Japan

MSCI Emerging Markets
MSCI China

MSCI Frontier Markets

Global Equity: Annual Returns

-14.4%
-11.3%
-10.4%

-15.6%
-14.9%

-21.2%
-19.0%

-12.7%
-23.0%

-23.7%
-6.7%

-17.7%
-5.8%

-19.0%

215



25First Quarter 2020Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

U.S. Fixed Income Performance
First Quarter 2020

Sources: Bloomberg Barclays, Credit Suisse

Blmberg Barclays Gov/Cr 1-3 Yr

Blmberg Barclays Interm Gov/Cr

Blmberg Barclays Aggregate

Blmberg Barclays Long Gov/Cr

Blmberg Barclays Universal

CS Leveraged Loans

Blmberg Barclays High Yield

Blmberg Barclays TIPS

U.S. Fixed Income: Quarterly Returns

3.1%

1.3%

1.7%

2.4%

6.2%

-13.2%

-12.7%

1.7%

Blmberg Barclays Gov/Cr 1-3 Yr

Blmberg Barclays Interm Gov/Cr

Blmberg Barclays Aggregate

Blmberg Barclays Long Gov/Cr

Blmberg Barclays Universal

CS Leveraged Loans

Blmberg Barclays High Yield

Blmberg Barclays TIPS

U.S. Fixed Income: Annual Returns

8.9%

7.2%

4.5%

6.9%

19.3%

-9.5%

-6.9%

6.8%

Treasuries rallied as investors sought safety 
–The 10-year U.S. Treasury yield reached a low in March of 0.31% before closing the 

quarter at 0.70%, down sharply from the 2019 year-end level of 1.92%.

–The Treasury yield curve steepened as the Fed cut rates to 0% - 0.25%.

–TIPS underperformed nominal Treasuries as expectations for inflation sank. The 10-year 
breakeven spread ended the quarter at 87 bps, down sharply from 177 bps at year-end.

Investors spurned credit risk
–IG and HY funds saw record outflows as investors flocked to cash. 

– IG corporate spreads widened by 149 bps to 272 bps, representing hardest-hit sector in 
BB Aggregate Index; several well-known Industrials issuers downgraded to below-
investment grade, including Occidental Petroleum and Ford.

–Quality bias was evident as BBB-rated credit (-7.4%) underperformed single A or higher 
(+0.5%).

–CCC-rated high yield corporates (-20.6%) lagged BB-rated corporates (-10.2%). 

–Energy (-38.9%) was the lowest-performing high yield bond sub-sector as oil prices 
collapsed.

216



26First Quarter 2020Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Global Fixed Income Performance
First Quarter 2020

Sources: Bloomberg Barclays, J.PMorgan

Global ex-U.S. fixed income flat
–Developed market sovereign bond yields ended the quarter slightly higher 

even as central banks stepped in to provide support to their economies; 
the ECB launched a €750 bn stimulus program and the BoE cut interest 
rates.

–U.S. dollar rose against the Australian dollar, British pound, and euro as 
investors sought safety within the greenback.

EM debt plummeted in the risk-off environment
–Within the dollar-denominated emerging market debt benchmark, returns 

were mixed among its 60+ constituents.

–Within the local currency-denominated benchmark, several local market 
returns in Latin America dropped about 20% (Brazil, Mexico, and 
Colombia) and South Africa was down 29% as oil-sensitive economies 
suffered from the drop in oil prices.

Blmberg Barclays Gl Aggregate

Blmberg Barclays Gl Agg (hdg)

Blmberg Barclays Gl High Yield

Blmberg Barclays Gl Agg ex US

JPM EMBI Global Diversified

JPM GBI-EM Global Diversified

JPM EMBI Gl Div/JPM GBI-EM Gl Div

JPM CEMBI

Global Fixed Income: Quarterly Returns

-0.3%

1.4%

-15.0%

-2.7%

-13.4%

-15.2%

-8.6%

Blmberg Barclays Gl Aggregate

Blmberg Barclays Gl Agg (hdg)

Blmberg Barclays Gl High Yield

Blmberg Barclays Gl Agg ex US

JPM EMBI Global Diversified

JPM GBI-EM Global Diversified

JPM EMBI Gl Div/JPM GBI-EM Gl Div

JPM CEMBI

Global Fixed Income: Annual Returns

4.2%

6.6%

-10.0%

0.7%

-6.8%

-6.5%

-1.4%

217



27First Quarter 2020Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Results
–Initial impact of pandemic reflected in Q1 results

–Positive return due to income

–Industrial real estate performed well.

–Retail depreciation accelerated this quarter.

–Dispersion of returns by manager within the ODCE Index due to composition of underlying 
portfolios but also valuation methodologies/approach

–Negative returns expected for the second quarter and beyond.

Real Estate Market
First Quarter 2020

Apartments

Hotels

Industrial

Office

Retail

Sector Quarterly Returns by Property Type

0.95%

-3.69%

2.58%

1.28%

-2.06%

East

Midwest

South

West

Sector Quarterly Returns by Region

0.57%

-0.25%

0.49%

1.13%

Sources: Callan, FTSE Russell, NAREIT, NCREIF

U.S. Private Real Assets Last Quarter Year to Date Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 10 Years Last 15 Years
Real Estate ODCE Style 1.50 1.50 5.57 6.65 8.16 10.59 6.55
NFI-ODCE (value weight net) 0.75 0.75 3.93 5.85 7.48 10.42 6.49
NCREIF Property 0.71 0.71 5.28 6.41 7.65 10.17 8.14
NCREIF Farmland -0.10 -0.10 2.59 5.23 6.27 10.72 13.12
NCREIF Timberland 0.11 0.11 1.30 2.48 2.80 4.49 6.43
Public Real Estate
Global Real Estate Style -25.16 -25.16 -18.70 -0.37 0.47 6.39 5.66
EPRA/NAREIT Developed -28.53 -28.53 -23.97 -3.85 -2.06 4.40 --
Global ex-U.S. Real Estate Style -24.78 -24.78 -17.98 0.63 0.12 5.45 5.33
EPRA/NAREIT Developed ex US -27.56 -27.56 -22.44 -1.45 -0.89 3.91 4.06
U.S. REIT Style -23.11 -23.11 -15.24 -0.44 1.38 8.64 7.16
NAREIT Equity REITs -27.30 -27.30 -21.26 -3.14 -0.35 7.40 6.18

218



28First Quarter 2020Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Real Estate Market
First Quarter 2020

Sources: NCREIF

U.S. real estate fundamentals
–Vacancy rates for all property types are or will be impacted. 
–Limited change in net operating income but the second quarter will 

show declines.
–April rent collections show malls severely impacted followed by other 

types of retail. Class A/B urban apartments are relatively strong, 
followed by certain types of Industrial and Office.

–Supply was in check prior to the pandemic.
–Construction is limited to finishing up existing projects but has been 

hampered by shelter in place and material shortages. 
–New construction will be basically halted in future quarters except for 

pre-leased properties. 

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Vacancy by Property Type

Apartment Industrial Office Retail

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

4-Quarter Rolling NOI Growth by Property Type

Apartment Industrial Office Retail

219



29First Quarter 2020Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Real Estate Market
Pricing and transaction volumes in first quarter did not fully reflect the impact of COVID-19 

Source: NCREIF

Transaction volumes were healthy in the first part of the quarter, but dropped off at quarter end and ground to a halt thereafter with 
transactions being cancelled even where there were material non-refundable deposits.
–Cap rates remained steady during the quarter. The spread between cap rates and 10-year Treasuries is relatively high, leading some market 

participants to speculate that cap rates will not adjust much. Price discovery is happening and there are limited transactions. 
–Callan believes the pandemic may cause a permanent re-pricing of risk across property types. Property types with more reliable cash flows will 

experience less of a change in cap rates; however, those with less reliable cash flows will see greater adjustments.

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1,000

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

8%

9%

10%

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Tr
an

sa
ct

io
n 

Vo
lu

m
e 

(#
)

Tr
an

sa
ct

io
n 

C
ap

 R
at

es
 

NCREIF Rolling 4-Quarter Transaction Totals vs. Cap Rates
Rolling 4-Quarter Transaction Volume Transaction Cap Rates

220



30First Quarter 2020Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Hedge Fund and MAC Industry Trends

Sources: Callan, Credit Suisse

–Long-biased exposure to equity and credit bore brunt of quarter’s meltdown; 
results exponentially worse with leverage.

–Long-Short Equity suffered losses in line with its equity market beta, 
suggesting modest “alpha” in the market turbulence.

–Event-Driven suffered from market decline, illiquidity, and deal risk, especially 
within Multi-Strategy (-18.8%) trading “soft” events.

–Distressed likely not reflecting full impact of valuation declines.

–Relative Value styles as well as Risk Arb slumped with spreads widening 
during March’s derisking but trimmed losses by quarter end.

–Managed Futures (+0.0%) was flat, as equity trend reversal offset gains from 
continuing trends in rates and commodities, esp. energy.

–Global Macro (-8.1%) reflects negative impact of very large funds like 
Bridgewater.

-5.3% -5.3%

2020

CS Hedge Fund Strategy Returns (quarter ended March 31, 2020)

-5.8% -6.5%

-10.8%

-6.8%

-18.8%

-11.2% -10.5%
-8.1%

0.0%

Neutral
Market
Equity

Arb
Convertible

Arb
Income
Fixed

Strategy
Multi- Distressed

Arbitrage
Risk

Multi
Driven
Event-

Equity
Short
Long/

Market
Emerging

Macro
Global

Futures
Managed

10th Percentile 2.4 -0.7 -1.9
25th Percentile 1.0 -2.9 -6.7

Median -2.4 -5.8 -10.9
75th Percentile -8.6 -10.3 -17.3
90th Percentile -11.3 -13.6 -24.7
Mean Estimate

HFRI Fund Wtd Composite -10.6 -10.6 -10.6
HFRI FOF Composite -8.5 -8.5 -8.5

T-Bills + 5% 1.8 1.8 1.8
60% MSCI ACWI/40% BB Agg -12.0 -12.0 -12.0

Conservative
HFRI FOF HFRI FOF Diversified HFRI FOF Strategic

-30%
-20%
-10%

0%
10%

Preliminary HFRI FOF Style Group Returns (quarter ended 3/31/20)

-4.9 -11.9-6.1

221



31First Quarter 2020Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Hedge Fund and MAC Industry Trends

Sources: Callan, HFR, Eurekahedge

The 60% MSCI ACWI / 40% Bloomberg Aggregate benchmark’s 12% loss 
set stage for significant MAC headwinds.

HFR Risk Parity Index targeting 10% vol fell 12.1%.

–Last quarter’s equity and commodity collapse was partially offset by falling 
sovereign yields that lifted outsized fixed income allocations. 

–Correlations spiked dramatically, forcing some volatility-targeting and risk 
parity approaches to quickly dial down gross exposures.

Eurekahedge Multi-Factor Risk Premia Index fell 7%, as equity 
momentum and carry trades overwhelmed momentum gains in 
currencies, rates, and commodities.

–Risk Premia MAC performance dispersion increased in 1Q.

–Exposures to merger arb, short vol, and energy drove dispersion more than 
equity value.

Long Biased and Absolute Return MACs didn’t have a crystal ball that 
anticipated the speed and severity of the COVID-19 pandemic.

–Success or failure will be better judged over the next phase of market 
uncertainty, whether a protracted bear market or faster-than-expected 
recovery.

Return
Absolute Risk Premia Long Biased Risk Parity

-25%

-20%

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

Callan MAC Style Group Returns (quarter ended 3/31/20)

10th Percentile 2.3 -4.7 -6.9 -8.5
25th Percentile -0.4 -7.1 -11.1 -9.8

Median -4.6 -10.2 -14.8 -13.9
75th Percentile -7.9 -12.8 -16.9 -15.1
90th Percentile -10.5 -16.0 -20.0 -22.4

60% MSCI ACWI/40% BB Aggr -12.0 -12.0 -12.0 -12.0
Eurekahedge MAC RP (5%v) -7.0 -7.0 -7.0 -7.0

222



32First Quarter 2020Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Private Equity

Source: MSCI

Return estimates: While public markets are hardly a true proxy for 
private equity returns, MSCI estimates that large buyouts are likely 
down ~35% from their recent peak earlier in the first quarter.  

Financing: GPs will be primarily focused on keeping portfolio 
companies afloat amid the economic tumult; once markets stabilize 
and more visibility into the potential fallout is understood, PE 
sponsors are likely to pursue PIPE, growth equity, and carve-out 
transactions.

Expanded Timeframes: GPs are expected to hold portfolio 
companies through the pandemic rather than sell at deeply 
discounted prices, and also likely to utilize GP-led restructurings to 
keep portfolio companies under their ownership.

Fundraising: Larger, brand-name GPs are expected to find 
continued success with an established LP base, while nascent 
managers, spinouts, and new strategies will be more challenged.

Cash Flows: Expect a slowdown in both contributions and 
distributions, though the prior rate of contributions for some GPs 
might continue in part to help pay down commitment credit lines.

Valuation Uncertainty

223



33First Quarter 2020Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Private Equity Company Valuations and Leverage

Source: S&P LCD

Record Purchase Prices

–Such high multiples, especially for investments 
made just prior to the crisis, increase the 
execution risk of those transactions, making it 
more difficult to achieve private equity-like 
returns. Being fully exposed to the downturn, 
many will have to wait until the market rebounds 
for a quality exit. 

–On the other hand, the higher percentage equity 
contributions for recent investments should put 
them in a relatively more stable position than they 
were going into the Global Financial Crisis 
(30.9% in 2007 vs. 46.7% in 1Q20).

8.8x 8.7x 8.8x
9.7x 10.3x 10.0x 10.6x 10.6x

11.5x 11.2x

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 1Q20

U.S. Buyout Purchase Price Multiples

Others Equity/EBITDA Sub Debt/EBITDA Senior Debt/EBITDA

38.0% 37.7%
35.6% 37.0%

40.5% 40.8% 41.3% 40.5%

45.6% 46.7%

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 1Q20

% Equity Contribution in U.S. Buyout Deals

224



34First Quarter 2020Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Private Equity Dry Powder Falls

High levels of capital poised to invest
– Dry powder peaked in 2019 at over $1.4 

trillion.

– With so much dry powder on hand, general 
partners should be able to take advantage of 
the current market dislocation and invest at 
relatively attractive valuations.

– Investments made during the crisis expected 
to ultimately outperform, especially once the 
cycle shifts to the expansion phase.

– As general partners deploy this capital, 
investors need to ensure they have adequate 
liquidity to meet private equity capital calls.

Source: Pitchbook; global, includes private equity and private debt

750 755 779 
899 878 

964 
1,055 

1,224 

1,370 1,406 

82 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 1Q20

Dry Powder ($billions)
Cumulative as of Year End 

225



35First Quarter 2020Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Global Fundraising

Source: Pitchbook

Boom continues… for now

–Spike in 2019 fundraising a reflection of a 
booming private equity industry

–Fundraising remained heightened 
through 1Q20 and is expected to stay 
relatively strong through April and 
potentially May.

–Fundraising expected to significantly slow 
toward the latter half of 2Q20 as travel 
restrictions delay onsite diligence. Some 
investors also may reduce commitments 
due to liquidity challenges.

–Expect to see a “flight to quality” with 
investors preferring stable, resilient 
strategies and shying away from first-
time funds, emerging markets, and niche 
strategies

441 618 517 310 248 308 346 443 561 492 549 620 691 731 176 

1,197 

1,351 
1,306 

953 
1,029 

1,142 1,126 1,139 

1,321 1,298 1,307 

1,205 
1,131 1,131 

301 

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,600

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 YTD
1Q20

Funds Holding Final Closes by Year

Amount Raised ($bn) # of Funds

226



Callan Update

227



37First Quarter 2020Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Published Research Highlights from 1Q20

Recent Blog Posts

2020 DC Trends 
Survey

Callan’s 2020-2029 
Capital Market 
Assumptions

How DC Plans Can 
Harness DC Plan 
Data for Better 
Outcomes

An Introduction to 
Our New Hedge 
Fund Peer Group

Local Presence for 
Multinational 
Managers in China
Fanglue Zhou

Trigger Funds: Here’s 
What You Need to 
Know
Catherine Beard

Plus our blog
contains a wide array 
of posts related to 
the pandemic

Additional Reading
Private Equity Trends quarterly newsletter
Active vs. Passive quarterly charts
Capital Market Review quarterly newsletter
Monthly Updates to the Periodic Table
Market Pulse Flipbook quarterly markets update
Real Assets Reporter quarterly newsletter

228



38First Quarter 2020Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Callan Institute Events
Upcoming Conferences, Workshops, and Webinars

“Callan College”

Introduction to Investments for Institutional Investors
This program familiarizes institutional investor trustees and staff and asset management advisers 
with basic investment theory, terminology, and practices. It lasts one-and-a-half days and is 
designed for individuals with less than two years of experience with asset-management oversight 
and/or support responsibilities. 

Alternative Investments for Institutional Investors
Alternative investments like private equity, hedge funds, and real estate can play a key role in any 
portfolio. In this one-day session, Callan experts will provide instruction about the importance of 
allocations to alternatives, and how to integrate, evaluate, and monitor them.

Program dates and registration can be found at callan.com/callan-institute-events

On-Demand Webinars

Visit our website for On-Demand webinar options at https://www.callan.com/on-demand-
webinars/

Our most recent webinar covered strategies in alternatives.

“Research, education, and dialogue are 
more important than ever in these 
extraordinary times, which is why I’m 
pleased to announce that we are 
adding more webinars, and we plan to 
expand our events to include 
roundtables and other interactive 
digital offerings.”

Barb Gerraty
Director, Callan Institute

Upcoming Webinars

Hedge Fund Overview
May 21, 2020

China Update
July 8, 2020

Register at callan.com/callan-institute-events

229



39First Quarter 2020Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Disclaimers

Information contained herein is the confidential and proprietary information of Callan and should not be used other than by the intended recipient for its 
intended purpose or disseminated to any other person without Callan’s permission. 

This report was prepared by Callan for use by a specific client and should not be used by anyone other than the intended recipient for its intended purpose. 
The content of this report is based on the particular needs of such client and may not be applicable to the specific facts and circumstances of any other 
individual or entity. 

Certain information herein has been compiled by Callan and is based on information provided by a variety of sources believed to be reliable for which Callan 
has not necessarily verified the accuracy or completeness of or updated.

This content is for informational purposes only and should not be construed as legal or tax advice on any matter. Any decision you make on the basis of this 
content is your sole responsibility.  You should consult with legal and tax advisers before applying any of this information to your particular situation. 

This content may consist of statements of opinion, which are made as of the date they are expressed and are not statements of fact. 

Reference to or inclusion in this report of any product, service or entity should not be construed as a recommendation, approval, affiliation or endorsement 
of such product, service or entity by Callan.

230



14. Asset Class Overview 
  

231



Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation

1st Quarter 2020
Performance Review

May 20, 2020

Marcus Frampton, CFA, CAIA, FRM
Chief Investment Officer

Greg Allen
CEO and Chief Research Officer

Steven Center, CFA
Senior Vice President 

232



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

Agenda

● Total Fund Asset Allocation and Performance

● Asset Class Structure and Performance

233



First Quarter 2020Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.

Total Fund 
Asset Allocation and Performance

234



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

Total Fund Asset Allocation
As of March 31, 2020

● APFC portfolio is well diversified across all major 
asset classes employed by institutional investors.

● Using institutional standard asset class definitions, 
the portfolio is currently allocated 36% to public 
equity, 22% to fixed income, and 42% to alternative 
investments.

● Compared to allocations in the fourth quarter, this 
reflects a decrease in public equity and fixed income 
and a increase in alternatives.

● Alternatives include private equity, special 
opportunities, real estate, private infrastructure, 
private credit, private income, absolute return, and 
asset allocation.

● Private Equity & Special Opportunities, Real Estate, 
and Infrastructure & Private Income are reported on a 
one-quarter lag.

● ~$1.8M remained in FX Overlay program as of 3/31.

36%

0%

22%

16%

7%
9%

7%
4%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

35.0%

40.0%

45.0%

235



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

8% 8%

15%

0%

11%

2% 2%
1%

1%

2%
1%

9%

5% 6%

0%

4%

2% 2%

6%

0%
1%

0%
1%

2%

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

12.0%

14.0%

16.0%

Total Fund Asset Allocation
As of March 31, 2020

236



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

(10.49)

(5.68)

(2.76)

(9.60)

(4.34)

(0.63)

1.66

4.49

6.54

Last Qtr. Fiscal YTD Last Year
(20)

(15)

(10)

(5)

0

5

10

Returns for Periods Ending March 31, 2020

Total Fund Benchmark

Passive Index Benchmark (60/20/10/10) TF Return Objective (CPIU+5%)

R
et

ur
ns

(16.56)

(11.08)

(8.30)

APFC Total Fund Cumulative Returns
Total Fund versus Total Fund Targets

● Benchmark (FY19-FY20) = 38.0% MSCI ACWI IMI, 1.1% 90 Day T-Bills, 1.1% BB US TIPS, 5.5% BB Agg, 5.5% BB Corp IG, 2.2% BB Global Treasury ex-US 
Hedged, 0.55% JPM EMBI Global Diversified, 0.55% JPM GBI-EM Global Diversified TR, 2.2% BB US High Yield 2% Issuer Cap, 2.0% S&P Global REIT, 1.1% S&P 
Global Listed Infrastructure, 12% Cambridge PE (lagged), 11% NCREIF Total Index (lagged), 4.2% FTSE Developed Core Infrastructure (lagged), 2.8% BB US High 
Yield 2% Issuer Cap (lagged), 5% HFRI Total HFOF Universe (weighted), 2% 90 Day T-Bills, and 3% Performance Benchmark (rounded to nearest tenth).

(9.54)

(4.28)

(0.56)

237



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

APFC Total Fund Cumulative Returns
Total Fund versus Total Fund Targets

4.62
4.96

6.87

5.53

4.69 4.50

6.46

5.14

6.92 6.80 6.72
7.08

Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 10 Years Last 20 Years
0

2

4

6

8

10

Returns for Periods Ending March 31, 2020

Total Fund Benchmark Passive Index Benchmark (60/20/10/10)

TF Return Objective (CPIU+5%)

R
et

ur
ns

1.49

2.43

4.78

3.54

● Benchmark (FY19-FY20) = 38.0% MSCI ACWI IMI, 1.1% 90 Day T-Bills, 1.1% BB US TIPS, 5.5% BB Agg, 5.5% BB Corp IG, 2.2% BB Global Treasury ex-US 
Hedged, 0.55% JPM EMBI Global Diversified, 0.55% JPM GBI-EM Global Diversified TR, 2.2% BB US High Yield 2% Issuer Cap, 2.0% S&P Global REIT, 1.1% S&P 
Global Listed Infrastructure, 12% Cambridge PE (lagged), 11% NCREIF Total Index (lagged), 4.2% FTSE Developed Core Infrastructure (lagged), 2.8% BB US High 
Yield 2% Issuer Cap (lagged), 5% HFRI Total HFOF Universe (weighted), 2% 90 Day T-Bills, and 3% Performance Benchmark (rounded to nearest tenth).

4.71
4.52

6.47

238



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

APFC Total Fund Attribution

● In the first quarter, the Total Fund underperformed the Performance Benchmark by 1.0%.

●Manager performance within Public Equity + FXO and Private Equity & Special Opportunities and asset
allocation effects in Real Estate were the primary contributors to relative underperformance.

● In aggregate, active management subtracted 70 basis points from relative performance, while deviations from
the Policy Target subtracted 25 basis points.

For One Quarter Ended March 31, 2020

Ef f ectiv e Ef f ectiv e Total
Actual Target Actual Target Manager Asset Relativ e

Asset Class Weight Weight Return Return Ef f ect Allocation Return
Public Equity  + FXO 37% 37% (24.21%) (22.44%) (0.73%) (0.03%) (0.77%)
Fixed Income Plus 24% 20% (6.72%) (6.53%) (0.05%) 0.13% 0.09%
Real Estate 6% 12% 0.41% 1.55% (0.06%) (0.53%) (0.59%)
Inf rastructure & Priv  Inc 8% 8% 1.70% 3.13% (0.12%) 0.02% (0.10%)
Absolute Return 6% 5% (3.19%) (9.39%) 0.39% 0.00% 0.39%
Priv ate Eq & Special Opp14% 13% 3.90% 5.67% (0.22%) 0.18% (0.03%)
Asset Allocation 5% 5% (3.52%) (5.55%) 0.09% (0.02%) 0.07%

Total = + +(10.49%) (9.54%) (0.70%) (0.25%) (0.95%)

239



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

APFC Total Fund Attribution

● For the one year period ended March 31, 2020, the Total Fund underperformed the Performance Benchmark
by 2.2%.

●Manager underperformance in Infrastructure & Private Income, Public Equity + FXO, and Private Eq & Special
Opportunities were the primary contributors to negative relative return. An underweight to Real Estate also
contributed to underperformance.

● In aggregate, active management detracted 203 basis points and asset allocation decisions detracted17 basis
points in relative performance.

For One Year Ended March 31, 2020

Ef f ectiv e Ef f ectiv e Total
Actual Target Actual Target Manager Asset Relativ e

Asset Class Weight Weight Return Return Ef f ect Allocation Return
Public Equity  + FXO 37% 37% (14.66%) (12.73%) (0.77%) (0.07%) (0.84%)
Fixed Income Plus 24% 20% 0.27% (0.11%) 0.09% 0.03% 0.12%
Real Estate 6% 12% 1.41% 6.42% (0.29%) (0.34%) (0.63%)
Inf rastructure & Priv  Inc 8% 8% 8.73% 21.48% (0.91%) 0.09% (0.82%)
Absolute Return 6% 5% 1.09% (5.11%) 0.40% (0.04%) 0.37%
Priv ate Eq & Special Opp13% 13% 11.69% 16.59% (0.59%) 0.19% (0.40%)
Asset Allocation 5% 5% 1.11% 0.66% 0.03% (0.03%) (0.00%)

Total = + +(2.76%) (0.56%) (2.03%) (0.17%) (2.20%)

240



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

APFC Total Fund Relative to Callan’s Large Public Fund Database

Last Quarter Fiscal YTD Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 10 Years Last 20 Years
(20)

(15)

(10)

(5)

0

5

10

Group: Callan Public Fund Sponsor - Large (>1B)
Returns for Periods Ended March 31, 2020

10th Percentile (7.27) (2.15) 0.32 5.02 5.17 7.71 5.77
25th Percentile (10.00) (4.86) (2.04) 4.30 4.83 7.31 5.54

Median (12.10) (6.97) (3.90) 3.64 4.03 6.77 5.20
75th Percentile (14.11) (8.64) (5.61) 2.67 3.39 6.17 4.93
90th Percentile (15.49) (10.35) (7.55) 1.98 2.88 5.75 4.69

Member Count 95 95 95 95 95 90 78

Total Fund A (10.49) (5.68) (2.76) 4.62 4.96 6.87 5.53

A (27)

A (32)

A (34)

A (16) A (16)
A (44)

A (27)

241



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

APFC Total Fund Relative to Callan’s Large Endowment / Foundation Database

Last Quarter Fiscal YTD Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 10 Years Last 20 Years
(20)

(15)

(10)

(5)

0

5

10

Group: Callan Endow/Foundation - Large (>1B)
Returns for Periods Ended March 31, 2020

10th Percentile (4.60) 0.05 2.71 6.76 6.56 8.79 7.83
25th Percentile (6.68) (1.61) 1.08 5.78 5.48 7.91 7.35

Median (8.26) (4.23) (0.87) 4.85 4.72 7.01 6.20
75th Percentile (11.56) (6.68) (5.10) 2.93 3.53 6.18 5.39
90th Percentile (14.82) (9.14) (6.19) 1.68 2.69 5.51 4.29

Member Count 37 37 37 37 37 36 25

Total Fund A (10.49) (5.68) (2.76) 4.62 4.96 6.87 5.53

A (63)

A (66)

A (66)

A (52) A (42)

A (54)
A (68)

242



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

APFC Total Fund Return versus Standard Deviation
Relative to Callan’s Large Public Fund Database

Ten Year Annualized Risk vs Return

1% 2% 3% 4% 5% 6% 7% 8% 9% 10% 11% 12% 13%
2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

8%

9%

Total Fund
Total Fund Target

Standard Dev iation

R
et

ur
ns

Squares represent membership of  the Callan Public Fund Spons - Large (>1B)

243



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

APFC Total Fund Standard Deviation Relative to Callan’s Large Public Fund Database

Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 10 Years Last 20 Years
100
90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10
0

Group: Callan Public Fund Sponsor - Large (>1B)
Standard Deviation for Periods Ended March 31, 2020

10th Percentile 13.58 11.16 9.76 10.35 11.35
25th Percentile 12.02 9.92 8.75 9.61 10.86

Median 10.89 9.07 7.98 8.76 10.43
75th Percentile 9.84 8.20 7.27 7.79 9.54
90th Percentile 7.52 6.35 5.71 6.52 8.66

Member Count 95 95 93 90 78

Total Fund A 9.36 7.74 7.01 7.85 9.17

A (81) A (81) A (79)
A (74)

A (85)

244



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

APFC Total Fund Sharpe Ratio Relative to Callan’s Large Public Fund Database

Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 10 Years Last 20 Years
100

90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10
0

Group: Callan Public Fund Sponsor - Large (>1B)
Sharpe Ratio for Periods Ended March 31, 2020

10th Percentile 0.43 0.62 0.87 1.04 0.46
25th Percentile 0.25 0.42 0.71 0.80 0.38

Median 0.17 0.32 0.60 0.70 0.34
75th Percentile 0.07 0.23 0.48 0.61 0.31
90th Percentile 0.01 0.17 0.43 0.56 0.28

Member Count 95 95 93 90 78

Total Fund A 0.30 0.49 0.76 0.79 0.41

A (18) A (16) A (15)

A (28)

A (14)

245



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

APFC Total Fund Performance Scorecard
As of March 31, 2020

Time Horizon Objective APFC Benchmark Percentile1

Short-Term
(1-Year Return)

Outperform 50/50 Blend 
of Performance and 

Passive Indexes
-2.8% -4.4% 20%

Medium-Term
(3-Year Return) Outperform Peers 4.6% 3.6% 16%

Outperform CPI + 5% 5.0% 6.8% 82%

Sharpe Ratio > 0.5 0.49 0.28 34%

Average Long-Term Percentile 58%
Average Percentile Ranking Among the Three Objectives 39%

1Callan's Large Public Fund Peer Group is used for percentile rank purposes for the Medium-Term. Short- and Long-Term percentiles are implied per guidelines.

Long-Term
(5-Year Return &

Sharpe Ratio)

246



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

Asset Classes 
Structure and Performance

247



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

APFC Public Equity Structure
As of March 31, 2020

● APFC Public Equity portfolio has a 
weighting of roughly 54% in US equity, 
and 46% in non-US equity.

● The MSCI ACWI IMI benchmark has a 
weighting of roughly 56% in US equity, 
and 44% in non-US equity.

● The median allocation to US equity 
across public equity portfolios in 
Callan’s Large Public Fund Sponsor 
database is roughly 60%.

$10,268 (47%)

$5,790 (27%)

$5,581 (26%)

Domestic Equity

International Equity

Global Equity

248



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

APFC Public Equity vs. MSCI ACWI-IMI
Periods Ended March 31, 2020

Fiscal YTD

● APFC Public Equity portfolio 
underperformed the MSCI 
ACWI IMI index for the recent 
quarter and trailing one-year 
period.

●Domestic and International 
Equity composites ended 
behind their respective 
benchmarks in the latest 
quarter; Global Equity ended 
ahead of its benchmark. Over 
the one-year period, Domestic 
and International also 
underperformed with Global 
Equity outperforming.

Last Quarter Fiscal YTD Last Year
(30)

(25)

(20)

(15)

(10)

(5)

0

Current Quarter Ending March 31, 2020
Returns for Various Periods

R
et

ur
ns

Public Equity w/o FX Overlay MSCI:ACWI IMI

(24.2)

(17.0)

(14.6)

(22.4)

(15.6)

(12.7)

249



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

APFC Public Equities Performance vs. MSCI ACWI-IMI
Periods Ended March 31, 2020

●Q1 2020 underperformance 
impacted intermediate and 
long term returns. Domestic 
Equity lagged the most within 
Public Equities.

●Overall, the portfolio is well 
diversified across regions, 
countries, and underlying 
strategies.

Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 1/2 Years
(1)

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

Current Quarter Ending March 31, 2020
Returns for Various Periods

R
et

ur
ns

Public Equity w/o FX Overlay MSCI:ACWI IMI

(0.1)

1.9

5.3

0.8

2.4

5.8

250



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

APFC US Equity Performance vs. Fund Sponsor US Equity
Periods Ended March 31, 2020

● The universe is comprised of total 
domestic equity portfolios of large 
institutional investors in Callan’s Fund 
Sponsor Database.

● APFC US Equity portfolio ended the 
recent quarter behind its benchmark. 
The recent underperformance widened 
the gap between the portfolio and 
benchmark over longer-term periods.

●When compared to US Equity 
portfolios of other large institutional 
investors, APFC’s US Equity 
composite ranked below median in the 
short-, intermediate-, and longer-term 
time periods shown. 

Performance vs Fund Spnsor - Domestic Equity (Gross)

(40%)

(30%)

(20%)

(10%)

0%

10%

20%

Last Quarter Fiscal YTD Last Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 10 Years
Year

(98)

(36) (97)

(28)

(97)

(31)

(96)

(34) (94)
(26)

(87)
(24) (84)

(25)

10th Percentile (18.80) (10.81) (6.84) 5.39 6.41 9.53 10.53
25th Percentile (20.35) (12.56) (8.79) 4.31 5.78 8.93 10.14

Median (21.53) (13.96) (10.35) 3.37 5.05 8.34 9.67
75th Percentile (22.81) (15.56) (12.15) 2.23 4.25 7.67 9.10
90th Percentile (24.21) (17.41) (14.18) 0.91 3.40 6.89 8.44

Domestic Equity (27.57) (20.21) (17.33) (0.44) 2.96 7.05 8.79

Russell 3000 Index (20.90) (12.70) (9.13) 4.00 5.77 8.96 10.15

251



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

APFC US Equity Portfolio Risk Adjusted Return Rankings

● The universe is comprised of total domestic 
equity portfolios of large institutional investors 
in Callan’s Fund Sponsor Domestic Equity 
Database.

● For the trailing ten-year period, APFC 
portfolio ranked in the bottom quartile for all 
risk adjusted return measures.

▬ Alpha measures contribution to performance –
portfolio’s return above index adjusted for risk.

▬ Sharpe Ratio represents return gained per unit of risk 
taken (return/risk).

▬ Excess Return Ratio measures alpha (return above 
benchmark) divided by tracking error (risk versus 
benchmark).

Ten Years Ended March 31, 2020

Alpha Sharpe Ratio Excess Return Ratio
(2.5)

(2.0)

(1.5)

(1.0)

(0.5)

0.0

0.5

1.0

Rankings Against Fund Sponsor Domestic Equity Database
Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs Russell 3000 Index

10th Percentile 0.54 0.65 0.25
25th Percentile (0.02) 0.61 0.00

Median (0.57) 0.57 (0.24)
75th Percentile (1.21) 0.53 (0.50)
90th Percentile (1.91) 0.48 (0.71)

Domestic Equity A (2.09) 0.47 (0.51)

A (92)

A (91)

A (76)

252



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

Value Core Growth Total

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Total

Holdings as of March 31, 2020
Style Exposure Matrix

11.4% (75)

13.7% (73)

14.3% (112)

27.8% (109)

29.1% (124)

38.1% (114)

54.8% (311)

79.6% (296)

11.3% (155)

4.0% (151)

8.7% (167)

4.2% (175)

10.3% (246)

6.5% (268)

30.3% (568)

14.6% (594)

5.8% (217)

1.5% (336)

5.4% (228)

2.0% (480)

3.0% (135)

1.7% (371)

14.2% (580)

5.2% (1187)

0.4% (41)

0.2% (345)

0.2% (30)

0.2% (395)

0.1% (10)

0.1% (150)

0.7% (81)

0.5% (890)

28.8% (488)

19.4% (905)

28.7% (537)

34.3% (1159)

42.5% (515)

46.3% (903)

100.0% (1540)

100.0% (2967)

Capitalization and Style Allocation: US Equity
As of March 31, 2020

●Highlighted cells indicate largest biases relative 
to the Russell 3000 index.

●Growth outperformed value in the first quarter 
while large cap stocks outperformed small cap.

● APFC’s active U.S. Value managers struggled to 
keep pace with their benchmarks while U.S. 
Growth managers generally outperformed during 
the quarter.

● Small and mid cap overweights relative to the 
index are common in actively managed US 
equity portfolios.

APFC Portfolio          Russell 3000 Index

253



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

APFC US Equity Structure
As of March 31, 2020

●US equity portfolio is roughly 70% 
actively managed and 30% passive 
(or quasi-passive).

●Roughly 66% of the large cap 
allocation is actively managed while 
91% of the small cap allocation is 
actively managed.

$3,224 (57%)

$1,653 (29%)

$717 (13%)

$73 (1%)

Large Cap Active

Large Cap Passive

Small Cap Active

Small Cap Passive

254



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

Last Quarter Fiscal YTD Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 10 Years
(40%)

(30%)

(20%)

(10%)

0%

10%

20%

10th Percentile (12.25) (3.39) 1.90 13.41 11.16 13.85 13.47
25th Percentile (14.47) (6.03) (1.46) 9.97 9.08 12.28 12.40

Median (19.57) (11.44) (7.30) 4.70 6.08 9.52 10.41
75th Percentile (26.47) (19.32) (15.62) (1.14) 2.48 6.35 8.18
90th Percentile (29.49) (22.97) (20.74) (3.88) 0.62 4.91 7.03

Large Cap Equity (26.92) (19.20) (16.26) 0.20 3.41 7.47 8.84
S&P 500 (19.60) (10.82) (6.98) 5.10 6.73 9.62 10.53

Russell 1000 Index (20.22) (11.77) (8.03) 4.64 6.22 9.32 10.39

(79)

(75)
(76)

(69)
(67)

(65) (63)

(50)

(47)

(49)

(47)
(46)

(49) (48)

(56)

(51)

(52)

(50)
(49)

(53) (50)

Periods Ended March 31, 2020

APFC Large Cap Equity Relative to Large Cap Universe

● APFC’s Large Cap portfolio lagged 
behind its benchmark in the first 
quarter. 

● The portfolio trailed its benchmark and 
ranked below median within the large 
cap universe over all standard periods.

● Large cap composite has a small/mid 
cap size bias relative to the index, 
which weighed on performance during 
the quarter. 

Performance vs Callan Large Capitalization (Gross)

255



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

Last Quarter Fiscal YTD Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 10 Years
(50%)

(40%)

(30%)

(20%)

(10%)

0%

10%

20%

10th Percentile (21.13) (17.49) (12.42) 7.00 5.88 9.46 11.74
25th Percentile (25.42) (21.23) (17.66) 1.60 3.27 7.53 10.32

Median (31.75) (26.70) (24.59) (4.42) 0.35 5.10 8.22
75th Percentile (35.15) (30.22) (29.42) (8.96) (2.30) 3.00 6.55
90th Percentile (38.03) (33.49) (32.41) (10.68) (4.12) 1.48 5.58

Small Cap Equity (31.45) (26.32) (23.82) (3.94) 0.83 5.06 8.24
Russell:2000 Index (30.61) (25.55) (23.99) (4.64) (0.25) 4.21 6.90

(48)

(48)

(45)

(45)

(46)

(51)
(50)

(43)

(44) (47)

(51)

(56)

(60)
(68)

Periods Ended March 31, 2020

APFC Small Cap Equity Relative to Small Cap Universe

● APFC small cap portfolio was slightly 
behind the index and slightly above 
the small cap universe median over 
the latest quarter. 

● APFC small cap equity portfolio has 
a higher market capitalization bias 
and a growth tilt when compared to 
the Russell 2000 Index. Both biases, 
the overweight to mid caps in lieu of 
small caps and the growth style, 
added to relative performance. 

Performance vs Callan Small Capitalization (Gross)

256



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

APFC Non-US Equity Structure
As of March 31, 2020

● Portfolio is divided between 
global, non-US, and emerging 
markets mandates.

● Both global and non-US equity 
managers invest in emerging 
markets.

●Global managers invest in US 
markets as part of their 
mandate.

$3,355 (21%)

$2,226 (14%)

$10,268 (65%)

Developed International

Dedicated Emerging

Global Equity

257



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

APFC International Equity Relative to Fund Sponsor Universe
Periods Ended March 31, 2020

● International Equity ended the quarter 
behind the benchmark 57 bps.

●Over the intermediate- and longer-term 
periods the portfolio trailed the 
benchmark.

●Relative to other fund sponsor portfolios, 
International Equity ranked below median 
for all standard performance periods. 

Performance vs Fund Spnsor - International Equity (Gross)

(30%)

(25%)

(20%)

(15%)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

Last Quarter Fiscal YTD Last Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 10 Years
Year

(81)(74)

(76)(77)
(83)(75)

(71)(72)
(60)(73)

(82)(79)
(83)(81)

10th Percentile (20.57) (13.76) (10.94) 1.65 2.21 3.99 4.56
25th Percentile (22.09) (15.61) (12.85) (0.05) 1.07 2.95 3.93

Median (22.96) (16.80) (14.35) (1.43) 0.12 2.06 3.01
75th Percentile (24.24) (18.49) (16.32) (2.46) (0.71) 1.22 2.33
90th Percentile (26.04) (19.95) (17.86) (3.62) (1.54) 0.39 1.67

International Equity (24.68) (18.55) (16.97) (2.26) (0.24) 0.92 2.02

MSCI ACWI
ex US IMI (24.11) (18.55) (16.32) (2.34) (0.66) 1.06 2.14

258



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

Last Quarter Fiscal YTD Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 10 Years
(35%)

(30%)

(25%)

(20%)

(15%)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

10th Percentile (17.62) (10.65) (5.96) 4.21 3.96 5.12 6.25
25th Percentile (20.38) (13.23) (9.39) 1.12 1.71 3.92 5.01

Median (22.85) (16.83) (13.90) (1.23) 0.17 2.72 3.94
75th Percentile (24.98) (19.80) (17.53) (3.48) (1.27) 1.31 2.94
90th Percentile (28.40) (23.17) (21.95) (5.56) (2.61) 0.60 2.15

International Developed (25.80) (19.54) (17.30) (2.97) (0.52) 1.59 2.59
MSCI ACWI ex US (23.36) (18.02) (15.57) (1.96) (0.64) 1.06 2.05

(79)

(74)
(73)

(69)

(61)
(70)

(83)

(57)

(60)
(62)

(63) (62)
(84)

(91)

APFC Int’l Developed Equity Relative to Non-US Equity Universe
Periods March 31, 2020

● The International Developed 
portfolio declined 25.8% versus the 
benchmark loss of 23.4% in the first 
quarter. The portfolio continued to 
show strong longer-term relative 
performance.

● The portfolio sits below the peer 
group median for all standard time 
periods.

Performance vs Callan Non-US Equity (Gross)

259



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

APFC Emerging Markets Equity Relative to EM Universe
Periods March 31, 2020

● APFC Emerging Markets Equity 
portfolio ended the quarter ahead of 
its benchmark by 66 bps. 

● The portfolio leads its benchmark 
across all standard periods.

●Over the short- and intermediate-
term, the portfolio sits above the 
median while over longer-term 
periods ranks below the median.

Last Quarter Fiscal YTD Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 10 Years
(35%)

(30%)

(25%)

(20%)

(15%)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

10th Percentile (12.63) (5.74) (4.73) 6.36 4.47 6.70 6.37
25th Percentile (21.35) (15.12) (13.18) 1.05 2.20 2.51 3.94

Median (24.37) (18.79) (17.76) (1.78) 0.10 0.61 2.34
75th Percentile (28.03) (24.08) (23.03) (4.89) (1.62) (0.87) 1.08
90th Percentile (31.10) (28.35) (27.85) (7.86) (3.34) (2.23) 0.17

Emerging Markets (22.94) (17.16) (16.66) (1.09) 0.22 (0.30) 0.73
MSCI:EM (23.60) (18.18) (17.69) (1.62) (0.36) (0.40) 0.69

(34)

(37) (42)

(40)
(48) (62) (79)

(42)

(44) (48)

(47)
(56) (65) (80)

Performance vs Emerging Markets Equity DB

260



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

APFC Global Equity Relative to Global Universe
Periods Ended March 31, 2020

● APFC Global Equity portfolio 
posted a slightly smaller decline 
than its benchmark in the first 
quarter. Performance exceeded 
the benchmark over all standard 
periods. 

● The portfolio ranked around 
median for most time periods.

● Performance from the APFC 
Tactical Tilts portfolio positively 
impacted performance over the 
quarter, fiscal year, 1- and 3-year.

Last Quarter Fiscal YTD Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 10 Years
(35%)

(30%)

(25%)

(20%)

(15%)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

10th Percentile (14.04) (7.05) (2.27) 8.78 7.68 9.40 10.05
25th Percentile (17.65) (10.94) (6.16) 5.06 5.43 7.63 8.38

Median (21.13) (14.07) (11.05) 1.64 3.06 5.86 7.09
75th Percentile (24.55) (18.54) (16.21) (1.31) 1.17 4.03 5.76
90th Percentile (29.89) (24.51) (22.33) (5.00) (1.14) 2.56 4.08

Global Equity (21.61) (13.87) (11.36) 1.17 2.64 5.45 6.61
MSCI ACWI IMI (22.44) (15.57) (12.73) 0.76 2.45 4.81 5.80

(54)

(47)

(52)

(54)
(56)

(58) (59)

(61)

(60)

(59)

(60)
(59)

(66) (75)

Performance vs Global Equity Database (Gross)

261



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

APFC Global Equity Portfolio Region Exposure

● The APFC global equity portfolio 
continued to be underweight 
Emerging Markets, Japan, and the 
Pacific Rim relative to its benchmark.

● The portfolio had corresponding 
relative overweighs to North America 
and Europe.

● This positioning and broad based 
regional gains drove quarterly results.

As of March 31, 2020
Region Exposure

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80

North America

Europe

Japan

Emerging Markets

Pacific Rim

Frontier Markets

61.9%

24.6%

7.2%

3.5%

2.6%

0.2%

58.6%

18.2%

8.1%

11.8%

3.3%

0.0%

APFC Portfolio          MSCI ACWI IMI Index

262



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

$3,877 (29%)

$1,321 (10%)

$378 (3%)

$701 (5%)

$3,696 (27%)

$1,185 (9%)
$740 (5%)

$1,359 (10%)

$267 (2%)

US Investment Grade

Global High Yield

TIPS

Listed Infrastructure

US Fixed Income

Non-US Fixed Income

Emerging Market Debt

REITs

Fixed Income Plus Cash

APFC Fixed Income Plus Structure
As of March 31, 2020

● 66% of the fixed income plus 
portfolio is managed internally, 
including allocations within Fixed 
Income Plus Cash, US Fixed Income 
Aggregate, US Investment Grade 
Corporate, Non-US Fixed Income, 
and TIPS.

● External mandates are focused in 
specialty areas including Non-US 
Fixed Income, Global High Yield, 
Emerging Market Debt, REITs, and 
Listed Infrastructure.

263



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

Fixed Income Plus Relative to Public Fixed Income Funds
Periods Ended March 31, 2020

●Outside of the first quarter, the 
APFC Fixed Income Plus portfolio 
led its benchmark over all time 
periods shown.

● Although within range of its 
custom benchmark, the negative 
return relative to the peer group 
pulled the portfolio into the bottom 
quartile across all periods.

Performance vs Public Fund - Domestic Fixed (Gross)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

Last Quarter Fiscal YTD Last Year Last 3 Years Last 3-1/2 Years

(99)(99)

(98)(98)

(98)(98)

(91)(95) (97)(99)

10th Percentile 3.22 6.01 9.60 5.42 4.03
25th Percentile 2.09 4.45 7.56 4.68 3.69

Median 0.80 3.27 6.06 4.13 3.24
75th Percentile (1.16) 1.28 4.56 3.55 2.80
90th Percentile (2.73) (0.14) 2.47 3.08 2.49

Fixed Income Plus (6.72) (3.09) 0.27 2.93 2.29

Fixed Income
Plus Benchmark (6.53) (3.23) (0.11) 2.59 1.92

264



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

US Fixed Income Aggregate Relative to Core Bond Funds
Periods Ended March 31, 2020

● APFC US Fixed Income Aggregate 
portfolio ended behind the 
Bloomberg Aggregate Index for the 
quarter.

● The US Fixed Income composite 
remained ahead of the benchmark 
over the longer term 5- and 7-year 
periods.

Last Quarter Fiscal YTD Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years
(2%)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

10th Percentile 3.59 6.12 9.51 5.27 3.85 3.71
25th Percentile 2.98 5.55 8.83 5.03 3.68 3.56

Median 2.17 4.78 8.13 4.77 3.56 3.39
75th Percentile 1.41 3.96 7.24 4.51 3.35 3.25
90th Percentile 0.53 3.20 6.31 4.34 3.17 3.12

US Fixed Income Aggregate 1.99 4.88 8.29 4.67 3.39 3.24
Blmbg Aggregate 3.15 5.68 8.93 4.82 3.36 3.19

(53)

(44)

(40)

(64)
(72) (79)

(18)

(21)

(21)

(41)

(75) (83)

Performance vs Callan Core Bond Fixed Income (Gross)

265



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

US Investment Grade Corp Relative to Investment Grade Funds
Periods Ended March 31, 2020

● APFC US Investment Grade 
Corporate was in line with its 
benchmark for the quarter and 
ahead for all other standard periods.

● The Investment Grade Corporate 
composite ranked close to or above 
median for all periods.

Last Quarter Fiscal YTD Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 10 Years
(7.5%)

(5.0%)

(2.5%)

0.0%

2.5%

5.0%

7.5%

10.0%

10th Percentile (1.43) 2.68 7.30 5.13 4.40 4.69 6.28
25th Percentile (2.58) 1.49 6.15 4.80 3.93 4.15 5.72

Median (3.48) 0.74 5.30 4.46 3.69 3.97 5.39
75th Percentile (4.93) (0.51) 4.02 4.13 3.44 3.75 5.20
90th Percentile (5.65) (1.34) 3.11 3.80 3.24 3.56 5.12

US Investment Grade Corporate (3.68) 0.71 5.65 4.57 3.76 4.10 5.39
Blmbg:Corporate (3.63) 0.48 4.98 4.20 3.36 3.57 4.92

(57)

(51)

(35)

(41)

(41) (30)

(51)

(56)

(56)

(56)

(72)

(77) (89)

(98)

Performance vs Callan Investment Grade Corporate (Gross)

266



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

Non-U.S. Fixed Income Relative to International Fixed Income Funds
Periods Ended March 31, 2020

● The APFC Non-U.S. Fixed Income 
portfolio lagged the benchmark over 
the quarter and all other reported 
periods.

●Compared to peers, the portfolio 
ranked in the top quartile over most 
periods.

● The composite included allocations to 
Rogge Asset and an In House Global 
Gov’t Bonds mandate.

Performance vs Public Fund - International Fixed (Gross)

(15%)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

Last Quarter Fiscal YTD Last Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 8-1/2
Year Years

(18)(18)
(22)(21)

(24)(23)
(14)(10)

(30)(18) (12)(10) (14)(12)

10th Percentile 2.90 5.33 8.35 4.79 3.93 4.03 4.35
25th Percentile (0.14) 2.20 5.50 4.21 3.61 3.04 3.42

Median (2.62) (0.33) 3.25 3.34 2.37 2.38 2.77
75th Percentile (4.79) (3.11) 1.16 2.27 1.92 0.34 0.78
90th Percentile (8.18) (5.48) (1.97) 1.97 1.73 0.32 (0.75)

Non US
Fixed Income 1.18 2.74 5.70 4.63 3.48 3.96 4.11

BC Global
Treasury ex-US 1.32 2.99 5.84 4.83 3.75 4.26 4.35

267



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

Global High Yield Relative to High Yield Funds
Periods Ended March 31, 2020

● APFC Global High Yield portfolio 
ended ahead of its benchmark in 
Q1 2020.

●Outside of the quarter, the portfolio 
ranked below median for all 
reported periods.

● The composite included allocations 
to Oaktree, Capital Guardian, and 
an iShares ETF.

Last Quarter Fiscal YTD Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 10 Years
(20%)

(15%)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

10th Percentile (10.17) (6.38) (3.51) 1.97 3.73 4.19 6.36
25th Percentile (11.54) (7.72) (4.93) 1.61 3.25 3.91 6.15

Median (12.65) (8.91) (6.48) 1.01 2.86 3.46 5.74
75th Percentile (13.78) (10.22) (7.80) 0.48 2.39 3.00 5.36
90th Percentile (15.43) (12.49) (9.86) (0.32) 1.92 2.65 5.08

Global High Yield (12.44) (9.41) (7.49) 0.46 2.25 2.90 5.14
Blmbg HY 2% Iss Cap (12.68) (9.21) (6.94) 0.76 2.78 3.34 5.64

(45)

(62)

(71)

(76)

(79)
(77)

(88)

(55)

(58)

(63)

(57)

(54)
(60)

(60)

Performance vs Callan High Yield Fixed Income (Gross)

268



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

Last Quarter Fiscal YTD Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years
Years

Last 9 1/2
(25%)

(20%)

(15%)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

10th Percentile (9.68) (6.68) (3.20) 1.52 3.54 3.09 4.59
25th Percentile (13.80) (10.34) (6.17) 0.46 2.81 2.50 4.22

Median (15.36) (12.05) (7.69) (0.57) 2.08 1.47 3.48
75th Percentile (16.39) (13.41) (9.29) (1.44) 0.43 (1.70) 0.21
90th Percentile (17.35) (14.67) (11.01) (2.27) (0.22) (2.72) (0.67)

Emerging Market Debt (18.20) (15.33) (10.88) (1.81) 0.40 (0.56) 1.53
EMD Benchmark (14.28) (10.94) (6.61) (0.13) 1.60 0.21 1.90

(92)

(93)

(89)

(81)

(76)
(66)

(65)

(30)

(34)

(29)

(39)

(62)
(61)

(62)

Emerging Market Debt Relative to EMD Funds
Periods Ended March 31, 2020

● APFC Emerging Market Debt portfolio 
returns were challenged in the first 
quarter. The negative returns weighed 
on longer term periods.

●Relative to peers, the portfolio ranked 
below median over all periods 
exhibited.

Performance vs Emerging Debt Database (Gross)

269



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

TIPS Relative to Callan’s Inflation Linked Bonds database
Periods Ended March 31, 2020

● APFC TIPS portfolio outperformed 
the Bloomberg US TIPS Index 
over the quarter, and tracked the 
benchmark closely over longer-
term periods. 

● The TIPS composite ranked in the 
top half of Callan’s Inflation Linked 
Bonds peer universe over the 
short-term and around the median 
over intermediate- and longer-term 
periods.

● The TIPS allocation includes 
APCM and an In House TIPS 
portfolio.

Last Quarter Fiscal YTD Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 10 Years
(2.5%)

0.0%

2.5%

5.0%

7.5%

10.0%

10th Percentile 1.99 4.14 7.20 3.60 2.87 1.57 3.84
25th Percentile 1.77 3.92 6.91 3.55 2.78 1.49 3.73

Median 0.88 3.13 6.05 3.48 2.69 1.40 3.52
75th Percentile 0.27 1.95 4.54 2.66 2.27 1.08 3.18
90th Percentile (1.28) 0.92 3.93 2.56 2.20 1.03 2.56

TIPS 1.89 3.70 6.48 3.38 2.62 1.34 3.46
Blmbg:TIPS 1.69 3.87 6.85 3.46 2.67 1.37 3.48

(13)

(39)

(45)

(55)

(56)

(57)

(61)

(32)

(33)

(32)

(51)

(54)

(56)

(56)

Performance vs Callan Inflation Linked Bonds (Gross)

270



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

REITs Performance Relative to Callan’s REITs database
Periods Ended March 31, 2020

● APFC REITs portfolio has 
performed well relative to its 
benchmark over the time periods 
shown. 

● The REITs composite ranked 
below median for most time 
periods, with the exception of the 
5-year period. 

● The REITs allocation includes 
AEW Global and SSGA. 

Last Quarter Fiscal YTD Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 10 Years
(35%)

(30%)

(25%)

(20%)

(15%)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

10th Percentile (18.22) (10.74) (8.56) 3.95 3.87 6.94 10.15
25th Percentile (21.77) (15.43) (13.02) 1.33 2.23 6.09 9.50

Median (23.11) (16.94) (15.24) (0.44) 1.38 5.09 8.64
75th Percentile (25.54) (20.60) (19.43) (2.00) 0.41 3.85 7.92
90th Percentile (28.42) (24.48) (23.24) (4.27) (1.47) 2.84 6.85

REITs (27.07) (21.71) (20.76) (2.45) 1.97 2.46 6.52
S&P Global REIT (29.02) (24.36) (23.39) (4.52) (2.14) 0.94 5.11

(86)

(81)
(83)

(78)

(28) (96)

(96)

(93)

(90)
(91)

(92)

(96)

(98)

(98)

Performance vs Callan Real Estate REIT (Gross)

271



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

Listed Infrastructure Relative to Listed Infrastructure Funds
Periods Ended March 31, 2020

● The Listed Infrastructure portfolio 
ended ahead of the benchmark for 
the quarter and all other standard 
periods.

● The portfolio ranked below median 
for periods under 3-years, but above 
median over the 5- and 6½ year 
periods.

● The Listed Infrastructure composite 
includes Lazard, Cohen & Steers, 
and SSGA. Last Quarter Fiscal YTD Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 6 1/2 Years

(35%)

(30%)

(25%)

(20%)

(15%)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

10th Percentile (15.99) (9.60) (5.08) 4.29 5.91 7.64
25th Percentile (18.06) (12.48) (7.90) 2.89 4.86 6.80

Median (20.74) (15.79) (11.54) 1.34 2.35 5.43
75th Percentile (24.39) (18.53) (14.85) (0.76) 0.64 3.56
90th Percentile (26.21) (21.86) (18.94) (2.86) (0.89) 1.65

Listed Infrastructure (22.26) (17.28) (13.21) 0.96 3.45 6.58
S&P:Global Infra Net Idx (29.31) (25.58) (21.91) (4.16) (1.29) 1.27

(62)

(65)

(69)

(56)
(40)

(26)

(93)

(95)

(93)

(93)

(100)
(96)

Performance vs Callan Publicly Listed Infrastructure (Gross)

272



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

APFC Real Estate Structure (1Q LAG)
As of March 31, 2020

● 96% of the structure was invested in 
Separate Accounts and Direct Real 
Estate portfolios.

▬ RE Separate Accounts & Direct was 
completely comprised of Direct Real 
Estate.

▬ 5% of the Direct allocation was 
invested internationally (CBRE 
Europe and LaSalle UK). 

● 4% of the structure was invested in 
Real Estate Funds and Co-Investment 
portfolios (HIG Europe, Harbert
Europe, Heitman Capital, Brookfield 
Strategic). 

$175 (4%)

$3,797 (96%)

AP-RE Funds & Co-Invest

AP-RE Separate Accounts & Direct

273



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

Real Estate Relative to Callan’s Total Real Estate Database (1Q LAG)

● APFC Real Estate portfolio 
performance is shown net of 
fees for all investments. 

● The real estate portfolio 
lagged behind its benchmark 
and ranked below the peer 
group median over all 
standard reporting periods.

Periods Ended March 31, 2020 Performance vs Public Fund - Real Estate (Gross)

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

Last Quarter Fiscal YTD Last Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 10 Years
Year

(89)

(63)

(94)

(52)

(95)

(55)

(100)

(75)

(100)

(59)

(100)

(66)
(95)

(65)

10th Percentile 2.66 6.92 11.24 10.17 11.01 12.26 12.07
25th Percentile 2.18 5.89 8.92 8.93 9.85 10.72 11.31

Median 1.75 4.61 6.86 7.41 8.56 9.83 10.70
75th Percentile 1.19 3.54 4.61 6.69 7.85 8.86 9.71
90th Percentile (0.29) 0.66 2.28 5.44 6.02 7.62 8.41

Real Estate (NOF) 0.26 (0.01) 0.81 2.05 5.33 6.92 8.32

APFC Target 1.55 4.54 6.42 6.70 8.15 9.10 10.27

274



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

APFC Infrastructure and Private Income Structure (1Q LAG)

● 47% of the structure is invested in 
infrastructure funds, which includes a 
diversified portfolio of infrastructure, 
energy, and generation assets.

● 29% of the structure was invested in 
private credit mandates including 
mezzanine debt, opportunistic credit, 
and direct lending strategies. 

● 24% of the structure was invested in 
income opportunities including 
structured credit, alternative credit, 
AH4R2, and timber.

As of March 31, 2020

$2,551 (47%)

$1,557 (29%)
$1,316 (24%)

Infrastructure

Private Credit

Income Opportunities

275



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

Infrastructure and Income Opportunities Performance (1Q LAG)

● APFC’s Infrastructure and Income Opportunities composite trailed the benchmark (60% FTSE Developed 
Core Infrastructure and 40% BC US Corp HY 2%) in the prior quarter and one year period, but remained 
ahead over the 3- and 5-year periods.

● Infrastructure, Income Opportunities, and Private Credit composites trailed their respective benchmarks for 
the quarter and trailing one year period. Infrastructure and Private Credit outperformed over the 3- and 5-year 
periods; Income Opportunities underperformed.

As of March 31, 2020

Quarter
Last

FYTD Year
Last

Years
Last 3

Years
Last 5

Infrastructure and Income Opportunities 1.70 4.90 8.73 11.58 11.62
60% FTSE Dev Core Infr / 40% BC US Corp HY 2% 3.13 8.72 21.48 10.64 7.39

276



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

Absolute Return Portfolio Relative to HFOF Universe
Periods Ended March 31, 2020

● The Absolute Return portfolio 
fell less than its benchmark 
over the quarter and ranked in 
the top quartile.

● The portfolio ranked in the top 
quartile for most time periods.

Performance vs Callan Absolute Rtn Hedge Fund of Funds (Net)

(25%)

(20%)

(15%)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

Last Quarter Fiscal YTD Last Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 7-1/2
Year Years

(16)

(55)

(15)

(47)

(15)

(38)

(10)

(45)

(11)(10) (27)(12) (15)(14)

10th Percentile 0.06 3.50 4.59 2.97 2.52 3.72 4.12
25th Percentile (6.49) (5.10) (4.49) 1.52 1.74 2.94 3.29

Median (8.47) (7.52) (6.70) 0.11 0.81 2.32 2.94
75th Percentile (16.63) (15.62) (14.60) (4.03) (1.55) 1.24 1.70
90th Percentile (18.31) (16.78) (15.70) (4.76) (2.48) 0.57 1.10

Absolute
Return (net) (3.19) (0.45) 1.09 2.90 2.44 2.92 3.36

Absolute
Return Benchmark (9.39) (6.68) (5.11) 0.32 2.56 3.51 3.56

277



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

APFC Private Equity and Special Opportunities Structure (1Q LAG)
As of March 31, 2020

● 63% of the structure was invested in 
private equity. 

● The legacy HarbourVest investments 
were transferred to Pathway for 
oversight management.

● The Pathway portfolio also includes 
direct investments overseen by 
Pathway. 

● 37% of the structure was invested in 
special opportunities.

$5,781 (60%)

$279 (3%)

$3,531 (37%)

Private Equity - Pathway

Private Equity - BlackRock

Special Opportunities

278



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

Private Equity Portfolio Positioning (1Q LAG)
As of September 30, 2019 – December Data Not Yet Available

● APFC’s Total Private Equity 
Portfolio continued to be well-
diversified by strategy, 
geography, and industry.  

● Buyouts, Venture Capital and 
Special Situations remained 
the largest strategy 
allocations.

● The largest non-U.S. 
geographic exposure was 
Europe. The largest industry 
exposure was in Technology.

Strategy Mix by Net Asset Value

Geographic Mix by Net Asset Value

Industry Mix by Net Asset Value

Buyout 48.00%
Venture/Growth Capital 26.66%
Special Situations 23.32%
Distressed/Restructuring 1.90%
Secondary Interest 0.05%
Mezzanine 0.07%

West/Pacific Northwest 20.76%
North Atlantic 14.74%
Mid-West 11.27%
Southeast 8.34%
Southwest/Rockies 11.98%
Mid-Atlantic 4.19%
Asia/Pacific 7.77%
Europe 15.63%
Other 5.31%

Technology 48.11%
Consumer Discretionary 13.27%
Health Care 10.08%
Financial 8.24%
Energy 5.20%
Industrials 7.47%
Communication Services 4.52%
Utilities 0.31%
Consumer Staples 0.38%
Materials 0.75%
Other/Misc 1.67%

279



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

Quarter
Last

FYTD Year
Last

Years
Last 3

Years
Last 5

Private Equity and Special Opportunities 3.90 6.89 11.69 20.81 15.44
Cambridge Private Equity 5.67 11.22 16.59 15.45 12.83

APFC Private Equity and Special Opportunities Performance (1Q LAG)

● APFC’s Private Equity and Special Opportunities composite lagged behind the Cambridge Private Equity 
benchmark in the prior quarter and one year periods, but continued to outperform over the 3-, and 5-year.

● In the last reported quarter, Private Equity was up 5.1% and Special Opportunities was up 2.0%.

As of March 31, 2020

280



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

APFC Risk Parity Structure and Performance

● Roughly $585 million distributed across three 
mandates.

● Multi asset class portfolios, limited use of illiquid 
assets. Leverage is used to amplify the impact of 
asset classes and/or strategies in an effort to 
optimize performance vis-à-vis overall portfolio risk.

● PanAgora and Bridgewater outperformed the risk 
parity benchmark in their first year of performance; 
BlackRock underperformed on a relative basis.

As of March 31, 2020

$206 (35%)

$197 (34%)

$182 (31%)

PanAgora

Bridgewater All Weather

Blackrock Market Adv

Last Quarter Last Year
PanAgora -10.10 -0.71
Bridgewater All Weather -11.94 -3.76
BlackRock Market Adv -17.74 -9.04
HFR Risk Parity Vol 12 Inst'l Idx -14.11 -5.25

281



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

Closing Remarks
● Total Fund ended the first quarter of 2020 with $60.5 billion in assets, decreasing 11.1% for the quarter. Compared with the prior year

ended March 31, the Fund declined by 7.7%. The trailing year performance placed the Total Fund above median relative to other large
public funds, but below median relative to large endowments/foundations.

● For the quarter, 1- and 3-year, the Total Fund underperformed the Performance Benchmark and the CPIU+5% return target, but was
ahead of the Passive Benchmark. For the trailing 10-years, the Total Fund was ahead of all three targets.

● The Public Equity portfolio was behind its index during the quarter. Domestic and International Equity strategies detracted from relative
performance while Global Equity contributed.

● The Fixed Income Plus portfolio underperformed its benchmark in the first quarter. Global High Yield, TIPS, REITS and Listed
Infrastructure were bright spots of relative outperformance.

● The strategies in the Alternatives portfolio were mostly negative on a relative basis for the quarter. Absolute return and Asset Allocation
were additive for the quarter.

● Prudent asset allocation with appropriate levels of diversification and a long-term perspective remain Callan’s recommended course.

282



Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. First Quarter 2020

Disclaimers

Information contained herein is the confidential and proprietary information of Callan and should not be used other than by the intended recipient for its 
intended purpose or disseminated to any other person without Callan’s permission. 

This report was prepared by Callan for use by a specific client and should not be used by anyone other than the intended recipient for its intended purpose. 
The content of this report is based on the particular needs of such client and may not be applicable to the specific facts and circumstances of any other 
individual or entity. 

Certain information herein has been compiled by Callan and is based on information provided by a variety of sources believed to be reliable for which Callan 
has not necessarily verified the accuracy or completeness of or updated.

This content is for informational purposes only and should not be construed as legal or tax advice on any matter. Any decision you make on the basis of this 
content is your sole responsibility.  You should consult with legal and tax advisers before applying any of this information to your particular situation. 

This content may consist of statements of opinion, which are made as of the date they are expressed and are not statements of fact. 

Reference to or inclusion in this report of any product, service or entity should not be construed as a recommendation, approval, affiliation or endorsement 
of such product, service or entity by Callan.

283



15. Annual Review: Asset 
Allocation & Capital 
Markets Assumptions 

  

284



Asset Allocation Discussion 
FY 2021 10-Year Projections 
 

May, 2020 

Capital Market Projections and 
Asset Allocation Framework 

Steve Center, CFA 
Senior Vice President, Fund 
Sponsor Consulting 

CEO, Chief Research Officer 
Gregory C. Allen 

285



2 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 

Outline 

●Summary of Callan’s 2020 capital market projections, economic outlook, projection 
process. 

●Projected return and risk for APFC 2021 proposed policy portfolio, including 
proposed changes by CIO and Investment Team. 
– Reduction in target private real estate target; 
– Modest increases in target private equity and private credit/infrastructure targets; 
– Restructuring of fixed income plus target to remove equity exposure; 
– Modest increases in targets for public equities and fixed income plus; 
– Changes to “asset allocation” category.  

●Concluding observations. 

Projections for APFC Proposed FY 2021 Policy Portfolio 

286



3 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 

Callan Capital Market Projection Process 

●Callan updates long term capital market projections each year in January and uses 
them for the full year with all clients for strategic planning purposes. 

●Projections take into account long term relationships balanced with current market 
conditions. 

●Consensus expectations (central banks, economists, asset managers, consultants, 
etc.) are carefully considered as an integral part of the process. 

●Each number – return, risk, correlation – for every asset class must be individually 
defensible, and the numbers collectively need to work together as a set to generate 
reasonable portfolios during strategic planning exercises. 

●Projections change slowly over time and are not designed to provide tactical insights. 

●Process is executed by Callan’s capital markets research group and projections are 
peer reviewed by Client Policy Review Committee as well as the hundreds of the 
clients that use them every year. 

●Process is battle proven – it has evolved and improved, but hasn’t fundamentally 
changed over the last four decades. 

Long Term Capital Market Projections 

287



4 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 

Highlights of 2020 Capital Market Projections 

●GDP growth of 2% to 2.5% for the U.S., 1.5% to 2% for developed ex-U.S. markets, 
and 4% to 5% for emerging markets. Embedded in all of these economic forecasts is 
the expectation that the path to this longer-term growth will include cycles with 
recessions. 

●For broad U.S. equity, projected return of 7.15% with a standard deviation (or risk) of 
18.1%; for global ex-U.S. equity projected return of 7.25% (risk: 20.5%). Flat relative 
to last year. 

●For core U.S. fixed income, projected return of 2.75% (risk: 3.75%). Down 100 bps 
from last year reflecting the Fed pivot in 2019, and expectations for 2020 and beyond. 

●Gradually ratcheted down our expectations over recent years for equities to reflect a 
lower growth environment with lower expected returns. 

●Continue to project a premium for private markets portfolios over public markets 
assuming long term commitment and institutional implementation. 

Changes and Observations 

288



5 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 

Capital Market Projections 
Projected Return, Standard Deviation, and Yield 

PROJECTED 
RISK

Asset Class Performance Index
FY 2021 

Target Weight
1-Year 

Arithmetic

10-Year 
Geometric 

Return

Annualized 
Standard 
Deviation

Projected 
Yield

Public Equities 39.00% 8.80% 7.35% 18.25% 2.55%
Global Equity MSCI ACWI - IMI 39.00% 8.80% 7.35% 18.25% 2.55%

Fixed Income Plus 21.00% 3.10% 3.05% 3.60% 3.90%
Money Markets 90-Day T-Bill 1.05% 2.25% 2.25% 0.90% 2.25%
TIPS Bloomberg TIPS 1.05% 2.50% 2.40% 5.05% 3.15%
US Fixed Income Bloomberg Aggregate 5.78% 2.80% 2.75% 3.75% 3.40%
US Investment Grade Credit Bloomberg Credit 5.78% 3.30% 3.25% 4.50% 3.95%
Non-US Fixed Income Bloomberg Global Treasury ex-US Hedged 2.10% 1.30% 0.90% 9.20% 2.05%
Emerging Market Debt 50/50 JPM EMBI/JPM GBI 1.05% 4.70% 4.35% 9.50% 6.70%
High Yield Bloomberg US High Yield 2% Issuer Cap 2.10% 5.10% 4.65% 10.25% 7.30%
US Securitized Bloomberg US Securitized 2.10% 3.00% 3.00% 2.60% 3.25%

Private Equity/Growth Opps 15.00% 12.00% 8.55% 27.80% 0.00%
Private Equity Cambridge Private Equity (lag) 15.00% 12.00% 8.55% 27.80% 0.00%

Private Real Estate 7.00% 7.05% 6.25% 14.00% 4.75%
Real Estate NCREIF Total Index (lag) 7.00% 7.05% 6.25% 14.00% 4.75%

Private Infra/Credit/Income Opps 9.00% 7.10% 6.45% 13.20% 5.15%
Private Infrastructure Cambridge Global Private Infra (lag) 5.40% 7.55% 6.60% 15.20% 5.00%
Private Credit Bloomberg US High Yield (lag) 3.60% 6.50% 5.90% 12.10% 5.40%

Absolute Return 6.00% 5.25% 5.00% 8.70% 0.00%
Hedge Funds HFRI Total HFOF Universe 6.00% 5.25% 5.00% 8.70% 0.00%

Risk Parity 1.00% 6.75% 6.20% 11.95% 2.85%
Risk Parity HFR Risk Parity Vol 12 1.00% 6.75% 6.20% 11.95% 2.85%

Cash Equivalents 2.00% 2.25% 2.25% 0.90% 2.25%
Hedge Funds 90-Day T-Bill 2.00% 2.25% 2.25% 0.90% 2.25%

Total Fund APFC Total Fund Target 100.00% 7.45% 6.75% 13.50% 2.70%
Inflation CPI-U 2.25% 1.50%

PROJECTED RETURN

Summary of Callan's Long-Term Capital Market Projections for APFC Asset Allocation Model (FY 2021 - 2030)

289



6 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 

Capital Market Assumptions 

● Projected correlations between asset classes are the third dimension of capital market 
expectations. 

● They are generally not discussed in detail but are very important in identifying and quantifying the 
diversification effects of asset classes. 

● Negative correlations between asset classes (i.e. Core US Fixed and Global Equity) mean that 
the combination of the two has a powerful risk reduction impact when held together. 

● Projected correlations take into account long term relationships between asset classes while also 
considering recent trends, particularly if they represent structural changes. 

● Correlations are particularly tricky because the entire matrix must satisfy certain mathematical 
criteria (i.e. it must be positive semi-definite). 

Projected Correlation Matrix 
Correlation Matrix GE FI Plus Cash TIPS US FI Credit NU FI EMD GHY MBS PE RE PI AR RP CPI
APFC Global Equity 1.000 0.323 -0.040 -0.058 -0.119 0.311 0.042 0.566 0.626 -0.110 0.867 0.720 0.882 0.811 0.994 -0.001
APFC Fixed Income Plus 0.323 1.000 -0.006 0.581 0.798 0.864 0.661 0.439 0.529 0.731 0.203 0.239 0.326 0.388 0.410 -0.171
Cash Equivalents -0.040 -0.006 1.000 0.120 0.100 -0.081 0.000 -0.070 -0.110 0.162 0.000 -0.060 -0.035 -0.070 -0.029 0.000
TIPS -0.058 0.581 0.120 1.000 0.640 0.404 0.400 0.180 0.055 0.585 -0.135 0.000 -0.008 0.085 0.010 0.100
Core US Fixed -0.119 0.798 0.100 0.640 1.000 0.688 0.530 0.110 0.030 0.907 -0.185 -0.035 -0.064 0.100 -0.013 -0.280
Investment Grade Credit 0.311 0.864 -0.081 0.404 0.688 1.000 0.447 0.244 0.358 0.613 0.169 0.259 0.300 0.379 0.387 -0.210
Global ex-US Fixed 0.042 0.661 0.000 0.400 0.530 0.447 1.000 0.010 0.120 0.477 0.060 -0.050 0.014 -0.050 0.098 -0.100
EMD 0.566 0.439 -0.070 0.180 0.110 0.244 0.010 1.000 0.600 0.094 0.425 0.360 0.569 0.540 0.582 0.000
High Yield 0.626 0.529 -0.110 0.055 0.030 0.358 0.120 0.600 1.000 0.019 0.525 0.455 0.593 0.560 0.634 0.070
US Mortgage Backed -0.110 0.731 0.162 0.585 0.907 0.613 0.477 0.094 0.019 1.000 -0.167 -0.036 -0.060 0.085 -0.014 -0.252
Private Equity 0.867 0.203 0.000 -0.135 -0.185 0.169 0.060 0.425 0.525 -0.167 1.000 0.600 0.807 0.635 0.853 0.060
Core Real Estate 0.720 0.239 -0.060 0.000 -0.035 0.259 -0.050 0.360 0.455 -0.036 0.600 1.000 0.702 0.525 0.722 0.100
Private Infra/Credit 0.882 0.326 -0.035 -0.008 -0.064 0.300 0.014 0.569 0.593 -0.060 0.807 0.702 1.000 0.730 0.881 0.015
Hedge Funds 0.811 0.388 -0.070 0.085 0.100 0.379 -0.050 0.540 0.560 0.085 0.635 0.525 0.730 1.000 0.828 0.200
Risk Parity 0.994 0.410 -0.029 0.010 -0.013 0.387 0.098 0.582 0.634 -0.014 0.853 0.722 0.881 0.828 1.000 -0.031
Inflation -0.001 -0.171 0.000 0.100 -0.280 -0.210 -0.100 0.000 0.070 -0.252 0.060 0.100 0.015 0.200 -0.031 1.000

290



7 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 

APFC 2021 Target Asset Allocation 
Projected Return and Standard Deviation 

● 2021 target real estate allocation 
reduced from 13% to 7% relative to 
2020 target 

● Private equity target increased from 
13% to 15%. 

● Fixed income plus target increased 
from 20% to 21%, (REITS and listed 
infrastructure removed from fixed 
income target). 

● Public equities target increased from 
37% to 39%. 

● Median expected 10-year geometric 
return for the 2021 target asset 
allocation is 6.75% (expected real 
return 4.50%). 

● Probability of exceeding 5% real return 
over 10-years is approximately 44%. 

Expected 10-year Geometric Return: 6.75% 
Expected Standard Deviation: 13.50% 

Expected Inflation: 2.25% 
Expected Real Return: 4.50% 

Public Equities, 
39%

Fixed Income 
Plus, 21%

Private Equity, 
15%

Real Estate, 
7%

Private 
Infra/Credit, 9%

Absolute 
Return, 6%

Risk Parity, 1%
Cash, 2%

2021 Total Fund Target

291



8 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 

Constrained Efficient Frontier Analysis 37% Private Assets 
Projected Return and Standard Deviation 

● Efficient frontier shown in 
chart is constrained to a 
maximum of 37% allocated 
to private markets. 

● 2021 target portfolio is on 
constrained efficient 
frontier. 

● Planned gradual increase 
in private asset targets, 
particularly real estate, is 
expected to improve long 
term efficiency. 

10.00 11.00 12.00 13.00 14.00 15.00 16.00 17.00 18.00

5.80

6.00

6.20

6.40

6.60

6.80

7.00

7.20

7.40

7.60

10-Year Projected Geometric Return versus Standard Deviation
Efficient Frontier

Projected Standard Deviation

10
 Y

r. 
G

eo
m

et
ric

 M
ea

n 
R

et
ur

n

2021 Target

(37% Private Markets)
Efficient Frontier

292



9 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. 

Concluding Observations 

●Reduction in fixed income return projections is the most significant year-over-year 
change in Callan’s capital market projections – impacts all components of Fixed 
Income Plus portfolio. 

●Callan’s public equity return and risk projections remain relatively unchanged year-
over-year. 

●The current COVID-19 pandemic has not caused us to change our long run 
projections. 

●Fixed income outlook is largely responsible for 25 basis point decline in nominal 
return projection for APFC 2021 target portfolio relative to 2020 projections. 

●The projected return impact of the reduction in targeted private real estate exposure 
relative to FY 2020 is largely offset by the increase in targets for private equity and 
private credit/infrastructure. 

●Projected probability of APFC 2021 target portfolio return exceeding 5% real return 
over next 10 years is roughly 44%. 

293



16. Investment Advisor 
Applications 

  

294



 
 

SUBJECT: IAG Candidates   ACTION: X 
 
DATE: 5/21/2020    INFORMATION:  
 
 
Candidates listed in order of interview time slots. For full application materials, please 
refer to confidential information sent in advance. Upon conclusion of the interviews, the 
Board will take action to appoint at least one and possibly two candidates to the 
Investment Advisory Group. 
 
Candidate 1 
Sharmila C. Kassam, CPA, Esq. 
 
Current Position: 
Founder/Consultant, Aligned Capital Investing, LLC 
 
Education: 
The University of Texas Law School, 9/2000 – 5/2003, JD 
The University of Texas School of Business, 9/1991 – 8/1995, BBA in Accounting with 
honors 
 
Professional Licenses, certificates, etc. 
CPA License, Texas, 1998 
Bar License, California, 2003; Texas, 2005 
Certificate Public Treasure Measurement, NIPF [Affiliated with Pepperdine University] and 
served as a Faculty Member, 2019 
 
Candidate 2 
Andrew H. Sawyer 
 
Current Position: 
N/A 
 
Education: 
Lubin School of Business, Pace University, 1991, MBA 
University of Maine, 1983, Bachelor of Science 
 
Professional licenses, certificates, etc. 
Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA), 1999 
Chartered Alternative Investment Analyst (CAIA), 2009 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

295



 

Page 2 
 

 
 
Candidate 3 
John D. Skjervem 
 
Current Position: 
Chief Executive Officer, Alan Biller and Associates 
 
Education: 
University of Chicago, 9/1989 – 6/1991, MBA, Finance and Statistics 
University of California, Santa Barbara, 9/1980 – 6/1984 
 
Professional licenses, certificates, etc.: 
Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA), 1996 
 
Candidate 4 
Kenneth (Ken) J. Frier 
 
Current Position: 
Principal, SECOR Asset Management 
 
Education: 
Stanford Graduate School of Business, 1982 – 1984, MBA, Arjay Miller Scholar 
University of North Carolina, 1976 – 1980, BS in Mathematical Sciences  
 
Professional licenses, certificates, etc.: 
Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA), 2007 
Series 3 and Series 30 tests, 2017 
 
 
Candidate 5 
Jeb Burns 
 
Current Position: 
Chief Investment Officer 
Municipal Employee Retirement System of Michigan 
 
Education: 
Wayne State University, 1993, MPA 
Western Michigan University, 1987, BA in History 
 
Professional licenses, certificates, etc.: 
Advanced Professional Directors Certification - 2018 

296



17. Investment Policy Review 
  

297



Revised Investment Policy & 
Asset Allocation Discussion

May 2020
298



Revised Investment Policy

299



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    3

• Staff has spent the last several months working collaboratively on a Revised Investment Policy with input from Investments, Risk
& Compliance, Finance and Legal

• Follows last substantial re-write in Fall 2016 and last amendment adopted in May 2018

• Key Changes (to February 2020 draft from current Investment Policy):

1. Moves away from framework created in 2016 of growth vs. income and tradable vs. private distinctions and quadrants

2. REIT’s and Listed Infrastructure out of Fixed Income; flexibility to invest in REIT’s moved to Real Estate portfolio and Listed 
Infrastructure to Infrastructure portfolio

3. Creation of “Real Assets Completion Portfolio” to address significant current underweight vs. target allocation in Real 
Estate and multi-year time-line to prudently move back to desired target allocation

4. Divides current “Asset Allocation Portfolio” (at current 5% target allocation) into “Total Fund Cash” (at 1% target 
allocation, down from 2% current implied target) and “Risk Parity” (at 1% target allocation)

5. Conscious effort made to cut down on superfluous language with no perceived loss of content (47 page document reduced 
down to 33 pages)

6. Clarifies manager search procedures for Public Market investments

Executive Summary

300



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    4

Executive Summary (continued)
• Key Changes to February 2020 draft from current Investment Policy (continued):

7. Tighter Derivatives Policy is more consistent with APFC Leadership Team’s view of prudent limits and cuts off 
some remote but possibly large risks associated with external managers who previously could take large 
derivative positons relative to allocated capital

8. Investment Committee to have 3 voting members for Investment Decisions: CEO, CIO and CRO 

9. Creates certain new portfolio limits primarily to address concentration levels (examples include sector targets, 
single name exposure levels, strategy allocations for private assets, etc.)

10. Creates a grid by asset class (shown on the following two pages) that summarizes by asset class  certain limits 
within which Staff will operate the portfolio

11. Maintains Green Zone, Yellow Zone, Red Zone asset class ranges

• The introduction of the Real Assets Completion Portfolio provides an important tool that will enable Staff 
to run the portfolio much closer to its target allocations

• The green, yellow, and red zones are applicable to the grid structure as well

301



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    5

Executive Summary (continued)
• Key Changes to current proposed Investment Policy from February 2020 draft Investment Policy:

1. As suggested by Board Chair, Investment Committee with three voting members (Executive Director, Chief 
Investment Officer, and Chief Risk Officer) replaced by “APFC Investment Committee” chaired by Executive 
Director which takes up written investment recommendations referred by “Investment Department Investment 
Committee” chaired by Chief Investment Officer

• Monthly reporting to Board of any Investment Department Investment Committee investment 
recommendations not approved by APFC Investment Committee

• Chief Financial Officer removed as back-up decision-maker on APFC Investment Committee in instances 
where Executive Director is not available

2. “Real Asset Completion Portfolio” eliminated as a concept given Staff’s preference to not execute on a ~$4 billion 
portfolio rebalancing given current market conditions

3. Gold (via ETF’s) established as an investable option within the Total Fund Cash and Absolute Return portfolios

4. Green zone ranges on Private Markets, Risk Parity, and Total Fund Cash expanded and Total Fund Cash target 
allocation increased from 1% to 2%, driven by current market conditions and increased uncertainty around private 
asset valuations

5. Unfunded commitments limit across private markets increased to 20% of the Fund based on completion of pacing 
analysis; up from 15% in February draft and flat from current policy

302



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    6

Investment Policy – Table 1
Asset Class Grid

Public 

Equity

Fixed 

Income

Private 

Equity
Real Estate

Private 

Income

Absolute 

Return
Risk Parity Cash Total Fund

Asset Allocation

Asset Allocation (AA):   Target Levels      - FY 2021 % of Fund 39% 21% 15% 7% 9% 6% 1% 2% 100%

Green Zone (expressed as +/- to Target Allocation) % of Fund +/- 5% +/- 5% +/- 5% +/- 3% +/- 5% +/- 3% +/- 1% +/- 2%

Yellow Zone (expressed as range beyond green zone) % of Fund 0 - 5% 0 - 5% 0 - 5% 0 - 3% 0 - 5% 0 - 3% 0 - 1% 0 - 2%

Asset Allocation (AA):   Target Levels      - FY 2022 % of Fund 38% 20% 16% 8% 9% 6% 1% 2% 100%

Asset Allocation (AA):   Target Levels      - FY 2023 % of Fund 36% 20% 17% 9% 9% 6% 1% 2% 100%

Asset Allocation (AA):   Target Levels      - FY 2024 % of Fund 35% 19% 18% 10% 9% 6% 1% 2% 100%

Asset Allocation (AA):   Target Levels      - FY 2025 % of Fund 33% 18% 19% 12% 9% 6% 1% 2% 100%

303



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    7

Public 

Equity

Fixed 

Income

Private 

Equity
Real Estate

Private 

Income

Absolute 

Return
Risk Parity Cash Total Fund

Asset Allocation

Asset Allocation (AA):   Target Levels      - FY 2021 % of Fund 39% 21% 15% 7% 9% 6% 1% 2% 100%

Green Zone (expressed as +/- to Target Allocation) % of Fund +/- 5% +/- 5% +/- 5% +/- 3% +/- 5% +/- 3% +/- 1% +/- 2%

Yellow Zone (expressed as range beyond green zone) % of Fund 0 - 5% 0 - 5% 0 - 5% 0 - 3% 0 - 5% 0 - 3% 0 - 1% 0 - 2%

Asset Allocation (AA):   Target Levels      - FY 2022 % of Fund 38% 20% 16% 8% 9% 6% 1% 2% 100%

Asset Allocation (AA):   Target Levels      - FY 2023 % of Fund 36% 20% 17% 9% 9% 6% 1% 2% 100%

Asset Allocation (AA):   Target Levels      - FY 2024 % of Fund 35% 19% 18% 10% 9% 6% 1% 2% 100%

Asset Allocation (AA):   Target Levels      - FY 2025 % of Fund 33% 18% 19% 12% 9% 6% 1% 2% 100%

All Targets are Maximum Permitted, except #29-Min Cash 

Public 

Equity

Fixed 

Income

Private 

Equity
Real Estate

Private 

Income

Absolute 

Return
Risk Parity Cash Total Fund Low High Low High

Future Outstanding Commitments % of Fund 0.0% 0.0% 10.0% 3.0% 5.0% 2.0% 0.0% 20.0% 85% 115% 75% 125%

Benchmark M664204USN LEHCREYBO CAM_PE TBD TBD HFRIPROXY TBD TBD LEHFTJPM

Tracking Error 3.5% 2.5% 4.0% n/a 115% n/a 125%

Relative VaR (Portfolio VaR / Benchmark VaR) 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 0% 125% 0% 140%

Concentrations 

Single Name / Issuer                          [Note 1] % of AA 4% 4% 2% 10% 2% n/a n/a n/a 0% 115% 0% 125%

Single Industry (DEFINITION: GICS) % of AA 20% 20% 30% n/a 30% n/a n/a n/a 0% 115% 0% 125%

Single Country - EX US % of AA 10% 10% 20% 20% 20% n/a n/a n/a 0% 115% 0% 125%

Total EX US % of AA 50% 30% 50% 50% 50% n/a n/a n/a

Single Fund Investment                   [Note 2] % of AA 5% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 50% n/a 0% 115% 0% 125%

Proportion of ownership - 5% 5% 10% 100% 10% n/a n/a n/a 0% 115% 0% 125%

Credit Risk

Rating - Below Inv Grade % of AA n/a 25% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 0% 0% 115% 0% 125%

Rating - Below A- & Unrated % of AA n/a 50% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 0% 0% 115% 0% 125%

Rating - Unrated % of AA n/a 5% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 0% 0% 115% 0% 125%

Market Risk

FX - Proportion Unhedged % of AA 30% 5% 20% 20% 20% n/a n/a 5% 0% 115% 0% 125%

Liquidity - Proportion without at least Daily liquidity % of AA 10% 10% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 5% 0% 115% 0% 125%

Liquidity - Proportion without at least Monthly liquidity % of AA 2% 2% 100% 100% 100% 70% 70% 0% 0% 115% 0% 125%

Liquidity - Proportion without at least Quarterly  liquidity % of AA 0% 0% 100% 100% 100% 30% 30% 0% 0% 115% 0% 125%

Cash Levels

Cash & Equivalents % of AA 2% 10% 5% 5% 5% n/a n/a 100% 0% 115% 0% 125%

MINIMUM Cash & Equivalents % of AA 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% n/a n/a 30% 85% 115% 75% 125%

Notes:

1 Single Name / Issuer: represents security level exposure to single entity or operating company.  US Treasury & Govt Agencies are exempt.  For Private Assets, the limit applies at the time of investment or cost basis

2 Single Fund Investment: represents exposure to a fund or strategy based vehicle

Green Zone Yellow Zone

As a % of Target

Target Levels

Investment Policy – Table 3
Asset Class Grid (continued)

• With elimination of 
equity securities 
from Fixed Income 
portfolio; tracking 
error green zone 
limit reduced from 
350 bps to 250 bps

• Total Fund Relative 
VAR green zone 
limit increased to 
125% of benchmark 
from prior limit of 
110% of benchmark 
to better align with 
total Fund tracking 
error limit 304



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    8

Draft Investment Policy

• Please see Appendices to this presentation for:

a) Clean version of draft Revised APFC Investment Policy

b) Redline of draft Revised APFC Investment Policy versus draft Revised APFC Investment Policy 
presented to Board in February 2020

305



Rationale for Gold as an Investable 
Option in Total Fund Cash and 

Absolute Return Portfolios

306



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    10

Gold as an Investable Option in Cash & Absolute Return

• In spite of the price of Gold appreciating ~5% from the February Board meeting through the end of April, Staff believes that its
attractiveness as portfolio option remains 

• In the new Revised Investment Policy, Gold (via ETF’s) has been moved from the “Real Assets Completion Portfolio” to an 
investment option for the Total Fund Cash and Absolute Return portfolios 

• In the Total Fund Cash portfolio, Gold becomes a particularly interesting tool should nominal rates on the short end of the US 
yield curve ever turn negative and given zero or negative (depending on one’s inflation outlook) real yields across the US yield 
curve it already has much lower opportunity cost than in other macro environments with higher interest rates and less 
uncertainty around the value of the US Dollar

• In the Absolute Return portfolio, Gold is a tool for Staff to express a macro view with an instrument that is more liquid than 
other Absolute Return investments, that is defensive, and that features low fees (many of our Absolute Return managers hold 
long positions in Gold in high fee burden accounts already)

307



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    11

• “The APFC portfolio is vulnerable to 
environments of lower-than-expected growth 
or higher-than-expected inflation.”

– Bridgewater Associates, November 2017 “APFC Plan 
Stress Test”

• “I think these [equity linked / traditional 
investments] are unlikely to be good real 
returning investments and that those that will 
most likely do best will be those that do well 
when the value of money is being depreciated 
and domestic and international conflicts are 
significant, such as gold.”

– Ray Dalio, Bridgewater Associates Founder & CIO, July 
2019 “Paradigm Shifts”

The Benefit of Gold in Portfolio Context
(unchanged from February 2020 presentation)

(0.26%)

11.42%

12.72%

0.23%

9.28%

2.55%

9.65%

11.57%

1.05%

9.22%

(2.00%)

0.00%

2.00%

4.00%

6.00%

8.00%

10.00%

12.00%

14.00%

1970's 1980's 1990's 2000's 2010's

(Average annual real return)

70% Domestic Stocks/30% Domestic Bonds (Avg. = 6.68%)
70% Domestic Stocks/20% Domestic Bonds/10% Gold (Avg. = 6.81%)

Higher-
than-

expected 
Inflation
(7.41% 

Avg. for 
Decade)

Higher-
than-

expected 
Inflation
(7.41% 

Avg. for 
Decade)

Lower-
than-

expected 
Growth

(2 
Recessions 
in Decade)

308



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    12

What is the Outlook for Lower Growth or Higher Inflation?...
(unchanged from February 2020 presentation)

Lower Growth / Recession? Higher Inflation?

• “Inflation is always and everywhere a monetary phenomenon in the sense 
that it is and can be produced only by a more  rapid increase in the 
quantity of money than in output.”

– Milton Friedman, 1970

Source: New York Federal Reserve analysis.

309



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    13

• “A balanced portfolio is likely to generate average returns of only 2.4% a year in real returns over the next decade.”

– BCA Research, December 2019

…and what is the outlook for traditional assets?
(unchanged from February 2020 presentation)

The S&P is Very Expensive…
…and Global Sovereign Bonds are 
Unattractive by Historical Standards...

…with tight Corporate Bond Spreads by
Historical Standards

310



Asset Allocation Discussion

311



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    15

Objectives for Long-term Asset Allocation Exercise

• Maintain a prudent mix of Low Market Exposure Assets (Fixed Income, Absolute Return, Cash, Gold) vs. Total Fund in the range 
of 25 – 30%

• While recognizing the very rapid growth of our Drawdown Private Markets assets in the past decade, continue this growth at a 
prudent rate of 1% per year all applied to our target allocation for Private Equity; the increase in Private Equity allocation is 
mostly derived from a proportionate decline in public equity allocation

• Build the Fund’s Real Estate exposure up to a target of 12% by FY 2025

• Construct a portfolio that achieves CPI + 5%+ expected returns using Callan capital markets expectations for most asset classes 
and a modest premium to Callan capital markets expectations for Private Equity (reflecting APFC’s experience in the strategy 
and expectations going forward)

312



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    16

Asset Allocation Proposal Through FY ‘25

FY '20 FY '21 FY '21 FY '22 FY '23 FY '24 FY '25

Public Equity 37.0% 35.0% 39.0% 38.0% 36.0% 35.0% 33.0%

Fixed Income 20.0% 18.0% 21.0% 20.0% 20.0% 19.0% 18.0%

Private Equity 13.0% 14.0% 15.0% 16.0% 17.0% 18.0% 19.0%

Real Estate 12.0% 13.0% 7.0% 8.0% 9.0% 10.0% 12.0%

Private Income 8.0% 9.0% 9.0% 9.0% 9.0% 9.0% 9.0%

Absolute Return 5.0% 6.0% 6.0% 6.0% 6.0% 6.0% 6.0%

Asset Allocation 5.0% 5.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Risk Parity 0.0% 0.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0%

Total Fund Cash 0.0% 0.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%

Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Existing Policy Proposed

313



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    17

Portfolio Expected Returns Through FY ’25
(Callan 2020 Capital Market Expectations + APFC PE Assumption)

FY '20 FY '21 FY '21 FY '22 FY '23 FY '24 FY '25

Expected Return

Public Equity 7.35% 7.35% 7.35% 7.35% 7.35% 7.35% 7.35%

Fixed Income 3.05% 3.05% 3.05% 3.05% 3.05% 3.05% 3.05%

Private Equity 12.30% 12.30% 12.30% 12.30% 12.30% 12.30% 12.30%

Real Estate 6.25% 6.25% 6.25% 6.25% 6.25% 6.25% 6.25%

Private Income 6.45% 6.45% 6.45% 6.45% 6.45% 6.45% 6.45%

Absolute Return 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

Asset Allocation 4.62% 4.62% NA NA NA NA NA

Risk Parity NA NA 6.20% 6.20% 6.20% 6.20% 6.20%

Total Fund Cash NA NA 2.25% 2.25% 2.25% 2.25% 2.25%

Total - Simple Math 6.68% 6.77% 6.78% 6.86% 6.90% 6.98% 7.05%

Inflation 2.25% 2.25% 2.25% 2.25% 2.25% 2.25% 2.25%

Real Return (Simple Math) CPI + 4.4% CPI + 4.5% CPI + 4.5% CPI + 4.6% CPI + 4.6% CPI + 4.7% CPI + 4.8%

Real Return (including Geometric Compounding) CPI + 5%+ CPI + 5%+ CPI + 5%+ CPI + 5%+ CPI + 5%+

Existing Policy Proposed

314



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    18

Market Exposure and Liquidity Mix
• “Yale targets a minimum allocation of 30% of the endowment to market-insensitive assets (cash, bonds, and absolute return).  The university further 

seeks to limit illiquid assets (Venture Capital, Leveraged Buyouts, Real Estate, and Natural Resources) to 50% of the portfolio.”

-Yale Investments Office website

FY '20 FY '21 FY '21 FY '22 FY '23 FY '24 FY '25

Liquid Exposure

Liquid 62.0% 58.0% 63.0% 61.0% 59.0% 57.0% 54.0%

Illiquid 38.0% 42.0% 37.0% 39.0% 41.0% 43.0% 46.0%

Market Exposure - High vs. Low

Low 27.0% 26.0% 29.0% 28.0% 28.0% 27.0% 26.0%

High 73.0% 74.0% 71.0% 72.0% 72.0% 73.0% 74.0%

Existing Policy Proposed

315



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    19

Conclusion & Recommendation

• Staff recommends that the Board approve the Revised 
Investment Policy and Five Year Asset Allocation plan 
included herein

316



Page 1 of 77 
 

APFC Investment Policy & Procedures 
Adopted May 2123, 2020, Effective Date July 1, 202018, amended September 27, 2018 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
SECTION 

I OBJECTIVESINTRODUCTION 2 

II TOTAL FUND & PORTFOLIO DESIGN PHILOSOPHY 4 

III PUBLIC MARKETS 16 

IV ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENTS 26 

V ALASKA INVESTMENT POLICY 42 

VI AUTHORIZED USE OF DERIVATIVES 20 

VII RISK MANAGEMENT & OVERSIGHT 482 

VIII INTERNAL & EXTERNAL PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENTPUBLIC MARKETS EXTERNAL MANAGER 
SELECTION 545 

Appendix A: Investment Guidelines  588 

Appendix B: Internal Investment ManagersLimit Ranges and Compliance Cures 744 

Appendix C: Internal Investment ManagersGlossary 755 

Appendix D: Glossary Previous Investment Policy Adoption and Amendments 766 

Appendix E: Previous Investment Policy Adoption and Amendments Callan’s Capital Markets Projections (2018-
2027) 777 

Appendix F: Callan’s Capital Markets Projections (2018-2027) 777 
 
  
  

Style Definition: Intense Quote,USING UNDER I and A
BULLET: Don't add space between paragraphs of the
same style, Line spacing:  single, Bulleted + Level: 1 +
Aligned at:  0.75" + Indent at:  1"

Style Definition: List Paragraph,USING UNDER A TEXT:
Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at:  0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

Style Definition: Title,USING UNDER A...i ii iii with text:
Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at:  0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

Style Definition: Heading 5,USING i ii iii: Numbered +
Level: 1 + Numbering Style: i, ii, iii, … + Start at: 1 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.5" + Indent at:  1"

Style Definition: Heading 4,USING A,B,C: Numbered +
Level: 1 + Numbering Style: A, B, C, … + Start at: 1 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.05" + Indent at:  0.3"

Style Definition: Heading 2,USING TOC Appendix

Style Definition: Heading 1,USING TOC I II III: Indent:
First line:  0"

Formatted: Tab stops: Not at  0.33" +  6.49"

Formatted: Tab stops: Not at  0.5" +  6.49"

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Bold

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Bold

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Bold

317



Page 2 of 77 
 

I OINTRODUCTIONBJECTIVES 
A. Purpose  

• The purpose of this Investment Policy (“Policy”) is to provide a formal plan for investing 
and managing the assets of the Alaska Permanent Fund and other state assets as 
prescribed by law (“Fund”) to achieve the defined investment objectives through the asset 
allocation adopted by the Board. This Policy also defines the roles and responsibilities of 
the various parties involved in the investment process and facilitates external 
communication of the Policy. The appendices are incorporated into and form part of this 
Policy. Terms not defined within the body of the Policy have meanings assigned to them in 
the “Glossary,” Appendix DC of this document. 

• This document is not intended to be a static, one-time document and will be considered for 
possible amendment on an annual basis or any time the Board of Trustees (“Board”) 
modifies the Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation’s (“APFC”) investment-related policies or 
asset allocation. Amendment of this Policy requires Board action as described in AS 
37.13.080 and the APFC By-Laws (“By-Laws”). Following any Board approved amendment 
to this document, changes will be noted in Board meeting minutes and as soon as 
practicable this document will be amended to reflect the approved changes and posted on 
the APFC website. 

B. Roles of Board, Staff, Consultants, and Advisors 

• The Board has a responsibility to invest Fund assets in accordance with the Alaska 
Constitution and the prudent-investor rule as provided in AS 37.13.120(a) – (e).  The Board 
has adopted regulations (15 AAC 137.410 – 15 AAC 137.990), which define the eligible 
investments of Fund assets (“Regulations”).  The Board has also adopted By-Laws, 
whichthat delegate and empower the APFC staff to invest and manage Fund assets 
consistent with the parameters of the Regulations and this Policy.  Finally, through 
regularly scheduled and special meetings, the Board oversees the management of APFC 
Staff and Fund assets, and ensures that APFC staff has the resources needed to fulfill its 
objectives as effectively as possible.  

• The APFC Staff’s task is to invest and manage Fund assets to fulfill the Fund’s objectives, as 
specified by the Board, in this Investment Policy.  Additionally, APFC Staff advises the Board 
about recommended changes to the asset allocation and this Policy to help the Fund 
achieve its objectives.  Finally, APFC Staff, or external investment managers selected by 
APFC Staff, negotiates and executes all investment plans and strategiesand executes all 
investment transactions, performs risk-management functions, and helps prepares 
investment performance and other management reports. 

• External consultants provide advice and implementation assistance to the Board and APFC 
Staff related to on investment programs to the Board and APFC Staff onat both the overall 
Fund level (“General Consultant”).  as well as forwith specific asset classes (“General 
Consultant”).  The General Consultant also reports on the progress that the Fund is making 

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: A,
B, C, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 
0.05" + Indent at:  0.3"

Formatted: Title,USING UNDER A...i ii iii with text

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: A,
B, C, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 
0.05" + Indent at:  0.3"

Formatted: Title,USING UNDER A...i ii iii with text

318



Page 3 of 77 
 

with regard to specific investment programs and makes comparisons of Fund performance 
against its target benchmarks, including Fund peers.  

• Consistent with the Board’s Charters and Governance Policies, up to three Investment 
Advisors are selected by the Board to provide education, advice, commentary, and 
discussion at Board meetings, or as requested by the Board. 

Mission 

• The Mission of the Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation (“Corporation” or “APFC”) is to manage 
and invest the assets of the Alaska Permanent Fund (“Fund”) and other funds designated by law.  

 
 
Vision and Values 

• APFC’s vision is to deliver sustained, compelling investment returns as the United States’ leading 
sovereign endowment manager, benefiting all current and future generations of Alaskans.  

• To fulfill its mission and vision, the Corporation will adhere to the following values: 

• Integrity: We act in an honorable, respectful, professional manner that continually 
earns and justifies the trust and confidence of each other and those we serve. 

• Stewardship: We are committed to wisely investing and protecting the assets, 
resources, and information with which we have been entrusted. 

• Passion: We are driven to excellence through self-improvement, innovative 
solutions, and an open, creative culture; and are energized by the challenges and 
rewards of serving Alaskans. 

  

319



Page 4 of 77 
 

II TOTAL FUND & PORTFOLIO DESIGN PHILOSOPHY 
A. Purpose  

 The purpose of this Investment Policy & Procedures Statement (“Policy & Procedures”) is to 
provide a formal plan for investing and managing the assets of the Alaska Permanent Fund 
and other state assets as prescribed by law to achieve the defined investment objectives 
consistent with the APFC Mission adopted by the Board. The Policy & Procedures also define 
the roles and responsibilities of the various parties involved in the investment process and 
facilitates external communication of investment policy. The appendices to the Policy & 
Procedures are incorporated into and form part of this document. Terms that are not 
defined within the body of the Policy & Procedures have meanings assigned to them in the 
“Glossary,” Appendix C of this document. 

 This document is not intended to be a static, one-time document and will be considered for 
possible amendment on an annual basis or any time the Board of Trustees (“Board”) 
modifies or adds to the Corporation’s investment-related policies and practices. 
Amendment to this document require Board action as described in AS 37.13.080. Following 
any Board approved amendment to this document, changes will be noted in Board meeting 
minutes and as soon as practicable this document will be amended to reflect the approved 
changes and posted on the APFC website. 

 The Policy & Procedures addressed herein shall be interpreted and applied in a manner 
consistent with: (1) 15 AAC 137.410 – 15 AAC 137.990, and (2) AS 37.13.120. 

B. Roles of Board, Staff, Consultants, and Advisors 

 The Board has the primary fiduciary responsibility for investing Fund assets in accordance 
with the Alaska Constitution and applicable law. The roles of the Board are to set 
investment policy and procedures, oversee investment management through the Executive 
Director and Staff through regularly scheduled and special meetings, and ensure the 
adequacy of staff resources and structure needed for the Corporation to fulfill its objectives 
as effectively as possible.  

 APFC Staff, in turn, is tasked with the fiduciary responsibility for managing the investment 
portfolio and operations needed to fulfill the Fund’s objectives, as specified by the Board, in 
line with the Policy & Procedures. Staff advises and informs the Executive Director and the 
Board about investments and recommends changes as needed to the Policy & Procedures. 
Staff executes all transactions, performs risk-management functions, and prepares 
investment reports. 

 Consultants provide advice and implementation assistance on investment programs to the 
Board and Staff on both the overall Fund as well as with specific asset classes. Consistent 
with 15 AAC 137.460(b)(2), Consultants may also be used to evaluate whether a specific 
investment is a prudent investment of Fund assets.  

Formatted: Heading 4,USING A,B,C

Formatted: Heading 4,USING A,B,C

320



Page 5 of 77 
 

 Finally, Consultants report on the progress that the Fund is making with regard to specific 
programs and makes comparisons of Fund performance against its target benchmarks, 
including Fund peers.  

 Consistent with the Board’s Charters and Governance Policies, Investment Advisors are 
selected by the Board to provide education, advice, commentary, and discussion as 
requested at Board meetings, based upon their industry experience with peer institutions. 

A. Total Fund Objective 

C. Total Fund Objectives 

Consistent with the Legislature’s findings regarding the purpose of the Alaska Permanent Fund 
(Alaska Statute 37.13.020), Tthe Board’s objective of the Fund is for the Fund is to achieve the 
highest level of investment performance that is compatible with the Board’s risk tolerance and 
prudent investment practicesprovide compelling investment returns with acceptable levels of 
risk.  Because of the perpetual nature of the Fund and the Legislature’s finding that the Fund 
should benefit all generations of Alaskans, the Board maintains a long-term perspective when 
formulating this Policy and in evaluating Fund performance.   To that end, the Board 
expectseffectiveness of  the Fund’s design and performance’s  design and portfolio management 
will be assessedevaluate based upon d using the following criteria: 

• Investment Performance: ability to generate an annualized return of CPI + 5% over a 10-
year period (“long-term target”) 

• Investment Risk: ability of the Fund to achieve the long-term target while conforming to 
the risk appetite approved by the Board 

 

 Investment Performance: ability to generate a 10-year returnmeet or exceed long-term (5+ 
years) i of CPI + 5% (“long-term target”)nflation-adjusted actuarial, medium-term (3-year) 
peer group, and short-term (1-year) index benchmarks; and 

 Investment Efficiency: ability for the Fund to harvest investment returns commensurate 
with the overall level of risk undertaken by the portfolio, as measured primarily by the 
Sharpe Ratio; and 

 Investment Risk: ability of the Fund to generate this 10-year returnmeasure and control 
risks in line withile conforming to the risk appetite approved by the Board State and Board 
tolerances and peer group norms. 

D.B. Total Fund Asset Mix 

 APFC’s investment programs are organized by asset classes, each of which has a specific 
investment objective and liquidity profile. The total return objectives for the Fund are thus 
a composite of the “growth” or “income” objectives for each asset class. Furthermore, 
expected return hurdles for each asset class are a function of investment risk (as measured 
by volatility or Value-of-Risk) and liquidity. 

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at:  0.25" +
Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Normal

Formatted: Heading 4,USING A,B,C

Formatted: Title,USING UNDER A...i ii iii with text

321



Page 6 of 77 
 

•  and APFC Staff will assist the Board in engaging in an asset allocation study for the Fund at 
least once every five (5) years to review asset classes, returnisk-risketurn assumptions, and 
correlations of investment returns with applicable benchmarks and across asset classes. A 
key objective of the asset allocation study shall be the development, through statistical 
quantitative and qualitative modelling techniques, of a diversified portfolio that specifies 
ranges of prudent portfolio exposures and a “long-term target” position for each asset 
class. The total Fund normal portfolio mix will represent the portfolio that is expected to 
meet the Board’s actuarial, peer group, and index benchmark targets long-term target 
withinhile conforming to the risk tolerancesappetite specified hereinapproved by the 
Board. 

• Each asset class allocation percentage hashall designate a “long-term target” position 
within the overall portfolio as well as maximum and minimum ranges around those targets, 
as outlined in Table-1s. RRanges are specified by a “green zone” which reflect normal 
expected variability around the targets, “yellow zones” which prescribe reflect potential 
remediation by the APFC sStaff according to prudent portfolio management over a 
reasonable period of time, and “red zones” which require reporting to the Board and Board 
approval of a  remediation plan within 30 daysto be presented by staff at the regularly 
scheduled Board Meetings. Allocation rRanges of these zones are expressed as percentages 
of the overall Fund.  Details of the zones and compliance cure periods are provided in 
Appendix B. 

 

Commented [MV1]: What is a qualitative model? 

Commented [MV2]: Do we mean return here or 
allocation? 

Commented [MV3]: Asset allocation targets are not just 
long term 

Commented [VS4]: TBD....SV 

Formatted: Normal

322



Page 7 of 77 
 

Table 1: Asset Allocation  

 
 

C. Total Fund and Asset Class Benchmarks 

 Each asset class is associated with a benchmark that describes in general terms the 
opportunity set and return characteristics associated with the asset class (“Policy 
Benchmark”). For certain private or more complex  market asset classes, the Policy 

Public 
Equity

Fixed 
Income

Private 
Equity

Real Estate
Private 
Income

Absolute 
Return

Risk Parity Cash Total Fund

Asset Allocation
Asset Allocation (AA):   Target Levels      - FY 2021 % of Fund 39% 21% 15% 7% 9% 6% 1% 2% 100%
Green Zone (expressed as +/- to Target Allocation) % of Fund +/- 5% +/- 5% +/- 5% +/- 3% +/- 5% +/- 3% +/- 1% +/- 2%
Yellow Zone (expressed as range beyond green zone) % of Fund 0 - 5% 0 - 5% 0 - 5% 0 - 3% 0 - 5% 0 - 3% 0 - 1% 0 - 2%

Asset Allocation (AA):   Target Levels      - FY 2022 % of Fund 38% 20% 16% 8% 9% 6% 1% 2% 100%
Asset Allocation (AA):   Target Levels      - FY 2023 % of Fund 36% 20% 17% 9% 9% 6% 1% 2% 100%
Asset Allocation (AA):   Target Levels      - FY 2024 % of Fund 35% 19% 18% 10% 9% 6% 1% 2% 100%
Asset Allocation (AA):   Target Levels      - FY 2025 % of Fund 33% 18% 19% 12% 9% 6% 1% 2% 100%

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

323



Page 8 of 77 
 

Bbenchmark serves as a proxy for expected returns rather than an approximation of the 
actual investments that will characterize theat components of the portfolio. These 
benchmarks for each asset class are also referred to as Policy Benchmarks. Note that the 
investment returns and Policy Bbenchmarks for Private Equity & Special Opportunities, 
Real Estate, and Infrastructure & Private Income are lagged by 1-quarter for performance 
calculation purposes, as is common practice among large complex investment plans 
institutional investorsin the United States and internationally.  Each asset class is also 
associated with a long-term return objective, which cumulatively reflects the total Fund’s 
long-term objective of CPI + 5%. 

• Table-2 reflects t  The long-term return objectives and short-term Policy Bbenchmarks for 
each of the asset class are reflected in Table 2es. 

Table 2: Benchmarks - constituent indexes and weights 

 
 
 

E.D. Total Fund Performance Measurement & Reporting Criteria—Performance Scorecard 

• The Board looks to its General Consultant as the primary source of quantitative evaluation 
of the performance of the Fund and its investment managers. As promptly as possible after 
the close of each calendar quarter, the General Consultant shall submit a report to the 
Board, Executive Director (“ED”) and Chief Investment Officer (“CIO”)IO  analyzing the 
performance of the Fund, its asset classes and investment programs, including both 
internally and externally managed assets. The report shall include a comparison of total 
Fund performance with the Board's long-term investment goalobjective, an analysis of the 
returns of each asset class as measured against established benchmarks for each class; and 
an analysis of the returns of each manager or relevant groupings of managers as measured 
against relevant benchmarks. The General Consultant's report to the Board shall also 

Public Equity Fixed Income
Private 
Equity

Real   Estate
Private 
Income

Absolute 
Return

Risk    Parity Fund  Cash
Total Fund 

FY 2021
Total Fund  

FY 2022
Total Fund  

FY 2023
Total Fund  

FY 2024
Total Fund  

FY 2025

Asset Allocation (AA): Target Levels-FY 2021 39.0% 21.0% 15.0% 7.0% 9.0% 6.0% 1.0% 2.0% 100.0%
Minuimum Long Term Return Target CPI+5.10% CPI+0.8% CPI+10.05% CPI+4.00% CPI+4.2% CPI+2.75% CPI+3.95% CPI CPI+5%

Benchmark Index Weights
90 Day T-Bills -                 5.00% -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 100.00% 3.05% 3.00% 3.00% 2.95% 2.90%
BB Corporate -                 27.50% -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 5.78% 5.50% 5.50% 5.23% 4.95%
BB Gbl Treasury ex-US Hedged -                 10.00% -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 2.10% 2.00% 2.00% 1.90% 1.80%
BB US Agg -                 27.50% -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 5.78% 5.50% 5.50% 5.23% 4.95%
BB US HY 2% Issuer Cap -                 10.00% -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 2.10% 2.00% 2.00% 1.90% 1.80%
Cambridge Private Credit (Lagged) -                 -                 -                 -                 40.00% -                 -                 -                 3.60% 3.60% 3.60% 3.60% 3.60%
BB Barclays US Securitzed Index 10.00% 2.10% 2.00% 2.00% 1.90% 1.80%
BB US TIPS -                 5.00% -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 1.05% 1.00% 1.00% 0.95% 0.90%
Cambridge PE (Lagged) -                 -                 100.00% -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 15.00% 16.00% 17.00% 18.00% 19.00%
Cambridge Global Private Infrastructure (Lagged)      -                 -                 -                 -                 60.00% -                 -                 -                 5.40% 5.40% 5.40% 5.40% 5.40%
HFRI Total HFOF Universe -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 100.00% -                 -                 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
JPM EMBI Gbl Diversified -                 2.50% -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 0.53% 0.50% 0.50% 0.48% 0.45%
JPM GBI-EM Gbl Diversified -                 2.50% -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 0.53% 0.50% 0.50% 0.48% 0.45%
MSCI ACWI IMI 100.00% -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 39.00% 38.00% 36.00% 35.00% 33.00%
NCREIF Property (Lagged) -                 -                 -                 85.00% -                 -                 -                 -                 5.95% 6.80% 7.65% 8.50% 10.20%
MSCI US REIT 15.00% 1.05% 1.20% 1.35% 1.50% 1.80%
HFRI Risk Parity Vol 12 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 100.00% -                 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%

Total 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Asset Class / Portfolio Weights Total Fund Weights

Formatted: Normal

324



Page 9 of 77 
 

address any special concerns or observations the General Consultant concludes should be 
brought to the attention of the Board, Executive Director and CIO. 

• At each regular Board meeting, the General Consultant will also report on the investment 
performance of the Fund and each asset class in comparison with Fund peers (i.e., Large US 
Public Funds and Endowment Funds). The comparative performance of the Fund and each 
asset class will be assessed and reported across multiple timeframes, including 10-year, 5-
year, 3-year, and 1-year.  To the extent that peer comparisons may not be directly available 
for specific asset class comparisons, the General Consultant should select the closest 
available proxy for comparison purposes. Thuse the Fund’s Policy Benchmarks (see Table 2) 
will be used as a proxy for the peer group comparisons on an ongoing basis. The 
Consultant's report shall also address any special concerns or observations the Consultant 
concludes should be brought to the attention of the Board, Executive Director and CIO. 

E. Total Fund Portfolio Implementation, Delegations, and Investment Committee 

APFC Staff directs all investment activities through a delegation of investment authority in the By-
Laws from the Board to the Executive Director and then from the Executive Director to specific 
APFC Staff, as deemed appropriate by the Executive Director. The Executive Director will also 
convene a Public Markets Investment Committee and a Private Markets Investment Committee 
(together, the “APFC Investment Committee”) on a regular basis in order to discuss and deliberate 
on investment decisions requiring the Executive Director’s authorization.  The sole voting 
members of the APFC Investment Committee shall be include ththe Executive Director, the Chief 
Investment Officer, and the Chief Risk Officer.Director.  The Chief Investment Officer will also 
convene an investment department investment committee (“Investment Department Investment 
Committee”).  The Investment Department Investment Committee will meet regularly and will 
work with the APFC staff to make investment recommendations (“Investment Recommendations”) 
to be considered for authorization by the Executive Director during the APFC Investment 
Committee. 
 
Approval of any Investment Recommendation referred by the Investment Department Investment 
Committee to the APFC Investment Committee requires the affirmative approval of the Executive 
Director taking into consideration, in a collaborative manner, input from various functions at APFC 
(e.g., Legal, Finance, Operations, Admin, IT, and Risk).  Investment Recommendations from the 
Investment Department Investment Committee to the APFC Investment Committee shall be in 
writing and Investment Decisions approved by the APFC Investment Committee shall also be in 
writing.  Variations or the non-approval of an Investment Recommendation of the Investment 
Department Investment Committee by the APFC Investment Committee shall be reported to the 
Board on a monthly basis.investment decision  
by the Investment Committee requires the affirmative vote of at least two of the three voting 
members.  If any voting member of the Investment Committee is absent from a meeting, the Chef 
Financial Officer shall take the place of the absent member. Investment decisions approved by the 
Investment Committee will be affirmed in-writing. 
 

Commented [PC5]: Since we are doing away with the 
scorecard, Marcus will need to modify this sentence. 

Commented [MV6]: I don't understand what this means. 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0"

325



Page 10 of 77 
 

  

 The Board’s General Consultant will deliver reports to the Board at each regular Board 
meeting which indicate whether the Fund is meeting its objectives as described in the Policy 
& Procedures. In addition, the General Consultant will provide a “Performance Scorecard” 
at each Board meeting based on the prior quarter-end investment performance intended to 
assess the overall effectiveness of the Fund in terms of its objectives as outlined above in 
Section II.C. Reporting on measures of Investment Performance and Investment Efficiency 
will be distilled into the equivalent of “percentile rankings” through comparisons with peers 
(i.e., institutional investment plans) and through the computation of statistical “Z-scores” 
against investment return and variability targets. The overall percentile ranking and 
comparative performance of the Fund will be assessed and reported across multiple 
timeframes including, as the simple average of its returns in comparison with long-term (5+ 
year) inflation-adjusted actuarial, medium-term (3-year) peer group, and short-term (1-
year) index benchmarks. 

  

 The Board looks to its General Consultant as the primary source of quantitative evaluation 
of the performance of the Fund and its investment managers. As promptly as possible after 
the close of each calendar quarter, the Consultant shall submit a report to the Board, 
Executive Director and CIO analyzing the performance of the Fund, its asset classes and 
investment programs, including both internally and externally assets. The report shall 
include a comparison of total Fund performance with the Board's long-term investment 
goal, an analysis of the returns of each asset class as measured against established 
benchmarks for each class; and an analysis of the returns of each manager or relevant 
groupings of managers as measured against relevant benchmarks. The Consultant's report 
shall also address any special concerns or observations the Consultant concludes should be 
brought to the attention of the Board, Executive Director and CIO. 

  

 Each asset class is associated with a benchmark that describes in general terms the 
opportunity set and return characteristics associated with the asset class. For certain private 
or more complex asset classes, the benchmark serves as a proxy for expected returns rather 
than an approximation of the actual investments that will characterize that component of 
the portfolio. Those benchmarks, along with the allocation ranges, for each asset class are 
also referred to as Policy Benchmarks. Note that the investment returns and benchmarks for 
Private Equity & Special Opportunities, Real Estate, and Infrastructure & Private Income are 
lagged by 1-quarter for performance calculation purposes, as is common practice among 
large complex investment plans in the United States and internationally. 

Formatted: Heading 4,USING A,B,C

Commented [PC7]: This sentence needs modification? 

Commented [PC8]: Since we are doing away with the 
scorecard, Marcus will need to modify this sentence. 

326



Page 11 of 77 
 

 The long-term investment objectives for the Fund should target a return of CPI+5% or better 
into the future. This CPI+5% or better target should be achieved through a combination of 
(1) strategic asset allocation among the asset classes, (2) tactical asset allocation, which 
overweights or underweights specific assets classes on a shorter-term basis due to 
perceived valuational or risk imbalances between the asset classes, and (3) value-added 
contributions within each asset class. The following table reflects the long-term return 
objectives and short-term benchmarks for each of the asset classes based upon the 
prevailing strategic asset allocation and value-added contributions from both tactical asset 
allocation and asset class portfolio management: 

 Table 2 

327



Page 12 of 77 
 

  
 Table 3 

328



Page 13 of 77 
 

  
 In addition, after the conclusion of each fiscal year, the General Consultant will provide an 

asset class breakdown of the Performance Scorecard (in addition to the total Fund 
Performance Scorecard which will be reported quarterly). Rather than utilizing equal 
weightings among long-term, medium-term, and short-term objectives, however, the asset 
class Performance Scorecards will reflect the greater relevance of short-term (40% weight) 
and medium-term peer group (40% weighting) objectives versus the long-term inflation-
adjusted actuarial (20% weighting) objective for Public Equity, Asset Allocation, and Fixed 
Income Plus asset classes. By contrast, private markets asset classes including Private Equity 
& Special Opportunities, Real Estate, Infrastructure & Private Income will emphasize the 
greater importance of medium term peer group (40% weighting) and long-term inflation-
adjusted actuarial (40%) objectives versus the short-term index benchmark (20% weighting) 
objective. 

 Peer group comparisons will generally be made on a 3-year (medium-term) basis for 
assessing the effectiveness of the Fund and its asset classes. Fund peers will include large US 
Public Funds as well as other plans deemed comparable by the General Consultant, Staff, 
and Board. To the extent that peer comparisons may not be directly available for specific 
asset class comparisons, the General Consultant should select the closest available proxy for 
comparison and percentile ranking purposes (including the use of statistical Z-scores when 
appropriate). The Fund’s Performance Benchmark (comprised of both publicly-traded and 
private-market indexes, see Table 23) will be used as a proxy for the Peer Group 
comparisons on an ongoing basis. 

329



Page 14 of 77 
 

 Index comparisons are to be utilized for assessing the short-term (1-year) performance of 
the Fund. Such comparisons should include a Passive Index Benchmark (comprised of 
investable publicly traded securities, reflected as 60% MSCI ACWI IMI (BB ID: M1WDIM), 
20% BB US Agg (BB ID: LBUSTRUU), 10% BB US TIPS (BB ID: LBUTTRUU), and 10% FTSE 
EPRA/NAREIT Developed Rental (BB ID: TENGRU).  

  

F. Total Fund Portfolio Implementation, Restrictions, Delegations 

The structure of the Fund is organized through asset classes, each with a distinctive investment 
objective (growth or income) as well as liquidity profile (tradable or illiquid), plus an allocation to a 
portfolio named “Asset Allocation,” designed to: (1) manage Fund liquidity, and (2) manage Fund 
risk through rebalancing and tactical hedging. APFC Staff directs all investment activities through a 
delegation from the Board to the Executive Director as described in the Board’s Bylaws. 
Delegations of Investment Authority will thus be conferred from the Board to the Executive 
Director (ED) and then by extension to specific investment staff in order to effect investment 
transactions. The Executive Director will also convene a Public Markets Investment Committee and 
a Private Markets Investment Committee on a regular and as needed basis in order to discuss and 
deliberate on decisions requiring the authorization of ED from the Policy & Procedures or 
Investment Guidelines. Investment decisions resulting from those meetings will generally be 
affirmed by email to and from the ED. 
 

G.F. Relationship of the Investment Policy & Procedures  with Regulations, and Investment 
Guidelines and Risk Appetite 

• As required by Alaska Statute 37.13.120(a), the Board has adopted rRegulations specifically 
designating the types of investments in whichthat Fund assets can be invested in. All 
investments authorized by theis Policy & Procedures shall be limited to those authorized 
investments authorized and in the manner authorizedprescribed  by this Policye Board’s 
investment regulations, 15 AAC 137.010 – 15 AAC 137.990 and Alaska Statute 37.13.120. 
Recommended changes to these regulations must be approved by the Board and adopted 
in conformity with the process provided in Alaska Statute 37.13.206. 

 
 The Investment Guidelines, attached as Appendix A, supplement the Investment Policy 

Statement  by providing operational guidelines for APFC’s internally managed investment 
programs. The The Chief Investment Officer, with the consent of the Executive Director 
may update this Appendie Investment guidelinesx from time-to-time; updates will be 
provided to the Board at its next regularly scheduled meeting.reflect the day-to-day 
operational expectations, restrictions and requirements needed to ensure effective 
management of Fund assets consistent with the regulations and theis Policy & Procedures. 
With the written approval of the Executive Director, the Investment Guidelines may be 
amended. Amended Investment Guidelines will be provided and described to the Board at 
its next regular meeting.  

Commented [PC9]: I think this section is no longer 
needed but I left it in in case it is viewed as a measure worth 
keeping. 

Formatted: Normal

Formatted: Normal

330



Page 15 of 77 
 

 
risk P.  Formatted: Title,USING UNDER A...i ii iii with text, Space

After:  0 pt

331



Page 16 of 77 
 

III PUBLIC MARKETS 
A. Public Equity 

i. Objective 

The objective of the Public Equity portfolio is to invest in publicly traded securities  
authorized in 15 AAC 137.440, to meet or exceed the performance of a well-diversified 
pool of global equities,  embodied in the MSCI ACWI IMI Index, while staying within 
predefined risk conmaintaining risk similar to that of the benchmarkstraints.  Performance 
of this portfolio will be evaluated quarterly, but success in achieving the long-term 
objective (See Table 2) will be measured, net of all costs and fees, on a one-year, three-
year, five-year, and ten-year annualized basis.  

The above objective is achieved via both external and internal investment management 
activities with respect to security selection and allocation size. 

ii. Structure 

Consistent with performance objectives, applicable tracking error guidelines, and other 
investment restrictions described in this Policy and Investment Guidelines, the Public 
Equity portfolio may includeThe structure of the Public Equity portfolio may include a 
combination of actively and passively managed investments within prescribed tracking 
error targets relative to the ACWI IMI benchmark: 

• Actively (and quasi-passively) managed equity strategies that strive to enhance the 
after-fee total returns of athe portfolio relative to its assigned benchmark; and 

• Passively managed equity strategies that strive to replicate, in a cost- efficient manner, 
the returns of a benchmark index. 

iii. Authorized Investments Strategy 

The Public Equity portfolioportfolio will be primarily managed by a mix of external active 
managers, external passive managers and internal  selected in accordance with the 
requirements of this Policy.managers.  In the case of active external managers, Eeach 
manager, through an investment manager agreement (“IMA”), will be directed to focus on 
a subset of the global equity market in which the manager has demonstrated an ability to 
provide risk-adjusted, after-fee returns in excess of its respective benchmark. Each external 
manager’s IMA will also detail its strategy, performance objectives, permitted investments 
and restrictions.  The CIO and ED may also approve the internal management of a portion 
of the Public Equity portfolio by APFC Staff.  But, iIn place of an IMA, the CIO and ED will 
require the approval of and adherence to Iinvestment Gguidelines that cover the relevant 
aspects of the portion of the Public Equity portfolio internally managed by APFC Staff.   The 
Director of Public Equity will have primary responsibility in for executing the portfolio’s 
investment strategy and plans., whether external or internal, are authorized to invest in 
the following: 

Formatted: Normal,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

332



Page 17 of 77 
 

• All publicly traded equity securities described in 15 AAC 137.440(1), including 
equity-oriented funds, or equity related securities, and securities issued in underwritten 
initial public offerings (“IPOs”); 

• Equity derivatives as described in 15 AAC 440(2), including forwards, futures, 
options, swaps, collateralized securities, and structure notes; and 

• Other investment as permitted in the APFC Regulations, including commingled 
investment funds as described in 15 AAC 137.470. 

iv. Rebalancing and Mandate Modification 

The Director of Public Equity may, with the approval of the CIO: 

• The Director of Public Equity may, with the approval of the CIO and ED, rebalance 
assets to, from, or between individual Public Equity portfolios With the approval of the 
Chief Investment Officer and the Executive Director, aAdd, terminate, or rebalance 
Public Equity portfolio mandates and allocations for external investment managers; and 

• Rebalance assets to, from, or between individual Public Equity portfoliosInitiating or 
terminating external manager mandates requires the consent of CIO and Executive 
Director and must conform to Section VIII of this Policy (Public Markets External 
Manager Selection) section VII of policy at his/her own discretion within the Investment 
Guidelines. 

 
 

v. DiversificationRisk Limits and Pportfolio Rrestrictions 

The Public Equity portfolio shall be appropriately diversified and exhibit portfolio risk 
characteristics similar to that of the benchmark.  The Chief Risk OfficerDirector of Public 
Equity is responsible for managing aggregatethe various risks entailedincurred risk 
exposures and the following limitations will apply to the Public Equity portfolioadhering to 
the Investment Policy.  In addition to general pPolicy aspects requirements, the following 
asset class specificwill  restrictions apply to this portfolio: 
  

• Risk Limits as detailed in Table-3, Ssection VII 

• Short selling is prohibited by an internal or external manager of assets in this portfolio, 
unless authorized by the CIO and Chief Risk Officer (“CRO”). 

• All derivatives in this portfolio must comply with Section VI (Authorized Uuse of 
Derivatives) of this Policy. 

• All externally managed mandates must comply with Ssection VIII (External Manager 
Selection) of this Policy. 

 Tracking error of the overall Public Equity portfolio shall not exceed 350 basis points; 

Formatted: No Spacing,USING UNDER i TEXT

Formatted: Normal

Formatted: Heading 5,USING i ii iii

Formatted: Quote,USING UNDER i BULLET

Formatted: Title,USING UNDER A...i ii iii with text

333



Page 18 of 77 
 

 Allocations to an external investment managers to actively manages assets in this portfolio 
may not exceed 5% of the total Public Equity allocation; 

 Without CIO approval, an external investment manager may not hold cash related to a 
Public Equity allocation in excess of 5% of the account’s net asset value; 

 Without CIO approval, the Fund may not own more than 5% of the total outstanding shares 
of a public company; 

 Without CIO approval, short selling is prohibited by an internal or external manager of 
assets in the Public Equity portfolio; and 

 All derivatives in the Public Equity portfolio must comply with the Derivatives section of 
this Policy   

•  
B. Fixed Income Plus 

i.vi. Objective 

The objective of the Fixed Income Plus portfolio is intended to provide meaningful income-
oriented investment returns and diversify the risks of the Fund’s equity and other growth-
oriented programs. This portfolio should provide steady, low volatility returns in normal 
market conditions and act as a cushion when more volatile asset classes experience a 
market drop. The liquidity of this portfolio will also allow it to serve as a funding source for 
other, less liquid asset classes, and to meet annual Fund liabilities. The Fixed Income Plus 
portfolio invests in publicly traded and other liquid income-oriented investments 
authorized in 15 AAC 137.430, intended to meet or exceed the performance of investment 
the return of an Fixed Income index cComposite bBenchmark comprised of liquid, while 
staying within predefined risk constraints.  Performance of this portfolio will be evaluated 
quarterly, but success in achieving the long-term objective (See Table 2) will be measured, 
net of all costs and fees on a one-year, three-year, five-year, and ten-year annualized basis. 

 income-producing assets. 

ii.vii. Structure 

Consistent with performance objectives, and applicable tracking error guidelines, and other 
investment restrictions described in this Policy and Investment Guidelines, the structure of 
the Fixed Income Plus portfolio may include: 

• Actively (and quasi-passively) managed income producing strategies that strive to 
enhance the after-fee total returns of  thea Fixed Income portfolio relative to its 
assigned benchmark; and 

• Passively managed income producing strategies that strive to replicate, in a cost- 
efficient manner, the returns of the benchmark index. 

iii.viii. Authorized Investment StrategyInvestments 

The Fixed Income Plus portfolio will primarily be implemented by the CIO’s internal APFC 
Staff, which may be supplemented by hiring external investment managers to manage 

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.05"

Formatted: Normal

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Commented [MV10]: are these not publicly traded? 

Formatted: Font: Bold

334



Page 19 of 77 
 

portions of the Fixed Income portfolio whichthat are not appropriate for internal 
management by APFC.  The CIO will oversee the internal management of all fixed income 
assets and will require the approval of and adherence to investment guidelines that cover 
the portions of the Fixed Income portfolio that are internally managed.  Regarding the fixed 
income assets that are externally managed, each external manager, through an IMA, will 
be directed to focus on a subset of the Fixed Income portfolio in which the manager has 
demonstrated an ability to (if it is an active external manager) manage in relation to its 
respective benchmark. Each external manager’s IMA will also detail its strategy, 
performance objectives, permitted investments and restrictions.  The Director of Fixed 
Income will have primary responsibility in executing the portfolio’s investment strategy and 
plans.   whether external or internal, is authorized to invest in the following: 

• All fixed-income investments as described in 15 AAC 137.430, including US and 
International fixed-income securities including those issued in the Emerging Markets, with 
investment grade, non-investment grade (high yield) or implied ratings; 

• Fixed-income derivatives as described in 15 AAC 137.430(a)(19), including forwards, 
futures, options, swaps, collateralized securities, structured notes, and credit default 
swaps; 

• Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITs) and real estate investment trust exchange 
traded funds as described in 15 AAC 137.450(a)(4); 

• Exchange traded securities, commingled funds, and other tradable investments 
related to liquid infrastructure investments; and 

• Other investment as permitted in the APFC Regulations. 

iv.ix. Rebalancing and Mandate Modification 

• The Director of Fixed Income may, with the approval of the ED and CIO, rebalance 
assets to, from, or between individual Public Equity portfolios  

 Initiating or terminating external manager mandates requires the consent the CIO and 
ED and CIO,r and must conform to Manager Selection seSection VIII of this pPolicy 
(Public Markets External Manager Selection). 

  The Director of Fixed Income Plus may, with the approval of the CIO: 

• With the approval of the Chief Investment Officer and Executive Director hireAdd, 
terminate, approve or modify any external manager mandate within the Fixed-Income 
Plus;portfolio; and 

 Rebalance assets to, from or between individual Fixed Income portfoliosexternal 
managers at his/her discretion within the Investment Guidelines. 

•  

Formatted: No Spacing,USING UNDER i TEXT

Formatted: Quote,USING UNDER i BULLET

Formatted: Quote,USING UNDER i BULLET

335



Page 20 of 77 
 

x. Diversification and portfolio restrictionsRisk Limits and Portfolio Restrictions 

The Director of Fixed Income is responsible for managing the various risks entailedincurred 
and adhering to tinvestment This pPolicy.  In addition to general Ppolicy aspects 
requirements, the following assect class specific restrictions will apply to this portfolio: 

• Risk Limits as detailed in Table-3, Ssection VII. 

• Short selling is prohibited by an internal or external manager of assets in this portfolio, 
unless authorized by the CIO and CRO. 

• All derivatives in this portfolio must comply with Ssection VI (Authorized use of 
Derivatives) of this Policy. 

• All externally managed mandates must comply with Ssection VIII (Public Markets 
External Manager Selection) of this Policy. 

 
The Fixed Income portfolio shall be appropriately diversified and exhibit portfolio risk 
characteristics similar to that of the benchmark.  The Chief Risk Officer is responsible for 
managing aggregate risk exposures and the following limitations will apply to the Fixed 
Income portfolio: 
Tracking error of the overall Fixed Income portfolio shall not exceed 350 basis points; 
Allocations to an external investment managers to actively manages assets in this portfolio 
may not exceed 5% of the total Fixed Income allocation; 
The average weighted effective duration of any internally managed portfolio will not vary 
from that of the benchmark by more +/- 20%; 
Internally managed Fixed Income portfolios may not hold more than 10% of its net asset 
value in securities rated below investment grade; 
Without CIO approval, no more than 20% of the market value of the overall Fixed Income 
portfolio may be invested in Private Placements or Rule 144A securities; 
Without CIO approval, no more than 10% of the market value of the Fixed Income portfolio 
may be invested in securities denominated in currencies other than U.S. Dollar; and 
All derivatives in the Fixed Income portfolio must comply with the Derivatives section of 
this Policy   
•  

C. Risk Parity Asset Allocation 

i.xi. Objectives 

The objectives of the Risk Parity portfolio  is to deliver long-term returns that meet or 
exceed the performance of a 60% stock/40% bond portfolio through managers which seek 
to generate returns that are less correlated to global public markets (i.e. less volatility) 
through allocation of risk rather than allocation of capital. Performance of this portfolio will 
be evaluated quarterly against the Hedge Fund Research HFR 12% Vol Institutional Index, 
but success in achieving the long-term objective (See Table 2) will be measured, net of all 
costs and fees on a one-year, three-year, five-year, and ten-year annualized basis.Asset 
Allocation portfolio are to: (1) provide liquidity management for the Fund, (2) manage 

Formatted: Quote,USING UNDER i BULLET

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Normal

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

336



Page 21 of 77 
 

foreign currency risks, (3) avoid “cash drag” by maintaining synthetic public equity and 
fixed-income exposure to surplus portfolio cash, (4) manage allocation transfers between 
asset classes, and (5) manage a liquid Risk Parity portfolio with an attractive risk/return 
profile.  

ii.xii. Structure and Authorized Investments Strategy 

The Risk Parity portfolio will be managed by external managers, selected in accordance 
with the requirements of this Policy, that provide risk-balanced exposure to multiple 
sources of excess expected return. Each manager, through an IMA  or limited liability fund, 
will detail its strategy, performance objectives, permitted investments and restrictions.  
The Director of Risk Parity will have primary responsibility in executing the portfolio’s 
investment strategy and plans.  The Asset Allocation portfolio refers to four distinct 
programs, each with specific roles for the Fund: 

 Authorized Investments 

The external managers selected to manage a portion of the Risk Parity portfolio may invest 
Fund assets in the following:  

 Futures contracts, including single-equity futures, bond futures, interest rate futures, 
commodity futures, currency futures, and futures on stock indices;  

 Treasury Inflation-Protected Securities (“TIPS”) and inflation-linked bonds;  

 Currencies; commodities; currency forwards, including developed and emerging market 
forwards and non-deliverable forwards;  

 Swaps, including swaps on equity indices, equity futures, bond indices, bond futures, 
commodity swaps, and interest rate swaps;  

 Global equities and equity-like securities;  

 Fixed income instruments, including government and corporate bonds;  

 Repurchase instruments; exchange-traded funds; other derivative products; and  

 Asset-backed securities and mortgage-backed securities.  

 

   

  

xiii. Risk Limits and Portfolio Restrictions 

The Director of Risk Parity is responsible for managing the various risks entailedincurred 
and adhering to investment this pPolicy.  In addition to general poPolicy 
aspectsrequirements, the following restrictions will apply to this portfolio: 

• Risk Limits as detailed in Table-3, Ssection VII. 

• Short selling is prohibited by an internal or external manager of assets in this portfolio, 
unless authorized by the CIO and CRO. 

Commented [MV11]: Do we want to memorialize this 
position in policy? 

Formatted: Heading 5,USING i ii iii

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 12 pt

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0.5"

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 12 pt, Not
Bold

Formatted: Add space between paragraphs of the same
style, Adjust space between Latin and Asian text, Adjust
space between Asian text and numbers

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 12 pt, Not
Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 12 pt, Not
Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 12 pt, Not
Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 12 pt, Not
Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 12 pt, Not
Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 12 pt, Not
Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 12 pt, Not
Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 12 pt, Not
Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 12 pt, Not
Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 12 pt, Not
Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 12 pt

Formatted: Heading 5,USING i ii iii

Formatted: Quote,USING UNDER i BULLET

337



Page 22 of 77 
 

• All derivatives in this portfolio must comply with Ssection VI (Authorized use of 
Derivatives) of this Policy. 

• All externally managed mandates must comply with Ssection VIII (Public Markets 
External Manager Selection) of this Policy. 

 

 Diversification and portfolio restrictions 

The Risk Parity portfolio will be appropriately diversified and exhibit portfolio risk 
characteristics similar to that of the benchmark.  The Chief Risk Officer is responsible for 
managing aggregate risk exposures and the following limitations will apply to the Risk 
Parity portfolio: 

 Allocations to Risk Parity external managers shall be limited to no more than 1% of the 
Fund at the time of investment; 

 Each external investment manager’s use of leverage should operate in a range from 100% 
to 400% and shall not exceed 500% of invested capital; 

 Without CIO approval, a Risk Parity manager cannot short an entire asset class and is 
limited to shorting individual exposures; and 

 All derivatives in the Risk Parity portfolio must comply with the Derivatives section of this 
Policy.   

Total Fund Cash 
 
 

i.  Objective 

 
The objective of the Total Fund Cash portfolio is to:  
Be a source of funds available to meet the Fund’s operational needs, including capital calls 
and appropriations from the Earnings Reserve Account to the State’s general fund; and 
 Allocate a small portion of the Fund to an asset class that is nearly risk-free and 
experiences extremely low volatility generate the highest return possible while also 
providing a source of available funds to meet the Fund’s operational needs, including 
capital calls and appropriations from the Earnings Reserve Account to the State’s general 
fund and  allocate small portion of.   Fund to an asset class that is nearly risk-free and 
experiences extremely low volatility 
Performance of this portfolio will be evaluated quarterly and will be measured against the 
risk and after-fee return of the 90 Day Treasury Bills Index, but success in achieving the 
long-term objective (See Table 2) will be measured, net of all costs and fees on a one-year, 
three-year, five-year, and ten-year annualized basisFederal Reserve US Treasury Constant 
Maturity 1-Month Index.  
 

Formatted: Title,USING UNDER A...i ii iii with text

Commented [PC12]: Do we want to require each of these 
to be limited liability vehicles so we don;t have to worry 
about derivative expsoures in our name? 

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Normal

Formatted: Heading 5,USING i ii iii, Numbered + Level:
1 + Numbering Style: i, ii, iii, … + Start at: 1 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.5" + Indent at:  1"

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 12 pt, Bold

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Bold

338



Page 23 of 77 
 

ii. Investment Strategy 

The Total Fund Cash portfolio will be internally managed at the direction of the CIO.  
The size and investment profile of this portfolio may fluctuate month-to-month to 
prepare for and accommodate the Fund’s liquidity requirements.   The CIO will have 
primary responsibility in executing theis portfolio’s investment strategy. and plans 
   

iii. Authorized Investments 

The CIO may invest this portfolio in cash and the following cash equivalents:  
 

 Liquidity Program—Comprised of cash, and  cash equivalents, and other liquid 
investment balances, including: 

o  Short-Term Investment Pools (STIP);US treasuries with a maximum final 
maturity of 24 months; 

• Investment Grade US corporate bonds with a maximum final maturity of 24 months; 

o Reverse A vehicle available through the APFC Custodian;Repurchase 
Agreements (“Reverse Repos”), as authorized by 15 AAC 137.430(12); 

 Tri-Party Repurchase Agreements; or 
o An SSEC registered money market investment funds;lines of credit and letters of 

credit, this program is intended to meet the Fund’s operational needs including 
capital calls and appropriations from the earnings reserve account to the State’s 
general fund. ; and 

• Other cash equivalents approved by the CRO and ED; and. 

 Gold-backed exchange traded funds such as authorized by15 AAC 137.460. 

At any point, 80% of the portfolio should be invested in instruments with a final maturity 
not exceeding 181 days. 

iv. Risk Limits and Portfolio Restrictions 

The CIO and APFC Staff designated by the CIO is responsible for managing the various risks 
entailedincurred and adhering to investment this pPolicy.  In addition to general pPolicy 
aspectsrequirements, the following specific restrictions will apply to this portfolio: 

• Risk Limits as detailed in Table-3, Ssection VII. 
 At any point, 80% of the portfolio should be invested in instruments with a final 

maturity not exceeding 181 days. 

•  

• Gold-backed exchange traded funds shall not exceed 50% of the Total Fund Cash 
portfolio at any time. 

• Short selling is prohibited by an internal or external manager of assets in this portfolio, 
unless authorized by the CIO and CRO. 

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.75"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", First line:  0"

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.75"

Formatted: Quote,USING UNDER i BULLET

Formatted: List Paragraph,USING UNDER A TEXT

Formatted: Quote,USING UNDER i BULLET, Bulleted +
Level: 2 + Aligned at:  1" + Indent at:  1.25"

Formatted: Normal

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Quote,USING UNDER i BULLET

339



Page 24 of 77 
 

• All derivatives in this portfolio must comply with Ssection VI (Authorized use of 
Derivatives) of this Policy. 

 All externally managed mandates must comply with section VIII (External Manager 
Selection) of this Policy. 

Short duration U.S. dollar denominated bonds.  
 
Securities Lending 

v. Authorized Investments 

• The This program may also utilize stock and bond-related securities used for 
transitional purposes;  

• Cash Overlay Program—Comprised of exchange-traded and over-the-counter 
derivatives managed by external investment managers to provide efficient exposure to public 
equity and fixed-income markets, thereby reducing “cash drag” that is a natural side effect of 
holding cash for liquidity management purposes; 

• Currency Overlay Program—Comprised of currency-related derivatives, as 
described in 15 AAC 137.480, managed by external investment managers, this program seeks 
to add value and manage the risks associated with the Fund’s exposure to foreign currencies; 
and 

• Risk Parity Program—Designed to deliver long-term returns of CPI+5% or better 
through external managers which seek to generate returns that are less correlated to global 
public markets through allocation of risk (i.e. volatility) rather than allocation of capital. Private 
market investments are generally excluded from Risk Parity funds. Because Risk Parity 
investments are diversifying, they represent a small share of the Fund’s risk while generating a 
proportionately larger share of the Fund’s returns. To avoid investment manager 
concentration risk, allocations to Risk Parity external managers shall be limited to no more 
than 1% of the Fund at the time of investment. Risk Parity investments are generally liquid and 
highly scalable. Risk Parity Fund investments will be consummated following a search process 
and the recommendation of APFC’s General Consultant. 

D. Securities Lending 
The Executive Director is authorized to entermay execute  into an securities lending  
agreement with the Fund’s custodian or other lending agent to lend domestic and non-
domestic public equity and debtfixed income securities from the Fund’s portfolio directly 
to borrowers for a fee in accordance with 15 AAC 137.510 and the following guidelines: 

• The Fund’s custodian or lending agent shall extend without reservation or 
qualification complete agree to indemnificationy the Fund against against any direct 
loss from: (1) a borrower default,; (2) the reinvestment of cash collateral,; and (3) 
the failure to comply with the terms and conditions of the lending agreements; 

•  
 As described in 15 AAC 137.510, collateral shall be required at the following levels: 

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Normal

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.25", First line:  0.25",
Don't adjust space between Latin and Asian text, Don't
adjust space between Asian text and numbers

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.25", First line:  0.25"

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Intense Quote,USING UNDER I and A
BULLET,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Intense Quote,USING UNDER I and A
BULLET

340



Page 25 of 77 
 

 a Mminimum of 102% of the market value of the loaned securities which are 
denominated in the same currency as the collateral provided by the borrower; and 

•  
 Collateral shall be required at a Mminimum of 105% of the market value of the 

loaned securities which are denominated in a currency other than the collateral 
provided by the borrower; 

•  
 Collateral and loaned securities shall be marked -to -market daily; and 
•  
 The investment of cash collateral posted by borrowers shall be restricted to those 

investment-grade securities permissible under the provisions of AS 37.13.120, and 
15 AAC 137, and the Investment Guidelines; and; unless the Executive Director 
elects to have cash collateral released to the Fund to meet the Fund’s liquidity 
needs rather than having it invested by the Custodian.  

 The Corporation shall periodically review investments of cash collateral for 
compliance with the provisions of AS 37.13.120, 15 AAC 137, and the Investment 
Guidelines. 

 At the discretion of the Executive Director, the Corporation may elect to have cash 
collateral released to the Corporation to meet liquidity needs rather than having it 
invested by the Custodian or lending agent. 

  
  

Formatted: Intense Quote,USING UNDER I and A
BULLET, Space After:  0 pt

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto

341



Page 26 of 77 
 

IV ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENTS 
A. Private Equity & Special Opportunities 

i.vi. Objectives 

The objective of the Private Equity & Special Opportunities (“PESO”) portfolio is to 
invest in illiquid growth-oriented assets authorized inby 15 AAC 137.460 that are 
expected to  generate diversify and enhance the overall expected risk-adjusted, after-
fee investment return of the Fund s that are superior to the Public Equity 
portfolio.through investments inthe identification, purchase, and sales of relatively 
illiquid growth-oriented investments.   Performance of the this portfolio will be 
evaluated quarterly, in aggregate and based upon the vintage year, against the  
Cambridge PE (Lagged), but success in achieving the long-term objective (See Table 2), 
will be measured, net of all costs, fees, and carry, on a one-year, three-year, five-year, 
and ten-year annualized basis. 

vii. Investment Strategy 

PESO Iinvestment strategies include: venture capital, growth equity, leveraged buyouts, 
special situationsopportunities, and distressed debt. PESO portfolio investments 
Opportunities are will be executed accessed both through long-term capital 
commitments to limited liability funds managed by external investment managers, and 
through co-investments alongside existing external managers, and direct investments 
into operating companies.  The portfolio will seek to benefit from the:  

• long-term ownership of businesses and assets; 

• application of specialized skills;  

• allocation of capital into disrupted markets; and  

• potential incremental return premium connected with the illiquidity of targeted 
investments.  

Private Equity: Private equity assets are typically characterized by long investment 
horizons and limited liquidity but bring to the Fund increased diversification and the 
potential for risk-adjusted returns that exceed those of publicly-listed securities. In 
constructing a diversified private equity portfolio, Staff will consider the following 
characteristics: strategy, geography, industry, investment size, leverage, investment 
structure, competitive landscape, market position, and vintage year. 

Special Opportunities: Technological innovation and market volatility periodically 
create attractive investment opportunities that do not fit precisely into standard, 
predetermined categories. These opportunities may be caused by temporary market 
dislocations, evolving social or economic trends, or a changing regulatory environment. 
APFC seeks to be positioned to capture such opportunities for the benefit of the Fund. 

Portfolio performance will be evaluated using:  

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.75"

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Commented [VS13]: is this accurate? does it make sense 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.75"

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

342



Page 27 of 77 
 

• a comparison of vintage year performance against the Cambridge Private Equity 
Index benchmark; and  

• a comparison of long-term performance over five- and ten-year rolling periods to 
public equity benchmarks plus a premium of 200 basis points; 

• and CPI+7.5%. 

Annually, APFC Staff will provide to the  for Board approval  a pacing and investment 
plan for Board approval that reflects then current PESO exposures, assumptions, and 
outlook.  The Deputy CIO-Private Markets & Alternatives will have primary 
responsibility in executing the PESO portfolio’s investment strategy and plans.  
Additionally,T the purchase or sale of individual private equity or special opportunities 
investments or fund investments with a single manager that exceed 1% of the Fund 
shall be approved Board. 

 

viii. Diversification and portfolio restrictions 

In constructing a diversified PESO portfolio, APFC Staff will consider the following 
characteristics: strategy, geography, industry, manager, investment size, leverage, 
vintage year, and market position.  The Deputy CIO-Private Markets & Alternatives is 
responsible for managing the portfolio risks and adhering to investmentthis pPolicy.  In 
constructing a  diversified PESO portfolio, APFC Staff will consider the following 
thecharacteristics including the following characteristics: strategy, geography, industry, 
manager, investment size, leverage, vintage year, and market position.  In addition to 
general pPolicy aspectsrequirements, the following asset class specific restrictions  will 
apply to this portfolio: 

o Risk Limits as detailed in Table-3, Ssection VII. 

• All derivatives in this portfolio must comply with section VI (Authorized use of Derivatives) 
of this Policy. 

 Unless otherwise approved by the Board, the Chief Risk Officer is responsible for managing 
aggregate risk exposures and the following limitations will apply: 

• The PESO portfolio shall be invested within the following strategy diversification ranges; 

 Venture Capital - 5% to 45%; 
 Buyouts/Acquisition – 4025% to 70%; 
 Specialized Funds/Investments – 0% to 50%;   

• No more than 40% of the Peso Portfolio shall be invested Internationally, as measured by 
the exposure of the underlying investments rather than the jurisdiction of the investment 
vehicle; 

• No more than 20% of the PESO Portfolio shall be invested with a single Investment 
Manager/General Partner. 

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.75"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.75"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.75"

Formatted

Formatted: List Paragraph,USING UNDER A TEXT,
Indent: Left:  0"

Formatted: Quote,USING UNDER i BULLET, Bulleted +
Level: 3 + Aligned at:  1.5" + Indent at:  1.75"

Formatted: List Paragraph,USING UNDER A TEXT

343



Page 28 of 77 
 

• No more than 20% of the PESO Portfolio shall be invested in publicly traded securities; and 

• Following the public listing of any shares of a portfolio company held by an APFC controlled 
investment vehicle, such shares shall be, consistent with SEC regulations, either liquidated 
consistent with SEC regulations within a reasonable period of time, not to exceed eighteen 
months, or written approval to continue holding such public securities must be received 
from the ED on a quarterly basis. 

No more than 20% of the PESO Portfolio shall be invested in a single industry sector; 
  No more than 20% of the PESO Portfolio shall be invested with a single Investment 

Manager/General Partner; 
 No more than 20% of the PESO portfolio will be in a single operating company; 
 Fund level leverage shall not exceed 25%; 
 No more than 10% of the PESO Portfolio will be invested in a single vintage year; 
 No more than 10% of the PESO Portfolio shall be invested in publicly traded securities; and 
 Following the public listing of any directly held shares of portfolio company shall be, consistent 

with SEC regulations, either liquidated within a reasonable period of time, not to exceed one-year, 
or transferred to the Public Equity portfolio;      
 

ii. Structure 

Investment strategies include venture capital, growth equity, leveraged buyouts, special situations, 
and distressed debt. Opportunities are accessed both through long-term commitments to funds 
managed by external investment managers and through co-investments and direct investments 
into operating companies.  

The purchase or sale of individual private equity or special opportunities investments or fund 
investments with a single manager that exceed 1% of the Fund shall be approved Board. In 
addition, as described in 15 AAC 137.460(b), investments into new externally-managed funds may 
be consummated following the advice and recommendation of a qualified, independent 
consultant. A commitment to successor funds to ones previously invested in by APFC shall also be 
deemed consistent with regulation. Co-investments and direct investments shall only be 
consummated pursuant to the advice and recommendation of a qualified, independent 
consultant. That said, a co-investment alongside an existing discretionary manager or a 
commitment to subsequent funds managed by an existing discretionary manager, shall generally 
be considered as having met the requirements of 15 AAC 137.460(b). 

B.G. Real Estate, Infrastructure, and Private Income 

i.ix. Objective 

The long-term objective of the Real Estate, Infrastructure & Private Income Portfo  
Portfolio is to generate a risk-adjusted return between the expected return for public 
equity and fixed income that is comprised of an attractive level of current income and 
capital appreciation, while maintaining a prudentcontributing to diversification of the 
Fund assets.  Performance of the Real Estate portfolio will be evaluated quarterly 
against a custom benchmark comprised of 85% the NCREIF Property Benchmark 

Formatted: Intense Quote,USING UNDER I and A
BULLET

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0"

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

344



Page 29 of 77 
 

(Lagged) and 15% MSCI US REIT Index, but success in achieving the long-term 
objective, will be measured, net of all costs, fees, and carry, on a one-year, three-year, 
five-year, and ten-year annualized basis. 

 

x. Investment Strategy 

Real Estate investments, as authorized in 15 AAC 137.450, shall primarily target (i) 
directly-held income producing, core real estate in the United States and globally, (ii) 
directly-held build-to-core or other non-core properties, (iii) Equity and debt funds, 
including publicly traded funds (e.g. REITs), that invest predominantly in real estate 
strategies (e.g. core, core-plus, value-added, and opportunistic), (iv) publicly traded 
funds (e.g. ETFs or Index), or securities (e.g. REITs, CMBS, or other structured product), 
where the underlying investments consist of real estate, (v) Private funds, or securities 
(e.g., REITs, CMBS, or other structured product), where the underlying investments 
consist of real estate; and (ivi) co-investments alongside an existing Real Estate 
manager. The purchase or sale of individual investments or fund investments with a 
single manager in any of the four programs that exceed 1% of the Fund shall be 
approved Board.  Annually, APFC Staff shall prepare for Board approval a real estate 
tactical plan, which details the status of the portfolio and identifies APFC Staff’s 
expectations for the portfolio toward meeting the objectives of the investment 
strategy.The Director of Real Estate will have primary responsibility in executing the 
portfolio’s investment strategy and plans.   

 

xi. Diversification and portfolio restrictions 

The Director of Real Estate is responsible for managing the various risks 
entailedincurred and adhering to thisinvestment  pPolicy.  In constructing a  diversified 
Real Estate portfolio, APFC Staff will consider the following characteristics: investment 
type, property type, geography, manager, and leverage.  In addition to general pPolicy 
aspectsrequirements, the following will apply to this portfolio: 

o Risk Limits as detailed in Table-3, Ssection VII. 

• All derivatives in this portfolio must comply with section VI (Authorized use of Derivatives) 
of this Policy. 

• The directly-held portion of the Real Estate portfolio shall be invested within the following 
diversification ranges: 

• No more than 60% of the Real Estate portfolio shall be invested in “non-core” real estate 
(value-add and opportunistic); 

• The directly-held portion of the Real Estate portfolio will target the following property 
types: Multifamily, Industrial, Office, Hotel, and Retail with maximum weightings for each 
property type measured against NCREIF NPI benchmark weightings.  ; eExcept for the 10% 

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Normal

Formatted: Normal

Formatted

345



Page 30 of 77 
 

carve-out for other property described in (f) of this section, maximum risk ceilings of 1.5x 
the benchmark weighting shall apply for each property type measured against the FY 2025 
target allocation for the Real Estate portfolio. 

• In recognition that APFC staff may pursue some niche property types that are not included 
in property types of the NCREIF NPI, the directly-held portion of the Real Estate portfolio 
may, with the consent of the CIO include up to 10% in property types not included in the 
NCREIF NPI. 

• No more than 35% of the Real Estate portfolio shall be invested with a single investment 
manager/general partner as measured against the FY 2025 target allocation for the Real 
Estate portfolio. 

• Leverage on investments in the directly-held portion of the Real Estate portfolio shall be 
limited by investment type as follows:Unless otherwise approved by the Board, the Chief 
Risk Officer is responsible for managing aggregate Real Estate risk exposures and the 
following limitations apply: 

• Core real estate leverage is limited to 50% of the gross asset value of the investment at the 
time of debt placement; (however, this limit can be increased to 52.5% when including 
transaction fees and expenses.) 

• Non-Core real estate leverage is limited to 65% of the gross asset value of the investment 
at the time of debt placement or 65% of the project cost on build-to-core investments; 
(however, this limit can be increased to 67.5% when including transaction fees and 
expenses); and 

• Portfolio-wide leverage is limited to 40% of the gross asset value of the directly-held Real 
Estate portfolio.  

 
 No more than 60% of the Real Estate portfolio shall be invested in “non-core” real 

estate (value-add and opportunistic); 
 To achieve diversification by property type, the Real Estate portfolio will target the 

following property types and ranges: 
 Multifamily in the range of 15% - 35%; 
 Industrial in the range of 5% - 25%; 
 Office in the range of 25% - 45%; and  
 Retail in the range of 15% - 35%;   

 No more than 30% of the Real Estate portfolio shall be invested outside of the 
United States; 

 No more than 35% of the Real Estate portfolio shall be invested with a single 
investment manager/general partner; and 

 Leverage on investments in the Real Estate portfolio shall be limited by investment 
type as follows: 

 Core real estate leverage is limited to 35% of the net asset value of the investment; and 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25"

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  1.5"

Formatted: Intense Quote,USING UNDER I and A
BULLET

Formatted: Quote,USING UNDER i BULLET

Formatted: Intense Quote,USING UNDER I and A
BULLET

Formatted: Quote,USING UNDER i BULLET

346



Page 31 of 77 
 

 Non-Core real estate leverage is limited to 60% of the net asset value of the investment 
or project cost on build-to-core investments.  

Real Assets Completion Portfolio 

 Objective 

The objective of the Real Assets Completion portfolio is to invest in publicly-traded 
securities that, on a portfolio-wide basis will provide inflation protection, current 
income, and a high degree of liquidity.  In an appreciating market for risk assets, the 
Real Asset Completion portfolio should generate a total return modestly below that of 
the Private Real Estate portfolio and in a declining market for risk assets, the portfolio 
should outperform Private Real Estate.  The Real Asset Completion portfolio will 
provide liquid exposure to assets that have a similar portfolio role to Private Real Estate 
(i.e. current yield, inflation protection, lower risk than public equities or private equity).  
As such, while the Fund’s Private Real Estate Portfolio is re-invested back to target 
exposure weight (See Table 1), this portfolio will serve to supplement the Real Estate 
portfolios current exposure.  Performance of the Real Assets Completion portfolio will 
be evaluated quarterly against the Real Assets Composite Benchmark, but success in 
achieving the long-term objective, will be measured, net of all costs, fees, and carry, on 
a one-year, three-year, five-year, and ten-year annualized basis. 

 The performance of the Real Assets Completion portfolio will be measured against the Real 
Assets Composite Benchmark and will be evaluated monthly, quarterly, annually, and over 
multi-year periods. 

  

 Structure 

 The Real Assets Completion portfolio may include: 

 Actively managed strategies, whether internally or externally managed, designed to 
outperform the benchmark for a particular component of the portfolio; 

 Exchange-traded funds (“ETF’s”) designed to provide returns similar to the benchmark for a 
particular component of the portfolio; and 

 Passively managed strategies designed to replicate, in a cost efficient manner, the returns 
of the benchmark index for  a particular component of the portfolio 

 

 Investment Strategy 

The Real Assets Completion portfolio will be managed to achieve efficient exposure to the 
underlying component betas of the portfolio.  APFC Staff will also have the flexibility to 
seek out sources of alpha in the portfolio as well.  The component sub-assets of the Real 
Assets Completion portfolio will include: 

 Gold 

Formatted: Add space between paragraphs of the same
style, Line spacing:  single,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Add space between paragraphs of the same
style, Line spacing:  single,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.25", First line:  0.25"

Formatted: Add space between paragraphs of the same
style, Line spacing:  single,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Add space between paragraphs of the same
style, Line spacing:  single,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Add space between paragraphs of the same
style, Line spacing:  single,  No bullets or numbering

347



Page 32 of 77 
 

 Treasury Inflation Protected Securities (TIP’s) 

 Publicly-traded non-investment grade syndicated bank loans (Leveraged Loans) 

 Publicly-traded global Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITs) 

 Publicly-traded global Listed Infrastructure Equities (Listed Infrastructure) 

 Publicly-traded global Natural Resources Equities (Natural Resources) 

 
 Rebalancing and Mandate Modification 

  and ED; andCIO and ED must The Deputy CIO-Public Markets may, with the 
approval of the CIO: 

 Add, terminate, or rebalance Real Asset Completion Portfolio mandates and allocations  

 Rebalance assets to, from, or between individual Real Assets Completion Portfolio 
portfolios 

 
Benchmark  

 33.3% Gold (spot Gold price as reported on Bloomberg) 

 16.7% TIP’s (Bloomberg US Treasury: US TIPS Index) 

 16.7% Leveraged Loans (S&P/LSTA U.S. Leveraged Loan 100 Index) 

 11.1% Global REIT’s (S&P Global REIT Net Index) –question out to C. Cummins on whether 
this is hedged or not… I guess my preference would be unhedged, but not a strong 
preference and probably would stick with what we have 

 11.1% Global Listed Infrastructure (S&P Global Listed Infrastructure Index) –ditto on 
hedged question 

 11.1% Global Natural Resources (S&P Global Natural Resources Index) – although a couple 
questions out to Youlian on this vs. MSCI and FTSE versions 

 
incurredthis PPrequirementsrestrictions SSSsection VIII(Public Market rSel) of t.Restrictions 

 Sebastian – I’m open to whatever you want here; I’d maybe suggest some 
tolerances like 5% or whatever for the sub-components where we’d rebalance if it 
got out of the range; the plan definitely is not to be taking market views on 
individual sub-assets to outperform, but rather to get efficient market exposure to 
these betas 

 
 
Infrastructure (and Private Credit and Income Opportunities Portfolio) 
 

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.3", Hanging:  0.25",
Add space between paragraphs of the same style, Line
spacing:  single,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.25", First line:  0.25"

Formatted: Add space between paragraphs of the same
style, Line spacing:  single, Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned
at:  0.3" + Indent at:  0.55"

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Add space between paragraphs of the same
style, Line spacing:  single, Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned
at:  0.3" + Indent at:  0.55"

Commented [VS14]: can /should we inlude this in 
another section with all other benchmarks? 

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Add space between paragraphs of the same
style, Line spacing:  single, Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned
at:  0.75" + Indent at:  1"

Formatted: Normal

Formatted: Font: Bold

348



Page 33 of 77 
 

• The Infrastructure and Private Credit and Income Opportunities portfolio will be comprised 
of two separate investment strategies in accordance with the Policy requirements below:   

 

H.  Infrastructure Portfolio 

xii. Objective 

The objective of the Infrastructure portfolio is to provide attractive risk-adjusted returns 
that have inflation-protection characteristics and exhibit low correlations with other major 
asset classes, as authorized by 15 AAC 137.460.  Performance of the Infrastructure 
portfolio will be evaluated quarterly against the [Cambridge AssociatesGlobal Private 
Infrastructure Index (Lagged)], but success in achieving the long-term objective (See Table 
2), will be measured, net of all costs, fees, and carry, on a one-year, three-year, five-year, 
and ten-year annualized basis. 

  

xiii. Investment Strategy 

Infrastructure investments involve the purchase of critical assets with high barriers to entry 
and due to the “essential services” nature of the assets often result in low elasticity of 
demand.  Infrastructure Iinvestments may include energy infrastructure, transportation, 
water infrastructure, telecommunications, social infrastructure (e.g. lotteries, student 
housing, prisons), other infrastructure (e.g. protected income stream assets, other 
interests of infrastructure issuers, infrastructure-related assets), other real assets (e.g. 
timberlands, agricultural farmlands, leasable hard assets), and any other tangible or 
intangible asset that possesses similar characteristics as those outlined in this section. 
Infrastructure investments will be executed through long-term commitments to limited 
liability funds managed by external investment managers, through co-investments 
alongside existing Infrastructure managers and direct investments into operating 
companies. Additionally, investments in publicly-traded stocks of companies whose 
business profile includes ownership of infrastructure assets (Listed Infrastructure) may be 
included in the portfolio.  Annually, APFC Staff will provide for Board approval a pacing and 
investment plan for Board approval that reflects then current exposures, assumptions, and 
outlook.  The Deputy CIO-Private Markets & Alternatives will have primary responsibility in 
executing the portfolio’s investment strategy and plans.  Annually, APFC Staff will provide 
for Board approval a pacing and investment plan that reflects then current exposures, 
assumptions, and outlook.   

xiv. Risk Limits and Portfolio Restrictions 

  

 III.  Diversification and portfolio Restrictions 

The Deputy CIO-Private Markets & Alternatives is responsible for managing the various 
risks entailedincurred and adhering to investment policy.  In constructing a diversified 

Formatted: Title,USING UNDER A...i ii iii with text

Formatted: Normal

Formatted: Heading 4,USING A,B,C

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.5"

349



Page 34 of 77 
 

Infrastructure portfolio, APFC Staff will consider the following characteristics including the 
following: drivers of underlying assets’ cash flow, industry sector, geography, manager, 
strategy, investment size, and company concentration.  In addition to general pPolicy 
aspects,requirements, the following will apply to this portfolio: 

• Risk Limits as detailed in Table-3, Ssection VII. 

• All derivatives in this portfolio must comply with Ssection VI (Authorized use of 
Derivatives) of this Policy. 

• Investments in multiple limited liability investment vehicles managed by the same 
manager are permitted., H however, combined investments with a single manager shall 
not exceed 30% of the total Private Income Infrastructure Pportfolio. 

• APFC assets invested with each manager shall not represent more than 30% of that 
manager’s AUM. 

Formatted: Quote,USING UNDER i BULLET

Formatted: Quote,USING UNDER i BULLET,  No bullets
or numbering

Formatted: Quote,USING UNDER i BULLET

350



Page 35 of 77 
 

 In constructing a diversified Infrastructure portfolio, APFC Staff will consider the following 
characteristics: manager, strategy, investment size, and company concentration.  Unless 
otherwise approved by the Board, the Chief Risk Officer is responsible for managing 
aggregate Infrastructure risk exposures and the following limitations apply: 

 At the time of investment, no single partnership commitment, individual direct investment, 
or co-investment (or a series of investment securities issued by the same operating entity or 
company) shall exceed 15% of the Infrastructure Portfolio;  

 Investments in multiple vehicles managed by the same manager are permitted. However, 
combined investments with a single manager shall not exceed 30% of the Infrastructure 
Portfolio;  

 APFC assets invested with each manager shall not represent more than 30% of that 
manager’s AUM; 

  Staff will seek to accomplish this as follows: 

• Achieve investment returns in excess of the long-term and short-term portfolio benchmarks 
listed in Section II.E, Table 2; 

• Generate a sustained, attractive level of current income judged relative to comparable 
risk/income investments available in the public markets; and 

• Construct a diversified portfolio as measured by the following attributes: asset type, 
strategy, industry, geography, vintage year, inflation sensitivity, public market sensitivity, 
and fund or asset manager. 

ii. Structure 

 APFC shall invest in the Real Estate, Infrastructure & Private Income Portfolio primarily 
through limited liability entities into (i) commingled or separately managed fund 
investments with independent fiduciaries, (ii) co-investments with independent fiduciaries, 
or (iii) direct equity interests in, or debt obligations secured by, securities or interests of real 
assets or companies. Fund investments shall primarily be made through commitments to 
drawdown funds with multi-year investment periods, followed by multi-year harvest 
periods and a defined termination date. As described in 15 AAC 137.460(b), co-investments 
shall primarily be made alongside current APFC investment managers or upon the advice of 
a qualified, independent consultant. 

iii. Authorized Investments 

 The Real Estate, Infrastructure & Private Income Portfolio will consist of four programs with 
specific goals designed to contribute to long-term objectives of the portfolio and the Fund. 
The performance of these programs will be evaluated individually against the return 
mandate of the portfolio and an asset-specific benchmark. The purchase or sale of 
individual investments or fund investments with a single manager in any of the four 
programs that exceed 1% of the Fund shall be approved Board. 

351



Page 36 of 77 
 

• Private Real Estate: Private Real Estate investments shall primarily target (i) directly-held 
income producing, core real estate in the United States and globally, (ii) directly-held build-
to-core or other non-core properties, (iii) funds that invest predominantly in real estate 
strategies (e.g. core, core-plus, value-added, and opportunistic), and (iv) co-investments 
alongside fund managers described above.  

• Private Infrastructure: Private Infrastructure investments shall primarily target long-lived 
assets and companies that exhibit contractual or inflation protection characteristics, while 
safeguarding principal. Investments may include energy infrastructure, transportation, 
water infrastructure, telecommunications, social infrastructure (e.g. lotteries, student 
housing, prisons), other infrastructure (e.g. protected income stream assets, other interests 
of infrastructure issuers, infrastructure-related assets), other real assets (e.g. timberlands, 
agricultural farmlands, leasable hard assets), and any other tangible or intangible asset that 
possesses similar characteristics as those outlined in this section.  

• Private Credit: Private Credit investments, in the context of a diversified portfolio, shall 
exhibit a high level of income and potentially provide for capital appreciation, while 
safeguarding principal. These investments shall primarily target funds that pursue one or 
more of the following strategies: direct lending, subordinated and mezzanine lending, 
distressed debt, opportunistic credit-oriented funds with flexibility to pursue illiquid and 
liquid strategies, and other private credit (e.g. special situations, asset-based lending, 
structured credit, leasing, royalties lending, ventured debt).  

• Income Opportunities: The dynamic nature of global markets, company innovation, market 
volatility, and behavioral economics often create attractive investment opportunities that 
do not fit precisely into standard, predetermined categories. These Income Opportunities, 
to the extent they are income generating in nature, shall be included in the Real Estate, 
Infrastructure & Private Income portfolio.   

I. Private Credit and Income Opportunities (Private Income Portfolio) 

xv. Objective 

The objective of the Private Credit and Income Opportunities portfolio is to provide 
attractive risk-adjusted returns that generate a high level of income and potentially provide 
for capital appreciation, while safeguarding principal, as authorized by 15 AAC 137.460.  
Performance of the Private Credit and Income Opportunities Infrastructure portfolio will be 
evaluated quarterly against the CBB US HY 2% Issuer CapCambridge Private Credit Index 
(Lagged), but success in achieving the long-term objective (See Table 2), will be measured, 
net of all costs, fees, and carry, on a one-year, three-year, five-year, and ten-year 
annualized basis. 

xvi. Investment Strategy 

Private Credit and Income Opportunities investments involve the ownership of higher 
yielding, illiquid investment debt opportunities that cover a range of risk/return profiles.    
Additionally, Income Opportunities include investments such as Timberlands, Life 

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

352



Page 37 of 77 
 

Settlements, and special situations investments that share the common characteristic of 
being private markets investments with an objective of income generation and downside 
protection, but which do not neatly fit into other portfolios.  The Private Credit portion of 
this This portfolio shall target externally managed limited liability funds,  and co-
investments, and direct investments into operating companies that target one or more of 
the following strategies: direct lending, subordinated and mezzanine lending, distressed 
debt, and opportunistic credit-oriented funds, with flexibility to pursue illiquid and liquid 
strategies.  The Income Opportunities portion of this portfolio shall include investments 
such as: timberlands, asset-based lending, structured credit, life settlements, leasing and 
royalty strategies, and special situations that share the common characteristic of being 
private markets investments with an objective of income generation and downside 
protection, but which do not neatly fit into other portfolios. tity strategiesCertain portfolios 
within Private Credit and Income Opportunities , such as the ADAC strategy described in 
Appendix A, may also include some liquid credit exposures to complement the private 
investments described above in this portfolio.  Annually, APFC Staff will provide for Board 
approval a pacing and investment plan for Board approval that reflects the current 
exposures, assumptions, and outlook.  The Deputy CIO-Private Markets & Alternatives will 
have primary responsibility in executing the portfolio’s investment strategy and plans.    

xvii. Risk Limits and Portfolio Restrictions 

The Deputy CIO-Private Markets & Alternatives is responsible for managing the various 
risks entailedincurred and adhering to investment this pPolicy.  In constructing a diversified 
Private Credit and Income Opportunities portfolio, APFC Staff will consider the following 
characteristics including the following: credit profile, geography, manager, strategy, 
investment size, and company concentration.  In addition to general policy aspects, the 
following will apply to this portfolio: 

• Risk Limits as detailed in Table-3, Ssection VII. 

• All derivatives in this portfolio must comply with Ssection VI (Authorized use of 
Derivatives) of this Policy. 

• Investments in multiple vehicles managed by the same manager are permitted., 
Hhowever, combined investments with a single manager shall not exceed 30% of the 
Private Income portfolio. 

• APFC assets invested with each manager shall not represent more than 30% of that 
manager’s AUM. 

 

 III.  Diversification and portfolio Restrictions 

In constructing a diversified Private Credit and Income Opportunities portfolio, APFC Staff 
will consider the following characteristics: manager, strategy, investment size, and 
company concentration.  Unless otherwise approved by the Board, the Chief Risk Officer is 
responsible for managing aggregate risk exposures and the following limitations apply: 

Formatted: Quote,USING UNDER i BULLET

Formatted: Normal

353



Page 38 of 77 
 

 At the time of investment, no single partnership commitment, individual direct 
investment, or co-investment (or a series of investment securities issued by the 
same operating entity or company) shall exceed 15% of the portfolio;  

 Investments in multiple vehicles managed by the same manager are permitted. 
However, combined investments with a single manager shall not exceed 30% of the 
Infrastructure portfolio;  

 APFC assets invested with each manager shall not represent more than 30% of that 
manager’s AUM; 

 

 Private Credit: Private Credit investments, in the context of a diversified portfolio, shall 
exhibit a high level of income and potentially provide for capital appreciation, while 
safeguarding principal. These investments shall primarily target funds that pursue one or 
more of the following strategies: direct lending, subordinated and mezzanine lending, 
distressed debt, opportunistic credit-oriented funds with flexibility to pursue illiquid and 
liquid strategies, and other private credit (e.g. special situations, asset-based lending, 
structured credit, leasing, royalties lending, ventured debt).  

C.J. Income Opportunities: The dynamic nature of global markets, company innovation, market 
volatility, and behavioral economics often create attractive investment opportunities that 
do not fit precisely into standard, predetermined categories. These Income Opportunities, 
to the extent they are income generating in nature, shall be included in the Real Estate, 
Infrastructure & Private Income portfolio.Absolute Return 

i.xviii. Objective 

The long-term objective for the Absolute Return pPortfolio is to deliver reasonably 
consistent and accretive returns that are largely uncorrelated with traditional, market-
driven asset classes.  Performance of the Absolute Return portfolio will be evaluated 
quarterly against the  HFRI Total HFOF Universe benchmark, but success in achieving the 
long-term objective (See Table 2), will be measured, net of all costs, fees, and carry, on a 
one-year, three-year, five-year, and ten-year annualized basis.  The long-term objective for 
this portfolio  is to generate a return similar to the total Fund with a correlation to the total 
Fund of less than fifty percent (50%), as measure over rolling 36 month periods.   

 

xix. Investment Strategy 

The Absolute Return Portfolio will invest directly into comingled limited liability funds as 
authorized by 15 AAC 137.460. The managers of these funds will invest in public or private 
securities and other financial instruments and may use leverage consistent with other 
managers of similar strategies. It is not uncommon for the legal terms  of these limited 
liability funds to have restrictions on liquidity, including redemption windows (e.g. 
monthly, quarterly, annually), notice periods (e.g. 30, 60, or 90 days), lock-ups (e.g. soft, 
hard), gates (e.g. investor-level, fund-level), and, at times, withdrawal fees. With the 
written consent of the CIO and ED, and the approval of investment guidelines,  a portion of 

Formatted: Intense Quote,USING UNDER I and A
BULLET

Formatted: Normal

Formatted: Heading 4,USING A,B,C

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Commented [MV15]: This seems to be inconsistent with 
the wording of other asset classes. 

354



Page 39 of 77 
 

the Absolute Return portfolio may be internally managed and invested in gold-backed 
exchange traded funds as authorized by 15 AAC 137.460I.  The Absolute Return Portfolio, 
whether internally or externally managed,  shall primarily target funds that include pursue 
one or more of the following investment strategies:, with  no fund exceeding 10% of the 
Absolute Return Portfolio size as measured at the time of investment without Board 
approval: 

• Relative Value, including equity market neutral, fixed income arbitrage, and convertible 
arbitrage; 

• Event-Driven, including merger arbitrage, distressed securities/discounted bank debt, 
and special situations; and 

• Directional/Tactical/Opportunistic, including long-short equity, managed futures, and 
global macro; ando.  

 Commodities, including gold-backed exchange traded funds 
 
 The Deputy CIO-Private Markets & Alternatives will have primary responsibility in 

executing the Absolute Return portfolio’s investment strategy and plans.   
 

xx. Risk Limits and Portfolio Restrictions 

The Deputy CIO-Private Markets & Alternatives is responsible for managing the various 
risks entailedincurred and adhering to investment this pPolicy.  In constructing a diversified 
Absolute Return portfolio, APFC Staff will consider the following characteristicss including 
the following: manager, strategy, investment size, leverage, correlation with other assets of 
the Fund, and liquidity.  In addition to general pPolicy aspectsRequirements, the following 
restrictions will apply to this portfolio: 

• Risk Limits as detailed in Table-3, Ssection VII; 

• Relative Value Managers in the range of 0 – 75%; 
• Event Driven Managers in the range of 0 – 50%; 
• Directional/Tactical/Opportunistic Managers in the range of 0 – 75%; 

Commodities, including gold-backed exchange traded funds in the range of 0-50% 
• Aat least 50% of the portfolio shall be capable of being liquidated within a 12 month 

period  
• APFC assets invested with each internal or external manager shall not represent 

more than 30% of that manager’s AUM 
 
 

 III.  Diversification and portfolio Restrictions 

In constructing a diversified Absolute Return portfolio, APFC Staff will consider the following 
characteristics: manager, strategy, investment size, and liquidity.  Unless otherwise approved by 

Formatted: Normal

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.75", Hanging:  0.25",  No
bullets or numbering

Formatted: Normal

Formatted: Normal

Formatted: Normal

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.05"

355



Page 40 of 77 
 

the Board, the Chief Risk Officer is responsible for managing aggregate risk exposures and the 
following limitations apply: 

 To achieve manager diversification, the Absolute Return portfolio shall include a range of 
10 to 25 manager/fund commitments;   

 At the time of investment, no single fund commitment shall exceed 10% of the portfolio;  
 To achieve strategy diversification the portfolio will include a mix of the following 

strategies and ranges: 
 Relative Value Managers in the range of 0 – 75%; 
 Event Driven Managers in the range of 0 – 50%; and 
 Directional/Tactical/Opportunistic Managers in the range of 0 – 75%;   

 To ensure appropriate liquidity in the Absolute Return portfolio, at least 50% of the 
portfolio shall be capable of being liquidated within a 12 month period; and    

 APFC assets invested with each manager shall not represent more than 30% of that 
manager’s AUM; 

  

 The Absolute Return Portfolio seeks to accomplish this goal by pursuing the 
following investment objectives: 

• Achieve investment returns in excess of the long-term and short-term 
portfolio benchmarks listed previously in Section II.E, Table 2;  

• Generate a long-term correlation of monthly returns compared to the 
Fund’s overall returns of less than fifty percent (50.0%) as measured over 
rolling 36 month periods; and 

• Generate an ex-ante standard deviation of monthly returns of less than 
twelve percent (12.0%) per annum as measured over rolling 36 month 
periods. 

ii.Structure 

APFC shall invest the Absolute Return Portfolio by committing to comingled 
or separately managed limited liability entities classified as direct funds or 
fund-of-funds managers. These managers may invest in public or private 
securities and other financial instruments and may use leverage consistent 
with other managers of similar strategies. Funds will often have restrictions 
on liquidity including redemption windows (e.g. monthly, quarterly, 

Formatted: Title,USING UNDER A...i ii iii with text

Formatted: Intense Quote,USING UNDER I and A
BULLET

Formatted: Title,USING UNDER A...i ii iii with text

Formatted: Heading 1,USING TOC I II III

356



Page 41 of 77 
 

annually), notice periods (e.g. 30, 60, or 90 days), lock-ups (e.g. soft, hard), 
gates (e.g. investor-level, fund-level), and, at times, withdrawal fees. Fund 
investments shall primarily be made through subscriptions into open-ended 
investment vehicles. 

iii.Authorized Investments 

The Absolute Return Portfolio shall primarily target funds that include one 
or more of the following strategies, with no fund exceeding 10% of the 
Absolute Return Portfolio size as measured at the time of investment 
without Board approval: 

• Relative Value, including equity market neutral, fixed income arbitrage, 
and convertible arbitrage; 

• Event-Driven, including merger arbitrage, distressed 
securities/discounted bank debt, and special situations; and 

• Directional/Tactical/Opportunistic, including long-short equity, 
managed futures, and global macro.  

  

357



Page 42 of 77 
 

V ALASKA IN-STATE INVESTMENT POLICY 
A. Objective and Considerations 

To implement the requirements of Alaska Statute 37.13.120(c), the Board believes the Fund 
should have an in-state investment policy that maintains the investment integrity of the Fund 
and is both proactive and impartial. As such, any internal in-state investment decision made by 
APFC Staff should include the following considerations: 

• Honor Alaska Statute 37.13.120(c): Prescribes that if an Alaskan investment has 
equivalent risk and expected return comparable to or better than a similar non-
Alaskan investment, the Alaskan investment should be preferred. 

• Require Compelling Risk-Adjusted Returns: To honor the prudent investor rule 
provided in Alaska Statute 37.13.120(a), any Alaskan investment contemplated by 
APFC must be attractive on a stand-alone basis. 

• Ensure Fund Diversification: In order to provide sufficient risk diversification as 
required under Alaska Statute 37.13.120(c), Board approval is required for any in-
state investment that would exceed 1% of the Fund, at the time of investment. 

• Seek Participation by Another Institutional Investor: In order to ensure that an 
Alaskan investment opportunity is attractive on a stand-alone basis and satisfies the 
institutional quality requirements of 15 AAC 137.420, APFC should generally seek to 
invest into an Alaskan investment alongside of at least one of its peers (i.e., a large 
institutional investor, which may include endowments, foundations, sovereign 
wealth funds, or public or private pension funds). 

a.B. In-State Investment Targets 

To For theencourage the APFC Staff to identify and invest the Fund in additional compelling in-
state investments, the following investment targets and guidelines are set to promote 
compliance with AS 37.13.120(c): 

o By 2020, at least 2% of the Fund should be invested in-state; 

o• By 2021,  at least 3% of the Fund should be invested in-state; 

o• By 2022,  at least 4% of the Fund should be invested in-state; 

o• By 2023,  at least 5% of the Fund should be invested in-state; 

o• For purposes of this Section, a Fund investment will be considered “invested in-state” if, 

o• An external investment manager has an office in Alaska and the employee(s) that is 
primarily responsible for management of the asset(s) is based in Alaska; or 

o• An external investment manager with offices outside of Alaska makes an investment in 
Alaska, such as an investment in a portfolio company or investment project located in 
Alaska.           

o• Fund investments managed internally by APFC Staff will not be included in achieving these 
targets. 

Formatted

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Commented [VS16]: is this realistic  

358



Page 43 of 77 
 

  

359



Page 44 of 77 
 

VI AUTHORIZED USE OF AUTHORIZED USE OF DERIVATIVES S 
A. Objective 

Thise purpose  section of the of this section of the Policy & Procedures y is to establish the 
describes the applicationpermitted uses and the limitations on the use of derivatives and 
establish the procedures for managing risks associated with derivatives and limitations for the 
use of derivatives authorized in 15 AAC 137.430, 15 AAC 137.440, and 15 AAC 137.460; and 
defined in 15 AAC 137.990(6) and (7). Efficient portfolio management and reduction of risk in 
various Fund portfolios is the primary purpose for the use of derivatives by Fund managers.  
  The requirements and limitations of this section of the Policy & Procedures shall apply to all 
derivatives transactions executed by APFC Investment SStaff and all external managers 
operating with authority under an Investment Management Agreementto buy or sell a 
derivative as an agent on behalf of the of the Alaska Permanent Fund.  This section of the 
Policy does not apply to investments in a limited liability investment vehicle in which 
derivatives are in the name of the limited liability investment vehicle and the liability is limited 
to the amount invested.    

B. Derivatives Definition; AuthorizationScope 

• As defined in 15 AAC 137.990(6), “Derivative” means “an instrument whose value, 
usefulness, and marketability is dependent upon or derives from an underlying asset; 
classes of derivatives include futures contracts, options, forward contracts, including 
currency forward contracts, swaps, and options on futures.”  

• Both exchange traded and over the counter (“OTC”) derivative instruments are under the 
scope of theis Policyy & Procedures.  The principal risk of derivatives strategies comes from 
the potential to lever the portfolio and to express a view on a security or risk factor without 
committing capital commensurate with the exposure.  To mitigate this risk, the successful 
and prudent use of derivatives depends on: 

• Well-defined uses for derivatives, and avoidance of leverage; 
• manager-by-manager lLimits on economic exposures through derivatives; and 
• investment manager internal control and defined procedures for managing risk. 

Exchange traded derivatives are listed and traded on a national exchange. In the 
exchange, the derivative contracts are standardized, there is no credit risk between 
market participants because the exchange generally guarantees the fulfilment of 
the contract, and there is a very visible and transparent market price of the 
instruments. By contrast, OTC derivatives are privately negotiated between a buyer 
and a counterparty directly, which may result in non-standard terms. Consequently, 
the value of the derivative may be affected by the credit-worthiness of the counter-
party, triggering the need for this section of the Policy & Procedures. 

C.  Derivatives Applications Permitted Uses 

• Derivative instruments maybe used by internal and external managers to achieve the 
objectives described in this section. Efficient portfolio management and reduction of risk in 

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: A,
B, C, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 
0.05" + Indent at:  0.3"

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.3"

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: A,
B, C, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 
0.05" + Indent at:  0.3"

Formatted: Title,USING UNDER A...i ii iii with text

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: A,
B, C, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 
0.05" + Indent at:  0.3"

Formatted: Title,USING UNDER A...i ii iii with text

360



Page 45 of 77 
 

various Fund portfolios is the primary purpose for the use of derivatives by Fund 
managers.Permitted usesapplications  of derivatives include: 

• Hedge and control risks of Fund portfolios so they better align with benchmarks and 
objectives;  

• Implement investment strategies in a lower cost and efficient manner; 

• Efficiently manage portfolio exposures synthetically as opposed to trading underlying 
securities; 

• Build portfolios with targeted risk and return characteristics that otherwise could not 
be efficiently created with securities;  

• Hedge and control risks of portfolios and the total Fund so they better align with 
benchmarks and objectives; and 

• Facilitate rebalancing. 

D. Derivatives Risk Management and Compliance 

xxi. Derivative Pre-Approval Requirement 

• All derivatives strategies, whether internally or externally managed, are prohibited unless 
specifically allowed in writing for a permitted use as a part of an investment manager’s 
guidelines.APFC Staff shall have due regard for operational risk associated with various 
derivatives strategies, including risk management, accounting systems, liquidity needs, 
adequate staffing, and staff qualifications. 
 

• The use of derivatives by an external manager shall be conditioned upon the finding by the 
Chief Investment Officer (CIO) and Chief Risk Officer (CRO) that the external manager: 

• has demonstrated investment expertise in the use of derivatives for the strategy 
they have been selected to implement; ; 

  
•  
• has appropriate risk management  and valuation policies and procedures in place;;  
•  
 has legal and investment experience to limit downside effects of the proposed 

derivatives; and  
•  
 Has demonstrated the ability to effectively monitor and control the use of 

derivatives 
•  and has agreed to provide Will provide monthly derivative exposure reports, at 

least on a monthly basis, whichthat at a minimum details:  (1) total derivative 
exposures on a gross and net basis, (2) total collateral/margin postings on gross and 
net basis   , and (3) a list of authorized counterparties and exposure by 
counterparty.       

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: A,
B, C, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 
0.05" + Indent at:  0.3"

Formatted: Heading 5,USING i ii iii

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Title,USING UNDER A...i ii iii with text

Formatted: Intense Quote,USING UNDER I and A
BULLET,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Intense Quote,USING UNDER I and A
BULLET

Formatted: Intense Quote,USING UNDER I and A
BULLET,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Intense Quote,USING UNDER I and A
BULLET

361



Page 46 of 77 
 

xxii. Derivative Recourse Limitations 

 Limitation of Recourse to APFC 

• For externally managed portfolios, it is important to ensure that all liability created by the 
use of derivatives liability to in the name of the Fund APFC ismust be  limited to the total 
NAV value of the fund / portfolio being managed by the external manager.  To ensure this 
requirement is met,   Aapproval of the IMA / External Manager guidelines by General 
Counsel is required in this regard.   

•  

xxiii. Counterparty and other Rigorous counterparty selection criteria shall be required 
Management of counterparty risk is required to reduce the possibility of the Fund 
being overly exposed to risk that a counterparty fails to fulfill its financial 
obligation.  So, in order to be eligible as a counterparty to an OTC derivative 
transaction with Fund assets:  Limits and RRequirements strictions 

• The counterparty to any OTC derivative transaction must have a credit rating of at 
least A- (Standard and Poor’s) or A3 (Moody’s), unless an exception is approved in 
writing by the CIO and CRO;O; and 

• Tthe net market value, net of all collateral postings, of all OTC derivatives for any 
individual counterparty may not exceed 30 basis points of the total market value of 
the Fund. The risks associated with an individual counterparty may change due to 
factors like financial solvency, systemic risks, regulatory or legal claims; operational 
fraud, and financial stres;s.  

• Selling (writing) uncovered options is prohibited; 
• The net of long and short dollar exposures to assets or currencies, whether derived 

from physical or derivative securities, must be less than or equal to the dollar 
market value of the portfolio, except for very small, inadvertent, or temporary 
amounts that occur in the normal course of portfolio management or authorized by 
the CRO; 

• The gross dollar exposures of thea  pportfolio in the Fund from physical and 
derivative securities (futures, options, swaps) cannot exceed 300% of the market 
value of the aggregate underlying portfolio at all times unless authorized by the 
CRO; and 

• If derivatives are used by a manager to actively manage currency exposure, net 
short exposure to any single currency remains within limits established for that 
manager’s strategy.  

  
 APFC Risk Management Staff will monitor and report on counterparty risk each quarter as 

fon the use of derivatives based on the followingollows:  
 Monthly reconciliation of managers’ derivatives reports with custodian positions in 

derivatives; 
 Monthly review of Managers’ use of derivatives relative to their own policies and 

guidelines; 

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Title,USING UNDER A...i ii iii with text

Commented [VS17]: Check for current validity 

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Not Highlight

Formatted: Intense Quote,USING UNDER I and A
BULLET, Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Intense Quote,USING UNDER I and A
BULLET

Formatted: Normal, Indent: First line:  0.5"

Formatted: Title,USING UNDER A...i ii iii with text

362



Page 47 of 77 
 

 A monthly statement that all portfolios are in compliance with the Policy, and a 
description of any instances of non-compliance and their disposition; and 

 An annual report that compares Fund risks with and without the derivatives. 
 

 The following guidelines should be adhered to for risk management purposes when 
investing in derivatives in the Public Equities and Fixed Income : 
 The net of long and short dollar exposures to assets or currencies, whether derived 

from physical or derivative securities, must be less than or equal to the dollar market 
value of the portfolio, except for very small, inadvertent, or temporary amounts that 
occur in the normal course of portfolio management or authorized by the CRO; 

 The gross dollar exposures of the portfolio from physical and derivative securities 
(futures, options, swaps) cannot exceed 300% of the market value of the aggregate 
underlying portfolio at all times unless authorized by the CRO; and 

• If derivatives are used by a manager to actively manage currency exposure, net short 
exposure to any single currency remains within limits established for that manager’s 
strategy.Regular monitoring and oversight of the exposures within portfolios, including 
unrealized profit and losses (P&L) and potential exposures; 

• Ensuring external investment managers have strong counterparty risk controls; 

• Ongoing due diligence of investment managers, including regular onsite meetings with 
managers. 

 The Fund will measure counterparty risk as the P&L, netted where applicable from OTC 
contracts. The P&L more accurately reflects the total amount at risk than the notional 
contract amount should a counterparty fail to honor its obligation. Net is preferred as 
the managers usually employ ISDAs and/or netting agreements. Staff will monitor and 
reports these exposures each quarter or more frequently if required. The Fund does 
not set exposure limits to individual counterparties.  

 Through the following strategies the risks resulting from the use of derivatives shall be 
measured and mitigated:  

• Analyzing collateral exposure under various rate shocks; 

• Establishing minimum counterparty credit ratings that the Fund uses directly; 

• Diversifying counterparties; 

• Collateral requirements or third-party guarantees. 
  

Formatted: Title,USING UNDER A...i ii iii with text,
Indent: Left:  0"

Formatted: Quote,USING UNDER i BULLET, Add space
between paragraphs of the same style,  No bullets or
numbering

Formatted: Font:

Formatted: Font:

Formatted: Font:

Formatted: Quote,USING UNDER i BULLET

363



Page 48 of 77 
 

VII RISK MANAGEMENT & OVERSIGHT 
Recognizing the relationship between return and risk, APFC consciously and deliberately assumes 
various risks in pursuit of its return objectives.  The goal of risk management is to understand, 
analyze and manage these risks. The risk management function strives to create risk awareness, 
establish &and formalize a risk management framework, and ensure risks entailedincurred are 
within the Board’s risk appetite.   
•   Theis Policy Board outlines the Boards’ approved risk management framework that, which 
includes  include the salient investment risk parameters and thresholds in this policy. The objective 
of APFC’s risk management program is the balancing of risk in order to generate investment 
returns. The assumption of risk is necessary to meet the Fund’s objectives. As such, the Board 
recognizes that risk cannot be eliminated and should be managed by understanding the risks in 
various strategies, ensuring the Fund is properly compensated for these risks, and measuring and 
monitoring them frequently. The Board sets the framework for risk management through the 
Policy & Procedures, the Fund’s asset allocation, and benchmarks. In addition, the Board will 
express its risk tolerance in the form of various metrics of risk and defined ranges for those 
metrics. The CIO, Director of Risk Management and Asset Class Directors shall allocate risk 
exposure within and between asset classes in order to optimize return. 

A. Market Risk ManagementRisk Parameters and Measures 

APFC Staff will establish a framework for measuring absolute risk of the Fund and its each asset 
classes, as well as relative risks in comparison to established benchmarks. This framework should 
generally include a quantifiable estimates of active and relative risk. APFC Staff will monitor and 
produce reports as appropriate for the Board, ED, CIO, and otherAPFC staff. which may 
incorporate the following market risks: 
 
The salient risk parameters are listed below.   and rRelated tolerances and associated ranges are 
provided in Table 3. 
 
Asset Allocation Limits -– Target allocation levels are determined for each asset class / portfolio 
based on quantitative modelling and qualitative inputs.  Disciplined alignment to these targets is 
essential, albeit ensuring limited flexibility to cater forto changing markets and other factors. 
 
Future Commitments - Future commitments are a function of committed capital to private 
investments and essentially reflect a contingent cash draw liability.  Monitoring and limiting future 
commitments relative to the Fund’s overall size is important. 
 

• In addition to the Total Fund level risk limits, the portfolio will be constrained to the asset 
allocation percentages and ranges prescribed in Section II.D, Table 1. Accordingly, the total 
exposure to each asset class must be based on the individual exposures of each cash 
security and each outstanding derivative contract. These limits are specified in the 
Investment Guidelines. 

Formatted: Normal

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Normal

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

364



Page 49 of 77 
 

• Active Risk -  Limits - Tracking error is a measure of how closely a portfolio follows the 
index to which it is benchmarked. Tracking error is used to ascertain how much the 
portfolio expected return will deviate from the prescribed risk benchmark. Tracking error is 
calculated for this purpose on an ex-ante basis using a holdings-based risk analytical 
system. By convention, tracking error is reported as the annualized one-standard deviation 
of the expected difference in returns between a portfolio and the risk benchmark. A target 
tracking error will be imposed on the Total Fund and on each underlying asset class 
mandate. These limits are specified in the Investment Guidelines.  

 

• Relative Risk Limit - Relative Value at Risk (RVaR) provides a comparison of portfolio risk 
relative to benchmark risk and is measured as a ratio of Portfolio VaR to benchmark 
VaR.risk measures the expected investment portfolio’s risk and return relative to a 
benchmark using industry-standard risk measures. APFC Staff will model and monitor the 
Total Fund as compared to its benchmarks to ensure that the total estimated risk for the 
Total Fund is within the upper and lower bounds of this Policy and Procedure’s risk 
framework, following the specific green zones illustrated in the Investment Guidelines. 

 
In addition to relative measures, multiple risk parameters including concentrations, credit risk, 
market,  and liquidity risks are monitored and controlled. 
 

• Downside Risk - Downside risk is risk of significant loss of capital. Staff will actively monitor 
the Total Fund’s downside risk relative to the risk benchmark using scenario analysis and 
stress testing. Specific scenario analyses and stress tests are outlined in the Investment 
Guidelines. 

•  
 Scenario Analysis - Scenario analysis utilizes historical market dislocations to evaluate 

mark-to-market impacts on the portfolio. For each historical market dislocation, the 
changes in the major risk factors are applied to the existing portfolio simultaneously. This 
shock may provide insight into potential future downside risks. 

 Stress Testing - Stress testing involves shocking a major market factor by a predetermined 
magnitude to measure the Fund’s change in mark-to-market. Stress testing is designed to 
determine which factors, given an independent move, produce a large deviation in mark-
to-market.  

• Proxy Securities and Indices - If necessary and prudent, as determined by the CRO,  APFC 
Staff will employ index proxies to approximate the economic characteristics of specific 
investments to the extent that the terms and conditions of those investments or the 
underlying holdings (in the case of funds) are not readily available or where the complexity 
of the underlying investment renders direct empirical measurement impractical. 

• Private Market Asset Holdings - APFC Staff will actively monitor the portion of the Total 
Fund invested in private market asset holdings to ensure that the percent of the total fund 

Formatted: Normal

Formatted: Normal

365



Page 50 of 77 
 

invested in private markets adheres to the private investments limits. outlined in the 
Investment Guidelines. 

A. Credit Ratings for Fixed Income Securities 

Credit ratings by the three major ratings agencies, Standard & Poor’s, Moody’s and Fitch will be 
the primary source of credit ratings for fixed income securities in the Fixed Income and Total Fund 
Cash portfolios, subject to the following.:   

• In case of split ratings, the ‘Bloomberg Barclays Middle Rating’ methodology shall be 
applied (i.e. if all three agencies rate a security, the middle rating is adopted; if only two 
agencies rate a security, the most conservative (lowest) rating is used; if only one rates a 
security, that single rating is used). 

• If none of the three agencies have assigned a rating, ratings by other agencies and or 
implied ratings may be used with .  In such instances, CRO approval will be required. 

• If no agency ratings are available and a rating cannot be implied, it shall be categorized as 
‘Unrated’. 

 
 

B. Future Commitments - Future commitments are a function of committed capital to private 
investments where the general partner has the right to drawdown capital from the limited 
partners over a specified period of time. To mitigate the risk presented because the cash 
draws are in essence a cash draw liability with unknown timing, APFC Staff will monitor and 
limit future commitments relative to the Fund’s overall size. Specific limits are outlined in 
the Investment Guidelines. 

 

Formatted: Add space between paragraphs of the same
style

Formatted: Normal

Formatted: Normal

366



Page 51 of 77 
 

 In addition to this framework, APFC Staff will monitor regularly and report quarterly on a 
multitude of risks to the extent they are material, either on an absolute or relative basis, to 
the Board: 

• Economic Environment; 

• Country/Currency Risk; 

• Counterparty Risk; 

• Business Relationship Risk; 

• Pricing Risk; 

• Credit (Quality) Risk; 

• Leverage; 

• Debt Refinancing Risk; 

• Active Risk Contribution; 

• Liquidity Risk; 

• Geographical Risk; 

• Equity Style Risk; 

• Fixed Income Risk; 

• Ex-ante versus Ex-post VaR; and 

• Ex-ante versus Ex-post Tracking Error 

C. Foreign Exchange Risk 

 Investment managers and APFC Staff, may, with prior approval of the Executive Director, 
transact in any foreign exchange instrument (including currency futures and forward 
contracts, options, and swap agreements), to implement their investment strategies, 
contingent upon such transactions being consistent with the Policy & Procedures and the 
requirements of 15 AAC 137.480. 

 APFC Staff analyzes foreign exchange risk regularly and presents quarterly to the Board. This 
analysis includes both internal hedging and external foreign exchange overlay manager 
positioning and performance. 

D.B. Legal Risk Management 

Legal documentation for all internally internally managed public and private investments will be 
reviewed, negotiated and approved by APFC General Counsel for prior to execution by the 
Executive Director. APFC Staff will seek the assistance, review, and advice of legal counsel for all 
internally managed investments which are executed by the Executive Director. APFC General 
Counsel hshall be responsible for as primary responsibility fordetermining  when the engagement 
of outside legal counsel should be engaged to assist in the review and negotiation of Fund  for 

Formatted: Heading 4,USING A,B,C

Formatted: Heading 4,USING A,B,C

Formatted: Normal

Commented [MV18]: only internally managed?  never 
mind!  I understand 

367



Page 52 of 77 
 

iinvestment matters, subject to applicable statutes and rules adopted by the Office of the Attorney 
General. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E.C. Permitted Use of Leverage 

• APFC Staff and external managers, consistent with the requirements of 15 AAC 137.500 
and this Policye Policy & Procedures (including the risk parameters established by the asset 
allocation ranges), is authorized to use the leverage for an investment ofwith onFund 
assets behalf of the overall Fund or specific funds and investments, provided that such 
leverage is non-recourse to APFC or the Fund as described in AS 37.13.120(b) and 15 AAC 
137.500. 

D. Foreign Exchange Risk 

• External Investment managers and APFC Staff, may, with prior approval of the Executive 
Director, transact in any foreign exchange instrument (including currency futures and 
forward contracts, options, and swap agreements), to implement their investment 
strategies, contingent upon such transactions being consistent with this Policy and the 
requirements of 15 AAC 137.480. 

• APFC Staff shall analyzes foreign exchange risk regularly and presents quarterly to the 
Board. This analysis includes both internal hedging and external foreign exchange overlay 
manager positioning and performance. 

Risk Reporting 

• The Chief Risk Officerrisk management team  will provide the Board and APFC staff with 
a comprehensive risk profile of the fFund on a regular basis.  At a minimum, this would 
includes the Daily Risk Dashboard and more detailed quarterly updates.  The quarterly 
reports to the Board shall include the levels for most of the salient risk parameters 
mentioned earlierdescribed in this Policy.  

 

Formatted: Normal

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Normal

368



Page 53 of 77 
 

Risk & Compliance Monitoring 

The portfolio leads and investment directors assigned toresponsible for each Asset Class  in this 
Policy will have primary responsibility to ensure adherence to all aspects of this pPolicy.  
Additionally, the CRO and risk management team will be responsible for monitoring compliance of 
Fund investment activity. 

Risk Parameters and Limits 

Table 3 

  

Public 
Equity

Fixed 
Income

Private 
Equity

Real Estate
Private 
Income

Absolute 
Return

Risk Parity Cash Total Fund

Asset Allocation
Asset Allocation (AA):   Target Levels      - FY 2021 % of Fund 39% 21% 15% 7% 9% 6% 1% 2% 100%
Green Zone (expressed as +/- to Target Allocation) % of Fund +/- 5% +/- 5% +/- 5% +/- 3% +/- 5% +/- 3% +/- 1% +/- 2%
Yellow Zone (expressed as range beyond green zone) % of Fund 0 - 5% 0 - 5% 0 - 5% 0 - 3% 0 - 5% 0 - 3% 0 - 1% 0 - 2%

Asset Allocation (AA):   Target Levels      - FY 2022 % of Fund 38% 20% 16% 8% 9% 6% 1% 2% 100%
Asset Allocation (AA):   Target Levels      - FY 2023 % of Fund 36% 20% 17% 9% 9% 6% 1% 2% 100%
Asset Allocation (AA):   Target Levels      - FY 2024 % of Fund 35% 19% 18% 10% 9% 6% 1% 2% 100%
Asset Allocation (AA):   Target Levels      - FY 2025 % of Fund 33% 18% 19% 12% 9% 6% 1% 2% 100%

All Targets are Maximum Permitted, except #29-Min Cash 
Public 
Equity

Fixed 
Income

Private 
Equity

Real Estate
Private 
Income

Absolute 
Return

Risk Parity Cash Total Fund Low High Low High

Future Outstanding Commitments % of Fund 0.0% 0.0% 10.0% 3.0% 5.0% 2.0% 0.0% 20.0% 85% 115% 75% 125%

Benchmark M664204USN LEHCREYBO CAM_PE NCREIFMSCI CAM_PI HFRIPROXY HFRI_RP 90DTBILL LEHFTJPM

Tracking Error 3.5% 2.5% 4.0% n/a 115% n/a 125%

Relative VaR (Portfolio VaR / Benchmark VaR) 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 0% 125% 0% 140%

Concentrations 

Single Name / Issuer                          [Note 1] % of AA 4% 4% 2% 10% 2% n/a n/a n/a 0% 115% 0% 125%

Single Industry (DEFINITION: GICS) % of AA 20% 20% 30% n/a 30% n/a n/a n/a 0% 115% 0% 125%

Single Country - EX US % of AA 10% 10% 20% 20% 20% n/a n/a n/a 0% 115% 0% 125%

Total EX US % of AA 50% 30% 50% 50% 50% n/a n/a n/a

Single Fund Investment                   [Note 2] % of AA 5% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 50% n/a 0% 115% 0% 125%

Proportion of ownership - 5% 5% 10% 100% 10% n/a n/a n/a 0% 115% 0% 125%

Credit Risk

Rating - Below Inv Grade % of AA n/a 25% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 0% 0% 115% 0% 125%

Rating - Below A- & Unrated % of AA n/a 50% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 0% 0% 115% 0% 125%

Rating - Unrated % of AA n/a 5% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 0% 0% 115% 0% 125%

Market Risk

FX - Proportion Unhedged % of AA 30% 5% 20% 20% 20% n/a n/a 5% 0% 115% 0% 125%

Liquidity - Proportion without at least Daily liquidity % of AA 10% 10% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 5% 0% 115% 0% 125%

Liquidity - Proportion without at least Monthly liquidity % of AA 2% 2% 100% 100% 100% 70% 70% 0% 0% 115% 0% 125%

Liquidity - Proportion without at least Quarterly  liquidity % of AA 0% 0% 100% 100% 100% 30% 30% 0% 0% 115% 0% 125%

Cash Levels

Cash & Equivalents % of AA 2% 10% 5% 5% 5% n/a n/a 100% 0% 115% 0% 125%

MINIMUM Cash & Equivalents % of AA 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% n/a n/a 30% 85% 115% 75% 125%

Notes:
1 Single Name / Issuer: represents security level exposure to single entity or operating company.  US Treasury & Govt Agencies are exempt.  For Private Assets, the limit applies at the time of investment or cost basis
2 Single Fund Investment: represents exposure to a fund or strategy based vehicle

Green Zone Yellow Zone

As a % of Target

Target Levels

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

369



Page 54 of 77 
 

VIII PUBLIC MARKETS INTERNAL & EXTERNAL PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENTR 
SELECTION 

A. Discretionary Internal versus External Managementr Searches and Selection 

 The Board retains the authority to select internal versus external management of the Fund’s 
assets. The Board will consider recommendations from the Executive Director, CIO, Advisors 
and Consultants to manage portions of or entire investment programs internally. 

B.E. Manager Searches and Selection 

This section of the pPolicy pertainsapplies to discretionary mandates given assigned to external 
investment managers to transact and manage public market assets on behalf of the Fund When 
selecting an external manager who will be given discretion to buy or sell public market assets in 
the name of the Fund (i.e. through an Investment Manager Agreement).  T) Tthe Board has  
authorizesd  APFC Staff the Executive Director to hire new investment managers and advisors 
(including real estate advisors) upon conclusion of an appropriate search with the assistance of by 
a qualified consultant,  which can include the Board’s General Consultant, contingentand Staff. 
upon the search and hiring process adhering to the following steps:    

  S 
  Although a specific situation may warrant modifying the process, a typicalThe  manager or 

advisor search and hiring process should involve the following steps: 

• setting of relevant search criteria by APFC Staff of applicable manager qualifications;; 

• Iidentification, with the assistance of the consultant, by the Consultant of a list of potential 
managers that the Consultant believes aare qualified to provide the investment 
management services needed, based on the qualifications and other search criteria 
established by APFC Staff;; 

• Eevaluation by a review committee established within the Cconsultant's organization of the 
list of potential, qualified managers identified with the goal of for recommendationing of 
managers for consideration byto APFC Staff;; 

• Iinforming the CIO of selected managers recommended by the Cconsultant's review 
committee;; 

• Sselection by APFC Staff of between three and five of the managers as finalists from those 
recommended by the Cconsultant's review committee. This process may include, as part of 
due diligence, on-site visits by APFC Staff.  P; presentations to APFC Staff by the 
recommended managers are at the election of the CIO and Executive D;irector.; 

• Aanalysis by APFC Sstaff including which then provides a detailed recommendation to the 
CIO and Executive Director, considering taking into account not only manager-specific 
characteristics as well as but also portfolio considerations; and 

• Aapproval of the new manager or advisor by the CIO, with and Executive DirectoEDr 
consent, assignment of benchmarks as appropriate, and determination of the initial 
amount to be placed under management with the manager;.  

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Heading 4,USING A,B,C

Formatted: Title,USING UNDER A...i ii iii with text

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

370



Page 55 of 77 
 

• A manager shall also be required to execute a written investment management agreement 
(“IMA”) with the APFC. The IMA shall address matters of performance, compensation, 
term/termination, investment guidelines, among others, as the APFC and the manager 
consider necessary and appropriate.  The use of derivatives, if any, within externally 
managed mandates shall be conform to the Derivatives section of this pPolicy and be 
explicitly detailed in the IMA; AND 

 Review and approval by the CRO and General cCounsel of the proposed IMA is required 
prior to execution.A manager shall also be required to be retained by execution e of a 
written investment management agreement (“IMA”) with the APFC. The IMA shall address 
such matters of performance, compensation, and term/termination, investment guidelines, 
among others, as the APFC and the manager consider necessary and appropriate. 

•  

•  

C.F. Alternative Manager Searches and Selection ProcessSpecial Situations  

• In certain special Ccircumstances, the CIO and Executive Director  has the authority to 
modify or waive the criteria in the selection and hiring process outlined above.  Even in 
such instances,  may make a deviation from normal search process practice appropriate. 
Even if this alternative process is utilized, tthe CIO, with  and Executive Director consent,  
retains the final manager selection authority. Use of an alternative manager search process 
may be considered when any one or more of these conditions exist: 

• Aa manager under consideration for hire has already been vetted in a significant 
manner either through a search process with a qualified consultant or advisor, or the 
manager is already employed in a manager capacity by APFC; 

• Tthe skill for which the manager is being considered is related in a substantive manner 
to the role the manager already fulfills for APFC or was the subject of a manager search 
that first identified this manager;  

 IA qualified the Cconsultant and the Staff are both recommending hiring a particular 
manager for the specific mandate even though the CIO and Executive Director 
recognize that a more complete search process might reasonably be expected to 
identify additional qualified candidates to compete for the business;  

• it is in the best interest of the Fund to move more quickly than the typical SEARCH 
procedures permit; or  

• Ddue to confidentiality or specificity of the investment strategy or structure, use of the 
typical search procedure is not prudent.  

• When any of the above criteria are present, the Executive Director may modify or waive 
portions of the typical manager search steps. The CIO and Executive Director are required 
to report use of the alternative manager search and selection process, along with the 
rationale for the use, at the next regularly-scheduled Board meeting. 

Formatted: List Paragraph,USING UNDER A TEXT

Formatted: Title,USING UNDER A...i ii iii with text

Formatted: Quote,USING UNDER i BULLET,  No bullets
or numbering

Formatted: Quote,USING UNDER i BULLET

Formatted: Title,USING UNDER A...i ii iii with text

371



Page 56 of 77 
 

D.G. Monitoring and Evaluation of Managers 

• The Board looks to its General Consultant as the primary source of quantitative evaluation 
of the performance of the Fund and its investment managers. As promptly as possible after 
the close of each calendar quarter, the Consultant shall submit a report to the Board, 
Executive Director and CIO analyzing the performance of the Fund, its asset classes and 
investment programs, including both internally and externally assets. The report shall 
include a comparison of total Fund performance with the Board's long-term investment 
goal, an analysis of the returns of each asset class as measured against established 
benchmarks for each class; and an analysis of the returns of each manager or relevant 
groupings of managers as measured against relevant benchmarks. The Consultant's report 
shall also address any special concerns or observations the Consultant concludes should be 
brought to the attention of the Board, Executive Director and CIO. 

• The Board expects APFC Staff to also  monitor the performance of the Fund's external 
managers, using the quarterly quantitative performance reports prepared by the General 
Consultant  and, Asset Class-specific Advisors in the case of Private Markets and Alternative 
Investments information obtained from the APFC's annual manager evaluation 
questionnaire.  Monitoring manager performance may also include review of , and other 
quantitative and qualitative such other review and analysis of an individual manager's 
performanceaspects based on, both quantitative and qualitative, as Staff considers 
appropriate, including on-site visits to the manager's offices, discussions with other clients 
of the manager, media reports and such analytical tools as may be availableother feedback.  

•  

• The CIO and Executive Director shall report to the Board any special concerns or 
observations they may have with respect to the performance of a manager no later than 
the next regular meeting of the Board. 

 

• The Board authorizes the CIO and ED, to terminate an investment manager. If the CIO and 
Executive Director terminate or give notice of unsatisfactory performance to a particular 
manager, they shall inform the Board of the actions and rationale at the next regularly- 
scheduled Board meeting. 

 
 

E. Manager Retention 

• A manager shall be retained by execution of a written investment management agreement 
(“IMA”) with the APFC. The IMA shall address such matters of performance, compensation, 
and term/termination, investment guidelines, among others, as the APFC and the manager 
consider necessary and appropriate. 

Formatted: Title,USING UNDER A...i ii iii with text

Commented [MV19]: need to modify for current 
procedures 

Formatted: Normal

Formatted: Title,USING UNDER A...i ii iii with text

Formatted: Normal

Formatted: Title,USING UNDER A...i ii iii with text

372



Page 57 of 77 
 

F. Manager Termination 

 The Board authorizes the CIO, with Executive Director consent, to terminate an investment 
manager. 

G. Reporting 

 The CIO and Executive Director are required to report all manager additions and 
terminations, along with the rationale, at the next regular Board meeting.  

  

Formatted: Title,USING UNDER A...i ii iii with text

373



Page 58 of 77 
 

Appendix A: Investment Guidelines  
I. Objective 
The objective of the APFC Investment Guidelines is to supplement the APFC Investment Policy  & 
Procedures by providing operational guidelines for APFC’s internally managed and external 
investment programsportfolio managers. The Executive Director may update this Appendix from 
time-to-time; updates will be provided to the Board at its next regularly scheduled meeting. 
 
Internally Managed Investment Programs Section headings generally correspond to their 
counterparts in the Policy & Procedures. 
II. Total Fund & Portfolio Design Philosophy  
The following table outlines the components of the Fund’s Performance Scorecard (which can 
then be adapted to apply to individual asset classes):  

Time Horizon APFC Benchmark 
Spread (Standard 
Deviation) 

Percentile-
Calculation 

Short-Term (ST) 1-year Return 

Passive Benchmark 
(60% MSCI ACWI 
IMI 20% Barclay 
Global Aggregate 
(less management 
and transaction 
fees) 20% Real 
Assets (10% FTSE 
EPRA/NAREIT 
Rental Index/10% 
US TIPs)) 

1-year standard 
deviation of 
returns among 
public plan peers 
(typically 1%-2%, 
with 2% being the 
conservative 
default)  

Implied Percentile 
{statistical Z-score: 
=1- 
NORMSDIST((Retur
n-Benchmark)/2%) } 

Medium-Term (MT) 3-year Return 

Peers Policy Asset 
Allocation 
Benchmark  
Large US Public Plans, or 
the Performance 
Benchmark of Publicly 
traded and Private 
Market indexes used as 
a 
proxy (Table 10.3.1.1) 

3-year returns for  
Peers 

Percentile 
among Peers 

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0"

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0"

Formatted: Justified, Line spacing:  Multiple 1.08 li

Formatted: Justified, Line spacing:  Multiple 1.08 li

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0", First line:  0", Line
spacing:  Multiple 1.08 li

Formatted: Justified, Line spacing:  Multiple 1.08 li

Formatted: Justified, Line spacing:  Multiple 1.08 li

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0", First line:  0", Line
spacing:  Multiple 1.08 li

Formatted: Justified, Line spacing:  Multiple 1.08 li

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0", First line:  0", Line
spacing:  Multiple 1.08 li

374



Page 59 of 77 
 

Time Horizon APFC Benchmark 
Spread (Standard 
Deviation) 

Percentile-
Calculation 

Long-Term (LT) 
5-year Return, 
Sharpe Ratio 

CPI + 5% & 
Sharpe Ratio>0.5 

5-year  
Peer variation 
(2%),  
Sharpe  
Ratio vol = 0.5 

Implied 
Percentile 
(average): =1 
-
Normsdist((Return- 
(CPI+5%))/2%) and 
=1-Normsdist((SR- 
0.5)/.5) 

III.A. Public Equity 
APFC’s Internal Compliance will issue an alert (i.e., a notification) to APFC’s Director of Public Equity 
for potential follow-up either internally or with external managers in the following instances: 
a. Tracking Error: Issue an alert when the tracking error of the overall Public Equity portfolio 
exceeds 350 basis points (“bps”) versus the MSCI ACWI IMI. 
 
b. Active manager concentration risk: Issue an alert when an allocation to an active external 
manager reaches 5% of total Public Equity allocation; no limits are set a priori for passively managed 
assets. 
 
c. Other Guidelines: 
a. Cash: Issue an alert when cash held by a manager reaches 5% of the manager’s account’s 
Net Asset Value (“NAV”). Transactional cash (i.e. payables/receivables) and cash used for collateral 
will be excluded from this calculation; there is no alert on cash for performance-fee based external 
managers; there is no alert on cash for internally managed public equity portfolios. 
b. Percentage Ownership: Issue an alert when the Fund’s ownership of total shares 
outstanding of a public company reaches 5% or more. This applies to the total shares outstanding 
that is used to determine the market capitalization of a company. The guideline above is applied 
once at the individual account level (internal or external), and separately across all public equity 
managers combined. 
c. Short Selling: Issue an alert in instances of short selling in external and internal accounts 
(only applies to cash equities and ETFs, not to derivatives); 
d. Derivatives Holdings (External and Internal Accounts): Issue an alert when the gross 
notional value across all derivatives holdings (exchange traded and OTC) within a public equity 
account reaches 20% of the account NAV. Guideline applies to aggregate notional value across 
different types of derivatives; issue an alert when the gross notional value of all OTC derivatives 
holdings within an account reaches 10% of the account NAV; 
e. Rebalancing: Generally, the team leader should seek the approvals from the CIO and ED for 
rebalancing programs among internal and/or external managers aggregating to in excess of 1% of 
the value of the Fund. 
III.B. Fixed Income-Plus 

Formatted: Justified, Line spacing:  Multiple 1.08 li

Formatted: Justified, Line spacing:  Multiple 1.08 li

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0", First line:  0", Line
spacing:  Multiple 1.08 li

Formatted: Justified, Line spacing:  Multiple 1.08 li

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0", First line:  0", Line
spacing:  Multiple 1.08 li

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0"

Formatted: Normal, Justified, Add space between
paragraphs of the same style, Line spacing:  single,  No
bullets or numbering

Formatted: Normal, Justified

Formatted: Normal, Justified, Add space between
paragraphs of the same style, Line spacing:  single,  No
bullets or numbering

Formatted: Normal, Justified

Formatted: Normal, Justified, Space After:  0 pt, Add
space between paragraphs of the same style, Line
spacing:  single,  No bullets or numbering

375



Page 60 of 77 
 

Fixed Income Plus portfolios, whether managed internally or externally, must adhere to the 
following the guidelines in the table below: 

Category Risk Benchmark 
Green Zone 
(CIO) 

Yellow Zone 
(ED) 

Red Zone (Board) 

Fixed Income Plus 
(VaR) 

25% US 
Aggregate,25% US 
Corp, 10% High 
Yield, 5% Emerging 
Market Debt, 10% 
REIT Index, 10% 
Non-US Rates, 5% 
TIPS, 5% Listed 
Infrastructure, 5% 
Cash 

70% to 120% 
50% to 70% & 
120% to 140% 

<50% & >140% 

Listed 
Infrastructure 

S&P Global 
Infrastructure 

0 to 400 bps 400 to 500 bps >500 bps 

REITs S&P Global REIT 0 to 400 bps 400 to 500 bps >500 bps 
Emerging Market 
Debt 

Barclays EMD Hard 
Currency Aggregate 

0 to 400 bps 400 to 500 bps >500 bps 

Opportunistic 
Income 

n/a n/a n/a n/a 

International 
Government 
Bonds 

Barclays Developed 
Government Bond 
Index 
(ex. U.S. & currency 
hedged) 

0 to 200 bps 200 to 300 bps >300 bps 

Investment Grade 
Corporate Bonds 

Barclays US 
Investment Grade 
Corporate Bond 
Index 

0 to 200 bps 200 to 300 bps >300 bps 

High Yield 
Corporate Bonds 

Barclays US High 
Yield 2% issuer cap 
Index 

0 to 400 bps 400 to 500 bps >500 bps 

Treasury Inflation 
Protected 
Securities 

Barclays U.S. 
Treasury Inflation 
Protected Securities 
Index 

0 to 200 bps 200 to 300 bps >300 bps 

Domestic Fixed 
Income Aggregate 

Barclays US 
Aggregate Index 

0 to 300 bps 300 to 400 bps >400 bps 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Tab stops: Not at  0.7"

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

376



Page 61 of 77 
 

Fixed Income Plus, may, with prior written approval of the Chief Investment Officer, transact in  
any derivative authorized in 15 AAC 137.430(a)(19). For purposes of rebalancing, the Director of 
Fixed Income Plus shall seek the approval of the CIO and ED for re-allocations among internal 
and/or external portfolio managers in excess of 1% of the value of the total Fund.  
 

I Requirements regarding Cash Account:  
1. fixed or floating rate securities with weighted average maturities of no greater than 24 
months. These securities must be investment grade rated income producing listed securities. 
2. approved money market funds utilized for cash sweep purposes. 
3. Commercial paper that, at the time of purchase, is rated: (1) A-a or A-1 by S&P, or (2) P-1 
by Moody’s. 
 
Requirements of Corporate Bond Portfolio: 
a. At time of purchase, security must be investment grade; and 
b. If a security falls below investment grade, it must be sold within seven months of 
downgrade. 
 
Requirements of US Aggregate Portfolio: 
a. At time of purchase, securities must be investment grade. 
b. If a security falls below investment grade, it must be sold within seven months of 
downgrade. 
 
Requirements of US TIPS Portfolio: 
o Portfolio shall be invested in investment-grade, inflation-linked, income producing 
instruments.   
 
Requirements of Global Rates Portfolio: 
a. Portfolio shall be invested in investment-grade, income producing instruments issued by 
supranational institutions, sovereign governments and their instrumentalities. 
b. Portfolio exposure to foreign currency cannot exceed 1% of NAV. 
 
Investment Grade Ratings: 
 
Regarding any fixed income investment that is required by the Investment Guidelines to be 
“investment grade”: (1) if three ratings are given, two must be investment grade, (2) if two 
ratings are given, both must be investment grade, (3) if one rating is given, it must be 
investment grade; and (4) if no rating is given, it must have an implied investment grade rating. 
 
 
III.C. Asset Allocation 
The following guidelines should be adhered to for all investments authorized by Policy & 
Procedures regarding the Asset Allocation portfolio: 

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0"

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0.25"

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Normal, Left, Add space between
paragraphs of the same style,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Normal, Left

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0"

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted ...
Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Normal, Left

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0"

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted ...
Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Normal, Left

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0"

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted ...
Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Normal, Left, Indent: Left:  0"

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted ...
Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Left, Line spacing:  Multiple 1.08 li

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Normal, Left, Indent: Left:  0"

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted ...
Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

377



Page 62 of 77 
 

 
a. The Liquidity Overlay Program should be monitored as such: 
a. Overlay manager will equitize cash in the account indicated by the portfolio manager 

i.Overlay manager is allowed to use exchange-traded futures, options on exchange-traded 
futures, over-the-counter or exchange-traded swap, over-the-counter or exchange-traded 
option, and forward contracts. 
b. The overlay manager will target an exposure of 65% ACWI IMI and 35% Bloomberg 
Aggregate Bond index.  
c. The notional value of the overlay exposure will be equal to 100% of the value of the 
underlying cash with a +/- 5% range to allow for normal daily variations. 
d. The overlay exposure will be trued up on a daily basis by the external manager based on 
cash reports provided by the APFC custodian. 
 
b. To the extent that additional liquidity is desired to manage plan assets, APFC staff will 
notify the Board of Trustees and Investment Committee immediately to establish an additional 
liquidity plan. 
c. Additional guidelines will be established for the liquidity portfolio, currency overlay, and 
Risk Parity programs as needed for the future management of these programs, as they are 
managed by a combination of internal APFC staff and external investment managers. 
 
IV.A. Private Equity & Special Opportunities 
Standard of Care  
Higher expected return implies necessarily a wider range of potential outcomes for each of the 
underlying assets, and this uncertainty increases the importance and the benefits of informed 
manager selection, rigorous deal selection, and active portfolio management. Accordingly, the 
following investment guidelines and restrictions are intended to ensure appropriate asset 
diversification, analytical deliberation, and risk mitigation.  
 
Institutional Quality: All investments must be of institutional investment quality. Institutional 
quality is defined as an investment that would reasonably be considered acceptable by other 
prudent institutional investors (e.g., insurance company, commercial banks, employee benefit 
and retirement plans, endowments and foundations).  
 
Portfolio Diversification: The part of the Private Equity & Special Opportunities portfolio 
committed to private equity funds will be diversified by strategy, size, vintage, industry, 
manager, and geography. No more than twenty percent (20%) of the total allocation will be 
invested at any time with or in any single general partnership, entity, or organization. No single 
private equity investment strategy, as described below under “Strategy Diversification,” may 
comprise more than 70% of the Private Equity & Special Opportunities allocation as established 
by the Board.  
 

Formatted: Left, Line spacing:  Multiple 1.08 li

Formatted: Left, Add space between paragraphs of the
same style, Line spacing:  Multiple 1.08 li,  No bullets or
numbering

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Normal, Left, None

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Normal, Left, Indent: Left:  0"

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Normal, Left

Formatted: Normal, Left, Indent: Left:  0"

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Normal, Left

Formatted: Normal, Left, Indent: Left:  0"

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

378



Page 63 of 77 
 

• Strategy Diversification: The following private equity strategies and investment types will 
be considered eligible for the Fund’s portfolio. Long-term ranges are established with 
percentage exposures based on market value plus undrawn committed capital. 
o Venture Capital: (5% to 45%) – Venture capital commitments and investments will be 
allocated into two categories.  
 Early-Stage: Seed or start-up equity investments in private companies.  
 Later-Stage: Investments in more mature companies to provide funding for growth and 
expansion.  
o Buyouts/Acquisition: (40% to 70%) – Partnerships or direct investments which provide 
funding to acquire substantial interests in a business or product. These investments will be 
diversified by industry and other relevant factors.  
o Specialized Funds or Investments: (0% to 50%) -This will include, but not be limited to, 
distressed debt strategies, royalty strategies, other direct investments, co-investments, and 
certain asset-specific or industry-specific strategies.  
• Geographical Diversification: Although the priority should be to achieve diversification by 
investment strategy and industry, geographical diversification is also desirable. Over the long-
term, the portfolio should seek reasonably balanced global geographic diversification. 
o International private equity investments should not total more than 40% of the invested 
private equity portfolio and shall be diversified in the context of the total portfolio.  
• Industry Sector Diversification: The portfolio shall be diversified by industry sector (e.g., 
biotechnology, software, financial services, healthcare, medical, media/communications, basic 
industry, etc.) so that no single industry classification is too heavily represented in the private 
equity portfolio.  
• Time and Life Cycle Diversification: Commitments to private investments shall be staged 
over time, and venture capital investments shall include early, later, and multi-stage 
investments.  
• General Partner Diversification: Fund commitments shall be diversified by investment 
partner and will limit discretionary control of any single general partnership or investment 
sponsor organization to a maximum of 20% of the total private equity portfolio (based on total 
commitments).  
 
IV.B. Real Estate, Infrastructure & Private Income 
i. Investment Process  
Real Estate, Infrastructure & Private Income investments shall only be consummated following 
(i) a search process conducted by a qualified, independent consultant or APFC’s general 
consultant, (ii) through an existing manager of APFC assets, or (iii) upon the written analysis of a 
qualified consultant retained to evaluate a specific proposed investment.  
Investments will be identified as Private Real Estate, Private Infrastructure, Private Credit, or 
Income Opportunities at the time of investment and included in each respective composite from 
that time forward for performance and compliance purposes. Any movement of individual 
investments between composites will only occur with written approval of the Executive 
Director. 

Formatted: Normal, Left,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Normal, Left

Formatted: Normal, Left, Space After:  0 pt, Line
spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: None, Space Before:  0 pt,  No bullets or
numbering, Don't keep with next, Don't keep lines
together

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0", Add space between
paragraphs of the same style

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

379



Page 64 of 77 
 

ii. Diversification 
APFC Staff shall construct the Real Estate, Infrastructure & Private Income portfolio with a level 
of diversification consistent with other institutional investors in this asset class, specifically: 
a. Manager Diversification 
No manager or fund general partner shall represent more than 35% of total Real Estate, 
Infrastructure & Private Income exposures when measured both on the basis of (i) manager 
advised NAV divided by total NAV for this portfolio, and (ii) manager advised NAV plus unfunded 
commitments divided by total NAV for this portfolio plus unfunded commitments. 
b. Strategy Diversification 
Staff shall manage the portfolio with a combination of the four primary programs defined in the 
Policy & Procedures. Measured on the basis of NAV plus unfunded commitments (i) 0-75% of the 
portfolio shall be invested in the Private Real Estate program, (ii) 0-75% of the portfolio shall be 
invested in the Private Infrastructure program, (iii) 0-50% of the portfolio shall be invested in the 
Private Credit program, and (iv) 0-50% of the portfolio shall be invested in the Income 
Opportunities program. 
c. Individual Company and Asset Diversification  
Individual direct investments and co-investments (or a series of investments in securities issued 
by the same underlying operating entity or company) will not exceed an aggregate total 
commitment or cost basis of 1.0% of the value of the total Fund as determined at the time of 
investment. This rule does not apply to existing positions in excess of this threshold (for 
example, Tyson’s Corner and 299 Park). 
The diversification limits outlined above may be exceeded with written approval of the 
Executive Director. 
iii. Direct Equity Real Estate Investments Guidelines 
Authorized investments include directly-held core and non-core properties as noted in the Policy 
& Procedures. The following guidelines apply to those strategies: 
a. Core real estate: leverage limited to 50% of assets.  
b. Non-core real estate: leverage limited to 65% of project cost on “build-to-core” assets. 
c. Total directly-held private real estate: leverage limited to 40% of assets. 
d. Any additional land acquired shall be permitted so long as it is fully entitled at point of 
purchase. Entitlement risk may only be assumed in limited circumstances upon the approval of 
Executive Director. 
iv. Alaska Direct Alternative Credit Investments Guidelines 

In fiscal year 2018, Staff established an in-house hybrid liquid / illiquid alternative credit effort 
named Alaska Direct Alternative Credit (or “ADAC”). Investments included in ADAC will be (i) 
non-investment grade high yield ETF’s and individual bonds and cash (“Liquid Portfolio”) and 
(ii) co-investments with Private Credit managers and working capital cash (“Private 
Portfolio”). The following guidelines apply to ADAC: 

a. ADAC shall be included in the Special Opportunities / Income Opportunities category. 
b. Size and Funding Schedule 

- $500 million funded at inception, initially invested in Liquid Portfolio. 

Formatted: None, Space Before:  0 pt,  No bullets or
numbering, Don't keep with next, Don't keep lines
together

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0", Space After:  0 pt

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Left, Space After:  0 pt, Add space between
paragraphs of the same style,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0", Space After:  0 pt

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Left, Space After:  0 pt, Add space between
paragraphs of the same style,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0", Space After:  0 pt

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Left, Space After:  0 pt, Add space between
paragraphs of the same style,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0", Space After:  0 pt

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0"

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: None, Space Before:  0 pt,  No bullets or
numbering, Don't keep with next, Don't keep lines
together

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0"

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Left, Space After:  0 pt, Add space between
paragraphs of the same style,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted ...
Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

380



Page 65 of 77 
 

- Following inception, additional funds will be invested into ADAC through cash 
transfers to the Liquid Portfolio and capital calls into the Private Portfolio for co-
investments, or working capital or organizational expenses for the Private Credit 
Co-Investment Vehicle. 

- Funding of additional cash transfers to the Liquid Portfolio will be done at no 
greater than a 1:1 ratio with cumulative Private Portfolio capital calls. 

- ITotal invested capital of $1,000 million targeted to be funded within twenty-
four24 months of inception. 

c. Portfolio Control and Decision Making 
- Private Income team will have discretion over portfolio-wide decisions including: 

(i) percentage of portfolio invested in Liquid vs. Private Portfolio, (ii) retaining 
APFC Fixed Income Plus team as manager of the Liquid Portfolio, and (iii) 
individual investment decisions in the Private Portfolio 

d. Liquid Portfolio and Benchmark 
- Liquid Portfolio, initially 100% of ADAC, ultimately scaling down to less than 50%, 

will be managed by the APFC Fixed Income Plus team at inception. 
- The targeted maximum allocation will be the greater of $750 million and 75% of 

ADAC NAV. 
- The targeted minimum allocation will be 25% of ADAC NAV.  
- ETF Account within Liquid Portfolio benchmarked to Barclays US High Yield Index 

(after July 1, 2018 to allow for an initial ramp-up). 
- Individual securities portfolio will favor BB-B over CCC-rated securities and will 

be benchmarked to the Barclays BB High Yield Index (after July 1, 2018 to allow 
for an initial ramp-up). A relatively high tracking error to this index will be 
tolerated with the aim of outperformance over a full market cycle. 

e. Private Portfolio and Benchmark 
- Private Portfolio, initially 0% of ADAC, ultimately scaling to greater than 50%, will 

be managed by the Private Income team 
- The targeted maximum allocation will be 75% of ADAC NAV. 
- The targeted minimum allocation will be 25% of ADAC NAV (after initial, twenty-

four24 month ramp-up). 
- Private Portfolio will target having a minimum of $100 million committed within 

twelve 12 months of inception and a minimum of $250 million within twenty-
four24 months of inception. 

- Co-investment opportunities will be primarily sourced through existing 
managers. 

- Maximum commitment per co-investment of $75 million without Executive 
Director written approval. 

- Private Portfolio will be benchmarked to CPI + 500 bps. 
f. Overall ADAC Portfolio Benchmarks 

- Barclays US High Yield Index (relatively high tracking error to this index will be 
tolerated with the aim of outperformance over a full market cycle). 

381



Page 66 of 77 
 

- A long-term target of CPI + 400 bps. 
g. Tenor and Termination 

- This is an evergreen strategy with realized gains re-invested, which means the 
size of ADAC will be equal to invested capital, plus cumulative 
realized/unrealized gains, minus cumulative realized/unrealized losses. 

- The CIO, with Executive Director consent, may choose to invest additional capital 
at any time. 

- The CIO, with Executive Direct consent, may choose to terminate the strategy at 
any time. Upon termination, available cash will be distributed from ADAC, the 
Liquid Portfolio will be sold within 180 days, and the Private Portfolio will cease 
making new commitments (with the exception of follow-on investments to 
existing portfolio holdings and investments to which a written commitment to 
invest has already been executed; both to be pursued only with written consent 
of the Executive Director) and will distribute proceeds upon any partial or full 
realization of existing investments. 

 
II U.S. Large Cap Low P/E 
 
In the fall of 2019, APFC Public Equity Staff established an internally traded deep value strategy.  
The following guidelines apply to this strategy:  
 

1. Benchmark 

The performance benchmark is the Russell 1000 Value Index. 

2. Risk Limit 

The portfolio will be included within the Total Public Equities’ Tracking Error and Relative VaR 
limits. The allocation limit to the strategy will conform to the limits set in the Public Equities 
investment guidelines. 

3. Concentration Risk 

When originally purchasing securities for this strategy, the securities will all be equally weighted 
and from the lowest valuation quintile of the Russell 1000 index. The portfolio will be rebalanced 
every 12 months to ensure that the securities that make up this portfolio remain equally weighted 
and at least 90% of the securities are in the lowest valuation quintile of the Russell 1000 index.  At 
all times, the portfolio will have a minimum of 100 securities.    

4. Allowable Investments 

The strategy will invest in U.S. listed equity securities from the Russell 1000 Index. 

5. Shorting, Leverage, and Derivatives 

Not applicable at this time. 

6. Liquidity Risk 

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Space After:  0 pt, Add space between
paragraphs of the same style

Formatted: Space After:  0 pt, Add space between
paragraphs of the same style

Formatted: Space After:  0 pt, Add space between
paragraphs of the same style

Formatted: Space After:  0 pt, Add space between
paragraphs of the same style

Formatted: Space After:  0 pt, Add space between
paragraphs of the same style

Formatted: Space After:  0 pt, Add space between
paragraphs of the same style

382



Page 67 of 77 
 

The strategy is expected to be fairly liquid. For example, at $500mm in AUM the portfolio is 
estimated to trade 95% on day 1 and 99% by day 3, under normal market conditions.  
 

7. Portfolio Size limit 

Without prior approval of the CEO and CIO, the market value of the portfolio may not exceed 1% 
of the market value of the total Fund.       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix B: Limit Ranges and Compliance Cure Periods 
-  

IV.C. Absolute Return 

i. Investment Process 
Absolute Return investments shall only be consummated following (i) a search process 
conducted by one of APFC’s Absolute Return consultants or APFC’s general consultant or (ii) 
upon the written analysis of a qualified consultant retained to evaluate a specific proposed 
investment. All investments, in addition to the preceding process, shall only be consummated 
following an independent review of the manager’s operational processes (also known as 
“Operational Due Diligence”). 

ii. Diversification 
Staff shall construct the Absolute Return portfolio with a level of diversification consistent 
with other institutional investors in the asset class, specifically: 

a. Manager Diversification 
To achieve prudent diversification, the portfolio shall (i) at any given time be limited 
to investments with 10 to 25 managers, and (ii) at the time of investment no 
individual fund shall represent more than 10% of the target Absolute Return 
allocation.  

Formatted: Space After:  0 pt, Add space between
paragraphs of the same style

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

383



Page 68 of 77 
 

b. Strategy Diversification  
Staff shall manage the portfolio with a mix of the three primary strategies defined 
in the Policy & Procedures: (i) 0-75% of the portfolio shall be invested with Relative 
Value Managers, (ii) 0-50% of the portfolio shall be invested with Event Driven 
Managers, (iii) 0-75% of the portfolio shall be invested with 
Directional/Tactical/Opportunistic Managers. 

The diversification limits outlined above may be exceeded with written approval of the 
Executive Director. 

iii. Liquidity 

Staff shall manage the liquidity terms and portfolio composition such that they can rely on 
contractual terms to liquidate 50% of the NAV of the portfolio, at any given time, within a 12-
month period. The legacy illiquid fund-of-fund exposures (lock-up funds, private credit 
exposures, and side-pocket exposures) shall not be included for purposes of applying this test. 

The liquidity limits outlined above may be exceeded with written approval of the 
Executive Director. 

VI.  Derivatives 
 
The following guidelines should be adhered for risk management purposes: 

 
a. APFC risk management staff will monitor and report on the use of derivatives based on the 

following: 
a. Monthly reconciliation of managers’ derivatives reports with custodian positions in 

derivatives; 
b. Monthly review of Managers’ use of derivatives relative to their own policies and 

guidelines; 
c. Monthly reports of risk model results (for fixed income only): 

i. Contribution to effective duration and effective convexity, by portfolio, of all 
positions; and 

ii. Economic exposures and risk characteristics of derivatives. 
d. A monthly statement that all portfolios are in compliance with the Policy & 

Procedures and these guidelines, and a description of any instances of non-
compliance and their disposition; and 

e. An annual report that compares Fund risks with and without the derivatives. 
b. Permitted derivatives include those listed in Section VI.B. of the Policy & Procedures as well 

as others allowed in the regulations. 
 

The following guidelines should be adhered to for risk management purposes when investing in 
derivatives in the Public Equities and Fixed Income Plus Portfolios: 

 
a. The net of long and short dollar exposures to assets or currencies, whether derived from 

physical or derivative securities, must be less than or equal to the dollar market value of 
the portfolio, except for very small, inadvertent, or temporary amounts that occur in the 
normal course of portfolio management or authorized by the Executive Director; 

384



Page 69 of 77 
 

b. The gross dollar exposures of the portfolio from physical and derivative securities (futures, 
options, swaps) cannot exceed 300% of the market value of the aggregate underlying 
portfolio at all times unless authorized by the Executive Director; 

c. The CIO may impose further limits on the use of derivatives so that derivative notional 
values are not only constrained by their contribution to portfolio risk factors (such as beta, 
regional or industry exposure) but also with consideration to: liquidity, counterparty credit 
risk, pricing transparency, and model risk. Thus derivative use may be limited even if other 
portfolio risk limits are not breached. 

d. If derivatives are used by a manager to actively manage currency exposure, net short 
exposure to any single currency remains within limits established for that manager’s 
strategy. 

 
VII.  Risk Management and Oversight 
 
The following tables illustrate the guidelines to be followed in terms of active risk limits: 

 
Table VII.2. Relative Risk Guidelines – VaR (Value-at-Risk)  

Category Green Zone 
(CIO) 

Yellow Zone 
(ED) 

Red Zone 
(Board) 

Portfolio 85% to 
110% 70% to 85% & 110% to 120% <70% & >120% 

Fixed Income Plus 70% to 
120% 50% to 70% & 120% to 140% <50% & >140% 

Public Equities 70% to 
120% 50% to 70% & 120% to 140% <50% & >140% 

 
Table VII.3. Relative Risk Guidelines – Tracking Error 

Category Green Zone 
(CIO) 

Yellow Zone 
(ED) 

Red Zone 
(Board) 

Portfolio 0 to 400 
bps* 400 to 600 bps >600 bps 

Public Equities** 0 to 350 
bps 350 to 500 bps >500 bps 

Fixed Income Plus 0 to 350 
bps 350 to 500 bps > 500 bps 

*  bps = basis points (where 100bps = 1%) 
**  Compared to the MSCI All Country Investable Market Equity Index 

 
a. Scenario Analysis: APFC staff will look at a range of scenarios to evaluate mark-to-market 

impacts on the portfolio. These scenarios might include (illustrative): 
a. Slow Deflation 
b. Rapid Deflation 
c. Chinese Market Crash 
d. Fed Tapering Talk (2013) 
e. US Downgrade (2011) 

385



Page 70 of 77 
 

f. 2008 Market Crash 
g. 2007 Credit Crisis 

b. Stress Testing: APFC staff will analyze how specific market shocks might affect the Total 
Fund. Sample shocks to be analyzed are (illustrative):  

a. Global Stock Market Crash 
b. U.S. Stock Market Crash 
c. Euro Stock Market Crash 
d. Japan Stock Market Crash 
e. U.S. Interest Rates Risk 
f. Euro Interest Rates Rise 
g. Japan Interest Rates Rise 
h. U.S. Inflation Rise 
i. Euro Inflation Rise 
j. U.S. Credit Spread Widening 
k. Euro Credit Spread Widening 
l. U.S. Dollar Weakens 
m. VIX Volatility Spike 
n. Oil Crash 

c. The following table provides the guidelines regarding private market asset holdings: 
 

Table VII.4. Private Investments Limits  

Category Green Zone 
(CIO) 

Yellow Zone 
(ED) 

Red Zone 
(Board) 

Private Assets 35 to 50% 25% to 35% & 50% to 55% <25% & >55% 
 

d. The following table provides the guidelines regarding future commitments: 
 
Table VII.5. Future Commitment Limits  

Category Green Zone 
(CIO) 

Yellow Zone 
(ED) Red Zone (Board) 

Future 
Commitments < 20% 20% to 25% >25% 

 
e. Counterparty Exposures: all counterparties should have at least a AAA credit rating. APFC 

staff should also make sure no manager is funded over 5% of the Total Fund NAV. 
f. Liquidity management should be analyzed routinely by APFC Staff as such: 

a. A monthly assessment of Total Fund liquidity 
b. A monthly review and reporting of liquidity ratios 
c. A quarterly review of liquidity scenario analysis to be presented to the Board of 

Trustees 
d. An annual assessment of the conditions required to result in a liquidity breach 

event  
g. Risk Management Compliance Cure Periods and Remedies should follow these guidelines: 

386



Page 71 of 77 
 

 
The Green Zone Operating Range (“Green Zone”) concept is designed to indicate the 
Board-approved operating risk limits.  

1. The Green Zone is the Board-approved Chief Investment Officer (“CIO”) operating range. 
a. The portfolio must be within the Green Zone at least 80% of the calendar year; the 

Board must approve exceptions. 
2. The Yellow Zone is the Board-approved Executive Director (“ED”) operating range. 

a. The Chief Financial Risk Officer (“CRFO”) will notify the CIO and ED promptly upon 
entry into a Yellow Zone. 

b. The CIO will respond by requesting ED approval to operate within the Yellow Zone. 
c. With ED approval, the CIO may operate within a Yellow Zone for up to 90 consecutive 

days or, if longer, until the next Board meeting following entry into a Yellow Zone. 
d. The CRFO will notify the Board (i) when approaching 90 days of operating within a 

Yellow Zone and (ii) monthly thereafter.  
e. Following Board notification, a Trustee may request in writing a meeting to discuss 

an extension to continue operating within the Yellow Zone. 
f. The Board may grant the CIO and ED an extension to continue operating within a 

Yellow Zone. Between Board meetings, unless a Trustee requests a meeting, the 
Board Chair may grant the CIO and ED an extension to continue operating within a 
Yellow Zone. 

3. The Red Zone is the operating range that requires Board approval. 
a. The CRFO will notify the Board upon entry into a Red Zone. 
b. The ED will respond to the Board with an action plan. 
c. Absent Board approval, operating within a Red Zone is limited to 30 consecutive days 

(plus the time needed to notice a Board meeting). 
d. The Board has the authority to approve operating within a Red Zone, beyond 30 days. 

 
Even though the Fund is expected to operate most of the time within the Green Zone, the Fund 
may periodically be within a Yellow Zone, and there may be times when the Fund will be within a 
Red Zone. The zones are designed to increase transparency and awareness; they should not be 
viewed as explicit violations. A historical report showing periods of operating within the Yellow and 
Red Zones will be included in Board meeting packets. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

387



Page 72 of 77 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  

388



Page 73 of 77 
 

Exhibit VII.1. Visual Display of Green Zone Concept 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Exhibit VII.2. Green Zone Example for Public Equities  

      

Board 
Approved 

 

CIO 
Operating 
Authority 

ED Operating 
Authority 

ED Operating 
Authority 

Board 
Operating 
Authority 

Board 
Operating 
Authority 

     

Board Approved 
Target Allocation 
Absolute Return 

37% 

425% to 4755% 

325% to 4245% Greater than 
4755% 

Less than 
 

2730% to 325% 

  

 
Actual Allocation 39% 

In Compliance 

389



Page 74 of 77 
 

Appendix B: Internal Investment Managers 
This Appendix identifies internal Investment Managers at APFC. The Executive Director may 
update this Appendix from time-to-time; updates will be provided to the Board at its next regularly 
scheduled meeting.  
 
Name and Title Asset Class  
Fawad Razzaque, Director of Investments, Public Equity 

Public Equity 
Youlian Ninkov, Analyst and Trader 

Jim Parise, Director of Investments, Tradable Income 

Fixed Income Plus 
Chris Cummins, Senior Portfolio Manager, Fixed Income 
Masha Skuratovskaya, Senior Portfolio Manager, Fixed Income 
Matt Olmsted, Senior Portfolio Manager 
Tom O’Day, Analyst and Trader 

Steve Moseley, Director of Investments, Private Equity &  
Special Opportunities Private Equity & Special Opportunities 

Yup Kim, Senior Portfolio Manager 
Marcus Frampton, Director of Investments, Real Estate,  
Infrastructure & Private Income, Absolute Return Real Estate, 

Infrastructure & Private Income, 
and Absolute Return 

Jared Brimberry, Senior Portfolio Manager, Private Income 
Rose Duran, Director of Real Estate Investments 
Tim Andreyka, Senior Portfolio Manager, Real Estate 

Valeria Martinez, Director of Investments, Asset Allocation Asset Allocation Programs 

Russell Read, Chief Investment Officer Oversees all Assets Classes 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Formatted: Highlight

390



Page 75 of 77 
 

Appendix C: Glossary 
AAC means the Alaska Administrative Code. 
ADA means the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990. 
Advisors and Board Advisors mean the investment professionals who comprise the Board’s 
Investment Advisory Group.  
APFC and Corporation mean the Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation, established under AS 
37.13.040. 
AS means Alaska Statutes. 
BB means Bloomberg. 
Board means the Board of Trustees of the APFC. 
CMBS means commercial mortgage-backed securities. 
CFO means the APFC’s Chief Financial Officer. 
CIO means the APFC’s Chief Investment Officer. 
Consultant means the Board’s investment consultant(s), not including Board Advisors. 
CPI means the Consumer Price Index. 
CRO means Chief Risk Officer 
Custodian means the APFC’s custodian. 
Days means calendar days. 
ED means the APFC’s Executive Director. 
FoF means fund-of-funds.  
Fund and Permanent Fund mean the Alaska Permanent Fund, established under Article IX, Section 
15, of the Alaska Constitution, and described in AS 37.13.010. 
IMA means investment management agreement. 
Investment Manager and Manager mean investment manager(s) retained by the APFC. 
IRR means internal rate-of-return. 
Long-Term means over one or more business cycles. 
MBS means mortgage-backed securities. 
RBM means Strategic Risk Benchmark. 
Staff means the APFC Investment staff and, where the context requires, also means or includes 
the Executive Director and/or other APFC staff. 
TE means Tracking Error. 
Trustees means the members of the APFC’s Board of Trustees. 
VaR means Value at Risk.  
  

Formatted: Font: Bold

391



Page 76 of 77 
 

Appendix D: Previous Investment Policy Adoption and Amendments 
The previous APFC Investment Policy was adopted or amended effective as follows: 
Adopted: May 27, 2010 
Amended: September 30, 2010 (§14.9 added) 
Amended: December 1, 2010 (§9.1 revised; new §11.1 added and prior §§11.1-11.3 and 

subsections thereunder renumbered; and §18.2.4 revised) 
Amended: May 20, 2011 (§18A added) 
Amended: September 30, 2011 (§§ 8, 8.2, 8.3, 8.5, 9.2, 9.3.1, 9.4.1, 11.3.1, 15.3, and 

15.4 revised) 
Amended: December 8, 2011 (§11.3.2 revised) 
Amended: February 22, 2012 (§20 revised) 
Amended: April 23, 2012 (§§16.3.1 and 16.3.2 revised; and Specific Policy Modifications 

for Tysons Corner Phase I Project and Mariner Frontier Fund, L.P. added) 

Amended: February 27, 2013 (§§ 15.2, 15.3, and 15.4 revised) 
Amended: May 22, 2013 (§§9.5.4, 9.5.5,12.4, 12.6, 13.2, 13.3.1, 13.3.3, 14.9.4.10, 16.1.2, 

16.1.3, 16.1.4, 16.2, 16.3, 16.3.1, 18A, 23.2, and 23.5 revised; Specific Policy 
Modification for Mariner Frontier Fund, L.P. revised; Specific Policy 
Modification for Crestline AK Permanent Fund, L.P. added; and Addendum re 
Internal Investment Managers added) 

Amended: May 23, 2013 (§§ 3.1, 3.3, 5.3, 6, 8 (including Table 8a), 8.1 revised; §8.2 
deleted; §§ 8.3-8.5 renumbered (as §§ 8.2-8.4) and newly-renumbered §§ 
8.2-8.4 revised; and §§ 9.2, 9.3.1, 9.4.1, 10, 11.3.1, and 22.2 revised) 

Amended: February 26, 2014 (§§23.3.1, and 23.2 revised; and Addendum re Internal 
Investment Managers revised) 

Amended: May 21, 2014 (§14.9.4.10 (including Table 14.9.4.10.1) revised) 
Amended: December 10, 2014 (§§ 8, 9.3.1, 11.3.2, 14.2.2, and Table 14.5.4.1revised) 
Amended: May 19, 2015 (§§ 15 and 16, including conforming changes in other sections 

revised) 
Amended: September 27, 2016 
Amended: December, 2016 (§§ 9, 10 and 12, including conforming changes in other 

sections revised)   

Amended: May 23, 2018, complete re-write of the Policy and Guidelines. Changes to be 
effective on July 1, 2018.  
  

Amended:  September 27, 2018 (§ 5, Alaska Investment Policy was revised)  
 
Amended:  May 21?, 2020, complete rewrite of the Investment Policy.  
  

392



Page 77 of 77 
 

Callan’s Capital Markets Projections (2018-2027) 

    Asset Class   PROJECTED RETURN PROJECTED 
RISK   

Asset Class Performance Index 
Target 
Weight 

Target 
Weight 

1-Year 
Arithmetic 

10-Year 
Geometric* 

Standard 
Deviation 

Projected 
Yield 

Public Equities   39.0% 8.60% 7.05% 18.85% 2.60% 
Global Equity MSCI ACWI - IMI   8.60% 7.05% 18.85% 2.40% 

Fixed Income Plus     22.0% 4.10% 4.05% 5.00% 4.00% 

Money Markets 90-Day T-Bill 5.0% 1.1% 2.25% 2.25% 0.90% 2.25% 

TIPS Barclays TIPS 5.0% 1.1% 3.10% 3.00% 5.25% 3.30% 

US Fixed Income Barclays Aggregate 25.0% 5.5% 3.05% 3.00% 3.75% 3.45% 

US Investment Grade Credit Barclays Credit 25.0% 5.5% 3.65% 3.55% 5.05% 4.00% 

Non-US Fixed Income Barclays Global AggregateXUS 10.0% 2.2% 1.80% 1.40% 9.20% 1.90% 

Emerging Market Debt Barclays EMD Hard Currency 5.0% 1.1% 4.85% 4.50% 9.60% 4.90% 

Global High Yield Barclays Global High Yield 10.0% 2.2% 5.20% 4.75% 10.35% 5.40% 

Global REITs S&P Global REIT 10.0% 2.2% 8.25% 6.40% 20.30% 4.30% 

Global Listed Infrastructure S&P Global Listed Infrastructure 5.0% 1.1% 7.65% 6.40% 17.25% 4.00% 

Private Equity/Growth Opps     11.0% 10.60% 8.50% 22.00% 0.00% 

Private Equity Cambridge Private Equity   11.0% 10.60% 8.50% 22.00% 0.00% 

Private Real Estate     10.0% 6.90% 5.75% 16.35% 4.75% 

Real Estate NCREIF Total Index   10.0% 6.90% 5.75% 16.35% 4.75% 

Private Infra/Credit/Income     6.0% 6.65% 5.75% 14.50% 5.50% 

Private Infrastructure FTSE Global Listed Infrastruc 60.0% 3.6% 6.45% 5.75% 13.00% 5.00% 

Private Credit Barclays Global High Yield 40.0% 2.4% 6.95% 5.75% 16.50% 6.25% 

Absolute Return     6.0% 5.35% 5.05% 9.15% 0.00% 

Hedge Funds HFRI Total HFOF Universe   6.0% 5.35% 5.05% 9.15% 0.00% 

Asset Allocation     6.0% 7.15% 6.55% 12.55% 3.00% 

Cash Equivalents 90-Day T-Bill 33.3% 2.0% 2.25% 2.25% 0.90% 2.25% 

Multi Asset Class/ECIO APFC Total Fund Target 66.7% 4.0% 7.15% 6.55% 12.55% 3.00% 

Inflation CPI-U       2.25% 1.50%   

              

Total Fund APFC Total Fund Target   100.0% 7.15% 6.55% 12.55% 3.00% 

 
 

Commented [MV20]: Can this be removed? 

393



Page 1 of 32 
 

APFC Investment Policy  
Adopted May 21, 2020, Effective Date July 1, 2020 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

SECTION 
 

 INTRODUCTION ................................................................................................................................. 2 

 TOTAL FUND & PORTFOLIO DESIGN PHILOSOPHY ................................................................ 3 

 PUBLIC MARKETS .............................................................................................................................. 6 

 ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENTS ....................................................................................................... 11 

 ALASKA IN-STATE INVESTMENT POLICY ................................................................................. 17 

 AUTHORIZED USE OF DERIVATIVES .......................................................................................... 18 

 RISK MANAGEMENT & OVERSIGHT .......................................................................................... 20 

 PUBLIC MARKETS EXTERNAL MANAGER SELECTION .......................................................... 24 

Appendix A:  Investment Guidelines ....................................................................................................... 26 

Appendix B:  Limit Ranges & Compliance Cure Periods ..................................................................... 29 

Appendix C:  Glossary ................................................................................................................................ 31 

Appendix D:  Previous Investment Policy Adoption & Amendments  ................................................... 31 

 

 

  

394



Page 2 of 32 
 

 INTRODUCTION 

A. Purpose 

1. The purpose of this Investment Policy (“Policy”) is to provide a formal plan for investing 
and managing the assets of the Alaska Permanent Fund and other state assets as 
prescribed by law (“Fund”) to achieve the defined investment objectives. This Policy also 
defines the roles and responsibilities of the various parties involved in the investment 
process and facilitates external communication of the Policy. The appendices are 
incorporated into and form part of this Policy. Terms not defined within the body of the 
Policy have meanings assigned to them in the “Glossary,” Appendix C of this document. 

2. This document is not intended to be a static document and will be considered for possible 
amendment on an annual basis or any time the Board of Trustees (“Board”) modifies the 
Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation’s (“APFC”) investment-related policies or asset 
allocation. Amendment of this Policy requires Board action as described in AS 37.13.080 
and the APFC By-Laws (“By-Laws”). Following any Board approved amendment to this 
document, changes will be noted in Board meeting minutes and as soon as practicable this 
document will be amended to reflect the approved changes and posted on the APFC 
website. 

B. Roles of the Board, Staff, Consultants, and Advisors 

1. The Board has a responsibility to invest Fund assets in accordance with the Alaska 
Constitution and the prudent-investor rule provided in AS 37.13.120(a) – (e). The Board 
has adopted regulations (15 AAC 137.410 – 15 AAC 137.990), which define the eligible 
investments of Fund assets (“Regulations”). The Board has also adopted By-Laws, which 
delegate and empower the APFC Staff to invest and manage Fund assets consistent with 
the parameters of the Regulations and this Policy. Finally, through regularly scheduled and 
special meetings, the Board oversees the management of APFC Staff and Fund assets, and 
ensures that APFC has the resources needed to fulfill its objectives as effectively as 
possible.  

2. The APFC Staff’s task is to invest and manage Fund assets to fulfill the Fund’s objectives, as 
specified by the Board, in this Investment Policy. Additionally, APFC Staff advises the 
Board about recommended changes to the asset allocation and this Policy to help the Fund 
achieve its objectives. Finally, APFC Staff, or external investment managers selected by 
APFC Staff, negotiates and executes all investment plans and strategies, performs risk-
management functions, and helps prepare investment performance and other management 
reports. 

3. External consultants provide advice and implementation assistance to the Board and APFC 
Staff related to investment programs at both the overall Fund level (“General Consultant”) 
as well as for specific asset classes. The General Consultant also reports on the progress 
that the Fund is making with regard to specific investment programs and makes 
comparisons of Fund performance against its target benchmarks, including Fund peers.  

395



Page 3 of 32 
 

4. Consistent with the Board’s Charters and Governance Policies, up to three Investment 
Advisors are selected by the Board to provide education, advice, commentary, and 
discussion at Board meetings, or as requested by the Board. 

 TOTAL FUND & PORTFOLIO DESIGN PHILOSOPHY 

A. Total Fund Objective 

Consistent with the Legislature’s findings regarding the purpose of the Alaska Permanent Fund 
(AS 37.13.020), the Board’s objective is for the Fund to achieve the highest level of investment 
performance that is compatible with the Board’s risk tolerance and prudent investment 
practices. Because of the perpetual nature of the Fund and the Legislature’s finding that the 
Fund should benefit all generations of Alaskans, the Board maintains a long-term perspective 
when formulating this Policy and in evaluating Fund performance. To that end, the Board 
expects the Fund’s design and performance will be evaluated using the following criteria: 

1. Investment Performance: ability to generate an annualized return of CPI + 5% over a 
10-year period (“long-term target”) 

2. Investment Risk: ability of the Fund to achieve the long-term target while conforming to 
the risk appetite approved by the Board 

B. Total Fund Asset Mix 

1. APFC’s investment programs are organized by asset class and APFC Staff assist the Board 
in engaging in an asset allocation study for the Fund at least once every five (5) years to 
review asset classes, risk-return assumptions, and correlations of investment returns with 
applicable benchmarks and across asset classes. A key objective of the asset allocation 
study shall be the development, through quantitative and qualitative modeling techniques, 
of a diversified portfolio that specifies a “long-term target” position for each asset class. 
The total Fund portfolio mix will represent the portfolio that is expected to meet the 
Board’s long-term target while conforming to the risk appetite approved by the Board. 

2. Each asset class allocation percentage shall designate a “long-term target” position within 
the overall portfolio as well as maximum and minimum ranges around those targets, as 
outlined in Table1. Ranges are specified by a “green zone” which reflect normal expected 
variability around the targets, “yellow zone” which reflect potential remediation by APFC 
Staff according to prudent portfolio management over a reasonable period of time, and 
“red zone” which require Board approval of a remediation plan within 30 days. Ranges 
of these zones are expressed as percentages of the overall Fund. Details of the zones and 
compliance cure periods are provided in Appendix B. 

  

396



Page 4 of 32 
 

Table 1: Asset Allocation (AA) Target Levels by Year as % of Fund 

 

C. Total Fund and Asset Class Benchmarks 

Each asset class is associated with a benchmark that describes in general terms the 
opportunity set and return characteristics associated with the asset class (“Policy Benchmark”). 
For certain private market asset classes, the Policy Benchmark serves as a proxy for expected 
returns rather than an approximation of the actual investments that will characterize the 
components of the portfolio. Note that the investment returns and Policy Benchmarks for 
Private Equity & Special Opportunities, Real Estate, and Infrastructure & Private Income are 
lagged by one quarter for performance calculation purposes, as is common practice among 
large institutional investors. Each asset class is also associated with a long-term return 
objective, which cumulatively reflects the Fund’s long-term objective of CPI + 5% or better. 
The long-term return objectives and Policy Benchmarks for each asset class are reflected in 
Table 2. 

Table 2: Benchmarks - Constituent Indices and Weights 

 

397



Page 5 of 32 
 

D. Total Fund Performance Measurement and Reporting 

1. The Board looks to its General Consultant as the primary source of quantitative evaluation 
of the performance of the Fund and its investment managers. As promptly as possible 
after the close of each calendar quarter, the General Consultant shall submit a report to 
the Board, Executive Director (“ED”) and Chief Investment Officer (“CIO”) analyzing the 
performance of the Fund, its asset classes and investment programs, including both 
internally and externally managed assets. The report shall include a comparison of total 
Fund performance with the Board's long-term investment objective, an analysis of the 
returns of each asset class as measured against established benchmarks; and an analysis 
of the returns of each manager or relevant groupings of managers as measured against 
relevant benchmarks. For the purpose of evaluating the value-added by the Fund’s 
investment strategy, the report shall also compare the performance of the total Fund on a 
one-year basis to a passive benchmark that represents the following: (1) 60% MSCI 
ACWI IMI; (2) 20% Barclay Global Aggregate (less fees); (3) 10% FTSE EPRA/NAREIT 
Rental Index; (4) and 10% US TIPs. The General Consultant's report shall also address any 
special concerns or observations the General Consultant concludes should be brought to 
the attention of the Board, ED and CIO. 

2. At each regular Board meeting, the General Consultant will also report on the investment 
performance of the Fund and each asset class in comparison with Fund peers (i.e., large 
US Public Funds and Endowment Funds). The comparative performance of the Fund and 
each asset class will be assessed and reported across multiple timeframes, including ten-
year, five-year, three-year, and one-year. To the extent that peer comparisons may not 
be directly available for specific asset class comparisons, the General Consultant should 
use the Fund’s Policy Benchmarks (see Table 2) as a proxy. 

E. Total Fund Portfolio Implementation and Delegations 

APFC Staff directs all investment activities through a delegation of investment authority in the 
By-Laws from the Board to the ED and then from the ED to specific APFC Staff, as deemed 
appropriate by the ED. The ED will convene a Public Markets Investment Committee and a 
Private Markets Investment Committee (together, the “APFC Investment Committee”) on a 
regular basis in order to discuss and deliberate on investment decisions requiring the ED’s 
authorization. The sole voting member of the APFC Investment Committee shall be the ED. The 
CIO will also convene an investment department investment committee (“Investment 
Department Investment Committee”). The Investment Department Investment Committee will 
meet regularly and will work with APFC Staff to make investment recommendations 
(“Investment Recommendations”) to be considered for authorization by the ED during the APFC 
Investment Committee. 

Approval of any Investment Recommendation referred by the Investment Department 
Investment Committee to the APFC Investment Committee requires the affirmative approval of 
the ED taking into consideration, in a collaborative manner, input from various functions at 
APFC (e.g. Legal, Finance, Operations, Admin, IT, and Risk). Investment Recommendations from 
the Investment Department Investment Committee to the APFC Investment Committee shall be in 
writing and Investment Decisions approved by the APFC Investment Committee shall also be in 
writing. Variations or the non-approval of an Investment Recommendation of the Investment 

398



Page 6 of 32 
 

Department Investment Committee by the APFC Investment Committee shall be reported to the 
Board on a monthly basis. 

F. Relationship of the Investment Policy with Regulations and Investment Guidelines 

As required by AS 37.13.120(a), the Board has adopted Regulations specifically designating 
the types of investments in which Fund assets can be invested. All investments authorized by 
this Policy shall be limited to those authorized investments and in the manner prescribed by 
this Policy and AS 37.13.120. 

The Investment Guidelines, attached as Appendix A, supplement the Investment Policy by 
providing operational guidelines for APFC’s internally managed investment programs. The 
CIO, with the consent of the ED may update the Investment guidelines from time to time; 
updates will be provided to the Board at its next regularly scheduled meeting. 

 PUBLIC MARKETS 

A. Public Equity 

1. Objective 

The objective of the Public Equity portfolio is to invest in publicly traded securities 
authorized in 15 AAC 137.440, to exceed the performance of a well-diversified pool of 
global equities embodied in the MSCI ACWI IMI Index, while maintaining risk similar to 
that of the benchmark. Performance of this portfolio will be evaluated quarterly, but 
success in achieving the long-term objective (see Table 2) will be measured, net of all costs 
and fees, on a one-year, three-year, five-year, and ten-year annualized basis. 

2. Structure 

Consistent with performance objectives, applicable tracking error guidelines, and other 
investment restrictions described in this Policy and Investment Guidelines, the Public Equity 
portfolio may include: 

a. Actively and quasi-passively managed equity strategies to enhance the after-fee 
return of the portfolio relative to its assigned benchmark; and 

b. Passively managed equity strategies to replicate, in a cost-efficient manner, the 
returns of a benchmark index. 

3. Investment Strategy 

The Public Equity portfolio will be managed by a mix of external active managers, 
external passive managers and internal managers. In the case of active external 
managers, each manager, through an investment manager agreement (“IMA”), will be 
directed to focus on a subset of the global equity market in which the manager has 
demonstrated an ability to provide risk-adjusted, after-fee returns in excess of its 
respective benchmark. Each external manager’s IMA will also detail its strategy, 
performance objectives, permitted investments and restrictions. 

399



Page 7 of 32 
 

The CIO may also approve the internal management of a portion of the Public Equity 
portfolio by APFC Staff. In place of an IMA, the CIO and ED will require the approval of 
and adherence to Investment Guidelines that cover the relevant aspects of the portion of 
the Public Equity portfolio internally managed by APFC Staff. The Director of Public Equity 
will have primary responsibility for executing the portfolio’s investment strategy. 

4. Rebalancing and Mandate Modification 

The Director of Public Equity may, with the approval of the CIO, rebalance assets to, from, 
or between individual Public Equity portfolios.  

Initiating or terminating external manager mandates requires the consent of CIO and ED 
and must conform to Section VIII of this Policy (Public Markets External Manager 
Selection). 

5. Risk Limits and Portfolio Restrictions 

The Director of Public Equity is responsible for managing the various risks incurred and 
adhering to the Investment Policy. In addition to general Policy requirements, the following 
asset class specific restrictions apply to this portfolio: 

a. Risk Limits as detailed in Table 3, Section VII. 
b. Short selling is prohibited by an internal or external manager of assets in this 

portfolio, unless authorized by the CIO and Chief Risk Officer (“CRO”). 
c. All derivatives in this portfolio must comply with Section VI (Authorized Use of 

Derivatives) of this Policy. 
d. All externally managed mandates must comply with Section VIII (External Manager 

Selection) of this Policy. 

B. Fixed Income 

1. Objective 

The objective of the Fixed Income portfolio is to provide income-oriented investment 
returns and diversify the risks of the Fund’s equity-oriented programs. The Fixed Income 
portfolio invests in publicly traded and other liquid income-oriented investments 
authorized in 15 AAC 137.430, to meet or exceed the performance of the Fixed Income 
Composite Benchmark, while staying within predefined risk constraints. Performance of 
this portfolio will be evaluated quarterly, but success in achieving the long-term objective 
(see Table 2) will be measured, net of all costs and fees, on a one-year, three-year, five-
year, and ten-year annualized basis. 

2. Structure 

Consistent with performance objectives, applicable tracking error guidelines, and other 
investment restrictions described in this Policy and Investment Guidelines, the Fixed Income 
portfolio may include: 

400



Page 8 of 32 
 

a. Actively and quasi-passively managed income producing strategies that enhance 
the after-fee return of the Fixed Income portfolio relative to its assigned 
benchmark; and 

b. Passively managed income producing strategies to replicate, in a cost-efficient 
manner, the returns of a benchmark index. 

3. Investment Strategy 

The Fixed Income portfolio will primarily be implemented by the CIO’s internal APFC 
Staff, which may be supplemented by hiring external investment managers to manage 
portions of the Fixed Income portfolio which are not appropriate for internal management 
by APFC. Regarding the Fixed Income assets that are externally managed, each external 
manager, through an IMA, will be directed to focus on a subset of the Fixed Income 
portfolio in which the manager has demonstrated an ability to manage in relation to its 
respective benchmark. Each external manager’s IMA will also detail its strategy, 
performance objectives, permitted investments, and restrictions. The Director of Fixed 
Income will have primary responsibility in executing the portfolio’s investment strategy. 

4. Rebalancing and Mandate Modification 

The Director of Fixed Income may, with the approval of the CIO, rebalance assets to, 
from, or between individual Fixed Income portfolios.  

Initiating or terminating external manager mandates requires the consent of the CIO and 
ED, and must conform to Section VIII of this Policy (Public Markets External Manager 
Selection). 

 

5. Risk Limits and Portfolio Restrictions 

The Director of Fixed Income is responsible for managing the various risks incurred and 
adhering to this Policy. In addition to general Policy requirements, the following asset class 
specific restrictions apply to this portfolio: 

a. Risk Limits as detailed in Table 3, Section VII. 
b. Short selling is prohibited by an internal or external manager of assets in this 

portfolio, unless authorized by the CIO and CRO. 
c. All derivatives in this portfolio must comply with Section VI (Authorized Use of 

Derivatives) of this Policy. 
d. All externally managed mandates must comply with Section VIII (Public Markets 

External Manager Selection) of this Policy. 

C. Risk Parity 

1. Objective 

The objective of the Risk Parity portfolio is to deliver long-term returns that meet or 
exceed the performance of a 60% stock/40% bond portfolio through managers which 
seek to generate returns that are less correlated to global public markets utilizing 

401



Page 9 of 32 
 

allocation of risk rather than allocation of capital. Performance of this portfolio will be 
evaluated quarterly against the Hedge Fund Research HFR 12% Vol Institutional Index, 
but success in achieving the long-term objective (see Table 2) will be measured, net of all 
costs and fees, on a one-year, three-year, five-year, and ten-year annualized basis. 

2. Investment Strategy 

The Risk Parity portfolio will be managed by external managers, selected in accordance 
with the requirements of this Policy, that provide risk-balanced exposure to multiple 
sources of excess expected return. Each manager, through an IMA or limited liability fund, 
will detail its strategy, performance objectives, permitted investments and restrictions. The 
Director of Risk Parity will have primary responsibility in executing the portfolio’s 
investment strategy and plans. 

3. Risk Limits and Portfolio Restrictions 

The Director of Risk Parity is responsible for managing the various risks incurred and 
adhering to this Policy. In addition to general Policy requirements, the following restrictions 
will apply to this portfolio: 

a. Risk Limits as detailed in Table 3, Section VII. 
b. Short selling is prohibited unless authorized by the CIO and CRO. 
c. All derivatives in this portfolio must comply with Section VI (Authorized Use of 

Derivatives) of this Policy. 
d. All externally managed mandates must comply with Section VIII (Public Markets 

External Manager Selection) of this Policy. 

D. Total Fund Cash 

1. Objective 

The objective of the Total Fund Cash portfolio is to: 

a. Be a source of funds available to meet the Fund’s operational needs, including 
capital calls and appropriations from the Earnings Reserve Account to the State’s 
general fund; and 

b. Allocate a small portion of the Fund to an asset class that is nearly risk-free and 
experiences extremely low volatility.  

Performance of this portfolio will be evaluated quarterly and will be measured against 
the risk and after-fee return of the 90 Day Treasury Bills Index, but success in achieving 
the long-term objective (see Table 2) will be measured, net of all costs and fees, on a one-
year, three-year, five-years, and ten-year annualized basis. 

2. Investment Strategy 

The Total Fund Cash portfolio will be internally managed at the direction of the CIO. The 
size and investment profile of this portfolio may fluctuate month-to-month to accommodate 
the Fund’s liquidity requirements. The CIO will have primary responsibility in executing this 
portfolio’s investment strategy. 

402



Page 10 of 32 
 

3. Authorized Investments 

The CIO may invest this portfolio in cash and the following cash equivalents: 

a. US Treasuries with a maximum final maturity of 24 months; 
b. Investment Grade US corporate bonds with a maximum final maturity of 24 

months; 
c. Reverse Repurchase Agreements (“Reverse Repo”), as authorized by 

15 AAC 137.430(12); 
d. SEC registered money market investment funds; 
e. Other cash equivalents approved by the CRO and ED; and 
f. Gold-backed exchange traded funds as authorized by15 AAC 137.460. 

4. Risk Limits and Portfolio Restrictions 

The CIO is responsible for managing the various risks incurred and adhering to this Policy. 
In addition to general Policy requirements, the following specific restrictions will apply to 
this portfolio: 

a. Risk Limits as detailed in Table 3, Section VII. 
b. At any point, 80% of the portfolio should be invested in instruments with a final 

maturity not exceeding 181 days.  
c. Gold-backed exchange traded funds shall not exceed 50% of the Total Fund 

Cash portfolio at any time. 
d. Short selling is prohibited in this portfolio. 
e. All derivatives in this portfolio must comply with Section VI (Authorized Use of 

Derivatives) of this Policy. 

E. Securities Lending 

1. Authorized Investments 

The ED is authorized to enter into a securities lending agreement with the Fund’s custodian 
to lend domestic and non-domestic Public Equity and Fixed Income securities from the 
Fund’s portfolio directly to borrowers for a fee in accordance with the following 
guidelines: 

a. The Fund’s custodian shall agree to indemnify the Fund against any direct loss 
from: 

i. a borrower default; 
ii. the reinvestment of cash collateral; and 
iii. the failure to comply with the terms and conditions of the lending 

agreements; 
b. Collateral shall be required at a minimum of 102% of the market value of the 

loaned securities which are denominated in the same currency as the collateral 
provided by the borrower;  

403



Page 11 of 32 
 

c. Collateral shall be required at a minimum of 105% of the market value of the 
loaned securities which are denominated in a currency other than the collateral 
provided by the borrower; 

d. Collateral and loaned securities shall be marked-to-market daily; and 
e. The investment of cash collateral posted by borrowers shall be restricted to those 

investment-grade securities permissible under the provisions of AS 37.13.120 and 
15 AAC 137; unless the ED elects to have cash collateral released to the Fund to 
meet the Fund’s liquidity needs rather than having it invested by the custodian.  

 ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENTS 

A. Private Equity and Special Opportunities 

1. Objective 

The objective of the Private Equity & Special Opportunities (“PESO”) portfolio is to invest 
in illiquid growth-oriented assets authorized by 15 AAC 137.460 that are expected to 
generate risk-adjusted, after-fee returns that are superior to the Public Equity portfolio. 
Performance of this portfolio will be evaluated quarterly, in aggregate and based upon 
the vintage year, against the Cambridge PE (Lagged), but success in achieving the long-
term objective (see Table 2) will be measured, net of all costs, fees, and carry, on a one-
year, three-year, five-year, and ten-year annualized basis. 

2. Investment Strategy 

PESO investment strategies include: venture capital, growth equity, leveraged buyouts, 
special opportunities, and distressed debt. PESO portfolio investments will be executed 
through capital commitments to limited liability funds managed by external investment 
managers, through co-investments alongside existing external managers, and direct 
investments into operating companies. Annually, APFC Staff will provide a pacing and 
investment plan for Board approval that reflects the current PESO exposures, assumptions, 
and outlook. The Deputy CIO-Private Markets & Alternatives will have primary 
responsibility in executing the PESO portfolio’s investment strategy. 

3. Diversification and Portfolio Restrictions 

The Deputy CIO-Private Markets & Alternatives is responsible for managing the portfolio 
risks and adhering to this Policy. In constructing a diversified PESO portfolio, APFC Staff 
will consider the following characteristics: strategy, geography, industry, manager, 
investment size, leverage, vintage year, and market position. In addition to general Policy 
requirements, the following asset class specific restrictions apply to this portfolio: 

a. Risk Limits as detailed in Table 3, Section VII. 
b. All derivatives in this portfolio must comply with Section VI (Authorized Use of 

Derivatives) of this Policy. 
c. The PESO portfolio shall be invested within the following strategy diversification 

ranges: 
 

404



Page 12 of 32 
 

i. Venture Capital – 5% to 45%; 
ii. Buyouts/Acquisition – 25% to 70%; 
iii. Specialized Funds/Investments – 0% to 50%; 

d. No more than 20% of the PESO Portfolio shall be invested with a single Investment 
Manager/General Partner. 

e. No more than 20% of the PESO Portfolio shall be invested in publicly traded 
securities; and 

f. Following the public listing of any shares of a portfolio company held by an APFC 
controlled investment vehicle, such shares shall be either liquidated consistent with 
SEC regulations within a reasonable period of time, not to exceed eighteen 
months, or written approval to continuing holding such public securities must be 
received from the ED on a quarterly basis. 

B. Real Estate 

1. Objective 

The objective of the Real Estate portfolio is to generate a risk-adjusted return comprised 
of an attractive level of current income and capital appreciation, while contributing to 
diversification of the Fund. Performance of the Real Estate portfolio will be evaluated 
quarterly against a custom benchmark comprised of 85% NCREIF Property Benchmark 
(Lagged) and 15% MSCI US REIT Index, but success in achieving the long-term objective 
will be measured, net of all costs, fees, and carry, on a one-year, three-year, five-year, 
and ten-year annualized basis. 

2. Investment Strategy 

Real Estate investments, as authorized in 15 AAC 137.450, shall primarily target: 

a. Directly-held income producing, core real estate globally; 
b. Directly-held build-to-core or other non-core properties; 
c. Equity and debt funds that invest predominantly in real estate strategies (e.g. core, 

core-plus, value-added, and opportunistic); 
d. Publicly traded funds (e.g. ETFs or Index), or securities (e.g. REITs, CMBS, or other 

structured product), where the underlying investments consist of real estate; 
e. Private funds, or securities (e.g., REITs, CMBS, or other structured product), where 

the underlying investments consist of real estate; and 
f. Co-investments alongside an existing Real Estate manager. 

The Director of Real Estate will have primary responsibility in executing the portfolio’s 
investment strategy. 

3. Diversification and Portfolio Restrictions 

The Director of Real Estate is responsible for managing the various risks incurred and 
adhering to this Policy. In constructing a diversified Real Estate portfolio, APFC Staff will 
consider the following characteristics: investment type, property type, geography, 

405



Page 13 of 32 
 

manager, and leverage. In addition to general Policy requirements, the following will 
apply to this portfolio: 

a. Risk Limits as detailed in Table 3, Section VII. 
b. All derivatives in this portfolio must comply with Section VI (Authorized Use of 

Derivatives) of this Policy. 
c. No more than 60% of the directly-held Real Estate portfolio shall be invested in 

“non-core” real estate (value-add and opportunistic). 
d. The directly-held portion of the Real Estate portfolio will target the following 

property types: Multifamily, Industrial, Office, Hotel, and Retail with maximum 
weightings for each property type measured against NCREIF NPI benchmark 
weightings. Except for the 10% carve-out for other property described in (f) of 
this section, maximum risk ceilings of 1.5x the benchmark weighting shall apply for 
each property type measured against the FY2025 target allocation for the Real 
Estate portfolio. 

e. In recognition that APFC Staff may pursue some niche property types that are not 
included in property types of the NCREIF NPI, the directly-held portion of the Real 
Estate portfolio may, with the consent of the CIO, include up to 10% in property 
types not included in the NCREIF NPI.  

f. No more than 35% of the Real Estate portfolio shall be invested with a single 
investment manager/general partner as measured against the FY2025 target 
allocation for the Real Estate portfolio. 

g. Leverage on investments in the directly-held portion of the Real Estate portfolio 
shall be limited by investment type as follows: 

i. Core real estate leverage is limited to 50% of the gross asset value of the 
investment at the time of debt placement; however, this limit can be 
increased to 52.5% when including transaction fees and expenses; 

ii. Non-Core real estate leverage is limited to 65% of the gross asset value 
of the investment at the time of debt placement or 65% of the project cost 
on build-to-core investments; however, this limit can be increased to 67.5% 
when including transaction fees and expenses; and 

iii. Portfolio-wide leverage is limited to 40% of the gross asset value of the 
directly-held Real Estate portfolio. 

iv.  

Infrastructure and Private Credit and Income Opportunities Portfolio 

The Infrastructure and Private Credit and Income Opportunities portfolio will be comprised of two 
separate investment strategies in accordance with the Policy requirements below: 

C. Infrastructure Portfolio  

1. Objective 

The objective of the Infrastructure portfolio is to provide attractive risk-adjusted returns 
that have inflation-protection characteristics and exhibit low correlations with other major 
asset classes, as authorized by 15 AAC 137.460. Performance of the Infrastructure 

406



Page 14 of 32 
 

portfolio will be evaluated quarterly against the Cambridge Global Private 
Infrastructure Index (Lagged), but success in achieving the long-term objective (see Table 
2) will be measured, net of all costs, fees, and carry, on a one-year, three-year, five-
year, and ten-year annualized basis. 

2. Investment Strategy 

Infrastructure investments involve the purchase of critical assets with high barriers to entry 
and, due to the “essential services” nature of the assets, often result in low elasticity of 
demand. Infrastructure investments may include energy infrastructure, transportation, 
water infrastructure, telecommunications, social infrastructure (e.g. lotteries, student 
housing, prisons), other infrastructure (e.g. protected income stream assets, other interests 
of infrastructure issuers, infrastructure-related assets), other real assets (e.g. timberlands, 
agricultural farmlands, leasable hard assets), and any other tangible or intangible asset 
that possesses similar characteristics as those outlined in this section.  

Infrastructure investments will be executed through long-term commitments to limited 
liability funds managed by external investment managers, through co-investments 
alongside existing Infrastructure managers and direct investments into operating 
companies. Additionally, investments in publicly-traded stocks of companies whose business 
profile includes ownership of infrastructure assets (Listed Infrastructure) may be included in 
the portfolio. Annually, APFC Staff will provide a pacing and investment plan for Board 
approval that reflects the current exposures, assumptions, and outlook. The Deputy CIO-
Private Markets & Alternatives will have primary responsibility in executing the portfolio’s 
investment strategy and plans. 

3. Risk Limits and Portfolio Restrictions 

The Deputy CIO-Private Markets & Alternatives is responsible for managing the various 
risks incurred and adhering to investment policy. In constructing a diversified Infrastructure 
portfolio, APFC Staff will consider the following characteristics: drivers of underlying 
assets’ cash flow, industry sector, geography, manager, strategy, investment size, and 
company concentration. In addition to general Policy requirements, the following will 
apply to this portfolio: 

a. Risk Limits as detailed in Table 3, Section VII. 
b. All derivatives in this portfolio must comply with Section VI (Authorized Use of 

Derivatives) of this Policy. 
c. Investments in multiple limited liability investment vehicles managed by the same 

manager are permitted, however, combined investments with a single manager 
shall not exceed 30% of the total Infrastructure portfolio. 

d. APFC assets invested with each manager shall not represent more than 30% of 
that manager’s AUM. 

 

 

 

407



Page 15 of 32 
 

D. Private Credit and Income Opportunities 

1. Objective 

The objective of the Private Credit and Income Opportunities portfolio is to provide 
attractive risk-adjusted returns that generate a high level of income and potentially 
provide for capital appreciation, while safeguarding principal, as authorized by 
15 AAC 137.460. Performance of the Private Credit and Income Opportunities portfolio 
will be evaluated quarterly against the Cambridge Private Credit Index (Lagged), but 
success in achieving the long-term objective (see Table 2) will be measured, net of all 
costs, fees, and carry, on a one-year, three-year, five-year, and ten-year annualized 
basis.  

2. Investment Strategy  

Private Credit and Income Opportunities investments involve the ownership of higher 
yielding, illiquid investment debt opportunities that cover a range of risk/return profiles. 
The Private Credit portion of this portfolio shall target externally managed limited 
liability funds, co-investments, and direct investments into operating companies that target 
one or more of the following strategies: direct lending, subordinated and mezzanine 
lending, distressed debt, and opportunistic credit-oriented funds, with flexibility to pursue 
illiquid and liquid strategies. The Income Opportunities portion of this portfolio shall 
include investments such as: timberlands, asset-based lending, structured credit, life 
settlements, leasing and royalty strategies, and special situations that share the common 
characteristic of being private markets investments with an objective of income generation 
and downside protection, but which do not fit neatly into other portfolios. Certain 
portfolios within Private Credit and Income Opportunities may also include some liquid 
credit exposures to complement the private investments in this portfolio. Annually, APFC 
Staff will provide a pacing and investment plan for Board approval that reflects the 
current exposures, assumptions, and outlook. The Deputy CIO-Private Markets & 
Alternatives will have primary responsibility in executing the portfolio’s investment 
strategy.  

3. Risk Limits and Portfolio Restrictions 

The Deputy CIO-Private Markets & Alternatives is responsible for managing the various 
risks incurred and adhering to this Policy. In constructing a diversified Private Credit and 
Income Opportunities portfolio, APFC Staff will consider the following characteristics: 
credit profile, geography, manager, strategy, investment size, and company 
concentration. In addition to general policy aspects, the following will apply to this 
portfolio: 

a. Risk Limits as detailed in Table 3, Section VII. 
b. All derivatives in this portfolio must comply with Section VI (Authorized Use of 

Derivatives) of this Policy. 
c. Investments in multiple vehicles managed by the same manager are permitted, 

however, combined investments with a single manager shall not exceed 30% of 
the Private Income portfolio. 

408



Page 16 of 32 
 

d. APFC assets invested with each manager shall not represent more than 30% of 
that manager’s AUM. 

E. Absolute Return 

1. Objective 

The objective for the Absolute Return portfolio is to deliver reasonably consistent and 
accretive returns that are largely uncorrelated with traditional, market-driven asset 
classes. Performance of the Absolute Return portfolio will be evaluated quarterly against 
the HFRI Total HFOF Universe benchmark, but success in achieving the long-term 
objective (see Table 2) will be measured, net of all costs, fees, and carry, on a one-year, 
three-year, five-year, and ten-year annualized basis. The long-term objective for this 
portfolio is to generate a return similar to the total Fund with a correlation to the total 
Fund of less than fifty percent (50%), as measure over rolling 36-month periods. 

2. Investment Strategy 

The Absolute Return portfolio will invest directly into comingled limited liability funds as 
authorized by 15 AAC 137.460. The managers of these funds will invest in public or 
private securities and other financial instruments and may use leverage consistent with 
other managers of similar strategies. It is not uncommon for the legal terms of these limited 
liability funds to have restrictions on liquidity, including redemption windows (e.g. monthly, 
quarterly, annually), notice periods (e.g. 30, 60, or 90 days), lock-ups (e.g. soft, hard), 
gates (e.g. investor-level, fund-level), and, at times, withdrawal fees. With the written 
consent of the CIO and ED, and the approval of investment guidelines, a portion of the 
Absolute Return portfolio may be internally managed and invested in gold-backed 
exchange traded funds as authorized by 15 AAC 137.460.  

The Absolute Return portfolio, whether internally or externally managed, shall pursue one 
or more of the following investment strategies: 

a. Relative Value, including equity market neutral, fixed income arbitrage, and 
convertible arbitrage; 

b. Event-Driven, including merger arbitrage, distressed securities/discounted bank 
debt, and special situations;  

c. Directional/Tactical/Opportunistic, including long-short equity, managed futures, 
and global macro; and 

d. Commodities, including gold-backed exchange traded funds.  

The Deputy CIO-Private Markets & Alternatives will have primary responsibility in 
executing the Absolute Return portfolio’s investment strategy. 

3. Risk Limits and Portfolio Restrictions 

The Deputy CIO-Private Markets & Alternatives is responsible for managing the various 
risks incurred and adhering to this Policy. In constructing a diversified Absolute Return 
portfolio, APFC Staff will consider the following characteristics: manager, strategy, 
investment size, leverage, correlation with other assets of the Fund, and liquidity. In 

409



Page 17 of 32 
 

addition to general Policy Requirements, the following restrictions will apply to this 
portfolio: 

a. Risk Limits as detailed in Table 3, Section VII; 
b. Relative Value Managers in the range of 0 – 75%; 
c. Event Driven Managers in the range of 0 – 50%; 
d. Directional/Tactical/Opportunistic Managers in the range of 0 – 75%; 
e. Commodities, including gold-backed exchanged traded funds in the range of 0 – 

50%; 
f. At least 50% of the portfolio shall be capable of being liquidated within a 12-

month period; and 
g. APFC assets invested with each internal or external manager shall not represent 

more than 30% of that manager’s AUM.  

 ALASKA IN-STATE INVESTMENT POLICY 

A. Objective and Considerations 

To implement the requirements of AS 37.13.120(c), the Board believes the Fund should have 
an in-state investment policy that maintains the investment integrity of the Fund and is both 
proactive and impartial. As such, any internal in-state investment decision made by APFC Staff 
should include the following considerations: 

1. Honor AS 37.13.120(c): Prescribes that if an Alaskan investment has equivalent risk and 
expected return comparable to or better than a similar non-Alaskan investment, the 
Alaskan investment should be preferred. 

2. Require Compelling Risk-Adjusted Returns: To honor the prudent investor rule provided in 
AS 37.13.120(a), any Alaskan investment contemplated by APFC must be attractive on a 
stand-alone basis. 

3. Ensure Fund Diversification: In order to provide sufficient risk diversification as required 
under AS 37.13.120(c), Board approval is required for any in-state investment that would 
exceed 1% of the Fund, at the time of investment. 

4. Seek Participation by Another Institutional Investor: In order to ensure that an Alaskan 
investment opportunity is attractive on a stand-alone basis and satisfies the institutional 
quality requirements of 15 AAC 137.420, APFC should generally seek to invest into an 
Alaskan investment alongside of at least one of its peers (i.e., a large institutional investor, 
which may include endowments, foundations, sovereign wealth funds, or public or private 
pension funds). 

B. In-State Investment Targets 

For the APFC Staff to identify and invest the Fund in additional compelling in-state 
investments, the following investment targets and guidelines are set to promote compliance 
with AS 37.13.120(c): 

 

410



Page 18 of 32 
 

1. By 2021, at least 3% of the Fund should be invested in-state; 

2. By 2022, at least 4% of the Fund should be invested in-state; 

3. By 2023, at least 5% of the Fund should be invested in-state; 

For purposes of this section, a Fund investment will be considered “invested in-state” if, 

1. An external investment manager has an office in Alaska and the employee(s) that is 
primarily responsible for management of the asset(s) is based in Alaska; or 

2. An external investment manager has an office in Alaska and the employee(s) that is 
primarily responsible for management of the asset(s) is based in Alaska; or 

3. The Fund’s investments managed internally by APFC Staff will not be included in achieving 
these targets. 

 AUTHORIZED USE OF DERIVATIVES 

A. Objective 

The purpose of this section of the Policy is to establish the permitted uses and the limitations on 
the use of derivatives and establish procedures for managing risks associated with 
derivatives. The requirements and limitations of this section of the Policy shall apply to all 
derivatives transactions executed by APFC Staff and all external managers with authority to 
buy or sell a derivative as an agent on behalf of the of the Alaska Permanent Fund. This 
section of the Policy does not apply to investments in a limited liability investment vehicle in 
which derivatives are in the name of the limited liability investment vehicle and the liability is 
limited to the amount invested.  

B. Derivatives Definition; Scope 

1. As defined in 15 AAC 137.990(6), “Derivative” means “an instrument whose value, 
usefulness, and marketability is dependent upon or derives from an underlying asset; 
classes of derivatives include futures contracts, options, forward contracts, including 
currency forward contracts, swaps, and options on futures.”  

2. Both exchange traded and over the counter (“OTC”) derivative instruments are under the 
scope of this Policy. The principal risk of derivatives strategies comes from the potential to 
lever the portfolio and to express a view on a security or risk factor without committing 
capital commensurate with the exposure. To mitigate this risk, the successful and prudent 
use of derivatives depends on: 

a. Well-defined uses for derivatives, and avoidance of leverage; 
b. Manager-by-manager limits on economic exposures through derivatives; and 
c. Investment manager internal control and defined procedures for managing risk. 

 

 

 

411



Page 19 of 32 
 

C. Permitted Uses 

1. Permitted uses of derivatives include: 

a. Hedge and control risks of Fund portfolios so they better align with benchmarks 
and objectives; 

b. Efficiently manage portfolio exposures synthetically as opposed to trading 
underlying securities; 

c. Build portfolios with targeted risk and return characteristics that otherwise could 
not be efficiently created with securities; and 

d. Facilitate rebalancing. 

Derivatives Risk Management and Compliance 

2. Derivative Pre-Approval Requirement 

All derivatives strategies, whether internally or externally managed, are prohibited unless 
specifically allowed in writing for a permitted use as a part of an investment manager’s 
guidelines. 

The use of derivatives by an external manager shall be conditioned upon the finding by 
the CIO and CRO that the external manager: 

a. Has demonstrated investment expertise in the use of derivatives for the strategy 
they have been selected to implement; 

b. Has appropriate risk management and valuation policies and procedures in place; 
c. Has legal and investment experience to limit downside effects of the proposed 

derivatives; and  
d. Has demonstrated the ability to effectively monitor and control the use of 

derivatives and has agreed to provide monthly derivative exposure reports which 
detail:  

i. Total derivative exposures on a gross and net basis, 
ii. Total collateral/margin postings on gross and net basis, and  
iii. A list of authorized counterparties and exposure by counterparty. 

3. Derivative Recourse Limitations 

For externally managed portfolios, all liability created by the use of derivatives in the 
name of the Fund must be limited to the total value of the portfolio being managed by 
the external manager. To ensure this requirement is met, approval of the IMA/External 
Manager guidelines by General Counsel is required. 

4. Counterparty and other Requirements 

a. The counterparty to any OTC derivative transaction must have a credit rating of at 
least A- (Standard and Poor’s) or A3 (Moody’s), unless an exception is approved 
in writing by the CIO and CRO; 

412



Page 20 of 32 
 

b. The net market value, net of all collateral postings, of all OTC derivatives for any 
individual counterparty may not exceed 30 basis points of the total market value 
of the Fund.; 

c. Selling (writing) uncovered options is prohibited; 
d. The net of long and short dollar exposures to assets or currencies, whether derived 

from physical or derivative securities, must be less than or equal to the dollar 
market value of the portfolio, except for very small, inadvertent, or temporary 
amounts that occur in the normal course of portfolio management or authorized by 
the CRO; 

e. The gross dollar exposures of a portfolio in the Fund from physical and derivative 
securities (futures, options, swaps) cannot exceed 300% of the market value of the 
aggregate underlying portfolio at all times unless authorized by the CRO; and 

f. If derivatives are used by a manager to actively manage currency exposure, net 
short exposure to any single currency remains within limits established for that 
manger’s strategy. 

 RISK MANAGEMENT & OVERSIGHT 
Recognizing the relationship between return and risk, APFC consciously and deliberately assumes 
various risks in pursuit of its return objectives. The goal of risk management is to understand, 
analyze and manage these risks. The risk management function strives to create risk awareness, 
establish and formalize a risk management framework, and ensure risks incurred are within the 
Board’s risk appetite. This Policy outlines the Boards’ approved risk management framework, 
which includes the salient investment risk parameters and thresholds. 

A. Risk Parameters and Measures 

APFC Staff will establish a framework for measuring absolute risk of the Fund and each asset 
class, as well as relative risks in comparison to established benchmarks. This framework should 
generally include quantifiable estimates of active and relative risk. APFC Staff will monitor 
and produce reports as appropriate for the Board, ED, CIO, and APFC Staff. 

The salient risk parameters are listed below. Related tolerances and associated ranges are 
provided in Table 3. 

Asset Allocation Limits – Target allocation levels are determined for each asset class based on 
quantitative modeling and qualitative inputs. Disciplined alignment to these targets is 
essential, albeit ensuring limited flexibility to cater to changing markets and other factors. 

Future Commitments - Future commitments are a function of committed capital to private 
investments and essentially reflect a contingent cash draw liability. Monitoring and limiting 
future commitments relative to the Fund’s overall size is important. 

1. Active Risk - Tracking error is a measure of how closely a portfolio follows the index to 
which it is benchmarked. Tracking error is calculated for this purpose on an ex-ante basis 
using a holdings-based risk analytical system. 

413



Page 21 of 32 
 

2. Relative Risk Limit - Relative Value at Risk (RVaR) provides a comparison of portfolio risk 
relative to benchmark risk and is measured as a ratio of Portfolio VaR to benchmark VaR. 

In addition to relative measures, multiple risk parameters including concentration, credit, 
market, and liquidity risks are monitored and controlled. 

1. Downside Risk - Downside risk is risk of significant loss of capital. Staff will actively 
monitor the Fund’s downside risk relative to the risk benchmark using scenario analysis and 
stress testing. 

2. Proxy Securities and Indices - If necessary and prudent, as determined by the CRO, APFC 
Staff will employ index proxies to approximate the economic characteristics of specific 
investments to the extent that the terms and conditions of those investments or the 
underlying holdings (in the case of the funds) are not readily available or where the 
complexity of the underlying investment renders empirical measurement impractical. 

3. Private Market Asset Holdings - APFC Staff will actively monitor the portion of the Fund 
invested in private market asset holdings to ensure that the percent of the total fund 
invested in private markets adheres to the private investment limits. 

B. Credit Ratings for Fixed Income Securities 

Credit ratings by the three major ratings agencies, Standard & Poor’s, Moody’s and Fitch will 
be the primary source of credit ratings for Fixed Income securities in the Fixed Income and 
Total Fund Cash portfolios, subject to the following: 

1. In case of split ratings, the ‘Bloomberg Barclays Middle Rating’ methodology shall be 
applied (i.e. if all three agencies rate a security, the middle rating is adopted; if only two 
agencies rate a security, the most conservative (lowest) rating is used; if only one rates a 
security, that single rating is used). 

2. If none of the three agencies have assigned a rating, ratings by other agencies and or 
implied ratings may be used with CRO approval. 

3. If no agency ratings are available and a rating cannot be implied, it shall be categorized 
as ‘Unrated’. 

C. Legal Risk Management 

Legal documentation for all internally managed public and private investments will be 
reviewed, negotiated and approved by APFC General Counsel prior to execution by the ED. 
APFC General Counsel shall be responsible for determining when outside legal counsel should 
be engaged to assist in the review and negotiation of Fund investment matters, subject to 
applicable statutes and rules adopted by the Office of the Attorney General. 

D. Permitted Use of Leverage 

APFC Staff and external managers, consistent with the requirements of 15 AAC 137.500 and 
this Policy (including the risk parameters established by the asset allocation ranges), is 
authorized to use leverage for an investment of Fund assets, provided that such leverage is 
non-recourse to APFC or the Fund as described in AS 37.13.120(b) and 15 AAC 137.500. 

414



Page 22 of 32 
 

E. Foreign Exchange Risk 

1. External managers and APFC Staff may, with prior approval of the CIO, transact in any 
foreign exchange instrument (including currency futures and forward contracts, options, 
and swap agreements), to implement their investment strategies, contingent upon such 
transactions being consistent with this Policy and the requirements of 15 AAC 137.480. 

2. APFC Staff shall analyze foreign exchange risk regularly and present quarterly to the 
Board. This analysis includes both internal hedging and external foreign exchange overlay 
manager positioning and performance. 

F. Risk Compliance, Monitoring, and Reporting 

The APFC Staff assigned to each Asset Class in this Policy will have primary responsibility to 
ensure adherence to all aspects of this Policy. Additionally, the CRO and risk management 
team will be responsible for monitoring compliance of Fund investment activity. The Chief Risk 
Officer will provide the Board and APFC Staff with a comprehensive risk profile of the Fund 
on a regular basis. At a minimum, this includes the Daily Risk Dashboard and more detailed 
quarterly updates. The quarterly reports to the Board shall include the levels for most of the 
salient risk parameters described in this Policy. 

 

 

 

 

415



Page 23 of 32 
 

G. Risk Parameters and Limits 

 Table 3: Asset Allocation (AA) Target Levels 

  

416



Page 24 of 32 
 

 PUBLIC MARKETS EXTERNAL MANAGER SELECTION 

A. Manager Search and Selection 

This section of the Policy applies to discretionary mandates assigned to external investment 
managers to transact and manage public market assets on behalf of the Fund (i.e. through an 
IMA). The Board has authorized APFC Staff to hire new investment managers upon conclusion 
of an appropriate search with the assistance of a qualified consultant, which can include the 
Board’s General Consultant, contingent upon the search and hiring process adhering to the 
following steps:  

1. Setting of relevant search criteria by APFC Staff of applicable manager qualifications; 

2. Identification, with the assistance of the consultant, of a list of potential managers that are 
qualified to provide the investment management services needed, based on the 
qualifications and other search criteria established by APFC Staff; 

3. Evaluation by a review committee established within the consultant's organization of the 
list of potential, qualified managers identified for recommendation of consideration by 
APFC Staff; 

4. Informing the CIO of managers recommended by the General Consultant's review 
committee; 

5. Selection by APFC Staff of between three and five finalists from those recommended by 
the consultant's review committee. This process may include, as part of due diligence, on-
site visits by APFC Staff. Presentations to APFC Staff by the recommended managers are 
at the election of the CIO and ED; 

6. Analysis by APFC Staff including a detailed recommendation to the CIO and ED, 
considering manager-specific characteristics as well as portfolio considerations;  

7. Approval of the new manager or advisor by the CIO and ED, assignment of benchmarks 
as appropriate, and determination of the initial amount to be placed under management 
with the manager; 

8. A manager shall also be required to execute a written IMA with the APFC. The IMA shall 
address matters of performance, compensation, term/termination, investment guidelines, 
among others, as the APFC and the manager consider necessary and appropriate. The use 
of derivatives, if any, within externally managed mandates shall conform to the 
Derivatives section of this Policy and be explicitly detailed in the IMA; and 

9. Review and approval by the CRO and General Counsel of the proposed IMA is required 
prior to execution. 

B. Special Situations 

In certain special circumstances, the ED and CIO has the authority to modify or waive the 
criteria in the selection and hiring process outlined above. Even in such instances, the ED and 

417



Page 25 of 32 
 

CIO retains the final manager selection authority. Use of an alternative manager search 
process may be considered when any one or more of these conditions exist: 

1. A manager under consideration for hire has already been vetted in a significant manner 
either through a search process with a qualified consultant, or the manager is already 
employed in a manager capacity by APFC; 

2. The skill for which the manager is being considered is related in a substantive manner to 
the role the manager already fulfills for APFC or was the subject of a manager search 
that first identified this manager; 

3. It is in the best interest of the Fund to move more quickly than the typical search procedure 
permits; or 

4. Due to confidentiality or specificity of the investment strategy or structure, use of the 
typical search procedure is not prudent.  

The CIO and ED are required to report use of the alternative manager search and selection 
process, along with the rationale for the use, at the next regularly-scheduled Board meeting. 

C. Monitoring and Evaluation of Managers 

1. The Board expects APFC Staff to monitor the performance of the Fund's external 
managers, using the quarterly quantitative performance reports prepared by the General 
Consultant and Asset Class-specific Advisors in the case of Private Markets and Alternative 
Investments. Monitoring manager performance may also include review of other 
quantitative and qualitative aspects based on on-site visits to the manager's offices, 
discussions with other clients of the manager, media reports and other feedback. 

2. The CIO and ED shall report to the Board any special concerns or observations they may 
have with respect to the performance of a manager no later than the next regular 
meeting of the Board. 

3. The Board authorizes the CIO and ED to terminate an investment manager. If the CIO and 
ED terminate or give notice of unsatisfactory performance to a manager, they shall inform 
the Board of the actions and rationale at the next regularly scheduled Board meeting. 

  

418



Page 26 of 32 
 

Appendix A:  Investment Guidelines 

Objective 

The objective of the APFC Investment Guidelines is to supplement the Investment Policy by 
providing operational guidelines for APFC’s internally managed investment programs. The ED 
may update this Appendix from time-to-time; updates will be provided to the Board at its next 
regularly scheduled meeting.  

A. Alaska Direct Alternative Credit Investment Guidelines 

In fiscal year 2018, APFC Staff established an in-house hybrid liquid / illiquid alternative 
credit effort named Alaska Direct Alternative Credit (or “ADAC”). Investments included in 
ADAC will be (i) non-investment grade high yield ETF’s and individual bonds and cash (“Liquid 
Portfolio”) and (ii) co-investments with Private Credit managers and working capital cash 
(“Private Portfolio”). The following guidelines apply to ADAC: 

1. ADAC shall be included in the Special Opportunities / Income Opportunities category. 

2. Size and Funding Schedule 
a. $500 million funded at inception, initially invested in Liquid Portfolio. 
b. Following inception, additional funds will be invested into ADAC through cash transfers 

to the Liquid Portfolio and capital calls into the Private Portfolio for co-investments, or 
working capital or organizational expenses for the Private Credit Co-Investment 
Vehicle. 

c. Funding of additional cash transfers to the Liquid Portfolio will be done at no greater 
than a 1:1 ratio with cumulative Private Portfolio capital calls. 

d. Invested capital of $1,000 million targeted to be funded within 24 months of 
inception. 

3. Portfolio Control and Decision Making 
a. Private Income team will have discretion over portfolio-wide decisions including: (i) 

percentage of portfolio invested in Liquid vs. Private Portfolio, (ii) retaining APFC 
Fixed Income team as manager of the Liquid Portfolio, and (iii) individual investment 
decisions in the Private Portfolio. 

4. Liquid Portfolio and Benchmark 
a. Liquid Portfolio, initially 100% of ADAC, ultimately scaling down to less than 50%, will 

be managed by the APFC Fixed Income team at inception. 
b. Targeted maximum allocation will be the greater of $750 million and 75% of ADAC 

NAV. 
c. Targeted minimum allocation will be 25% of ADAC NAV. 
d. ETF Account within Liquid Portfolio benchmarked to Barclays US High Yield Index 

(after July 1, 2018 to allow for an initial ramp-up). 
e. Individual securities portfolio will favor BB-B over CCC-rated securities and will be 

benchmarked to the Barclays BB High Yield Index (after July 1, 2018 to allow for an 
initial ramp-up). A relatively high tracking error to this index will be tolerated with the 
aim of outperformance over a full market cycle. 

419



Page 27 of 32 
 

5. Private Portfolio and Benchmark 
a. Private Portfolio, initially 0% of ADAC, ultimately scaling to greater than 50%, will be 

managed by the Private Income team. 
b. Targeted maximum allocation will be 75% of ADAC NAV. 
c. Targeted minimum allocation will be 25% of ADAC NAV (after initial, 24-month ramp-

up). 
d. Private Portfolio will target having a minimum of $100 million committed within 12 

months of inception and a minimum of $250 million within 24 months of inception. 
e. Co-investment opportunities will be primarily sourced through existing managers. 
f. Maximum commitment per co-investment of $75 million without ED written approval. 
g. Private Portfolio will be benchmarked to CPI + 500 bps. 

6. Overall ADAC Portfolio Benchmarks 
a. Barclays US High Yield Index (relatively high tracking error to this index will be 

tolerated with the aim of outperformance over a full market cycle). 
b. A long-term target of CPI + 400 bps. 

7. Tenor and Termination 
a. This is an evergreen strategy with realized gains re-invested, which means the size of 

ADAC will be equal to invested capital, plus cumulative realized/unrealized gains, 
minus cumulative realized/unrealized losses. 

b. The CIO, with ED consent, may choose to invest additional capital at any time. 
c. The CIO, with Executive Direct consent, may choose to terminate the strategy at any 

time. Upon termination, available cash will be distributed from ADAC, the Liquid 
Portfolio will be sold within 180 days, and the Private Portfolio will cease making new 
commitments (with the exception of follow-on investments to existing portfolio holdings 
and investments to which a written commitment to invest has already been executed; 
both to be pursued only with written consent of the ED) and will distribute proceeds 
upon any partial or full realization of existing investments. 

B. U.S. Large Cap Low P/E 

In the fall of 2019, APFC Public Equity Staff established an internally traded deep value 
strategy. The following guidelines apply to this strategy: 

1. Benchmark 
The performance benchmark is the Russell 1000 Value Index. 
 

2. Risk Limit 
The portfolio will be included within the Total Public Equities’ Tracking Error and Relative 
VaR limits. The allocation limit to the strategy will conform to the limits set in the Public 
Equities investment guidelines. 
 

3. Concentration Risk 
When originally purchasing securities for this strategy, the securities will all be equally 
weighted and from the lowest valuation quintile of the Russell 1000 index. The portfolio 

420



Page 28 of 32 
 

will be rebalanced every 12 months to ensure that the securities that make up this 
portfolio remain equally weighted and at least 90% of the securities are in the lowest 
valuation quintile of the Russell 1000 index. At all times, the portfolio will have a minimum 
of 100 securities. 
 

4. Allowable Investments 
The strategy will invest in U.S. listed equity securities from the Russell 1000 Index. 
 

5. Shorting, Leverage, and Derivatives 
Not applicable at this time. 
 

6. Liquidity Risk 
The strategy is expected to be fairly liquid. For example, at $500mm in AUM the 
portfolio is estimated to trade 95% on day 1 and 99% by day 3, under normal market 
conditions. 
 

7. Portfolio Size Limit 
Without strategy is expected to be fairly liquid. For example, at $500mm in AUM the 
portfolio is estimated to trade 95% on day 1 and 99% by day 3, under normal market 
conditions. 

  

421



Page 29 of 32 
 

Appendix B:  Limit Ranges & Compliance Cure Periods 
The Green Zone Operating Range (“Green Zone”) concept is designed to indicate the Board 
approved operating risk limits. 

A. The Green Zone is the Board-approved CIO operating range. 

B. The Yellow Zone is the Board approved ED operating range. 

1. The Chief Risk Officer (“CRO”) will notify the CIO and ED promptly upon entry into a 
Yellow Zone. 
 

2. The CIO will respond by requesting ED approval to operate within the Yellow Zone. 
 

3. With ED approval, the CIO may operate within a Yellow Zone for up to 90 consecutive 
days or, if longer, until the next Board meeting following entry into a Yellow Zone. 
 

4. The CRO will notify the Board (i) when approaching 90 days of operating within a Yellow 
Zone and (ii) monthly thereafter. 
 

5. Following Board notification, a Trustee may request in writing a meeting to discuss an 
extension to continue operating within the Yellow Zone. 
 

6. The Board may grant the CIO and ED an extension to continue operating within a Yellow 
Zone. Between Board meetings, unless a Trustee requests a meeting, the Board Chair may 
grant the CIO and ED an extension to continue operating within a Yellow Zone. 

C. The Red Zone is the operating range that requires Board approval. 

1. The CRO will notify the Board upon entry into a Red Zone. 
 

2. The CIO and ED will respond to the Board with an action plan. 
 

3. Absent Board approval, operating within a Red Zone is limited to 30 consecutive days 
(plus the time needed to notice a Board meeting). 
 

4. The Board has the authority to approve operating within a Red Zone, beyond 30 days. 

Even though the Fund is expected to operate most of the time within the Green Zone, the Fund 
may periodically be within a Yellow Zone, and there may be times when the Fund will be within a 
Red Zone. The zones are designed to increase transparency and awareness; they should not be 
viewed as explicit violations. Each year a historical report showing periods of operating within the 
Yellow and Red Zones will be included in Board meeting packets. 

  

422



Page 30 of 32 
 

      

Board 
Approved 

 

CIO 
Operating 
Authority 

ED Operating 
Authority 

ED Operating 
Authority 

Board 
Operating 
Authority 

Board 
Operating 
Authority 

Visual Display of Green Zone Concept 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

423



Page 31 of 32 
 

Appendix C:  Glossary 
AAC means the Alaska Administrative Code. 

ADA means the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990. 

Advisors and Board Advisors mean the investment professionals who comprise the Board’s 

Investment Advisory Group.  

APFC and Corporation mean the Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation, established under AS 

37.13.040. 

AS means Alaska Statutes. 

BB means Bloomberg. 

Board means the Board of Trustees of the APFC. 

CMBS means commercial mortgage-backed securities. 

CFO means the APFC’s Chief Financial Officer. 

CIO means the APFC’s CIO. 

Consultant means the Board’s investment consultant(s), not including Board Advisors. 

CPI means the Consumer Price Index. 

CRO means Chief Risk Officer 

Custodian means the APFC’s custodian. 

Days means calendar days. 

ED means the APFC’s Executive Director. 

FoF means fund-of-funds.  

Fund and Permanent Fund mean the Alaska Permanent Fund, established under Article IX, 

Section 15, of the Alaska Constitution, and described in AS 37.13.010. 

IMA means investment management agreement. 

Investment Manager and Manager mean investment manager(s) retained by the APFC. 

IRR means internal rate-of-return. 

Long-Term means over one or more business cycles. 

MBS means mortgage-backed securities. 

RBM means Strategic Risk Benchmark. 

Staff means the APFC Investment Staff and, where the context requires, also means or includes the 

Executive Director and/or other APFC Staff. 

TE means Tracking Error. 

Trustees means the members of the APFC’s Board of Trustees. 

VaR means Value at Risk.  

424



Page 32 of 32 
 

Appendix D:  Previous Investment Policy Adoption & Amendments 
The previous APFC Investment Policy was adopted or amended effective as follows: 

Adopted: May 27, 2010 
Amended: September 30, 2010 (§14.9 added) 
Amended: December 1, 2010 (§9.1 revised; new §11.1 added and prior §§11.1-11.3 

and subsections thereunder renumbered; and §18.2.4 revised) 

Amended: May 20, 2011 (§18A added) 
Amended: September 30, 2011 (§§ 8, 8.2, 8.3, 8.5, 9.2, 9.3.1, 9.4.1, 11.3.1, 15.3, and 

15.4 revised) 

Amended: December 8, 2011 (§11.3.2 revised) 
Amended: February 22, 2012 (§20 revised) 
Amended: April 23, 2012 (§§16.3.1 and 16.3.2 revised; and Specific Policy Modifications 

for Tysons Corner Phase I Project and Mariner Frontier Fund, L.P. added) 
Amended: February 27, 2013 (§§ 15.2, 15.3, and 15.4 revised) 
Amended: May 22, 2013 (§§9.5.4, 9.5.5,12.4, 12.6, 13.2, 13.3.1, 13.3.3, 14.9.4.10, 

16.1.2, 16.1.3, 16.1.4, 16.2, 16.3, 16.3.1, 18A, 23.2, and 23.5 revised; 
Specific Policy Modification for Mariner Frontier Fund, L.P. revised; Specific 
Policy Modification for Crestline AK Permanent Fund, L.P. added; and 
Addendum re Internal Investment Managers added) 

Amended: May 23, 2013 (§§ 3.1, 3.3, 5.3, 6, 8 (including Table 8a), 8.1 revised; §8.2 
deleted; §§ 8.3-8.5 renumbered (as §§ 8.2-8.4) and newly-renumbered §§ 8.2-
8.4 revised; and §§ 9.2, 9.3.1, 9.4.1, 10, 11.3.1, and 22.2 revised) 

Amended: February 26, 2014 (§§23.3.1, and 23.2 revised; and Addendum re Internal 
Investment Managers revised) 

Amended: May 21, 2014 (§14.9.4.10 (including Table 14.9.4.10.1) revised) 
Amended: December 10, 2014 (§§ 8, 9.3.1, 11.3.2, 14.2.2, and Table 14.5.4.1revised) 
Amended: May 19, 2015 (§§ 15 and 16, including conforming changes in other sections 

revised) 

Amended: September 27, 2016 
Amended: December, 2016 (§§ 9, 10 and 12, including conforming changes in other 

sections revised) 

Amended:  May 23, 2018, complete re-write of the Policy and Guidelines. Changes to be 
effective on July 1, 2018  

Amended: September 27, 2018 (§ 5, Alaska Investment Policy was revised) 
Amended: May 21, 2020, complete rewrite of the Investment Policy 

 

425



18. Pacing Plan 
  

426



Alternative Investments
FY 2021 Proposed Pacing Plan | May 21, 2020

427



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    2

Commitment Pacing for Alternative Assets

 Private Equity and Private Income are long-term, illiquid asset classes that require long-term planning

 APFC has been navigating  towards long-term allocation targets per Investment Policy
o 9% for Infrastructure, Private Credit, and Income Opportunities (together, “Private Income”)
o 19% for Private Equity, Venture Capital, and Special Opportunities (together, “PESO”)

 APFC revisits and refreshes commitment pacing plan annually in May
o Small course corrections are sometimes appropriate 

 Staff proposes FY2021 pacing for Private Income that is slightly below FY2020
o $650 million proposed target deployment , +/- $250 million depending on opportunity set

 Staff proposes FY2021 pacing for PESO that is unchanged from FY2020 
o $1,600 million proposed target deployment , +/- $550 million depending on opportunity set

428



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    3

Pacing Methodology

 Top-down and bottom-up approach to project capital calls, distributions, NAV, unfunded, and total exposure

 Call and distribution curves are strategy-specific, based on historical cash flow data and negotiated legal terms

 Sub-asset class allocation targets based on historical averages and staff targets

 No exits assumed via secondary sales

 Partnership life reflects term of investment period, fund life, and contractual extensions

Key Elements of Model
PE + SpecOpps Private Income

APFC Net Fund Growth1 2.25% 2.25%

Target  FY2021 Investment Pace2 $1.6 billion $650 million

Long-term Expected Annual Net Return3 12.3% 7.25%

1Nominal growth net of all income, gains, and distributions.
2Target deployment for FY 2021 subject to market conditions and other factors.
3 Assumes a 50% lower rate of return  in FY 2021 than long-term average.

429



Private Equity + Special 
Opportunities

430



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    5

Private Equity Exposure

Source: Pathway & APFC. APFC Fiscal Year ends on June 30.

FY 2021 Target: 15%
FY 2020 Target: 14%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

12.0%

14.0%

16.0%

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

FYE 2016 FYE 2017 FYE 2018 FYE 2019 Dec-19 FYE 2020E

Ex
po

su
re

 R
el

at
iv

e 
to

 A
PF

 (%
)

$ 
N

A
V

 (i
n 

m
ill

io
ns

)

Buyouts Special Situation Direct / Coinvest GP Stake Growth Venture NAV as a % of APF

5,686 

7,176 

7,682 

9,124 
9,588 

8,153 

431



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    6Note: fiscal year end June 30.

$1,600 $1,617

$200

$60

$1,600

$0

$400

$800

$1,200

$1,600

$2,000

T A R G E T  F Y 2 0 2 0 A C T U A L  F Y 2 0 2 0 P R O P O S E D  F Y 2 0 2 1

$ 
M

IL
LI

O
N

S

ANNUAL COM M I TM ENTS

Target Closed In-State pending

Denotes approved ranges

Denotes target level

Investment Pacing – FY2020 vs. FY2021 Proposed

432



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    7

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

12.0%

14.0%

16.0%

18.0%

20.0%

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

FYE 2020E FYE 2021 FYE 2022 FYE 2023 FYE 2024 FYE 2025

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Ex

po
su

re
 R

el
at

iv
e 

to
 A

PF
C 

(%
)

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
N

A
V

 (i
n 

m
ill

io
ns

)

Buyouts Special Situation Direct / Coinvest GP Stake Growth Venture NAV as a % of APF

8,153 8,810 

9,923 
10,638 11,189 

11,563 

Proposed Pacing and Projected Exposures
APFC Staff recommends maintaining a $1.6 billion commitment target for FY 2021

Source: Pathway & APFC
Note: APFC Fiscal Year ends on June 30. Assumes a steady $1.6 billion pace. Target increases by 1% each fiscal year.

Target: 14%

Green Zone: 20% 
Green Zone: 19%

Target: 15%
Target: 16%

Target: 17%
Target: 18%

Target: 19%

433



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    8Source: Pathway & APFC
Note: Green zone (+/- 5% of 16% target); Yellow Zone (0-5% beyond Green Zone); Red Zone (>5% beyond Green Zone)

• Largest impact to overall exposure is the denominator effect of the total fund

• Base case scenario of 2.25% net growth in APFC, annual pacing of $1.6bn, and 12.3% PE+SO annualized returns

• Acceptable range of potential outcomes that would not result in a breach of green zone limits

• Annual pacing study allows APFC to course correct any potential deviations early

Assumes: 12.3% PE+SO annualized return Assumes: $1.6bn annual commitment pace

APFC Net Fund Growth

16.7% -25.0% -20.0% -15.0% -5.0% 0.0% 2.3% 5.0% 15.0% 20.0%

$200 28.2% 24.6% 21.6% 16.9% 15.1% 14.4% 13.6% 11.1% 10.1%

$600 28.9% 25.1% 22.0% 17.3% 15.5% 14.7% 13.9% 11.4% 10.4%

Annual $1,000 29.5% 25.7% 22.5% 17.7% 15.8% 15.1% 14.2% 11.6% 10.6%

Investment $1,400 30.1% 26.2% 23.0% 18.1% 16.2% 15.4% 14.5% 11.9% 10.8%

Pace $1,800 30.7% 26.8% 23.5% 18.4% 16.5% 15.7% 14.8% 12.1% 11.0%

(in millions) $2,200 31.4% 27.3% 24.0% 18.8% 16.8% 16.0% 15.1% 12.4% 11.3%

$2,600 32.0% 27.9% 24.4% 19.2% 17.2% 16.3% 15.4% 12.6% 11.5%

APFC Net Fund Growth

15.5% -25.0% -20.0% -15.0% -5.0% 0.0% 2.3% 5.0% 15.0% 20.0%

-8.7% 17.5% 16.4% 15.4% 13.8% 13.1% 12.8% 12.5% 11.4% 10.9%

PE+SO -1.7% 18.7% 17.5% 16.5% 14.8% 14.0% 13.7% 13.4% 12.2% 11.7%

Expected 5.3% 20.0% 18.7% 17.6% 15.8% 15.0% 14.6% 14.3% 13.0% 12.5%

Annual 12.3% 21.2% 19.9% 18.7% 16.7% 15.9% 15.5% 15.1% 13.8% 13.2%

Return 19.3% 22.4% 21.0% 19.8% 17.7% 16.8% 16.5% 16.0% 14.6% 14.0%

26.3% 23.7% 22.2% 20.9% 18.7% 17.8% 17.4% 16.9% 15.4% 14.8%

33.3% 24.9% 23.4% 22.0% 19.7% 18.7% 18.3% 17.8% 16.3% 15.6%

Investment Pacing – Sensitivity Analysis

Projected Exposure as a % of Total Fund at FYE 2022

434



Private Income
Infrastructure, Private Credit, Income Opportunities

435



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    10

Private Income Exposure

APFC Fiscal Year ends on June 30.
*As of December 31, 2019.

FY 2020 Target: 8%
FY 2021 Target: 9%

507 
664 

823 

1,768 
2,159 

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

4.0%

5.0%

6.0%

7.0%

8.0%

9.0%

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020E

Pr
iv

at
e 

In
co

m
e 

N
A

V
 (i

n 
$ 

m
ill

io
ns

)

Infrastructure Private Credit Income Opportunities NAV as a % of APF

436



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    11

4,795 5,037 5,359 
5,807 

6,150 5,873 

1.0%

3.0%

5.0%

7.0%

9.0%

11.0%

13.0%

15.0%

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Ex

po
su

re
 R

el
at

iv
e 

to
 A

PF
C 

(%
)

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
N

A
V

 (i
n 

m
ill

io
ns

)

Infrastructure Private Credit Income Opportunities NAV as a % of APFC

Target: 9%

Target: 8%

Proposed Pacing and Projected Exposures
APFC Staff recommends a $650 million commitment target for FY 2021

Upper Limit: 14%

Note: APFC Fiscal Year ends on June 30. Assumes a steady $650 million pace.

Upper Limit: 13%

437



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    12

Sensitivity Analysis

Note: Green zone (+/- 5% of 9% target); Yellow Zone (0-5% beyond Green Zone); Red Zone (>5% beyond Green Zone)

• Largest impact to overall exposure is the denominator effect of the total fund
• Base case scenario of 2.25% net growth in APFC, annual pacing of $650mm, 3.63% PI return in 2021 and 7.25% 

PI annualized returns thereafter 
• Large range of possible outcomes that would still keep the PI portfolio within green zone limits
• Annual pacing study allows APFC Staff to course correct any potential deviations early

Assumes: 7.25% Private Income annualized return Assumes: $650mm annual commitment pace

APFC Net Fund Growth

8.2% -29.8% -21.8% -13.8% -5.8% 2.3% 10.3% 18.3% 26.3% 34.3%

$0 16.8% 13.4% 10.9% 9.0% 7.5% 6.4% 5.5% 4.8% 4.2%

$250 17.4% 13.9% 11.3% 9.3% 7.8% 6.6% 5.7% 4.9% 4.3%

Annual $500 18.0% 14.3% 11.7% 9.6% 8.1% 6.9% 5.9% 5.1% 4.5%

Investment $650 18.4% 14.6% 11.9% 9.8% 8.2% 7.0% 6.0% 5.2% 4.6%

Pace $900 19.0% 15.1% 12.3% 10.2% 8.5% 7.2% 6.2% 5.4% 4.7%

(in millions) $1,250 19.9% 15.8% 12.8% 10.6% 8.9% 7.6% 6.5% 5.6% 4.9%

$1,600 20.7% 16.5% 13.4% 11.1% 9.3% 7.9% 6.8% 5.9% 5.1%

APFC Net Fund Growth

8.2% -29.8% -21.8% -13.8% -5.8% 2.3% 10.3% 18.3% 26.3% 34.3%

-13.8% 14.0% 11.1% 9.0% 7.5% 6.3% 5.3% 4.6% 4.0% 3.5%

Private Inc -6.8% 15.4% 12.2% 9.9% 8.2% 6.9% 5.9% 5.0% 4.4% 3.8%

Expected 0.2% 16.8% 13.4% 10.9% 9.0% 7.6% 6.4% 5.5% 4.8% 4.2%

Annual 7.25% 18.4% 14.6% 11.9% 9.8% 8.2% 7.0% 6.0% 5.2% 4.6%

Return 14.3% 20.0% 15.9% 12.9% 10.7% 9.0% 7.6% 6.6% 5.7% 5.0%

21.3% 21.8% 17.3% 14.1% 11.6% 9.7% 8.3% 7.1% 6.2% 5.4%

28.3% 23.6% 18.7% 15.2% 12.6% 10.5% 9.0% 7.7% 6.7% 5.8%

Projected Exposure as a % of Total Fund at FYE 2022

438



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    13

Summary– FY2021 Pacing Proposal 

Private Equity and Special Opportunities 
 APFC staff recommends targeting a $1.6 billion annual deployment pace for FY 2021

• Investments to be allocated across strategies (e.g., venture, buyouts, distressed) and tactics (funds, co-
investments, directs) subject to market opportunities and investment policy.

• Consistent with prior years, flexibility to increase or decrease pacing by $550 million from target

Private Income
 APFC recommends targeting a $650 million annual deployment schedule for FY 2021

• Investments to be allocated across strategies (e.g., infrastructure, private credit, income opportunities) and tactics 
(funds, co-investments, directs) subject to market opportunities and investment policy.

• Flexibility to increase or decrease pacing by $250 million from target 

439



19. In State Investment 
Program 

  

440



Potential In-State Expansion
May 21, 2020

441



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    2

Context
 Alaska faces an unprecedented economic challenge

• Contemporaneous shocks to multiple sectors 
• “Perfect storm” will test our strength and ingenuity

 The Permanent Fund contributes 75% of General Fund revenue

Alaskan Recessions
Proximate Cause

1977 Post-TAP adjustment

1987 Oil prices

2009 GFC spillover

2017 Oil prices

2020 Covid-19, oil prices, tourism, fisheries, trade

 APFC invests globally, across strategies and geographies, to maximize returns and minimize risk
o ~$22 million (0.04% of total AUM) is currently invested in Alaskan businesses and assets
o ~$490 million (0.80% of total AUM) is currently managed by Alaskan managers (excluding APFC staff)
o $195 million is committed but not yet invested (through recently-launched Alaskan emerging manager program)

 AS 37.13.120(c) provides the APFC shall invest in-state to the extent in-state investments have a 
risk level and expected return comparable to alternate investment opportunities and otherwise 
meet the Fund’s investment standards (such as the prudent-investor rule).

 Identifying attractive investment opportunities* in Alaska requires focused effort and dedicated resources
442



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    3

In-State Investment
 Balancing APFC’s investment requirements with other potential contributions to Alaska’s economic 

fitness requires a combination of velocity, scale, skill, and fiduciary oversight

 Investment speed can be the enemy of investment quality

Existing 
Emerging 
Manager 
program

Expanded 
FOF/Directs

$300mm
APFC Co-

investment

Phase II 
Managers Platform

Build-out

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

D
eg

re
e 

of
 E

co
no

m
ic

 Im
pa

ct
 (l

ow
 to

 h
ig

h)

Est. Time to Launch (in months)

Contemplated In-State Programs

443



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    4

In-State Investment (continued)

 Long-term commitment and multiple phases could lead to best long-term outcomes

 Near-term options (Phase I) could expand and extend current activities
• Expand and extend current in-State emerging manager program

• Create complementary $300 million co-investment allocation

 Longer-term options (Phases II and III) could be quickly refined and developed
• Phase II:   Back several direct investors in State (vs. funds of funds strategy) with $100 million each

• Phase III:  Seed  Alaska-based joint venture to manage selected, resource-intensive private market assets

444



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    5

Phase I
If directed and adopted by the Board of Trustees, key elements of Phase I would include:

 Increase capital available to current managers-of-managers
• Establish achievement milestones before more capital is committed or deployed

 Modify current strategy to facilitate investments directly in Alaskan companies 
• Currently targeting >70% in and alongside funds

 Establish $300 million co-investment allocation to be managed by staff
• Designed to increase capital inflows to Alaska without diluting APFC performance objectives

 Consider establishing a separate asset allocation for in-State activity

445



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    6

Phase I -- Other Actions if APFC Elected to Proceed

Planning
 Review concept with stakeholders
 Comply with AS37.13.120
 Engage with identified managers and negotiate terms

• Milestones, fee structure, investment limitations, etc.
 Continue review with APFC GC to ensure compliance and consistency
 Assess and address additional APFC staffing requirements

Execution
 Amend LPA and other governing documents 
 Modify investment strategy to facilitate direct investments 
 Create and document $300 million in-State co-investment allocation 
 Announce expanded programs

Ongoing process management
 Establish communication protocols
 Monitor investment pipelines and manager compliance
 Manage co-investment deal flow 
 Launch could be rapid but deployment pace is unknown

446



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    7

APFC Board of Trustees

APFC Staff

Current Manager 1

Investment A

Investment B

Investment C, etc.

Current manager 2

Investment A

Investment B

Investment C, etc.

$300 million

Co-Investment Pool

Phase I – Organizational Depiction

Other in-State 
Opportunities

447



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    8

Phase III – APFC could create and expand an investment platform

Background
 Private markets are important to investment success but operationally intensive and expensive
 APFC’s historical success in private markets is now at risk

• Success will require expensive info systems, global presence, performance-based compensation
 Outside institutional investors seek to join with APFC and invest in Alaskan presence
 This challenge and potential solution was reviewed at February 19 Board meeting in Juneau

Recent Developments
 Global pandemic and unprecedented economic threats challenge Alaska and APFC

• Attractive investment opportunities are also expected to emerge from this crisis
 April 7, 2020: staff compensation plan vetoed and FY2021 budget signed into law

Next steps
 Staff should solicit for discussion a small number of proposals from current or prospective investment partners 

448



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    9

If directed by the Board, staff would explore strategic alternatives and present options for consideration

 Any proposal would need to:
• Secure and expand current investment capabilities and resources 
• Ensure long-term value creation for Alaska
• Deliver customized and satisfactory governance for APFC

 Other important considerations would include: 
• JV partner attributes, limitations, and financial resources
• Ownership structure and control 
• Targeted investment strategies and IMA
• Potential cost savings

Phase III -- Other Actions if APFC Elected to Proceed

449



20. APFC Budget Review

450



 
 

 
 

SUBJECT: FY20 Budget Projections 
 

ACTION:  
 
 

DATE: May 21, 2020  
 

INFORMATION: X 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Per Board Resolution 98-4 – Pertaining to The Operating Budget of The Corporation: 

 
APFC staff shall, prior to the last meeting of the Board of Trustees of each fiscal year, 
prepare an analysis of expenditures to date and status of programs, identify projected 
shortfalls and surpluses by the objects of expenditures set out herein, and recommend 
transfers to the Board of Trustees. 
 
The Board of Trustees may, following discussion and due consideration of staff 
recommendations, authorize the transfer of budgeted funds between the objects of 
expenditures set out herein pursuant to such recommendations as may be amended by the 
Board of Trustees. 
 
STATUS: 
 
The attached report shows the projected fiscal year-end status of the Corporation’s two 
Fiscal Year 2020 budget components.  The estimates are based on actual expenditures 
through April 2020 and expenditure projections for May and June, 2020.   
 
 
OPERATIONS COMPONENT 
 
 
Total  
Corporate Operations 

 
FY20 Budget 

 
FY20 Actuals 
& Projected 

 
Projected 
Surplus 

  $17,800,400   $15,353,579   $2,446,821   

 
The total expenditure for corporate operations is well within this year’s budget. An 
analysis of the projected FY2020 expenditure activity for each of the objects of 
expenditure is provided below, along with budget detail highlights and factors 
contributing to the operational surplus.  
 

451



 

Page 2 
 

 
 
Personal Services        

FY20 Budget 
      
FY20 Actuals 
& Projected 

             
Projected 
Surplus  

  $11,861,201 $10,950,613 $ 910,588 

 
The Personal Services line is projected to have a surplus at year-end due to higher than 
anticipated vacancy. Over the course of this Fiscal Year the corporation has continued to 
experience a significant change in personnel. In addition to a senior member of the 
Finance team retiring, we lost several operational and investment staff members due to 
compensation and location.  This year we had eight offers declined, primarily due to 
compensation or lack of incentive compensation, which is a standard within the industry. 
Additionally, we stopped pursuing dozens of candidates who became uninterested once 
learning what was available for compensation.  Location was cited as a secondary reason 
for declined offers. 
 
Promotions within the organization continue to offer growth opportunities. However, 
internal personnel shifts merely exchange one vacancy for another. Between now and the 
end of the Fiscal Year, we will likely have positive information to share as we continue 
actively recruiting. Right now, excluding internal promotions, we have made eight hires 
and lost eight employees to other opportunities. By the end of the Fiscal Year, our goal is 
to fill two open administrative positions, both of which were vacated for an internal 
promotion, and to advance two other promising candidates - the Risk Officer and Credit 
Analyst, to next round interviews.      
 
Organizationally we understand the importance of filling positions quickly, however, our 
philosophy is rooted in ensuring we hire the right people, even if that means leaving 
positions open for a longer period. Therefore, several recruitments have taken months to 
capture qualified candidates and, in some cases, despite the best efforts of the staff, 
resulted in declined offers.  
 
 
Travel        

FY20 Budget 
      
FY20 Actuals 
& Projected 

              
Projected 
Surplus  

  $929,000 $466,408 $462,592 

 
Travel expenditures will be less than budgeted. In January, travel started to slow down as 
the global impact of COVID-19 spread, and uncertainty began to grow. By March, many 
states within the United States, including Alaska, enforced a ‘hunker down’ mandate. At 
which point, all travel ceased. This resulted in 25 trips, ranging from training opportunities 
to annual meetings, being canceled. With few answers to what the future will bring and 

452



 

Page 3 
 

when the United States, let alone the rest of the world, will settle into a new version of 
normal, we anticipate minimal to no travel for the remainder of the Fiscal Year.  
 
With that being said, this unprecedented situation has encouraged flexibility and guided 
us to fully utilize technology to redefine ‘business as usual’. Maintaining a portfolio with a 
global outreach and robust deal flow is incredibly important during this time. Instead of 
relying on travel to connect us, we, along with the rest of the industry, are figuring out new 
approaches to conduct business.   
 

 FY19 Actual FY20 Projected 
Total Expenditure $577,625 $466,408 
Total Trips 207 194 

Staff Travel 184 168* 
Trustee Travel 23 26 

*Staff travel does not include the 25 trips that were canceled due to COVID-19. 
 
 
Contractual Services   FY20 Budget FY20 Actual & 

Projected 
Projected 
Surplus 

 $4,174,899 $3,219,032 $955,867 

 
The Contractual Services item of expenditure encompasses all services provided to the 
corporation by non-employees such as contractors, consultants, auditors, and attorneys. 
 

Contractual Services FY20 Budget FY20 Actuals 
& Projected Surplus/Shortfall 

Audit, Legal, Consulting  $435,683   $463,210   $(27,527) 
Public Communications   146,500   146,480   20  
Board Support/Meetings  56,350   46,488   9,862  
Information Technology  2,361,564   1,724,716   636,848  
HR and Recruitment  62,824   50,843   11,981  
Training/Education  186,620   59,056   127,565  
Office Support   925,358   728,240   197,118  

Total   $4,174,899   $3,219,032   $955,867  
*Contractual Services for Investment Management Fees are included in the Investment 
Management section.  
 
Audit, Legal, Consulting – This expenditure line is expected to have a $27,527 shortfall.  
Two main factors are contributing to spending that was not anticipated during the budget 
development process over a year ago. The first being, the Corporation’s long-standing 
auditor contract, KPMG, expiring. And the second, Department of Law bringing on a new 
Assistant Attorney General (AAG) to assist with APFC matters.  

453



 

Page 4 
 

 
KPMG’s contract expiration did not come as a surprise. However, estimating an expected 
rate increase was problematic without knowing the vendor or having conducted a similar 
procurement recently. Through the competitive procurement process, KPMG was awarded 
the contract again in March for an initial five-year term with three one-year optional 
renewals. The cost negotiated as part of the new contract was significantly higher than the 
estimate that was included as part of the FY20 budget development.  With this new 
contract in place, future year projections will be precise.  
 
As for the Department of Law (DOL) hiring a new AAG, APFC expressed interest in having 
additional assistance and it has been a topic of conversation, but did not have a 
confirmed implementation date until this Fiscal Year. We are thrilled to have the support 
as it will alleviate some of our General Counsel’s workload, allowing him to dedicate his 
services toward investments. The Reimbursable Service Agreement (RSA) with DOL 
included personal service expenses for the entire year. However, due to a slower than 
anticipated recruitment, the AAG was not brought on until the beginning of March, 
creating a surplus on this line for the year.  
 
Public Communications – The year-end expenditure on this line is projected to be 
expended on the following projects: FY20 Annual Report and an update to the Alaskan’s 
Guide to the Permanent Fund. A portion of remaining funds available for print and 
advertising will be directed toward the Alaska’s Guide as the update reaches completion, 
and to purchase APFC logo items – such as notepads.  
 
Any remaining funds will likely be used to make a transition between communications 
contractors. In May, our current contract will expire. We are in the process of conducting a 
procurement to replace the contractor. However, it is reasonable to expect a small 
overlap of the two as projects are transitioned.  
 
Board Support and Meetings – This line of expenditure includes meeting room expenses, 
catering, and transcription services. This Fiscal Year a two-year contract was put into 
place for transcription services and we discontinued our subscription to BoardVantage. 
With making the transition to a virtual May Board meeting this line is projected to have a 
surplus of $9,862. 
 
Information Technology (IT) – The lapse of $636,848 within expenditures relating to IT 
accounts for roughly two-thirds of the overall Contractual Services’ surplus. To provide 
some context to these savings, it is important to reflect on the transition that the IT 
Department has taken over the past few years. In 2017, APFC committed to a complete 
technology refresh. The plan not only included updating aging systems, but also 
emphasize enabling new, more modern technologies.  This initiative has brought new 
capabilities and agility to the workforce, along with increasing our security 
exponentially.  In 2017, the IT budget reflected this investment and included a substantial 
increase.  However as the initiative concludes, the return on investment is being seen 
through reduced spending on consulting services, efficiencies in processing and compute 
time, a successful remote work environment, and upgraded and improved communications 
capabilities. Additionally, the costs associated with the 2017 initiative have begun to 

454



 

Page 5 
 

stabilize. Since we have highly experienced staff on board, this has reduced our reliance 
on consultants and contractors,  we are initiating more frequent but less expensive 
maintenance on equipment, improved airflow in the data center has added life to older 
but good equipment and improved communications systems are accessing already in place 
connectivity.  This budget projection follows the plan for the initiative and reflects the 
expected reductions.   
 
HR and Recruitment – This line of expenditure includes recruitment notices and 
Department of Revenue inter-agency expenses. With the inter-agency expenses higher 
than projected, only a small surplus from notices remains.  
 
Training and Education – This line is projected to have a $127,565 surplus.  Staff 
attended conferences that were deemed essential to increase efficiency, performance, or 
reduce operational risk. Although staff value the importance of training, and put together 
a budget anticipating certain opportunities, the demands of daily work have made it 
difficult for staff to focus on those opportunities. In addition to many conferences being 
canceled due to COVID-19, bringing new recruits up-to-speed and managing internal 
position changes have been the primary focus. One opportunity that not only provided 
individual growth, but benefited the entire Corporation was a four-day Executive 
Leadership training attended by upper-management in November. 
 
Office Support –This expenditure line is expected to have a surplus of $197,118. This 
category includes inter-agency agreements, office and equipment leases, delivery 
services, and all communications that are necessary for day-to-day operations such as 
videoconferencing, telecommunications, mobile devices, etc. The surplus is primarily due to 
discontinuing services with the state’s Office of Information Technology (OIT), which 
accounts for $50,000 of the surplus, and significantly lower than anticipated 
communication-related charges.  
 
 
Commodities        

FY20 Budget 
      
FY20 Actuals 
& Projected 

              
Projected 
Surplus   

  $435,300 $318,013 $117,287 

 
The Commodities line includes subscriptions, reference materials, and office supplies, as 
well as furniture and IT equipment that cost less than $5,000 per item.  The expenditure in 
this line is under-budget by $117,287.  
 
With the unexpected transition to working remotely, the importance of regularly replacing 
IT Workstation Equipment has become more apparent than ever. Because our IT 
Department made it a priority to ensure a regular replacement schedule was not only 
budgeted for but implemented timely, they were prepared to outfit the corporation with 
the equipment necessary to conduct business remotely with little to no disruption. To 
maintain that, the projected expenses include the replacement of 30 laptops and 
increasing the number of iPads available to staff.  

455



 

Page 6 
 

 
 
Equipment        

FY20 Budget 
      
FY20 Actuals 
& Projected 

              
Projected 
Surplus   

  $400,000 $399,514 $487 

 
The Equipment line includes furniture and IT equipment that cost more than $5,000 per 
item. This line is expected to be nearly fully expended. The two main initiatives, where 
equipment over $5,000 was allocated, include the modernization of our production data 
center and Phase Two of the Disaster Recovery Plan. APFC’s Business Continuity Disaster 
Recovery (BCDR) committee started developing a BCDR plan two years ago that includes 
three phases. Phase One, engineering a plan to begin duplicating data in Fairbanks, our 
DR location, was completed in FY2019. Phase Two, outfitting the DR site with the 
equipment necessary to support a fully functional operation, provided an opportunity to 
effectively make forward progress while saving money. The decision to replace Juneau’s 
data center equipment with the newest technology and ship our existing equipment to 
Fairbanks, which still has more than three years before its end-of-life, accomplished both 
the upgrade and put the infrastructure in place necessary to complete Phase Two. The 
final phase, Phase Three, will include extensive system and user testing. We expect to 
begin work on Phase Three by the end of the summer or early fall.   
 
INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPONENT 
 

Investment Management FY20 Budget FY20 Actuals 
& Projected Surplus 

Investment Manager Fees  $136,520,085   $95,908,648   $40,611,437  
Public Equities  82,493,617   62,560,861   19,932,756  
Fixed Income  13,116,245   12,296,116   820,129  
Alternative Assets  40,910,223   21,051,671   19,858,552  

Investment Systems   $5,300,415   $4,819,053   $481,362  
Investment Due Diligence  7,178,200   4,000,749   3,177,451  

Custody Fees  1,500,000   1,411,138   88,862  

Total  $150,498,700   $106,139,588   $44,359,112  
 
Note:  This analysis includes a projection for investment management fees that are paid 
directly with corporate receipts.  APFC has agreements in place in which management fees 
are netted directly from assets under management.  This analysis and projection does not 
address these net fee arrangements directly.  A report of fees paid to managers with net fee 
arrangements is included in each quarterly Board meeting packet. 
  
Total expenditures for the Investment Management budget are expected to be $106.1 
million, ending the year with a surplus authorization of approximately $44.4 million.  
Management fees are largely dependent upon investment performance, which is difficult 

456



 

Page 7 
 

to predict, particularly as far in advance as the budget process requires.  The budget is 
built based upon projected growth for each asset class combined with anticipated actual 
fee structures for external management.  Because of the unpredictability of these inputs 
and the nature of the budget approval process, a conservative buffer is built in to ensure 
that the corporation is in a position to honor the terms of the contracts with its investment 
partners.  Surplus authorization does not lapse and remains invested as part of the 
Earnings Reserve account of the Fund. 
 
Public Equity – The surplus of $19.9 million for fees paid for the management of the 
public equity portfolio is due to a lower than projected assumed return. This moves fairly 
proportionately with assets under management as virtually all managers charge us basis 
points on assets. This Fiscal Year the market has experienced all-time highs and lows, 
directly impacting fees, making prior forecasts less relevant.  
 
Fixed Income Plus – Fees paid for the external management of these portfolios are 
projected to result in a surplus of $820,000. Fixed income management fees are directly 
related to the value of assets managed. Contingent upon the Board’s approval of the 
investment policy, in FY2021, fees previously reported here for equity investments will 
move to Private Income and the AEW REITs will be moved to Real Estate.    
 
Alternatives – It is anticipated that there will be a surplus authorization, $19.9 million, in 
this allocation. Included in this category are fees paid for the private equity gatekeeper, 
the currency and cash overlay managers, and fees paid for oversight of AH4RII. A 
significant portion of Alternative Investment fees are paid to Pathway Capital. Roughly 
20% or 4.5 million of the surplus is directly related to Pathway’s fees being lower than 
conservatively forecasted. The majority of the remaining surplus is unallocated fees 
associated with the ECIO program that was canceled in FY2019. Because of the timeline 
of the budget development process the cancelation of the program was not considered 
when fees were forecasted. Changes like this, or projecting new investments over a year 
in the future, for budgetary purposes are difficult to predict. For that reason,  budgetary 
depth, similar to diligence, will continue to be requested to ensure obligations can be 
satisfied.  
 
Investment Systems – There is a projected surplus of $481,362 on this line for the year.  
Expenditures on this line include consulting related to systems that support investment 
activity such as Bloomberg and Aladdin, data feeds for investment systems that facilitate 
analytics and trading, and internet access fees.    
 
Investment Due Diligence – The projection indicates that expenditures in this category 
will be about $4 million, which is substantially less than the budget authorization of $7.2 
million.  A significant portion of this surplus authorization, approximately $2.6 million, 
resides in the budget to secure third-party fiduciary advice, subject matter experts, and 
legal services when considering and acquiring investment opportunities. Budgetary depth 
will continue to be requested for this discretionary work to avoid restricting the required 
due diligence of investment opportunities.  The remainder of the surplus authorization 
relates to manager searches and memberships that were not utilized this Fiscal Year. 
  

457



 

Page 8 
 

International Forum of Sovereign Wealth Funds (IFSWF) – With tremendous 
success APFC hosted the IFSWF Annual Meeting in September. The estimated 
conference budget was $250,000, of which, the Board authorized a $150,000 
from the Investment Due Diligence allocation. With sponsor support, APFC was 
able to host a productive, impactful conference, while managing to come in under 
budget. All expenses included, the conference totaled $232,375. Of the 
$150,000 authorized by the Board as an APFC expenditure, the planning 
committee only spent $37,375 and the remainder was covered by sponsorships.    

 
Custody Fees –At the Annual December Meeting the Board approved to renew the 
contract for custody services and securities lending agreement with Bank of New York 
Mellon for a ten-year term.  
 
CAPITAL PROJECTS 
 

Project Name Year 
Authorized Authorization Expended to 

Date Balance 

APFC Headquarters 
Renovation 

 
FY2018 

 
$4,050,000 

 
$3,660,261 

 
$389,739 

 
The Department of Transportation (DOT) along with Dawson Construction and Capital 
Office Furniture completed the office reconfiguration at the beginning of March, 2019. 
On March 19, 2019 the Corporation received its certificate of permanent occupancy. 
Since then we have been working with DOT to obtain our final invoices. In April, we 
received what we anticipate to be our final billing. The last step to closing the Capital 
Project will be to commission a contractor to expend the 1% art allowance authorized by 
DOT.   
 
 
 

458



Corporate Operations
Board-authorized 

Budget
Actuals and Projected 

Expenditures
Projected Remaining 

Budget

Personal Services 11,861,201$                10,950,613$                910,588$                      
Staff 11,843,781                  10,933,116                  910,665                        
Board: Honoraria 17,420                          17,497                          (77)                                 

Travel 929,000                        466,408                        462,592                        
Staff 671,877                        365,235                        306,642                        
Trustees 45,623                          18,539                          27,084                          
Moving/Non-Employee 211,500                        82,634                          128,866                        

Contractual Services 4,174,899                    3,219,032                    955,867                        
Audit, Legal, Consulting 435,683                        463,210                        (27,527)                         
Public Communications 146,500                        146,480                        20                                  
Board Support and Meetings 56,350                          46,488                          9,862                            
Information Technology 2,361,564                    1,724,716                    636,848                        
HR and Recruitment 62,824                          50,843                          11,981                          
Training/Education 186,620                        59,056                          127,565                        
Office Support 925,358                        728,240                        197,118                        

Commodities 435,300                        318,013                        117,287                        
Equipment 400,000                        399,514                        487                                
Corporate Operations Total 17,800,400$                15,353,579$                2,446,821$                  

Investment Management
Investment Systems 5,300,415$                  4,819,053$                  481,362$                      
Investment Due Diligence 7,178,200                    4,000,749                    3,177,451                    
Custody Fees 1,500,000                    1,411,138                    88,862                          
Investment Manager Fees 136,520,085                95,908,648                  40,611,437                  

Public Equities 82,493,617                  62,560,861                  19,932,756                  
Fixed Income 13,116,245                  12,296,116                  820,129                        
Alternative Assets 40,910,223                  21,051,671                  19,858,552                  

Investment Management Total 150,498,700$             106,139,588$             44,359,112$                

Legislative Appropriation 8,848,200$                  7,792,162$                  1,056,038$                  

Capital Project: Renovation 4,050,000$                  3,660,261$                  389,739$                     

Total Appropriation 181,197,300$             132,945,590$             48,251,710$                

Budget-to-Actuals and Projected Expenditures: July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020

459



 
 
 
 

SUBJECT: FY21 Budget Approval 
 

ACTION: X 
 
 

DATE: May 21, 2020  
 

INFORMATION:  

 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Per Board Resolution, 98-6 Authorization to Expend Approved Funds: 
 
Before the end of the current fiscal year, APFC staff shall present to the Board of Trustees the final operating 
and capital budgets authorized by the Legislature for the succeeding fiscal year, and identify budget 
reductions by the Legislature, if any, along with an analysis of resulting corporate or program effect. 
 
The Board of Trustees authorizes the Executive Director, following proper notification to the Trustees in 
accordance with the requirements of Resolution 98-6, to expend from appropriations as authorized by Trustee 
policy and the Legislature beginning July 1 of the fiscal year. 
 
In September 2019, the Board approved a detailed budget for presentation to the Legislature through the 
Office of Management and Budget (OMB).   
 
STATUS: 
 
With a fast-tracked Legislative session, HB205, the Fiscal Year (FY) 2021 Operating Budget was passed 
by both bodies of the Legislature, and transmitted to the Governor for signature quicker than we have 
experience in recent years. On April 6, the Governor signed HB 205 the FY2021 budget into law, which 
included two-line item vetoes that impacted APFC and the Fund. The veto on page 88, lines 18-22 of the 
bill eliminated FY2021 the Inflation Proofing Transfer of $1,055,600, and page 32, lines 17-18 
eliminated the Incentive Compensation increment of $2,763,500.  
 
BOARD PROPOSED BUDGET: 
 
Annually the budget is developed utilizing a zero-based budgeting approach. In the summer of 2019, all 
department heads thoroughly reviewed prior-year expenditures to compile and project FY2021 expenses. 
This process resulted in reductions to four lines of expenditure: contractual services, commodities, manager 
fees, and investment due diligence; and increases to personal services, investment systems, and custody 
fees.  
 
The reductions within the Operating allocation were primarily attributed to IT contractual services and IT 
related commodities. With a sophisticated IT infrastructure in place and the office remodel complete, it is 
anticipated that IT-related expenditures will normalize to the demands of standard replacement and 
upgrade schedules. Within the Investment Management allocation, $17.4 million of the reduction was 
attributed to the termination of the External Chief Investment Officer (ECIO) program within Alternatives.  
 

460



 

Page 2 
 

In building the budget, the original travel request was to remain the same level of funding as FY2020. 
However, based on prior-year actuals, the Board requested a reduction of $229,000. 
 
In the Operating allocation, increases occurred within personal services. The request included a new 
manager position for Real Estate $257,545, a Staff Compensation Plan $2,820,206, and merit and 
retention adjustments $720,551. Both an incentive compensation plan and merit and retention adjustments 
were also presented in the FY2020 budget request, but later removed through the Legislative process. 
With much discussion and debate, the Board and staff agreed that in the best interest of the future of the 
Corporation, the request would be pursued again for FY2021.  
 
Increases to the Investment Management allocation included funds to support a contract renewal with our 
custodial bank, Bank of New York Mellon, the implementation of a new Public Equities portfolio risk system, 
and a Private Assets analytics system.   
 
In summary, the Board Proposed FY2021 Operating Budget contained a net decrement of $18.4 million 
across both the Operating and Investment Management allocations. Throughout the Legislative process, the 
Board’s proposed Operating Budget was consistently approved by both the House and the Senate, except 
for expenditures relating to personal services. The main point of discussion within both bodies focused on 
the reintroduction of an incentive compensation plan. Although this reaction was expected, the results were 
unknown. In the end, the House approved a budget that included the incentive compensation plan, the 
Senate removed it and cut the requested merit increase in half, and in Conference Committee an 
agreement was made to restore the funding for both items. The final actions taken by the Legislature and 
the Governor resulted in a net decrement of over $21.2 million from the FY2020 authorized budget. The 
Board’s proposed increments and decrements were all enacted, except for the incentive compensation 
program. 
 
 
 

 
BOT Proposed 

Increments/ 
Decrements 

HB 205 Enacted 
Increments/ 
Decrements 

   
Merit and Retention Adjustments  $720,551  $720,600  
Staff Compensation Plan*      $2,820,206    
Real Estate Manager Position  $257,545  $257,600  
Operational Reductions ($1,097,845) ($1,097,900) 
Investment Management Fees ($21,098,062) ($21,098,100) 

Total decrement from  
FY20 Authorized Budget ($18,397,605) ($21,217,800) 

 
*The Staff Compensation Plan included the new position and associated benefits. However, the 
incentive compensation was later removed for the position reducing the total plan amount to 
$2,763,500.  
 
 
 
 
 

461



 

Page 3 
 

 
A comparison of the Board’s Authorized FY2020, Proposed FY2021request, and the Enacted 
HB205 FY2021 Operating Budget is outlined below: 
 

  Authorized BOT Proposed HB 205 Enacted 

  FY2020 FY2021 FY2021 

Operating Allocation  $17,800,400  $20,500,857  $17,680,700  

Personal Services $11,861,200  $15,659,502  $12,839,400  
Travel  $929,000  $700,000  $700,000  
Contractual Services  $4,174,900  $3,404,405  $3,404,400  
Commodities $435,300  $336,950  $336,900  
Equipment $400,000  $400,000  $400,000  

Investment 
Management Allocation $150,498,700  $129,400,638  $129,400,600  

Investment Manager 
Fees $136,520,085  $114,297,218  $114,297,200  

Investment Due Diligence $7,178,200  $6,587,000  $6,587,000  
Investment Systems $5,300,415  $6,716,420  $6,716,400  
Custody Fees $1,500,000    1,800,000.00  $1,800,000  

Total Appropriation   $168,299,100  $149,901,495  $147,081,300  
 
 
IMPACTS OF GOVERNOR’S VETO: 
 
Personal Services 
 
It is disappointing to see the Incentive Compensation Plan make it thought the Legislative process, 
but not to the finish line. However, it was a great opportunity to continue to educate Legislators 
and the public on what it will take for Corporation to remain competitive with peers, attract 
qualified applicants, and retain the existing talented staff. The impact of the $2,763,500 
reduction cannot be quantified. Annually, the Corporation’s Human Resources team documents the 
number of applicants that turn down offers as a result of lack of compensation, and exit interviews 

462



 

Page 4 
 

are conducted with staff, but the number of missed investment opportunities, as a result, is 
unknown.   
 
With that being said, the addition of a new Real Estate Manager and the funds needed to 
provide merit adjustments will positively impact the Corporation.  
 
Inflation Proofing 
 
The importance of inflation proofing, in accordance with AS 37.13.145 (c) to maintain the 
purchasing power of the Principal for future generations, remains a priority for APFC and is well 
understood amongst Legislators. While the veto of the FY2021 legislative inflation proofing 
transfer is less than optimal, it is beneficial to recall that an FY2020 special appropriation of $4 
billion from the ERA to the Principal was enacted with the intent of having it serve as future years 
inflation proofing.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

  Requested Authorization 

  FY2021 

Operating Allocation  $17,680,700  

Personal Services $12,839,400  
Travel  $700,000  
Contractual Services  $3,404,400  
Commodities $336,900  
Equipment $400,000  

Investment Management Allocation $129,400,600  

Investment Manager Fees $114,297,200  

Investment Due Diligence $6,587,000  
Investment Systems $6,716,400  
Custody Fees $1,800,000  

FY21 Total Appropriation Authorization  $147,081,300  
 
 
Proposed Board Motion: 
 
“The Board moves to authorize the Chief Executive Officer to expend the APFC budget 
authorization as authorized by the Legislature and enacted into law.”   
 

463



FY20 Budget Projections 

464



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    2

Two Allocations -

• Corporate Operations
• Investment 

Management Fees

Capital Budget

465



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    3

Corporate Operations

• Personal Services
• Travel
• Contractual Services
• Commodities
• Equipment

466



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    4

Total Corporate Operations

Total Corporate Operations FY20 Budget FY20 Actuals
& Projected

Projected
Surplus 

$         17,800,400 $           15,353,579 $             2,446,821 

467



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    5

Personal Services

Total Personal Services FY20 Budget FY20 Actuals
& Projected

Projected 
Surplus 

$           11,861,201 $           10,950,613 $                910,588 

• Salaries
• Benefits
• Trustee Honoraria

468



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    6

Personal Services Surplus

Position Title 
# of 
PCNs

Status

Accountant 4 2-Actively recruiting , 1-filled
Admin. Specialist 6 2-Actively recruiting, 2-filled & 2-pending (PT)
Business Analyst 1 Actively recruiting
Investment Officer - Real Estate 1 Filled 
Risk Officer 1 Actively recruiting
Investment Associate 3 1-Actively recruiting , 2-filled
Investment Officer 3 2-Pending 1-filled
IT Specialist 1 1- Filled
Chief Risk Officer 1 Filled
Trade Operations 1 Filled
Chief/Director of Operations 1 Pending 

469



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    7

Travel

• Staff
• Trustee
• Moving/Non-employee
• 14 Trips are pending final approval for traveler reimbursement
• All travel is suspended until further notice due to COVID-19

Total Travel FY20 Budget FY20 Actuals
& Projected

Projected 
Surplus 

$               929,000  $                 466,408 $                  462,592 

470



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    8

Contractual Services

FY20 Budget FY20 Actuals &
Projected

Projected Surplus/
Shortfall 

Audit, Legal, Consulting 435,683 463,210 (27,527)
Public Communications 146,500 146,480 20 
Board Support and Meetings 56,350 46,488 9,862 
Information Technology 2,361,564 1,724,716 636,848 
HR and Recruitment 62,824 50,843 11,981 
Training/Education 186,620 59,056 127,565 
Office Support 925,358 728,240 197,118 
TOTAL $             4,174,899 $             3,219,032 $                955,867 

*Contractual Services for Investment Management Fees are outlined on slide 11

471



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    9

Commodities

• Office/IT Supplies
• Subscriptions
• Equipment < $5,000

Total Commodities FY20 Budget FY20 Actuals
& Projected

Projected
Surplus 

$               435,300 $                318,013 $               117,287 

472



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    10

Equipment

• Equipment > $5,000

Total Equipment FY20 Budget FY20 Actuals
& Projected

Projected
Surplus 

$                400,000 $                399,514 $                       487 

473



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    11

Investment Management Fees

FY20 Budget FY20 Actuals &
Projected

Projected
Surplus 

Investment Manager Fees $         136,520,085 $           95,908,648 $           40,611,437 
Public Equity 82,493,617 62,560,861 19,932,756 
Fixed Income Plus 13,116,245 12,296,116 820,129 

Alternative Investments 40,910,223 21,051,671 19,858,552 
Investment Systems 5,300,415 4,819,053 481,362
Investment Due Diligence 7,178,200 4,000,749 3,177,451 
Custody Fees 1,500,000 1,411,138 88,862 
TOTAL $         150,498,700 $         106,139,588 $           44,359,112 

474



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    12

Capital Project

Year 
Authorized

Authorization Expended to Date Balance

APFC Headquarters 
Renovation

FY2018 $             4,050,000 $             3,660,261 $                389,739

475



Questions?

476



FY21 Budget Authorization

477



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    15

FY21 BOT Budget Request

• $149,901,495
• Staff Compensation Plan
• Real Estate Manager position
• Merit and retention 

adjustment 

478



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    16

BOT Proposed
Increments/
Decrements

HB 205 Enacted
Increments/
Decrements

Merit and Retention Adjustments 720,551 720,600 

Staff Compensation Plan* 2,820,206 

Real Estate Manager Position 257,545 257,600 

Operational Reductions (1,097,845) (1,097,900)

Investment Management Fees (21,098,062) (21,098,100)

Total decrement from 
FY20 Authorized Budget $                       (18,397,605) $                       (21,217,800)

Change from FY20

479



ALASKA PERMANENT FUND CORPORATION    17

HB205
BOT Proposed HB 205 Enacted

Operating Allocation $            20,500,857 $              17,680,700 

Personal Services 15,659,502 12,839,400 
Travel 700,000 700,000 
Contractual Services 3,404,405 3,404,400 
Commodities 336,950 336,900 
Equipment 400,000 400,000 
Investment Management 
Allocation $          129,400,638 $          129,400,600 

Investment Manager Fees 114,297,218 114,297,200 

Investment Due Diligence 6,587,000 6,587,000 
Investment Systems 6,716,420 6,716,400 
Custody Fees 1,800,000.00 1,800,000 

Total Appropriation  $          149,901,495 $            147,081,300 

480



Motion to Authorize Expenditure

481



21. Calendars 

482



 

2020 BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING SCHEDULE 
 

DATE LOCATION TYPE OF MEETING
 

 

February 19-20, 2020 
(Wednesday/Thursday) 

Juneau     
 

Regular 

May 20-21, 2020*  
(Wednesday/Thursday) 

Virtual 
 

Regular 
Audit Committee

September 3, 2020* 
(Thursday) 

Juneau 
 

Audit Committee 
Budget Planning Session 

 
September 23-24, 2020  
(Wednesday/Thursday) 

Anchorage 
 

Annual Meeting 

 
December 9-10, 2020 
(Tuesday/Wednesday) 

Juneau 
 

Regular 

 
 
Committee Meetings and Special or additional APFC board meetings will be scheduled as 
needed. Investment Advisors are invited to attend all meetings. 
 

*The Audit Committee Meeting in September must be scheduled in advance to coordinate with the 
release date for the Audited Statements and the Annual Report as required in statute. 

 

483



 

2021 BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING SCHEDULE 
 

DATE LOCATION TYPE OF MEETING
 

 

February 17-18, 2021 
(Wednesday/Thursday) 

Juneau     
 

Regular 

May 19-20, 2021  
(Wednesday/Thursday) 

Kodiak 
 

Regular 
Audit Committee

September 2, 2021* 
(Thursday) 

Anchorage 
 

Audit Committee 
Budget Planning Session 

 
September 22-23, 2021  
(Wednesday/Thursday) 

Juneau 
 

Annual Meeting 

 
December 8-9, 2021 
(Wednesday/Thursday) 

Anchorage 
 

Regular 

 
 
Committee Meetings and Special or additional APFC board meetings will be scheduled as 
needed. Investment Advisors are invited to attend all meetings. 
 

*The Audit Committee Meeting in September must be scheduled in advance to coordinate with the 
release date for the Audited Statements and the Annual Report as required in statute. 

 

484


	000_BOT Cover Page
	00_Table of Contents
	0000_Insert Pages
	01_Agenda Draft
	0000_Insert Pages
	02_Approval of Minutes Memo
	02a_Quarterly Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes - 19&20Feb20
	02b_ Special Meeting of the Board Minutes - 5Mar20
	0000_Insert Pages
	03a_ Letter to Kris Curtis re FY19 Audit Finding
	0000_Insert Pages
	04a_Pending Board Matters
	04b_Trustee Education Report
	04c_Disclosure Reports (Q1 January - March)
	04d_Staff Summary Report
	04d1_2020 Staff Education and Training Report Q1
	Q1 January - March

	0000_Insert Pages
	05_Communications Report_2020 May
	0000_Insert Pages
	06_Financial Update 03.31.20
	06a_Financial Report 03.31.20
	06b_Cash Flows Report 03.31.20
	06c_Proj 202003
	Proj new

	0000_Insert Pages
	07_2020.03 Fees & Expenses by Funding Source
	0000_Insert Pages
	08_FY20 Budget Update
	0000_Insert Pages
	09_Legislative Update_2020 May
	0000_Insert Pages
	10_Anchorage Office Timeline
	0000_Insert Pages
	11_CIO Report May 2020 vFINAL
	0000_Insert Pages
	12_Risk Overview_BOT_2020.05.20
	0000_Insert Pages
	13_Callan Board Presentation 1Q20 Capital Markets Final
	0000_Insert Pages
	14_Callan Board Performance Presentation 1Q20 Performance Final
	0000_Insert Pages
	15_APFC AA Discussion FY 2021 May Board Meeting
	Asset Allocation Discussion�FY 2021 10-Year Projections�
	Outline
	Callan Capital Market Projection Process
	Highlights of 2020 Capital Market Projections
	Capital Market Projections
	Capital Market Assumptions
	APFC 2021 Target Asset Allocation
	Constrained Efficient Frontier Analysis 37% Private Assets
	Concluding Observations

	0000_Insert Pages
	16_IAG Candidates
	0000_Insert Pages
	17_Revised Investment Policy  Asset Allocation Discussion May 2020 vFINAL
	17a_IPS_Redline to IPS 2018_BOT
	I OINTRODUCTIONBJECTIVES
	A. Purpose
	B. Roles of Board, Staff, Consultants, and Advisors

	II TOTAL FUND & PORTFOLIO DESIGN PHILOSOPHY
	A. Purpose
	A. The purpose of this Investment Policy & Procedures Statement (“Policy & Procedures”) is to provide a formal plan for investing and managing the assets of the Alaska Permanent Fund and other state assets as prescribed by law to achieve the defined i...
	A. This document is not intended to be a static, one-time document and will be considered for possible amendment on an annual basis or any time the Board of Trustees (“Board”) modifies or adds to the Corporation’s investment-related policies and pract...
	A. The Policy & Procedures addressed herein shall be interpreted and applied in a manner consistent with: (1) 15 AAC 137.410 – 15 AAC 137.990, and (2) AS 37.13.120.
	A. Roles of Board, Staff, Consultants, and Advisors
	A. The Board has the primary fiduciary responsibility for investing Fund assets in accordance with the Alaska Constitution and applicable law. The roles of the Board are to set investment policy and procedures, oversee investment management through th...
	A. APFC Staff, in turn, is tasked with the fiduciary responsibility for managing the investment portfolio and operations needed to fulfill the Fund’s objectives, as specified by the Board, in line with the Policy & Procedures. Staff advises and inform...
	A. Consultants provide advice and implementation assistance on investment programs to the Board and Staff on both the overall Fund as well as with specific asset classes. Consistent with 15 AAC 137.460(b)(2), Consultants may also be used to evaluate w...
	A. Finally, Consultants report on the progress that the Fund is making with regard to specific programs and makes comparisons of Fund performance against its target benchmarks, including Fund peers.
	A. Consistent with the Board’s Charters and Governance Policies, Investment Advisors are selected by the Board to provide education, advice, commentary, and discussion as requested at Board meetings, based upon their industry experience with peer inst...
	A. Total Fund Objective
	A. Total Fund Objectives
	A. Investment Performance: ability to generate a 10-year returnmeet or exceed long-term (5+ years) i of CPI + 5% (“long-term target”)nflation-adjusted actuarial, medium-term (3-year) peer group, and short-term (1-year) index benchmarks; and
	A. Investment Efficiency: ability for the Fund to harvest investment returns commensurate with the overall level of risk undertaken by the portfolio, as measured primarily by the Sharpe Ratio; and
	A. Investment Risk: ability of the Fund to generate this 10-year returnmeasure and control risks in line withile conforming to the risk appetite approved by the Board State and Board tolerances and peer group norms.
	B. Total Fund Asset Mix
	Table 1: Asset Allocation

	C. Total Fund and Asset Class Benchmarks
	Table 2: Benchmarks - constituent indexes and weights

	D. Total Fund Performance Measurement & Reporting Criteria—Performance Scorecard
	E. Total Fund Portfolio Implementation, Delegations, and Investment Committee
	A.
	A. The Board’s General Consultant will deliver reports to the Board at each regular Board meeting which indicate whether the Fund is meeting its objectives as described in the Policy & Procedures. In addition, the General Consultant will provide a “Pe...
	A.
	A. The Board looks to its General Consultant as the primary source of quantitative evaluation of the performance of the Fund and its investment managers. As promptly as possible after the close of each calendar quarter, the Consultant shall submit a r...
	A.
	A. Each asset class is associated with a benchmark that describes in general terms the opportunity set and return characteristics associated with the asset class. For certain private or more complex asset classes, the benchmark serves as a proxy for e...
	A. The long-term investment objectives for the Fund should target a return of CPI+5% or better into the future. This CPI+5% or better target should be achieved through a combination of (1) strategic asset allocation among the asset classes, (2) tactic...
	A. Table 2
	A.
	A. Table 3
	A.
	A. In addition, after the conclusion of each fiscal year, the General Consultant will provide an asset class breakdown of the Performance Scorecard (in addition to the total Fund Performance Scorecard which will be reported quarterly). Rather than uti...
	A. Peer group comparisons will generally be made on a 3-year (medium-term) basis for assessing the effectiveness of the Fund and its asset classes. Fund peers will include large US Public Funds as well as other plans deemed comparable by the General C...
	A. Index comparisons are to be utilized for assessing the short-term (1-year) performance of the Fund. Such comparisons should include a Passive Index Benchmark (comprised of investable publicly traded securities, reflected as 60% MSCI ACWI IMI (BB ID...
	A.
	A. Total Fund Portfolio Implementation, Restrictions, Delegations
	F. Relationship of the Investment Policy & Procedures  with Regulations, and Investment Guidelines and Risk Appetite

	III PUBLIC MARKETS
	i. Objective
	ii. Structure
	iii. Authorized Investments Strategy
	iv. Rebalancing and Mandate Modification
	v. DiversificationRisk Limits and Pportfolio Rrestrictions
	vi. Objective
	vii. Structure
	viii. Authorized Investment StrategyInvestments
	ix. Rebalancing and Mandate Modification
	x. Diversification and portfolio restrictionsRisk Limits and Portfolio Restrictions
	xi. Objectives
	xii. Structure and Authorized Investments Strategy
	i. Authorized Investments
	i.
	i.
	xiii. Risk Limits and Portfolio Restrictions
	i. Diversification and portfolio restrictions
	i.  Objective
	ii. Investment Strategy
	iii. Authorized Investments
	At any point, 80% of the portfolio should be invested in instruments with a final maturity not exceeding 181 days.
	iv. Risk Limits and Portfolio Restrictions
	v. Authorized Investments

	IV ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENTS
	Private Equity & Special Opportunities
	vi. Objectives
	vii. Investment Strategy
	viii. Diversification and portfolio restrictions
	i. Structure

	G. Real Estate, Infrastructure, and Private Income
	ix. Objective
	x. Investment Strategy
	xi. Diversification and portfolio restrictions

	H.  Infrastructure Portfolio
	xii. Objective
	xiii. Investment Strategy
	xiv. Risk Limits and Portfolio Restrictions

	A.
	A. III.  Diversification and portfolio Restrictions
	A. In constructing a diversified Infrastructure portfolio, APFC Staff will consider the following characteristics: manager, strategy, investment size, and company concentration.  Unless otherwise approved by the Board, the Chief Risk Officer is respon...
	A. At the time of investment, no single partnership commitment, individual direct investment, or co-investment (or a series of investment securities issued by the same operating entity or company) shall exceed 15% of the Infrastructure Portfolio;
	A. Investments in multiple vehicles managed by the same manager are permitted. However, combined investments with a single manager shall not exceed 30% of the Infrastructure Portfolio;
	A. APFC assets invested with each manager shall not represent more than 30% of that manager’s AUM;
	A.  Staff will seek to accomplish this as follows:
	A. Achieve investment returns in excess of the long-term and short-term portfolio benchmarks listed in Section II.E, Table 2;
	A. Generate a sustained, attractive level of current income judged relative to comparable risk/income investments available in the public markets; and
	A. Construct a diversified portfolio as measured by the following attributes: asset type, strategy, industry, geography, vintage year, inflation sensitivity, public market sensitivity, and fund or asset manager.
	A. Structure
	A. APFC shall invest in the Real Estate, Infrastructure & Private Income Portfolio primarily through limited liability entities into (i) commingled or separately managed fund investments with independent fiduciaries, (ii) co-investments with independe...
	A. Authorized Investments
	A. The Real Estate, Infrastructure & Private Income Portfolio will consist of four programs with specific goals designed to contribute to long-term objectives of the portfolio and the Fund. The performance of these programs will be evaluated individua...
	A. Private Real Estate: Private Real Estate investments shall primarily target (i) directly-held income producing, core real estate in the United States and globally, (ii) directly-held build-to-core or other non-core properties, (iii) funds that inve...
	A. Private Infrastructure: Private Infrastructure investments shall primarily target long-lived assets and companies that exhibit contractual or inflation protection characteristics, while safeguarding principal. Investments may include energy infrast...
	A. Private Credit: Private Credit investments, in the context of a diversified portfolio, shall exhibit a high level of income and potentially provide for capital appreciation, while safeguarding principal. These investments shall primarily target fun...
	A. Income Opportunities: The dynamic nature of global markets, company innovation, market volatility, and behavioral economics often create attractive investment opportunities that do not fit precisely into standard, predetermined categories. These In...
	I. Private Credit and Income Opportunities (Private Income Portfolio)
	xv. Objective
	xvi. Investment Strategy
	xvii. Risk Limits and Portfolio Restrictions

	A. III.  Diversification and portfolio Restrictions
	A. Private Credit: Private Credit investments, in the context of a diversified portfolio, shall exhibit a high level of income and potentially provide for capital appreciation, while safeguarding principal. These investments shall primarily target fun...
	J. Income Opportunities: The dynamic nature of global markets, company innovation, market volatility, and behavioral economics often create attractive investment opportunities that do not fit precisely into standard, predetermined categories. These In...
	xviii. Objective
	xix. Investment Strategy
	xx. Risk Limits and Portfolio Restrictions

	A. III.  Diversification and portfolio Restrictions

	I  The Absolute Return Portfolio seeks to accomplish this goal by pursuing the following investment objectives:
	I Achieve investment returns in excess of the long-term and short-term portfolio benchmarks listed previously in Section II.E, Table 2;
	I Generate a long-term correlation of monthly returns compared to the Fund’s overall returns of less than fifty percent (50.0%) as measured over rolling 36 month periods; and
	I Generate an ex-ante standard deviation of monthly returns of less than twelve percent (12.0%) per annum as measured over rolling 36 month periods.
	I Structure
	I APFC shall invest the Absolute Return Portfolio by committing to comingled or separately managed limited liability entities classified as direct funds or fund-of-funds managers. These managers may invest in public or private securities and other fin...
	I Authorized Investments
	I The Absolute Return Portfolio shall primarily target funds that include one or more of the following strategies, with no fund exceeding 10% of the Absolute Return Portfolio size as measured at the time of investment without Board approval:
	I Relative Value, including equity market neutral, fixed income arbitrage, and convertible arbitrage;
	I Event-Driven, including merger arbitrage, distressed securities/discounted bank debt, and special situations; and
	I Directional/Tactical/Opportunistic, including long-short equity, managed futures, and global macro. 
	I
	V ALASKA IN-STATE INVESTMENT POLICY
	VI AUTHORIZED USE OF AUTHORIZED USE OF DERIVATIVES S
	A. Objective
	B. Derivatives Definition; AuthorizationScope
	C.  Derivatives Applications Permitted Uses
	D. Derivatives Risk Management and Compliance
	xxi. Derivative Pre-Approval Requirement
	xxii. Derivative Recourse Limitations
	xxiii. Counterparty and other Rigorous counterparty selection criteria shall be required Management of counterparty risk is required to reduce the possibility of the Fund being overly exposed to risk that a counterparty fails to fulfill its financial ...


	VII RISK MANAGEMENT & OVERSIGHT
	Market Risk ManagementRisk Parameters and Measures
	A. Credit Ratings for Fixed Income Securities
	A. Future Commitments - Future commitments are a function of committed capital to private investments where the general partner has the right to drawdown capital from the limited partners over a specified period of time. To mitigate the risk presented...
	A. In addition to this framework, APFC Staff will monitor regularly and report quarterly on a multitude of risks to the extent they are material, either on an absolute or relative basis, to the Board:
	A. Economic Environment;
	A. Country/Currency Risk;
	A. Counterparty Risk;
	A. Business Relationship Risk;
	A. Pricing Risk;
	A. Credit (Quality) Risk;
	A. Leverage;
	A. Debt Refinancing Risk;
	A. Active Risk Contribution;
	A. Liquidity Risk;
	A. Geographical Risk;
	A. Equity Style Risk;
	A. Fixed Income Risk;
	A. Ex-ante versus Ex-post VaR; and
	A. Ex-ante versus Ex-post Tracking Error
	A. Foreign Exchange Risk
	A. Investment managers and APFC Staff, may, with prior approval of the Executive Director, transact in any foreign exchange instrument (including currency futures and forward contracts, options, and swap agreements), to implement their investment stra...
	A. APFC Staff analyzes foreign exchange risk regularly and presents quarterly to the Board. This analysis includes both internal hedging and external foreign exchange overlay manager positioning and performance.
	B. Legal Risk Management
	C. Permitted Use of Leverage
	D. Foreign Exchange Risk

	VIII PUBLIC MARKETS INTERNAL & EXTERNAL PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENTR SELECTION
	A. Discretionary Internal versus External Managementr Searches and Selection
	A. The Board retains the authority to select internal versus external management of the Fund’s assets. The Board will consider recommendations from the Executive Director, CIO, Advisors and Consultants to manage portions of or entire investment progra...
	E. Manager Searches and Selection
	F. Alternative Manager Searches and Selection ProcessSpecial Situations
	G. Monitoring and Evaluation of Managers
	A. Manager Retention
	A. Manager Termination
	A. Reporting
	Appendix A: Investment Guidelines
	The objective of the APFC Investment Guidelines is to supplement the APFC Investment Policy  & Procedures by providing operational guidelines for APFC’s internally managed and external investment programsportfolio managers. The Executive Director may ...
	Fixed Income Plus, may, with prior written approval of the Chief Investment Officer, transact in

	Appendix B: Limit Ranges and Compliance Cure Periods
	i. Investment Process
	i. Diversification
	i. Liquidity

	Appendix A: Internal Investment Managers
	Appendix C:  Glossary
	Appendix D: Previous Investment Policy Adoption and Amendments
	Callan’s Capital Markets Projections (2018-20 27)


	17b_IPS_Clean_BOT
	I. INTRODUCTION
	A. Purpose
	1. The purpose of this Investment Policy (“Policy”) is to provide a formal plan for investing and managing the assets of the Alaska Permanent Fund and other state assets as prescribed by law (“Fund”) to achieve the defined investment objectives. This ...
	2. This document is not intended to be a static document and will be considered for possible amendment on an annual basis or any time the Board of Trustees (“Board”) modifies the Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation’s (“APFC”) investment-related policies...

	B. Roles of the Board, Staff, Consultants, and Advisors
	1. The Board has a responsibility to invest Fund assets in accordance with the Alaska Constitution and the prudent-investor rule provided in AS 37.13.120(a) – (e). The Board has adopted regulations (15 AAC 137.410 – 15 AAC 137.990), which define the e...
	2. The APFC Staff’s task is to invest and manage Fund assets to fulfill the Fund’s objectives, as specified by the Board, in this Investment Policy. Additionally, APFC Staff advises the Board about recommended changes to the asset allocation and this ...
	3. External consultants provide advice and implementation assistance to the Board and APFC Staff related to investment programs at both the overall Fund level (“General Consultant”) as well as for specific asset classes. The General Consultant also re...
	4. Consistent with the Board’s Charters and Governance Policies, up to three Investment Advisors are selected by the Board to provide education, advice, commentary, and discussion at Board meetings, or as requested by the Board.


	II. TOTAL FUND & PORTFOLIO DESIGN PHILOSOPHY
	A. Total Fund Objective
	1. Investment Performance: ability to generate an annualized return of CPI + 5% over a 10-year period (“long-term target”)
	2. Investment Risk: ability of the Fund to achieve the long-term target while conforming to the risk appetite approved by the Board

	B. Total Fund Asset Mix
	1. APFC’s investment programs are organized by asset class and APFC Staff assist the Board in engaging in an asset allocation study for the Fund at least once every five (5) years to review asset classes, risk-return assumptions, and correlations of i...
	2. Each asset class allocation percentage shall designate a “long-term target” position within the overall portfolio as well as maximum and minimum ranges around those targets, as outlined in Table1. Ranges are specified by a “green zone” which reflec...

	C. Total Fund and Asset Class Benchmarks
	Each asset class is associated with a benchmark that describes in general terms the opportunity set and return characteristics associated with the asset class (“Policy Benchmark”). For certain private market asset classes, the Policy Benchmark serves ...

	D. Total Fund Performance Measurement and Reporting
	1. The Board looks to its General Consultant as the primary source of quantitative evaluation of the performance of the Fund and its investment managers. As promptly as possible after the close of each calendar quarter, the General Consultant shall su...
	2. At each regular Board meeting, the General Consultant will also report on the investment performance of the Fund and each asset class in comparison with Fund peers (i.e., large US Public Funds and Endowment Funds). The comparative performance of th...

	E. Total Fund Portfolio Implementation and Delegations
	F. Relationship of the Investment Policy with Regulations and Investment Guidelines
	As required by AS 37.13.120(a), the Board has adopted Regulations specifically designating the types of investments in which Fund assets can be invested. All investments authorized by this Policy shall be limited to those authorized investments and in...


	III. PUBLIC MARKETS
	A. Public Equity
	1. Objective
	The objective of the Public Equity portfolio is to invest in publicly traded securities authorized in 15 AAC 137.440, to exceed the performance of a well-diversified pool of global equities embodied in the MSCI ACWI IMI Index, while maintaining risk s...
	2. Structure
	Consistent with performance objectives, applicable tracking error guidelines, and other investment restrictions described in this Policy and Investment Guidelines, the Public Equity portfolio may include:
	a. Actively and quasi-passively managed equity strategies to enhance the after-fee return of the portfolio relative to its assigned benchmark; and
	b. Passively managed equity strategies to replicate, in a cost-efficient manner, the returns of a benchmark index.

	3. Investment Strategy
	The Public Equity portfolio will be managed by a mix of external active managers, external passive managers and internal managers. In the case of active external managers, each manager, through an investment manager agreement (“IMA”), will be directed...
	The CIO may also approve the internal management of a portion of the Public Equity portfolio by APFC Staff. In place of an IMA, the CIO and ED will require the approval of and adherence to Investment Guidelines that cover the relevant aspects of the p...
	4. Rebalancing and Mandate Modification
	The Director of Public Equity may, with the approval of the CIO, rebalance assets to, from, or between individual Public Equity portfolios.
	Initiating or terminating external manager mandates requires the consent of CIO and ED and must conform to Section VIII of this Policy (Public Markets External Manager Selection).
	5. Risk Limits and Portfolio Restrictions
	The Director of Public Equity is responsible for managing the various risks incurred and adhering to the Investment Policy. In addition to general Policy requirements, the following asset class specific restrictions apply to this portfolio:
	a. Risk Limits as detailed in Table 3, Section VII.
	b. Short selling is prohibited by an internal or external manager of assets in this portfolio, unless authorized by the CIO and Chief Risk Officer (“CRO”).
	c. All derivatives in this portfolio must comply with Section VI (Authorized Use of Derivatives) of this Policy.
	d. All externally managed mandates must comply with Section VIII (External Manager Selection) of this Policy.


	B. Fixed Income
	1. Objective
	The objective of the Fixed Income portfolio is to provide income-oriented investment returns and diversify the risks of the Fund’s equity-oriented programs. The Fixed Income portfolio invests in publicly traded and other liquid income-oriented investm...
	2. Structure
	Consistent with performance objectives, applicable tracking error guidelines, and other investment restrictions described in this Policy and Investment Guidelines, the Fixed Income portfolio may include:
	a. Actively and quasi-passively managed income producing strategies that enhance the after-fee return of the Fixed Income portfolio relative to its assigned benchmark; and
	b. Passively managed income producing strategies to replicate, in a cost-efficient manner, the returns of a benchmark index.

	3. Investment Strategy
	4. Rebalancing and Mandate Modification
	The Director of Fixed Income may, with the approval of the CIO, rebalance assets to, from, or between individual Fixed Income portfolios.
	Initiating or terminating external manager mandates requires the consent of the CIO and ED, and must conform to Section VIII of this Policy (Public Markets External Manager Selection).
	5. Risk Limits and Portfolio Restrictions
	The Director of Fixed Income is responsible for managing the various risks incurred and adhering to this Policy. In addition to general Policy requirements, the following asset class specific restrictions apply to this portfolio:
	a. Risk Limits as detailed in Table 3, Section VII.
	b. Short selling is prohibited by an internal or external manager of assets in this portfolio, unless authorized by the CIO and CRO.
	c. All derivatives in this portfolio must comply with Section VI (Authorized Use of Derivatives) of this Policy.
	d. All externally managed mandates must comply with Section VIII (Public Markets External Manager Selection) of this Policy.


	C. Risk Parity
	1. Objective
	The objective of the Risk Parity portfolio is to deliver long-term returns that meet or exceed the performance of a 60% stock/40% bond portfolio through managers which seek to generate returns that are less correlated to global public markets utilizin...
	2. Investment Strategy
	The Risk Parity portfolio will be managed by external managers, selected in accordance with the requirements of this Policy, that provide risk-balanced exposure to multiple sources of excess expected return. Each manager, through an IMA or limited lia...
	3. Risk Limits and Portfolio Restrictions
	The Director of Risk Parity is responsible for managing the various risks incurred and adhering to this Policy. In addition to general Policy requirements, the following restrictions will apply to this portfolio:
	a. Risk Limits as detailed in Table 3, Section VII.
	b. Short selling is prohibited unless authorized by the CIO and CRO.
	c. All derivatives in this portfolio must comply with Section VI (Authorized Use of Derivatives) of this Policy.
	d. All externally managed mandates must comply with Section VIII (Public Markets External Manager Selection) of this Policy.


	D. Total Fund Cash
	1. Objective
	The objective of the Total Fund Cash portfolio is to:
	a. Be a source of funds available to meet the Fund’s operational needs, including capital calls and appropriations from the Earnings Reserve Account to the State’s general fund; and
	b. Allocate a small portion of the Fund to an asset class that is nearly risk-free and experiences extremely low volatility.

	Performance of this portfolio will be evaluated quarterly and will be measured against the risk and after-fee return of the 90 Day Treasury Bills Index, but success in achieving the long-term objective (see Table 2) will be measured, net of all costs ...
	2. Investment Strategy
	The Total Fund Cash portfolio will be internally managed at the direction of the CIO. The size and investment profile of this portfolio may fluctuate month-to-month to accommodate the Fund’s liquidity requirements. The CIO will have primary responsibi...
	3. Authorized Investments
	The CIO may invest this portfolio in cash and the following cash equivalents:
	a. US Treasuries with a maximum final maturity of 24 months;
	b. Investment Grade US corporate bonds with a maximum final maturity of 24 months;
	c. Reverse Repurchase Agreements (“Reverse Repo”), as authorized by 15 AAC 137.430(12);
	d. SEC registered money market investment funds;
	e. Other cash equivalents approved by the CRO and ED; and
	f. Gold-backed exchange traded funds as authorized by15 AAC 137.460.

	4. Risk Limits and Portfolio Restrictions
	The CIO is responsible for managing the various risks incurred and adhering to this Policy. In addition to general Policy requirements, the following specific restrictions will apply to this portfolio:
	a. Risk Limits as detailed in Table 3, Section VII.
	b. At any point, 80% of the portfolio should be invested in instruments with a final maturity not exceeding 181 days.
	c. Gold-backed exchange traded funds shall not exceed 50% of the Total Fund Cash portfolio at any time.
	d. Short selling is prohibited in this portfolio.
	e. All derivatives in this portfolio must comply with Section VI (Authorized Use of Derivatives) of this Policy.


	E. Securities Lending
	1. Authorized Investments
	The ED is authorized to enter into a securities lending agreement with the Fund’s custodian to lend domestic and non-domestic Public Equity and Fixed Income securities from the Fund’s portfolio directly to borrowers for a fee in accordance with the fo...
	a. The Fund’s custodian shall agree to indemnify the Fund against any direct loss from:
	i. a borrower default;
	ii. the reinvestment of cash collateral; and
	iii. the failure to comply with the terms and conditions of the lending agreements;
	b. Collateral shall be required at a minimum of 102% of the market value of the loaned securities which are denominated in the same currency as the collateral provided by the borrower;
	c. Collateral shall be required at a minimum of 105% of the market value of the loaned securities which are denominated in a currency other than the collateral provided by the borrower;
	d. Collateral and loaned securities shall be marked-to-market daily; and
	e. The investment of cash collateral posted by borrowers shall be restricted to those investment-grade securities permissible under the provisions of AS 37.13.120 and 15 AAC 137; unless the ED elects to have cash collateral released to the Fund to mee...



	IV. ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENTS
	A. Private Equity and Special Opportunities
	1. Objective
	The objective of the Private Equity & Special Opportunities (“PESO”) portfolio is to invest in illiquid growth-oriented assets authorized by 15 AAC 137.460 that are expected to generate risk-adjusted, after-fee returns that are superior to the Public ...
	2. Investment Strategy
	PESO investment strategies include: venture capital, growth equity, leveraged buyouts, special opportunities, and distressed debt. PESO portfolio investments will be executed through capital commitments to limited liability funds managed by external i...
	3. Diversification and Portfolio Restrictions
	The Deputy CIO-Private Markets & Alternatives is responsible for managing the portfolio risks and adhering to this Policy. In constructing a diversified PESO portfolio, APFC Staff will consider the following characteristics: strategy, geography, indus...
	a. Risk Limits as detailed in Table 3, Section VII.
	b. All derivatives in this portfolio must comply with Section VI (Authorized Use of Derivatives) of this Policy.
	c. The PESO portfolio shall be invested within the following strategy diversification ranges:
	i. Venture Capital – 5% to 45%;
	ii. Buyouts/Acquisition – 25% to 70%;
	iii. Specialized Funds/Investments – 0% to 50%;

	d. No more than 20% of the PESO Portfolio shall be invested with a single Investment Manager/General Partner.
	e. No more than 20% of the PESO Portfolio shall be invested in publicly traded securities; and
	f. Following the public listing of any shares of a portfolio company held by an APFC controlled investment vehicle, such shares shall be either liquidated consistent with SEC regulations within a reasonable period of time, not to exceed eighteen month...


	B. Real Estate
	1. Objective
	2. Investment Strategy
	Real Estate investments, as authorized in 15 AAC 137.450, shall primarily target:
	a. Directly-held income producing, core real estate globally;
	b. Directly-held build-to-core or other non-core properties;
	c. Equity and debt funds that invest predominantly in real estate strategies (e.g. core, core-plus, value-added, and opportunistic);
	d. Publicly traded funds (e.g. ETFs or Index), or securities (e.g. REITs, CMBS, or other structured product), where the underlying investments consist of real estate;
	e. Private funds, or securities (e.g., REITs, CMBS, or other structured product), where the underlying investments consist of real estate; and
	f. Co-investments alongside an existing Real Estate manager.
	The Director of Real Estate will have primary responsibility in executing the portfolio’s investment strategy.

	3. Diversification and Portfolio Restrictions
	The Director of Real Estate is responsible for managing the various risks incurred and adhering to this Policy. In constructing a diversified Real Estate portfolio, APFC Staff will consider the following characteristics: investment type, property type...
	a. Risk Limits as detailed in Table 3, Section VII.
	b. All derivatives in this portfolio must comply with Section VI (Authorized Use of Derivatives) of this Policy.
	c. No more than 60% of the directly-held Real Estate portfolio shall be invested in “non-core” real estate (value-add and opportunistic).
	d. The directly-held portion of the Real Estate portfolio will target the following property types: Multifamily, Industrial, Office, Hotel, and Retail with maximum weightings for each property type measured against NCREIF NPI benchmark weightings. Exc...
	e. In recognition that APFC Staff may pursue some niche property types that are not included in property types of the NCREIF NPI, the directly-held portion of the Real Estate portfolio may, with the consent of the CIO, include up to 10% in property ty...
	f. No more than 35% of the Real Estate portfolio shall be invested with a single investment manager/general partner as measured against the FY2025 target allocation for the Real Estate portfolio.
	g. Leverage on investments in the directly-held portion of the Real Estate portfolio shall be limited by investment type as follows:


	Infrastructure and Private Credit and Income Opportunities Portfolio
	C. Infrastructure Portfolio
	1. Objective
	2. Investment Strategy
	3. Risk Limits and Portfolio Restrictions
	a. Risk Limits as detailed in Table 3, Section VII.
	b. All derivatives in this portfolio must comply with Section VI (Authorized Use of Derivatives) of this Policy.
	c. Investments in multiple limited liability investment vehicles managed by the same manager are permitted, however, combined investments with a single manager shall not exceed 30% of the total Infrastructure portfolio.
	d. APFC assets invested with each manager shall not represent more than 30% of that manager’s AUM.


	D. Private Credit and Income Opportunities
	1. Objective
	2. Investment Strategy
	3. Risk Limits and Portfolio Restrictions
	a. Risk Limits as detailed in Table 3, Section VII.
	b. All derivatives in this portfolio must comply with Section VI (Authorized Use of Derivatives) of this Policy.
	c. Investments in multiple vehicles managed by the same manager are permitted, however, combined investments with a single manager shall not exceed 30% of the Private Income portfolio.
	d. APFC assets invested with each manager shall not represent more than 30% of that manager’s AUM.


	E. Absolute Return
	1. Objective
	2. Investment Strategy
	a. Relative Value, including equity market neutral, fixed income arbitrage, and convertible arbitrage;
	b. Event-Driven, including merger arbitrage, distressed securities/discounted bank debt, and special situations;
	c. Directional/Tactical/Opportunistic, including long-short equity, managed futures, and global macro; and
	d. Commodities, including gold-backed exchange traded funds. 

	3. Risk Limits and Portfolio Restrictions
	a. Risk Limits as detailed in Table 3, Section VII;
	b. Relative Value Managers in the range of 0 – 75%;
	c. Event Driven Managers in the range of 0 – 50%;
	d. Directional/Tactical/Opportunistic Managers in the range of 0 – 75%;
	e. Commodities, including gold-backed exchanged traded funds in the range of 0 – 50%;
	f. At least 50% of the portfolio shall be capable of being liquidated within a 12-month period; and
	g. APFC assets invested with each internal or external manager shall not represent more than 30% of that manager’s AUM.



	V. ALASKA IN-STATE INVESTMENT POLICY
	A. Objective and Considerations
	1. Honor AS 37.13.120(c): Prescribes that if an Alaskan investment has equivalent risk and expected return comparable to or better than a similar non-Alaskan investment, the Alaskan investment should be preferred.
	2. Require Compelling Risk-Adjusted Returns: To honor the prudent investor rule provided in AS 37.13.120(a), any Alaskan investment contemplated by APFC must be attractive on a stand-alone basis.
	3. Ensure Fund Diversification: In order to provide sufficient risk diversification as required under AS 37.13.120(c), Board approval is required for any in-state investment that would exceed 1% of the Fund, at the time of investment.
	4. Seek Participation by Another Institutional Investor: In order to ensure that an Alaskan investment opportunity is attractive on a stand-alone basis and satisfies the institutional quality requirements of 15 AAC 137.420, APFC should generally seek ...

	B. In-State Investment Targets
	1. By 2021, at least 3% of the Fund should be invested in-state;
	2. By 2022, at least 4% of the Fund should be invested in-state;
	3. By 2023, at least 5% of the Fund should be invested in-state;
	For purposes of this section, a Fund investment will be considered “invested in-state” if,

	1. An external investment manager has an office in Alaska and the employee(s) that is primarily responsible for management of the asset(s) is based in Alaska; or
	2. An external investment manager has an office in Alaska and the employee(s) that is primarily responsible for management of the asset(s) is based in Alaska; or
	3. The Fund’s investments managed internally by APFC Staff will not be included in achieving these targets.


	VI. AUTHORIZED USE OF DERIVATIVES
	A. Objective
	B. Derivatives Definition; Scope
	1. As defined in 15 AAC 137.990(6), “Derivative” means “an instrument whose value, usefulness, and marketability is dependent upon or derives from an underlying asset; classes of derivatives include futures contracts, options, forward contracts, inclu...
	2. Both exchange traded and over the counter (“OTC”) derivative instruments are under the scope of this Policy. The principal risk of derivatives strategies comes from the potential to lever the portfolio and to express a view on a security or risk fa...
	a. Well-defined uses for derivatives, and avoidance of leverage;
	b. Manager-by-manager limits on economic exposures through derivatives; and
	c. Investment manager internal control and defined procedures for managing risk.


	C. Permitted Uses
	1. Permitted uses of derivatives include:
	a. Hedge and control risks of Fund portfolios so they better align with benchmarks and objectives;
	b. Efficiently manage portfolio exposures synthetically as opposed to trading underlying securities;
	c. Build portfolios with targeted risk and return characteristics that otherwise could not be efficiently created with securities; and
	d. Facilitate rebalancing.

	2. Derivative Pre-Approval Requirement
	a. Has demonstrated investment expertise in the use of derivatives for the strategy they have been selected to implement;
	b. Has appropriate risk management and valuation policies and procedures in place;
	c. Has legal and investment experience to limit downside effects of the proposed derivatives; and
	d. Has demonstrated the ability to effectively monitor and control the use of derivatives and has agreed to provide monthly derivative exposure reports which detail:
	i. Total derivative exposures on a gross and net basis,
	ii. Total collateral/margin postings on gross and net basis, and
	iii. A list of authorized counterparties and exposure by counterparty.


	3. Derivative Recourse Limitations
	4. Counterparty and other Requirements
	a. The counterparty to any OTC derivative transaction must have a credit rating of at least A- (Standard and Poor’s) or A3 (Moody’s), unless an exception is approved in writing by the CIO and CRO;
	b. The net market value, net of all collateral postings, of all OTC derivatives for any individual counterparty may not exceed 30 basis points of the total market value of the Fund.;
	c. Selling (writing) uncovered options is prohibited;
	d. The net of long and short dollar exposures to assets or currencies, whether derived from physical or derivative securities, must be less than or equal to the dollar market value of the portfolio, except for very small, inadvertent, or temporary amo...
	e. The gross dollar exposures of a portfolio in the Fund from physical and derivative securities (futures, options, swaps) cannot exceed 300% of the market value of the aggregate underlying portfolio at all times unless authorized by the CRO; and
	f. If derivatives are used by a manager to actively manage currency exposure, net short exposure to any single currency remains within limits established for that manger’s strategy.



	VII. RISK MANAGEMENT & OVERSIGHT
	A. Risk Parameters and Measures
	1. Active Risk - Tracking error is a measure of how closely a portfolio follows the index to which it is benchmarked. Tracking error is calculated for this purpose on an ex-ante basis using a holdings-based risk analytical system.
	2. Relative Risk Limit - Relative Value at Risk (RVaR) provides a comparison of portfolio risk relative to benchmark risk and is measured as a ratio of Portfolio VaR to benchmark VaR.
	1. Downside Risk - Downside risk is risk of significant loss of capital. Staff will actively monitor the Fund’s downside risk relative to the risk benchmark using scenario analysis and stress testing.
	2. Proxy Securities and Indices - If necessary and prudent, as determined by the CRO, APFC Staff will employ index proxies to approximate the economic characteristics of specific investments to the extent that the terms and conditions of those investm...

	B. Credit Ratings for Fixed Income Securities
	1. In case of split ratings, the ‘Bloomberg Barclays Middle Rating’ methodology shall be applied (i.e. if all three agencies rate a security, the middle rating is adopted; if only two agencies rate a security, the most conservative (lowest) rating is ...
	2. If none of the three agencies have assigned a rating, ratings by other agencies and or implied ratings may be used with CRO approval.
	3. If no agency ratings are available and a rating cannot be implied, it shall be categorized as ‘Unrated’.

	C. Legal Risk Management
	D. Permitted Use of Leverage
	E. Foreign Exchange Risk
	1. External managers and APFC Staff may, with prior approval of the CIO, transact in any foreign exchange instrument (including currency futures and forward contracts, options, and swap agreements), to implement their investment strategies, contingent...
	2. APFC Staff shall analyze foreign exchange risk regularly and present quarterly to the Board. This analysis includes both internal hedging and external foreign exchange overlay manager positioning and performance.

	F. Risk Compliance, Monitoring, and Reporting
	G. Risk Parameters and Limits

	VIII. PUBLIC MARKETS EXTERNAL MANAGER SELECTION
	A. Manager Search and Selection
	1. Setting of relevant search criteria by APFC Staff of applicable manager qualifications;
	2. Identification, with the assistance of the consultant, of a list of potential managers that are qualified to provide the investment management services needed, based on the qualifications and other search criteria established by APFC Staff;
	3. Evaluation by a review committee established within the consultant's organization of the list of potential, qualified managers identified for recommendation of consideration by APFC Staff;
	4. Informing the CIO of managers recommended by the General Consultant's review committee;
	5. Selection by APFC Staff of between three and five finalists from those recommended by the consultant's review committee. This process may include, as part of due diligence, on-site visits by APFC Staff. Presentations to APFC Staff by the recommende...
	6. Analysis by APFC Staff including a detailed recommendation to the CIO and ED, considering manager-specific characteristics as well as portfolio considerations;
	7. Approval of the new manager or advisor by the CIO and ED, assignment of benchmarks as appropriate, and determination of the initial amount to be placed under management with the manager;
	8. A manager shall also be required to execute a written IMA with the APFC. The IMA shall address matters of performance, compensation, term/termination, investment guidelines, among others, as the APFC and the manager consider necessary and appropria...
	9. Review and approval by the CRO and General Counsel of the proposed IMA is required prior to execution.

	B. Special Situations
	1. A manager under consideration for hire has already been vetted in a significant manner either through a search process with a qualified consultant, or the manager is already employed in a manager capacity by APFC;
	2. The skill for which the manager is being considered is related in a substantive manner to the role the manager already fulfills for APFC or was the subject of a manager search that first identified this manager;
	3. It is in the best interest of the Fund to move more quickly than the typical search procedure permits; or
	4. Due to confidentiality or specificity of the investment strategy or structure, use of the typical search procedure is not prudent.
	The CIO and ED are required to report use of the alternative manager search and selection process, along with the rationale for the use, at the next regularly-scheduled Board meeting.

	C. Monitoring and Evaluation of Managers
	1. The Board expects APFC Staff to monitor the performance of the Fund's external managers, using the quarterly quantitative performance reports prepared by the General Consultant and Asset Class-specific Advisors in the case of Private Markets and Al...
	2. The CIO and ED shall report to the Board any special concerns or observations they may have with respect to the performance of a manager no later than the next regular meeting of the Board.
	3. The Board authorizes the CIO and ED to terminate an investment manager. If the CIO and ED terminate or give notice of unsatisfactory performance to a manager, they shall inform the Board of the actions and rationale at the next regularly scheduled ...


	Appendix A:  Investment Guidelines
	Objective
	A. Alaska Direct Alternative Credit Investment Guidelines
	1. ADAC shall be included in the Special Opportunities / Income Opportunities category.
	2. Size and Funding Schedule
	a. $500 million funded at inception, initially invested in Liquid Portfolio.
	b. Following inception, additional funds will be invested into ADAC through cash transfers to the Liquid Portfolio and capital calls into the Private Portfolio for co-investments, or working capital or organizational expenses for the Private Credit Co...
	c. Funding of additional cash transfers to the Liquid Portfolio will be done at no greater than a 1:1 ratio with cumulative Private Portfolio capital calls.
	d. Invested capital of $1,000 million targeted to be funded within 24 months of inception.

	3. Portfolio Control and Decision Making
	4. Liquid Portfolio and Benchmark
	5. Private Portfolio and Benchmark
	a. Private Portfolio, initially 0% of ADAC, ultimately scaling to greater than 50%, will be managed by the Private Income team.
	b. Targeted maximum allocation will be 75% of ADAC NAV.
	c. Targeted minimum allocation will be 25% of ADAC NAV (after initial, 24-month ramp-up).
	d. Private Portfolio will target having a minimum of $100 million committed within 12 months of inception and a minimum of $250 million within 24 months of inception.
	e. Co-investment opportunities will be primarily sourced through existing managers.
	f. Maximum commitment per co-investment of $75 million without ED written approval.
	g. Private Portfolio will be benchmarked to CPI + 500 bps.

	6. Overall ADAC Portfolio Benchmarks
	7. Tenor and Termination



	Appendix B:  Limit Ranges & Compliance Cure Periods
	A. The Green Zone is the Board-approved CIO operating range.
	B. The Yellow Zone is the Board approved ED operating range.
	C. The Red Zone is the operating range that requires Board approval.

	Appendix C:  Glossary
	Appendix D:  Previous Investment Policy Adoption & Amendments

	0000_Insert Pages
	18_Alternative Investment Pacing (May 2020) vF
	 Alternative Investments
	Commitment Pacing for Alternative Assets
	Pacing Methodology
	Private Equity + Special Opportunities
	Private Equity Exposure
	Investment Pacing – FY2020 vs. FY2021 Proposed
	Proposed Pacing and Projected Exposures
	Investment Pacing – Sensitivity Analysis
	Private Income
	Private Income Exposure
	Proposed Pacing and Projected Exposures
	Sensitivity Analysis
	Summary– FY2021 Pacing Proposal 

	0000_Insert Pages
	19_In-State Update v5.0 BOT
	Potential In-State Expansion
	Context
	In-State Investment
	In-State Investment (continued)
	Phase I
	Phase I -- Other Actions if APFC Elected to Proceed
	Phase I – Organizational Depiction
	Phase III – APFC could create and expand an investment platform
	Phase III -- Other Actions if APFC Elected to Proceed

	0000_Insert Pages
	20a_FY20 Budget Projections Memo
	20b_FY20 Board Budget Projections Report
	BOT report

	20c_FY21 Budget Approval Memo
	20d_FY20 Budget Projections & FY21 Budget Authorization
	FY20 Budget Projections 
	Two Allocations - 
	Corporate Operations	
	Total Corporate Operations
	Personal Services
	Personal Services Surplus
	Travel
	Contractual Services
	Commodities
	Equipment
	Investment Management Fees
	Capital Project
	Questions?
	FY21 Budget Authorization
	FY21 BOT Budget Request	
	Change from FY20
	HB205
	Motion to Authorize Expenditure

	0000_Insert Pages
	21b_2021 Calendar



